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HIGHLIGHTS

> Excellent financial » Positive reservatfions and

performance rental outiock for 2016/17
> Visible eamings » Development pipeline
growth outloak remains sirong
> Growth prospects
remain strong
Eamings pey share' 2 Dividend per shore
Net asset volue® Tokal cecounting retum
Profit before frax Loan-ka-vaive ratio

The finoncial statements ane prapared in accordonce with iIntemational Financial
Reporting Standands (IFRS}. These financial ghlights ane based on the Eumpean Public
Raal Esiate Assaciation [EPRA] best practice recommendalions and these performance
measures are published as they are infended 1o heio users in the comparabiity of these
nesulls acrass other istad real estate compantes in Europe. The melrics are also used
intamally to measure and manoge the business and olign 1o the performance reicted
conditions for Directors' Remuyneration.®

2 2015 and 2014 EPS is bosad on adiusted EPRA eamings

* A full reconcifiation of the financial statements signed under IFRS fo the EPRA
performance medasures is sét out in note 2.2 of the financial statements,

161  Reod more on owr frequently used terms: Glossary

PROVIDING HOMES FOR OVER

49,000

STUDENTS

DELIVERED BY

1,450

PASSIONATE
PEOPLE

OPERATING

140

PROPERTIES

WE WORK CLOSELY WITH

60

UNIVERSITIES
ACROSS THE UK

FOCUSING ON

24

UNIVERSITY TOWNS
AND CITIES



CELEBRATING
25 YEARS

s, WE ARE THE LARGEST AND 200
;@; MOST EXPERIENCED PROVIDER £090
3\"%/: OF PURPOSE BUILT STUDENT kst

ACCOMMODATION IN THE UK. wetauncnii

992 1994 1999 200

We open our first property We acquire more propertiesin We ore listed on the Altemative We form Evrop
in Bristol where we remain Bristol and start specialist property investment Market {AIM) specialist stude
head-quartered and now management services investment fun:
have 140 properties, housing Accommocdati
49,000 students for the 20i4/17

academic year

1998 2000

We open our first London properties We are floated on London Stock
Exchonge to expand info Manchester,
Liverpool and Portsmouth
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Wth property -

tventure with GIC
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e's largest unlisted
it accommodation

d, the Unite UK Student

on fund [USAF}

2009

We are voted one
of ‘Britain’s Top
Empioyers’ by the
CRF Institute

2010

We open a new

London offica which

pravides o base for
our praperty and
development teams

2011

We have grown 1o house 40,000
stuctants in 135 propertias acrass 24
Liniversity Jowns and cities every year

We are gwarded the Investors in
Paople Sitver Award

We kaunch our employee recognition
programme — the Stars Awaords

2012

We found ond donate £8 rmillion

to the Unite Foundation ~ a charity
1o support students withaut famiy
support. Cur first 28 students ane
recruifed through four universifies
and receive scholarships made up
of accormmodation and a living
allowance 1o support them through
their study years

We raise £90 millon after issuing
a retailbond

We kiunch the London Student
Accommodafion Yehicle (LSAV]

We scoop the Student
Accornmodotion Operglor of the
Year awond af Property Week's RESI
owords which celebrale successes
in the residential property seclor

2014

We launch our business purpose,
Home for Success

We nvest £21 milllon in improving
lighting ocross oll of our buildings
1o benefit our stydents and

the environment

2016

we are owarded the Investors in People
Gold Award

Wa open Q sales ond morketing office
1N Beqing

we donate afurther £5 milion to the
Linite Foundation in the form of USAF unifs

Our students and emplayees raise
£175,000 for Sport Relief

We scoop the Student Accommodation
Operator of the Year award at Progerty
Week's RESI awards for the third time

2015

Wae become the first Living Woge
Employer in our sector

The first four unite foundation
scholars graduate

The Notional Union of Students
Qwards our students 12 Green

Impact Awards for their sustainable
wark while fiving with us

e ———————
1/2 MILLION
STUDENTS
HOUSED
SINCE 1991
e ————
WE LAUNCHED
OUR INNOVATIVE
TECHNOLOGY
SOLUTION, PRISM
———————
WE EXPANDED
OUR BUSINESS,
OPENING AN
OFFICE IN CHINA
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STRONG
FOUNDATIONS

FOR THE FUTURE

More than half a million students have lived
with us during our 25-year history and we
continue to grow. In 2014, we opened five
new properlies which means we have the
privilege of housing our largest ever number
of students, 49,000. As the UK's biggest and
most established provider of purpose built
student accommodation we have learmnt

a huge amount from our students and

the universities with which we work.

It is crifical to our 1,450 employees
that we Use our unique experience
fo continue to develop the most
supportive student experience,
which delivers for our current and
future students, our universities and,
of course, for our employees.

Qur consistently strong
performance throughout 2016
and visible development pipeline
and operational experlise mean
we are well positioned to deliver
sustainable eamings growth in
the coming years for our investors.

2 For more information
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WHERE WE OPERATE

(UE OPERATE ACROSS THEUKIN  7omrom mromertis
24 CITIES, UITH OUR TOP TEN by value
MARKETS MAKING UP 75% OF OUR

TOTAL BEDS. 47% OF OUR CAPITAL

IS INVESTED IN LONDON.

1

Moonroker Point, London bods: 74 (Wholly ownexs)
Moorraker Pont Gffers 147 shudios 0Nd 527 rooms

in cluster fiats, Stucted in Zone 1 andnext o the

Tarte Modem, Moorvoker Point provides ahome

for KGng's Colege: London students.

Ovur development and forward
funds plpeline

This is our development pipeline until 2019
Once complate it will bring 6,965 beds to the market.

® oo - o -

| |

‘ New openings 1 Opening * Opening | Opening
In 2016 l In 2017 | In2018 In 2019

l Greethom Street, Porlsmouth ' $t Leonords, Edinburgh l Newgale Sivest, Newcartie Skehome, Liverpoot
(Wholly owned)* {Wholly ownad) i (Wholty owned) (Wholty owned)
836 beds 581 beds $75bads ; 1,085 beds
Couysewayend, Aberdeen | MiManniom Way, Covanlry Brunel House, Brisiol Old BRI, Bristol
(Wholly owned) ; {Wholly owned) {Wholly owned) {Wholly owned)

| 399 beds " 391 beds 232 beds [ 704 beas
Far Gosford Strasl, Covaniry Tora House, Liverpool | ChaucerHouse, Portsmouth  Constitulion Sireet,
{Wholly owned}* (Wholly owned) {Whally owned) { Aberdeen
2864 beds 776 beds | 484beds [(Wholty owned)
Stapleton House, London Beech House, Oxford® l St Vincents, Sheffield J 400 beds
(L5AV) {USAF} 167 beds (Wholly owned)
842 beds i Lutton Count, Edinburgh® | 5450ads
Olympic Way, London [USAF) 237 bads Intemalional House, Bimingham ’
(LSav) (Wholly cwned)
699 beds B4 beds J
Naw beds New beds ; New beds J New beds
——— !

3082 12152 2422 2391

* Soid 1o USAF dunng 2016
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Ylapleion House, London
Bads 862 (LSAY)

Great value, high qualily
student occommmodation
next o Holloway Rood
fube station, quick inks

to ol central London
Universitias,

$tratéord ONE, London
dedx 1,001 {Wholly owned)
This 28 floor property is
Ynite's lorgest in London
with pancramic views
Qcross Londen and the
Otyripic Park,

The Maza, leeds

Seds 1,500 (USAF)
Completedin two phases,
the property & corvenient
for both Universihes in
Leeds. it offers arange

of en-suite rooms in

Wobum Place, London
Sadx 455 (LSAV)
Wolbum Pioce is iceqly
located odjocent to three
Uiniversity compuses and is
at the heart of student fife
meental London.

St Pancras Way is a short
walk frorm King's Cross and
St Poncres stations. The:
building provides a home
for 571 UCL students.

Angsi Lane, London
Bedx: 759

Opened in September
2015 with a remge of

en suite and stucto
accommodation, Angel
tane s located it Stratfora
with Westfield shopping
cantre and the Olympic
Park onthe doonsten.

1a

Emily Bowes Courl. London
Reds: SY3(USAF)
A

conlemporary rom
design, Zone 3 location
and quick finks info central
London make this o
popniar cholce for
students seeking alower
rent offering.

Otympic Way, Landan
Becic 499 (LSAV)
Opened In September
2014, this property
offers 0 broad mange
of studlio rooms and
providing quack hnks

to cenbral London,

Campus-style fving within
Q city cenire ervironment
prowding homes

for students of both
Universities in Sheffield.

Top ten cities In which we operate®

Rank  City Do S v A i
Q@ onwn 10,124 22.706 35%
(] Birmingharm 4846 57.767 8.4%
) Sheffield 373 51,095 7.3%
O Bristol 3.479 Tazme sax
6 Leeds 3458 53,185 65%
©  vonchester 2336 65,664 3.6%
® venoo 2.239 46.245 45%
Q@ rotmoun 2222 18,628 n8%
Q Leicester 1,687 33,299 5.1%
9 Glasgow 1.643 57.921 2.8%
Tolal 35,765 7% 5.0%
Proporiion of Unile porifolio 5%

* Top fen cities in which we operate has been adjusted to reflect the
portfolio changes in February 2017, Aston University on-campus
acguisition (3,047 beds| and the regional portfolio disposal [4.175 beds)

i ; % copital investad in London

34 Read more: Propearty review
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OUR PURPOSE

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCDUNTS 2014

Home for success
Individually and
collectively, our 1,450
people are driven by

a Commaon purpaose:

to provide the students
who live with us a 'Home
for Success'. This means
providing the best home
for all students, helping
them grow and succeed
at University and beyond.

We do so through the
passion of aur people,
great properties and g
deep-rooted commitment
fo customer service for
both our students and
our University partners.

The best home...

We provide a high quallty ond secure Rving
smvironment whers young people con develop
academically and soclally.

Becouse we know that while, for most people.
University ks o time of excilement and opportunity,

it can alsc be a time of anxiety and stress. Qur
research shows thot students who feel well
infegrated are more resilient and befter equipped
1o navigate the fransition to University. we therefore
aim 1o provide on envionmant, which, in every way,
helps them achieve this.

for all shudents...

Wa undersiand that a Universily education is
nowadays a significant investment fer young people
and belleve thot no-one should miss out simply
because of thek personal circumsiances.

we therlore offer a variety of accommeodation

ot different price points, ranging from rooms with
shared bathraoms, to chusters of ensuite bedrooms
with shared kitchens and living spaces to setf-
contained studio apartments. In oddition, the Unite
Foundotion i cusrently providing accommoddation
and a generous iving allowance for 134 students
from severely disadvantaged backgrounds ot
Universities across the UK.

helping them grow and succeed...

For many people. University is wheme the academic
foundations of ther career are igid. But, for every
genenction of students, University is more than simply
© stepping stone to a job.

it moukds themn as individuals and provides a crifical
bridge to adulthood, where they can learm the
Interpersonol skills they will need for fife. We therefore
airn to crecte an environment that is caring and
supportive but also aliows our students fo express
their natural desine for independence.

at university and beyond...

We befeve that where a shudent livas has a material
impact on ther ocodemic and social experience of
University ang, ulimately. ther ives.

Through our people. our buildings and our focus on
customer service, we aim to help our students make
the transition from leenagers o reslient adults,
equipped for everything thatlies aheod. We
regulary maasure how wellwe are meeting ther
needs and are confinuously lcoking for ways to
improve our proposition.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Delivering our purpose through our business model

Unite Students is the seclor-leading
manager and developer of student
accommodation, with a high quality.
wel-localed portfolio of approximately
140 properties in the UK's strongest
University towns and cifies. We have a
customer-focused opproach and work
closety with our University partners o
provide o seamless service o over 42000
students, providing them with a safe and
secure home at awide range of price

points and room sizes, tailoring our service

fo meet their needs.

Qur focused business model seeks io
defliver low double-digh iotal retums and
sustainable, growing earnings, by
maintoining ow competitive advantage.
growing and maintaining the highest
Quality portfolio and being the most
frusted brand in the sector, underpinned
by a strong capital structure.

11 Read more;: Market review
12 Read more; Relationships

‘We operate through hwo maoin Business Unitss
Operations and Property. Qur Qperations
unit is responsible for the portfolio, including
those owned by our co-investment vehicles,
USAFand LSAV. We aim 1o deliver operating
cashfiows and earnings, detivering
sustainable annualgrowth in rental income
and profits, increasing the value of

ouwr nvestment portfolio through the
strengthening of our rand., Qur operating
platform PRISM enhances and improves
our operational capabilities, delivering
improvements to customer services,
revenue managemeant and demonstrating
the efficiencies of scale.

The Property business unit s responsible
for our development and asset
management sirategy and ovearsees our
two co-investment vehicles, We identify
and manage acquisitions, disposals and
the development of operational assets
that enable us to leverage our highly
scaloble operating platform.

26 Read more: Piincipal risks
and uncerioinfies

30 Read rnore: Operations review

Delivering great custormer service and
building strong relationships with our
University pariners, the comrmunities in
which we: cperate, our customers,
suppliers and |,.450 empioyees is crucial
to our success.

We work strategically with University
leaders, using our knowiledge and
experience lo help them with the
realisation of their estates and residences
strategies. We invest in our employees ond
support their development, helping them
achieve their personal and professional
potential. We work closely with the local
community, from the eorly stages of
deavelopment and pkanning to providing
apportunities for students living with us fo
volunteer and bring positive benefits to
the areq in which thay live. Overall, we
aim to provide the hormes and services
that enable and support our students’
personal and acodemic achievements.

34 Read more: Properly review
40 Read more: Ainancial review
44 Read more:Uptous
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in 2016 we welcomed our largest ever number
of students, 49,000. We are the first home from
home for the majority of our students meaning
that almost one in 10 first year students live
with us. We are responsible for more students
than any single University.



DELIVERING
FOR OUR

STUDENTS

PRISM

We launched our innovative
technology solution, PRISM,
which provides a huge range
of benefits for cur students,

We will be able fo process their
bookings much quicker and book
them inlo ther roorns faster when
they amive fo stay with us. PRISM also
has the capacity to speed up how
we con respond to student requests
on mainterance issues,

15 For rmore information

Ambassador programme
In 2016 we piloted our Student
Ambassador programme,
which aimed fo icentify
students fiving with us who were
willing and passionate to shane
their own first-hand exgerience
to help our new students
throughout their time with us.

The 12 initial Ambassadars were
recruited across four City locations
and actively engoged in helping
new students, particularly during
the on-boanding experience. The
Ambassadors quickly becarne
recognised by new arrivals as the
‘go o' people 1o help them fo settle
in and the programme will continue
to develop.

Focus on employability

As part of our Home for
Success commitment, our
Employability initiative identifies
ways in whichwe can help
students ond their friends

to be successful in increasing
their employability once they
finish their University studies.

The Student Ambassador programme
pioted in 2014 was seen as a polential
slepping stone to identifying such
future opportunities, while ouronline
Student Life Hub was also furthar
developed in 2014 to include
employability ips,

Meonwhile, for students who finshea
thetr University course in 2016, the Unbe
Students Internship programme gove
students the space and toots fo leam
more obout our business, while building
empioyable skills. Ten students joined
us as interns in 2014, working in ol parts
of the business.

45 For more inforrnation
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DELIVERING
FOR OUR

UNIVERSITIES

Our long-term agreements with more
than 40 Universities across England and
Scofiand guarantee that more than §0%
of our students are allocated rooms In our
buildings. As student numbers Increase
and Universities seek to altract students,
they look to us to support them by
providing attractive accommeodation
that fits with thelr student sirategies.

Further strengthening

our University parinerships
Dedicated University
partnership feam working
collaborcatively with our

60 University partnets,

70%

of 2016 openings are let to
Universities under namination
ogreements

58%

of all rvoms let through
University ogreements

—

] For more information

First move info on-campus
In Birmingham

Aston Student Village

[ASV] acquisition in central
Birmingham comprises
3.067 rooms in our first move
ON-CamMps.

34 For more information

“1 Just think the Unite
product Is inspirational.

I think as o brand, they're
ahead of other providers
in that they've kept

the prices not at an
unreasonable level.”

Unite Students Reputation Survey,

2016 - an independent survey of
Higher Education institutes

P33 For more information
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Invesiors in

People Gold

Unite Students joined the elite
group of UK companies to
achieve the coveted Investors
in People Gold accreditation
in 2016.

Developing our tearms continyes to
be a privrity for us and this cccolade
recognises that by providing effective
progrommes Qcross the company,
our teams con deliver excellent
customer service, while offering

a great pkace to work with

Q clear commitment to

developing employees,

tiving Wage

2016

We were proud 10 receive the
Living Wage accreditation

Training

We have confinued to develop
our comprehensive range of
high quality training courses and
developmen! programmes for
our employees at all levels. In
total, 4,100 training days were
delivered to help emplovees
evolve their skills and grow in
landem with the company.

Our leadership framewoerk has ako
continued to mature, with 43 delegates
aftending leadership coursas
throughout the year including

the programmes Becoming o
Supervisor, Becoming a Manager
and leadership development.

4,100

We offered a tolal of 4,100 training
days in 2016

Other related content
15 Chief Executive’s review

EL Operotions review
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DELIVERING
FOR OUR

3
3,
g
PEOPLE |

We have 1,450 employees at Unite

Studentis with the majority working

with our students in 24 towns and

cliies. They are supported by

250 people In our Bristol support

centre. Our property and development o

team have a central London base. g
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RELATIONSHIPS

WE RECOGNISE THAT THE STRENGTH
AND SUCCESS OF OUR RELATIONSHIPS
ACRQSS A VARIETY OF STAKEHOLDERS
HELP US TO CREATE LONG-TERM VALUE

FOR THE BUSINESS.

Qur success is founded on delivering great customer service and building strong
redationships with our University partners, the communities in which we operate,

ouf customers ond employees.

We are commitied to high athical standards in ihe way in which we engage with
our customers, partners, employees, sharehoiders, suppliers and other stakeholders.
Qur repufation as the most trusted brand in ocur sector is founded on our achievement

of these high standards.

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2816

Investors and stakeholders

We seek jo provide balanced, clear
and transparent communications that
allow our sharehaolders ta better
understand the business and our
strategy. through a programme of
reguiar meetings, Capital Markets Days,
results briefings and frading updates
with its institutional shareholders, equity
analysts and investors. These provide
opportunities fo discuss the progress

of the business. All presentations given
to institutional shargholders are made
available on our website.

In April 2014, we hosted a Copital
Markets Day which allowed investors
to view Gur Caventry portfolio and
development pipefine and the
opportunity to interact with our
culling-edge operating platform,
PRISM. In December 2014, a second
Capital Markets Day held in London
included demanstrations on how
PRISM improves and streamlines

our operations.

Universities

We aim lo maintain the strong
relgtionshins we hove built with our
University partners who trust Unite
Shydents to provide students with a
safe and secure home that supports
their parsonal and academic
achievemant. In 20146, we have
continued 1o grow the proportion of
beds let through University partnerships,
increasing the percentage of the
partfolio let under nominations
ogreements with Universities, to 58%.

We con boost our recruitmen by offering
assurances to students (and thelr
parents) about quality accommodation.
When we yndemtood Unite was building
naxt to Wembley Stadlum we took the
oppottunity to take the whole buliding
for our students at the stat of the 2016/17
ocademic year. We beleve this will help
our University becomse part of the
excifing regenerated communiy arcund
the stadlum, enhancing the experience
for our cument and future students.

James Kennedy
Chief Financial Ofticer,
Middiesex University

Sludents

Unite Students is focused on providing
quality services to its students, at no
extra cost, 1o ensure that they have
the best resources and facilities
avaikable. This includes SOMB/s Wi-Fi
access, free fortnightly cleaning
services for shared spaces, discounts
with retail partners and allinclusive bills
and insurance. We also offer a numbar
of careear opporiunities to help them
develap their employability and life skils.

We have also continued 16 add to
the My Unite app and our online
platforen, the Student Life Hub which
has improved cur ability to
communicate in real-time with our
students and engage with them on
relevant, interesting and useful topics.

Students’ welfare is a core priority for
Unite and there are a number of
initiatives in plkace to help better
understand and address the issues
facing students, conducting extensive
research and working closely with
University partners to iclentity and
support struggling students.

The impact the Foundation scholarship
had on my academic ability and my
life in general has been immense. It
provided me with a safe, comforiable
and independent environment -a
space | couid call my own. And, most
importanily, o space which wasn't
going to sprout legs and run away.

Emlly Drew
A student and Unite Foundation
graduate 2018
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People

Qur peopie are at the heart of our
business and our engagement with
all of our stakeholders. We recruyit,
develop and ratain employees in
accordance with the following key
themes: Resourcing, Reward, Talent
and HR Policies and Procedures,
Diversity and Cutture.

we are committed fo fostering o
diverse and inclusive workforce with

a culture that is rewarding for all of our
people and that remains engaging
and challenging. we want to maintain
our culture, which defivers high
empioyee retention rates and career
development.

The welfare and professional
develocpment of our employeesis a
high pricrity for us. We have effective
systemns through which can identify
appropriate, high quaiity Iraining
programmes for our employees 1o
evolve their skills and grow in fandem
with the company.

| have werked ot Unite Sludents for
nearly 12 years. | have lsamt and
gained s0 much through my lime
here, & raclly has been a great
experience. | started off oz @
caretaker I Birmingharm but | always
hod a parficular interest in electrical
work and rmy menior at the ime,

sow potential In me. Wihh his and the
business’ help | was able go back to
college to complete my basic English
ond Numsracy exoms ond move on
to study to be an Bectdclan.

Jon Cash
Unite Students Central
Compllance Team

Suppliers

We rely on the skrong relationships
that we develop with our suppliern
and partners. We aim to ensure they
share our cofporate commifment

1o providing excellent service to our
customers and wider stokeholders,
and that they are most sufted to our
long-term strategy. By selecting the
right suppiliers through arigorous
tender process, we can ensure that
they enable us to drive efficiancies
ond improve margins, from both

an operational and o development
point of view, This enables the
farming of strong. strategic and
mutually beneficiol partnesships with
consistently high stondards of quality
and innovation.

Technology is an important resource
for Unite Students and following the
appointment of a supplier, we
conduct ongoing and regular vendor
management activities through
collaboration between the
Procurement and IT departments. This
process is designed to not only monitor
performance against agreed levels,
hut to ensure we continue fo take a
leading role in industry developments,

Forbo Fooring Systerns have been
working with Unfte for over four years
now, and it Is a partnership we are
proud fo be part of. From working

with the accommodation designers
o ensure wa get the right Hooring
solutions for the applicalion, fo
monaging the glant logistics and stock
conlrol recuiremants to snswre projects
run smodathly, we are pleased fo be post
of the process svery slep ofthe way.

Elizatyeth Bushell
Key Accounis Manager,
Forbo Flooring Sysiems

Charities and communities

We appreciate the centrairole that
we play in the many communifies we
occupy across the UK. We work closely
with the local community, from fhe
early stages of development and
planning to providing opportunities for
students living with Us to volunteer and
bring positive benefits to the area in
which they live,

In 2016, in support of our 2016 charity,
Sport Relief, cur students, people and
morathon static cycling world record
holder Jamie McDonald cycled
43,000 miles and raised £175.000 on
The World's Biggest *Virtual' Tandem.
This included a static bike challenge
in 24 cities where we have student
accommodation and the John
O'Groats to Lands End challenge.

We also continued our national
volunteering programme. lounched

in 2015, which allows avery employee

¢ paid day to voiunteer for a good
cause. We also encourage our students
to voluntear and support local and
national charities, For example through
clothing donofions alone we rased
£140,000 for Cancer Research, The Unite
Foundation continues to support young
peopie from the most challenged
backgrounds achieve a degree.,

We are delighted thal Unlte Sludents
took on this amazing challenge and
rolsed such a fantastic amount for
Sport Redfief 2014, The money rolsed
will help give sxtremely vuinerable
and disadvaniaged people in the
UK, ond acrass the world's poorest
communities, a helping hand to tum
their ives around.

Anne-Ceclie Berthier

Head of Fundraising & Parinerships,
Comic Rellef which manages Sport
Rellet, our charity for 2016
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

STRONG PERFORMANCE DELIVERED
THROUGH TALENT AND HARD
WORK OF OUR TEAMS

Phil White
Chairman

Govemance highlights

The Govemnance Reporl on pages
50to 99 (inclusive) provides
detalls of the Group's approach

to govermnance and how it supports
the dedivery of our strategy.

The highlights of the year included:

> Succession planning and tatent
development - CEQ transition
during 2016

» Govermnance/frisk management

following Leave vote and dynamic

external market

Substantiat investrment in PRISM

> Preparation for REIT conversion
on 1 January 2017,

h 4

58 For more information

2016 has been a landrmark year for Unite
Students for several reasons: celebrating
our 25th year, welcoming cur 500,000th
customer and providing homas for 49.000
students. our largest ever infake in a single
yaar. We aiso achieved a Gold
accredilation in the ‘Investors in Pecple’
people manogament standard, plocing
us in the top tier of businesses.

Performance has again been strong.,
with a total accounting return of 15%
and growth in Adjusted EPRA earnings
1o £61.3 million, up 24%. Profit belore

tax was £201,4 million which includes
property revaluations of £136.3 million
(2015; £388.4 million and £324_6 million
respectively), As a result of this strong
performance, we are increasing our
dividend pay-out rafic to 75%, a year
ahead of schedule and deckyring a final
dividend of 12.0p. This adds up to a totat
of 18.0p for the full year, an increase of
20% year on year.

Unite Students is o service brand and the
strong performonce we have delivered
for our customers, University partners ond
shareholders is only possible because of
the: talent and hard work of our teams
across the business, On behalf of the
Board, | would like to thank them for
another excellent year.

Cn 31 May, Mark Allan stepped down as

Chief Executive, o role he held since 2006.

Mark played a key role in the success of !
Urite Students and on behalf of the Board

and everyone Ot Unite, { would ke fo

thank him for his service and wish him

well for the future.

Richord Smith hos taken over as Chisf
Execulive, having been the Managing
Director of our Operations business for
the last five years, successfully leading
the trgnsformation of our service delivery
and implementation of our PRISM
operating platform,

A core part of our recent success has
been our consistent strategy and we

will continue lo focus on its three main
elemenits: to deliver great service to

aur students and University pariners,

fo operate briliant buikdings and fo
maintain high quality eamings and a
strong capital structure. As a resutt of aur
continuing progress in these areas, we
have successfully ransitioned to become
a REN, effective from 1 January 2017, and
we believe this is consistent with our focus
on income and capital discipline.,

The outlook for our market remains
positive with structural growth being
supported by the strength of the world
renowned UK Higher Education sector,
increqsing participation rates, the
internationalisation of Higher Education
and the shortage of housing in the UK.

The impact of Brexit is starting to become
clearer and we do not expect it to have
a rmaterial impact on student numbers,
Our high quality portfolio, University
redationships and market-lsading
operating platform leave us well ploced
to continue performing strongly in the
years to come.

Phil White
Chalrmon
22 February 2017
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

MAINTAINED FOCUS TO DELIVER
HOME FOR SUCCESS FOR ALL
STUDENTS WHO LIVE WITH US

Financial highlights

Richard Smith
Chief Exacutive Officer

EPRA eamings

£62.7m

Adjusted EPRA, earnings

£61.3m

Acjusied EPRA EPS

27.7p

Profit beldore lax

£201.4m

Basic EPS

101.3p

Diviclend per share

18.0p

Todol accounting retum

15%

34%

In rmy first year as Chief Exacutive, | am
pleased to report another strong set of
results for the year ending 3! December
2014. we have maintoined our focus on
delivering sustainabie growth inrecuring
profiis and cash Row in the long ferm,
and delivering a MHome for Success fo all
of the students who five with us, We do
this by providing great service and
operating brifiant buildings that studerts
and Universities choose. We also ensure
investment discipline to maintoin

a strong capilal structure and deliver
high-quality earmnings.

Performance in 2016 was driven by
another year of strong growth in EPRA
earnings, rental growth and development
profits, combining fo defiver a tofal
accounting return of 15%. Adjusted EPRA
earnings (adjusted fo exciude the yvield
related elament of the USAF performance
feg) iIncreased by 24% 10 £6).3 milion
and now represents one-third of the

{otal shareholder relumn. As aresull of

the significant growth in earnings ond
the positive cutlook for further eamings
growih, we are deckxring a finai dividend
of 12,0p {2015: 9.5p), making a dividend
per share of 18.0p for the full year (2015
15.0p), anincrease of 20% year on year.

We are continuing to focus on growing
earnings In absolute termsand go as a
proportion of our total retumn. This is driven
loy our obility 10 continue growing rental
levels on an annual basis, the delivery of
cost efficiencies and from the completion
of our high-qualty development pipeline,

Qur PRISM operating platform, which
became fully openational in 2014, provides
us with a unique capabiiify to drive

volue from our portfolio through scale
gfficiencies and nevenue manqagsement,
supporting owr angoing income focus.

15

Since the year end, we have completed
two important strategic initiotives with the
acquisition of a 3,100-bed. on-campus
portfolic at Aston University and olso

the sale of a regional portfolio, which
together improve our portfolio quality
and focus on the best Universifies.

The business compieted its pianned
conversion to become a RET on 1 January
2017, This transition supparts our continued
focus on eamings, copital discipling and
commitment to distribute exmings to
shareholders. As aresuft of the strong
parformance and paositive outlook, we
have acceleroted our increcsed poy-out
ratio to 75% of Adjusted EPRA earnings
[exciuding USAF performance fees)

a year ahead of schedule.

Delivering great service to our

studenfs and University pariners
We pravide a high-quality and secwe living
environment where young peopie can
develop academically and sociaily ond
rmake the most of their time at University.

For mony peopile, University is whaere the
foundations of their career are igid. We
understand that a University education is
a significant invastment for young peopie.
and believe that no-one shoukd miss out
simply because of their personal
circumstances. But, for every generation
of students, University is more than simply
a stepping stone o a job. it maulds them
as ihdividuals and provides a critical
bridge o adulthood, where they can
tearn the interpersonal skills they will naed
for life. We believe that where a student
lives has g materialimpact on their
academic ond social experience of
University and. ultimotety. therr lives. We
therefore aim %o create an environment
which is coring ond supportive, but aiso
allows our students to express their natural
desire for independence.

We recognise that affordability of Higher
Education is an important consideration
and therefore we offer a variety of
accaommodation ot different price

points o students with the majority of

our accommadation focused at the
mid-range price point for purpose-buitt
student gecommodation. 45% of our
customears ara from the UK and we
continue 1o atfract growing numbers of
sacond and third-year studants, who now
make up ong-third of our customer base.
We will continue to focus on providing our
customers with axcellent service and an
experience that they value,

Our focys on the student experience is
compietely aligned to the aims of our
University poriners, ior whom student
experiance is Q key measure, With
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

CONTINUED

students spending more time in their
accommodation than on campus, we
con demenstrate to Universities how we
can support thermn and their ambitions.
This focus hos led 1o 58% of our
accommodation being let to Universities
through nominations agreerments. With
an average remaining life of six years, our
nominations agreements provide income
and rental growth certainty on aver half
of our revenue. in turn, this provides
protection frorm any potential changes io
student numbers, and has heiped 1o deliver
averoge occupancy of 28% and rental
growth of 3.5% over the lost five years.

Students too, expect maore from ther
accommaedation and this year, we
maintained customer service satisfaction
levels - a key performance indicator for
us — at high levels, placing us on a par
with some of the best European service
companies. We also secured excelient
rasults in our independently assessed
employee effectiveness and University
trust scores. The delivery of great custormear
service to students ond Universities
translates into our strong financial
performance, delivering occupancy of
8% and rentcl growth of 3.8% in 2016
(2015: 58%, 3.8%). With our new cperating
system, PRISM we: have Qlso delivered
furtner improvements to our NO! margin
and overhead efficiency measure.

Qur people, University redationships, the
quality of our portfolio, PRISM and the
broader operating platform set us apart
frorn the other operators in the sector
and will support the ongoing growth

in our portiolio, service kevels ond
financial performance.

Operating brilllant bulldings

Our sirategy is built around the quality,
location and scale of cur portfolic. we
aim fo operate buildings that are located
in and around the Universities with the
best prospects. We believe that our focus
an high-quality Universities across the UK
is the best sirategy to achieve continued
high levels of occupancy and rental growth,
We generatae 82% of our income from
customers atiending high and mid-
ranked Universities, increasing to 8% on
completion of our development pipeline.

During 2016, we opened 3,100 new beds,
invested £12 million in asset managament
and refurbishment progrommes and sold
£114 million of assets fon a see-through
basis). Taking into account these activities
together with valuation movements, the
value of our investment portfolio {including
our share of co-investment vehicles)
increased by 4% to £2.1 bilion as at

31 Decamber 204 and is valued at an

average portfolio yield of 5.45% [2015:
£1.8 bilfion and 5.55% yiekd).

We also made excellant progress with

our development pipeline during the year.
We completed five new builldings over the
summer and secured an additional four
new development schemes, which
increases our secuned development
pipetine to 7,000 beds for delivery aver

the next three years. Construction of all
our 2017 openings is progressing in line
with pians, planning consents and build
contracts are in place for all of our 2018
deliveries and plonning permission isin
place for all but one of our 2019 schemes.

We are continuing 10 see atiractive
development opportunifies in strong
University markets and we plan 1o invest
salectively in target markets o enhance
porifolic quality and deliver target
returns. Whitst demand for student
accommodation remains strong in
Londecn, the fall in land prices over the
last 12 months hos not been sufficient,
when combined with new planning
requirements for affordable student
housing provision, to enable us to achieve
ourtarget returns. wWe will confinue o
monitor the situation for opportunities.

The anticipated yietd on cost of our
secured pipetine i B.4% and prospective
returns on new schemes remain attractive
at 8.0-8.5%. The secured davelopment
pipeline & highly occretive and remains

a significant component of our future
earnings growth and coulkd contribute
12-14 pence per share to EPRA earnings
once built out,

We continue fo target ccquisitions of
completed assets and portfolios that
enhance the quality of our portfolic ond
the earnings profile of the business. These
acquisitions are targeted through our
co-investment vehicles due to their lower
cost of capital, allowing us fo genercte
enhanced retums through our asset
management ang acquisition fees.

USAF has acquired two ossets under
development which will be opened for
the 2017 ocademic yeor. These *forward
fund’ assets represent 404 beds, in Oxford
and Edinburgh and were purchased for

o combined total of £56 milion. Following
the veor and, LSAV acquired a £227 million
portfolio located on the Aston University
campus. This exciting development afiows
us to build a strotegic relationship with a
high-ranked University and to leverage our
PRISM operating systern to deliver sirong
financial returns,

Disposals remain an important part

of our strategy and we will continue

to recycle assets out of our portfolio to
ensure that we increase exposure to the
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best Universities in the UK, and ako to
generate capital to invast in further
development activity and exciting
opportunities such as the Aston Student
vilage acguisition. During 2014, we sold
£114 milion of assets {on a see-through
basis) including the sale of two assets to
USAF. These assets were sold in ling with
book valuations. We intend to sel!
£150-200 million [Unite share} of assetson
a see-through basis during 2017 fo take
advantage of the ongaing strength in the
investrent morket and to ensure thatwe
mamntain asirong and flexible bakance
sheel as we progress our development
pipeiine. We have made good progress
already in 2017, having compieted the sale
of a 4,175-bed regicnal portfolic in February
for £295 millon (Unite share £102 milkon)

in fine with bock value.

Maintaining high quality eamings
and a strong capital structure

wWe have maintlained full occupancy
across our portfolio (98%) with rental
growth of 3.8%. With 58% of this income
underpinned by nominations
agreements, we have a high level ot
visibility in the ongoing occupancy and
rental growih outiook of the partfolio. In
addition fo revenue growth, o focus on
efficiency has resulted in further
improvements in our NOI margin up to
73.1% [2015: 72.5%). and in our overhead
efficiency revenue which shows that our
overheads, net of monagement fees,
now represents 40 basis points of gross
assel value {2015: 48 basis points]. We
remain confident about our abillity to
make further efficiency gains and to
deliver our targets of 75% and 25-30 basis
points by the end of 2017

Unite’s share of net debt grew by £45
rmilian to £778 million in 2016. Cur capikal
expanditure programme [Unite shore
£145 million} was majority funded by

our disposal programme and retained
earnings. We mainigined our LTV within
our farget range in the mid-30% level at
34% (2015: 35%) as development profits
and rentai growth outstripped the
increase in net detst. Our net debt to
EBITDA ratio is 4.5 (2015: 6.9). ogain within
our fomget level which we intend to maintain.

tntefrest rates have remained at low levels
throughout 2016, and we have confinued
to 1ake odvantoge of these historically
low rates both on new debt facilities and
through entering into forward starting
interest rate swaps in respect of future
borowing requirements of our secured
development pipelfine. As aresult of these
aciivities, our average cost of debt has
falien to 4.2% from 4.5%. We expect it o
fall a little further over the next few years
as forward starting swaps becomes
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effective. At these laveis, \he spread to
ungeared developrment yields and
investment yields remains significant.

The Group's conversion to RET status
reflects the consistency and quality of the
earnings profile and s conservative
financing strategy. The Group will ensure
that the balance of business, geering ratios
and dividend pay-out lkevels rermain within
the guideiines set out within the REN regime.

Market and strategy

The outlook for the student accommaodation
seciorremaing positive, with structurd factors
confinuing fo drive fhe demond: supply
imbaoiance in the University markets in which
we operate. The UK Higher Education sector
ksrecognited gicbally for the strength of its
Universities ond contribution thot it mokes to
research. innovatkion, falent development
and the UK economy more broadly, The UK
is the second most popular destination for
international students and has 18 out of
the world's top 100 Universities and 47 of
Eurocpe’s lop 200 Universities. We expect
the UK Higher Educaiion sector to
maintain its global standing and reputation.

The number of applicants and the number
of students accepted into courses in 2014
was agonat record levels at 725,000 and
540,000 respectively (2015: 710,000 and
530,000}, driven by growth in demand from
both UK and international students, with
appiocants outstripping the ploces offered
by Universities by 185,000, the secloris
well placed 1o withstand any potential
reguctions from UK demographics or the
impact of the UK leaving the EU,

Foliowing the removal of the student
numiper cop in 2015, the Higher Education
sector s facing further change with the
introduction of the Teaching Excelience
Framework (TEF} in May 2017. This wil provide:
students with grealer visibility of the quality
of leaching ot Universities and ako allow
Universities 10 incrense fees in line with
inflatfion if they meet certain criteric, We
expect the TEF to have a significant impact
on the otfractiveness of Universities.
particularty to UK students, ond we are
well pluced o respand to changes
rasulting from this new information.

The gap between the number of appiicants
and the number of University places could
be reduced by external factors. including
the potential iImpact of the EU referendum
on student numbpers, Since 2015, a
demographic trend has seaen a reduction
in the number of 18-21 year olds, affecting
the next four years. Early apphications dota
in Januory 2017 shows a 5% reduction in
appiicants for the X117/18 academic year,
However, we expect that the 185,000
surplus of applicants over places and the

rornovol of the cap means the number of
sludents acceplad onto courses will not
be materiglly impacted, and we expect
the high and mid-ronked Universities to
racruit more students than those at the
lower end of the league tables.

The qualities of the student acoommaodation
sector have attracted significarnt levels of
capitalinvestment over the last three years
with over £1) bilion of iInvestrment activity. This
increased nvestment aclivity has also seen
the level of new supply increase ond the
ot numiber of purpase-buitt beds to
increase to 250,000 beds (14% of the UK's
student population]. The outiook for new
supply suggests that the rate of new supply
will continue at a similar rate of around
20,000-25,000 over the next two years,
However, a significont proporion of the new
beds are focused on the upper end of
the price range which will hove g minimal
impact on our type of accommodation.

Furthermore, our exposure to changes

in student numbers is mitigated by our
high quality University relationships and
nominations agreemants and therefore
we remain confident that well-located,
rmid-range, direct-lef student
occommodation will be able to maintain
high levels of occupancy and rental growth.

Outlook

Buikding on a period of consistent strong
performance, and supportive market
fundamentals, the Group remains well
placed to deliver susiqinable eamings
growth in the years ahead. Our
development pipeline and opergtional
expertise provides good visibility over the
future rental growth and increasing
frecurring earnings. Our portfolio i
focused on stronger Universities, plus our
highty scalable operating piatform ond
strong brand leaves us well piaced to
extend our market leading position.

Despile the broader macro unceriainties
created by the EU referendum, the
supply/dernand outiook for studeant
accommodaotion remains in our

favour, and we will look to benefit

from opportunities to extend our
development pipeline, grow cn-campus
coccommodation and strengthen University
relationships. With this backdrop, a sirong
balance sheet and our new REIT status,
we are confident that the business
remains well pikaced to deliver highty
attroctive shareholder returns.

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer
22 February 2017
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Chief Executive's QoA

Richard Srith
addresses some topicol
quesfions from our shareholders

What has the highlight of 2015
been forthe business?

R in 2016, we welcomed our
500.000th student o Unite

Students, a kantostic milestone in the
Company's 25-yeaor history and
testornent to the high quality service
we provide students during their
university coreers. The launch of PRISM
was anather important achieverment
in 2016, which is delivering significont
efficiencies for the business and
considerably improving the customer
experience we can offer to students.

How will the exit from Europe
affect the business?

JNl Folowing the EU referendum, the
Gavemnment has confirmed that

Gl existing EU students and for the
2016/17 and 2017/18 ocademic years
will have funding provided for the
duration of their courses. With 9% of
our students coming frorn the EU, any
potential impact on student nurmbers
from the Eu referencium would have
a limited impact on Untte’s occupancy
given the confinued supply/demond
imbalance. we continue to be positive
on the dutiook for the higher education
sector in the UK which is recognised
globally for its excellence and its ability
to otfroct tolent korm across the world.

Q

25 Read more: Braxlt

Q Does the boord plon to expand the
execulive management team?

Nl The Board, senior management
and | remain focused on and
committed 10 the continued success of
the business. The Board has eskablished

a comprehensive senior leadership
development programme: to grow
and nurture our falent and develop
our high performers. This ensures we
have a clear talent pipelineg for future
Board appointments.
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MARKET REVIEW

MARKET FUNDAMENTALS

REMAIN ROBUST

This year we aoré seeing onother year

of student number growth with more
students accepting places for the 2016/17
academic year than ever bafore. A total
of 535,000 students started at University
in 205716, taking the total number of
full-fime students ta £1.8 million, up from
£1.7 millionin 2014/15, Acceptances have
risen 15% since ulfion fees were intraduced
in 2012, Applications continue o outstrip
acceptances. A record 723,353
applicotions wete received for 2014/17
which left a demand gap of 188,450
students. This numier has remeined
stable for the last five years. See Figure 1.

Demand drivers for student

accommodation
we fully expect the demand for UK Higher

Education lo continue from both domestic
ard intemational students. More young

peopie in the UK are choosing fo go fo
University than ever before, with 37%

of 18-year-olds now applying t¢ go to
University up from 33% 10 yeors ago.
Expectations continue to rise and we
expecl o see school leavers continue fo
place reql value on a University education.
The UK remains the #2 destination far
international students in Higher Education,
attrocting 10% of intemational students.
The UK draws almost double the numbar
of international students compared

with third place Australia. See Figure 3.

The UK continues to aliract intemaotional
studenfs due 1o the high quality of the
Universities in the UK. The UK now has
three universities in the global top ten,
fourin the top 20 and seven in the top 50
in Europe, six of the top seven universities
are UK institutions. See Figure 5.

Figure 1: Applicants and acceptances (thousands|

Figure 2: PBSA bads (thousands)
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Education agents support these rankings
as 91% rated the UK, as a destination to
study os “gttractive” or “very attractive”.
This will support UK nationatls’ desire to go
to university at home as well as drawing
more international students to the UK,
International numbers grew by 15,000
between 2014/15 and 2015/16.

Sludent numbers

Total student numbers in the UK have
been steadily increasing since 2012. The
2016/17 year is expecting o see 1.8 million
studenis {under-graduate and post-
graduate)] in the UK. This is o 2% increase
from 2015/16 and comfortably above 1%
average student growth of the previous
five years. See Figure é.

The number of intlemational students has
grown since 2015/16 by 1% o 428,000,

infernational students make up a

higher proportion of demand for
accommaoadation. They account for 30%
of students needing accommaodation,
compared with 25% of full-fime studenis.

; See Figure 4.

Unite maintains its focus on providing beds
for those segments of the marke! that

suit PBSA, namely international students,
who aocount for 35% and first years, who
account for 85% of our beds.

Figure 3: Internaiionol
sludent mobiltty
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Agure 4: Demxnd for accommodadion (%)

Supply of purpose buitt student
accommodation

The structural growth of the Higher
Education sector has attracted significant
levets of investment over the last three
years, Thisincreased investment has seen
PBSA beds grow from around 200,000 in
2014 to 250,000 in 2016. A further 50,000
beds ore expected io be builf over the
next two years, laking the tofcl o around
16% of the full-time student poputation.

In a more competitive market place,

the quality of the portfolio, price point,
customer sarvice and university
relationships are crifical 1o ensuring full
occupancy and ongoing rental growth.

Brexit and immigration

The fullimpact of Brexit on the UK Higher
Education sector will become clearer
over the next few months. Funding
amangements have been confirmed

for current EU students and those starting
in 2017/18.

Following Brexif, we expect fo see EU
studenis join other international students
and therefore see an increase in fees.
However, given the quality of UK Univarsities
and the attroctiveness of studying in

the UK, we esfimate thatl overall student
numbers from the EU should only fall by
around 20,000 - 30,000, Universities will
work hard to ensure that any fall in student
numbers s mitigated with additional
recruitment from the UK, the EU and from
other international destinations,

Agure 5: University ronkings (institutions)

Figure &: Full ime student numbers [millions}

The UK's irnenigration palicy for
international students remains one of the
most robust in the world, compared with
other major destinations for international
students. international students make a
significant contribution o the UK ecenammy,
generating an estimated £10.7 billion of
export earnings for the UK, and over
135,000 joos. Immigration and immigration
policy remains a political issue and the
sector will continue to menitor and assess
the impoct of any further changesin

this areq.

EU research funding cusrently accounts

for £688 milion or 2.5% of totalincome

for Universities ond there are concems
regarding the long-term outiook for this
funding. Universifies’ exposure to this issue
varies, with six LK insfilutions receiving over
0% of their research funding from the EU.

However. the Government has stated that
Universities will have certainty over tuture
funding and should cantinue to bid for

i competitive EU funds while the UK remains

a member of the EU, with o commitment
that the Treasury will underwrite the
payments of such awards, even when
specific projects continue beyond the

UK's departure fram the EU.
5 Read morne: Oue business model
ond shrategy
26 Read more: Pincipol Hsks
and uncetainfies
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KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

FINANCIAL KPIS

Eamings per share*

Pence

28p

MeqQsure

OQurEPRA earnings KFlis a
measure of profit per share
in fine with EPRA guidelines.

Net asset value®

Pence per share

646p

Measure

Our EPRA NAY par share
measures the maorket value of
properiies and developments
less any debt used to fund
them plus any working capital
in the business.

Comments Target

Sustainable growth in earnings  Deliver visibie and

has been driven by high levels meaningful grawth

of cccupancy and renfal in EPS by maintaining
growth supported by afocus  high occupancy rental
on deiivering operational growlh and delivering the
efficiency. The grawth in development pipeiine.
earnings underpins our

strategic priorities of delivering

great service and growing

and susiainable earnings.

Comments Targed

Consistent NAV growth has To continue delivering
been defivered through rental  strong balanced returns,
growih, yield compression, contripyting to o double-
development profits and digit fotal refurn.

retained eamings. Qur
sustaimable growth in NAY
reflects the implamentation

of the business model and

our strategic priority to operate
brilliant properties.

3 Remuneration

Allgnment to strategy .2 o Allgnment lo strategy “
Total accounting retum Loan-to-value ratio

% %

Measure Meaqsure

The totalreturn o shareholders is Qur ratio of net debt to

the ratio of growth in EPRA NAV property volues,

plus dividlends paid as

percentage of opaning

EPRA MNAY.

Comments Maint@ining a strang lotal Comments T

Totalretum has averoged 16%  returmn from our portfolio Continued to defiver reduction Yo maintain LTV around
in the st six years, driven by the: s aresult of our business in LTV through ongoing focus  the mid 30% level.

growth in EFRA eamings, yiekd  model and delivery of
compression, renial gowth and  our strategic priorities.
development profits. The

perforrnance in 2016 wos Target!

detivered by focusing Continue fo defiver

on growing rental levels and double digit-total retumns.
the delivery of our high quality

development pipeling.

Alignment fo strotegy

00

* Results are bosed on the European Public
Real Estate Associafion Parformance medgsures,

on disposals ond growing the

value of the property porticlio,. 73 Remuneration
Qur LTV reflects gur strategy to

maintain the strongest capital

structure in the sector.

Alignment to stralegy
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OPERATIONAL KPIS
Satety

Number of cocidents

5

Measure

The number of reporiable
accidents in our Operations
business each year Qs a means
of assessing our success in
approaching health and safety.

21

Key

Great service Bnliiont propertes
Customet satisfaction

%

Measure

We underiake an independent
survey with TNS twice a year to

understand our rekationship with

our customers, the experience

0

Growing and
sustainable eorings

we provide and their likekhood to

rebock and recommend Unite.

Commenis priority within our
Qur Accident incident business and supports
Monagement Systern (AIMS),  our strategic pricrity to

has pravided us with greater offer great service.

visibility on our incident

reporting, enabling us to Target
implemeant new ways of We strive to reduce the
working that have improved number of reportable

Commaents

While there hos been
improvement in customer
satisfaction over the prior four
years our 2016 result moved
back 3% points. We need to
work hard through our strategic
priorty o offer great service so

Torget

we aim fo reach the top
10% of benchmarked
companies within the
next three years,

73 Remuneration

efficiency. Safety is a high incidents year on year. that we put customers at the

heart of that process.
Alignment to strategy 2.3 Alignment lo strategy .23
Employee effectiveness Higher Education trust
% %
Measure Measure
We have an employee survey Annuol qualitative research with
tool. run by the Hays Group, owr Higher Education partners to
called Employee Effectiveness. understond their perception of

Unite and the degree to which

we meet their needs.
Comments Target Comments focus of providing o Home
Qur new survey rasutts provided  We aim 1o increase the Understanding whot our Higher  for Success, we need fo
delailed insight into the empicyee effectiveness Education porinersneed from  continue to work hard to
mofivations and driversof our  percenioge obove the us, both for themselves as ensure this is reflacted in

employees and positions us 6% 60% threshold.
above the General UK industry

Benchmark [48%) and 1%

behind the High Performing

Inctustry Benchrmark {55%) in

our third year,

Alignmant lo strategy 2.3

institufions and for their students,
& O vital part of improving our
level of service to offer great
service. The ovexall score is in line
with last year and whilst our
strong University partnerships
were supported by the ongoing.

Afignment fo strotegy

the score.

Target
We aim to reach the mid
BO% level within the next
three years.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
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STRATEGIC PLANNING AND
RISK MANAGEMENT IN A
DYNAMIC EXTERNAL MARKET

Chris Szpojnarowicz

Company Secretary and Head of Legal

2014 - the year we celebrgted
our 25th birthday - was the most
dynamic extemal market the
PB3A sector has seento date.
With the Higher Education sector
and the trouder economy facing
new challenges such as Brexit
and political changes around
the globe, our strategic planning
and risk management ks evolving
in response to these changes.

Being well prepared for a combination

of risk events hoppening af the same time
is central lo our readiness prepamtion.
Alfordobility ond value for money is
increasingly important and our risk
management focus on student experence
and the efficient delivery of a quality
product is mere important than ever.

The following pages provide insight into
our kery risks and how we navigate them.

Reliated sections

Assessing our rlsk profile and key
risk developments during 2016

As an intrinsic part of our stralegic
planning, and to support the Board's
robust assessment of the Group's
principal risks and its ongoing longer terrm
viability, the Board conducted a thorough
review of our risk profile. This review
involved both o top-down approach:

» the Boaord considered a wide range
of strategic and emerging risks and
opportunifies and thelr impact

and a bottom-up approach:

> the Board scrutinised and challenged
the risks identified in the Operafions
ond Property Business Units, as well
our financing and treasury risks.

Jo ensure Q broader perspective, this
review ncluded engogement with extemal
experts, such as property vaiven & heakth

! & satety auditars, os well as senior lecders

Mariket risks

in the Higher Education sector. This
exiernal engagement was especially
important this yeor as the sector starts to
digest the impact of Brexit.

increasing uncertainty following the Leave vote and the impact

This risk profile review igdentified four
risk categories:

Market - supply and demond 26
Oparalional risks 27
Property/development risks 28

Financing risks 9

These risk categories are consistent
with those identified in prior years,
with movement in specific risks -
driven principally by uncertainty
due to Brexit — as follows.

{reduction on the Higher Education sector, UK ptc and immigration policy
In demand} urtcertainty flowing frorm this.
While the impact of Brexit on the UK economy and Higher
Education sector remaing unclear, it has led to greater uncertainty,
we have focused a significant proportion of our risk activity
3 Business model and sfrafegy understanding the potentialimpact or our business.
12 Retationships Property/ tiquidity and uncertainty in the brooder real estate sector.
developmaeni risks

8 Market overview
20 Key performance indicators (KPls)

26 Principal rsks ond uncerointies

58 Corporate govarnance:

The property market has been aftecled by Brexit and broader
macso economic foctors. We have focused risk activity on
deterrmining haw this impacts our property-reiated business

activity during the year,

26 Read more: Principai risks ond uncertainties on pages 26 o 29.
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Re-calibrating our risk appetite in 2014

The Group's risk appetite is considered as a fundamental part of the Board's strategy setling and annual budget - it does not happen
in solation. Cur risk appetite is underpinned by our principal finoncial aim to continue delivering double-digit total returns and
sustamable growing earnings. Having regard to the key risk developrments in 2016 set eut on page 22, the Boord recolibrated our risk
appetite. This recalbration consicers both threats lo~ and opportunities in — our business in the context of macno and minor developments,
not only in the PBSA sector, but also the broader Higher Education sector, property market and economy more genenally.

Greal service with higher fee levels, the affordability and value of Higher Education ramains a risk focus.

Horne for Success, PRISM and our University reiationships remain an opportunity for us 1o differentiate

from competitors.

Brilliont properties  Focusing our portfolic on high quality Universilies and recycling our portfolio in a compedtitive market place.
0_ Undertaking development activities.

Growing ond During 2014, focus on becoming o REM and ongoing compliance with REIT tests 1o enable REIT conversion
sustainable eamings effective 1 January 2017,
_ _e Planning and completing our conversion to REN siatus.
Maintaining full cccupancy across our portfolio.
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Stress testing our

strategic planning

Each yegr, the Boord develops and

refreshes the Group's Strategic Plan.

This is bosed on detailed three-year

strategic/financial projections {with

neloted scenario planning) and rolls

lfzote gef:;r?cf::szer;:;lg:se? :eu;:grd Increase in Yield
maps our three strategic objectives interest rates expoansion
set against our risk profile {described The influences
directly below). Recognising that risk of multiple
evenls do not necessarily happen in combined
isclation, the Board then stress tests risk events
these projections against various

multiple combined risk events. Through

this process, a base case and stress

tested Strategic Plan is developed.

$HUBIDOS [DIDUDLY

Reduction in EU/
international
students

During 2016. this stress tested scenario
pianning considerad a material
reduction in the number of European
and international students, a material
rise in long term interest rates and
yield expansion, together with g
combination of all these events
occuring at the same time.

Mapping our three strategic objectives against our risk profile

It

Greol service Morket (supply The health, safety. wellbeing and security of the 49,000 students who make Unite Students
and demond) their horme & the foundation of our reputation and contfinued focus on heatth & safety is key
Operational to building and maintaining this trust,

Affordability and value for money are increasingly criticd in the ncreasingly competitive
market place. Developing the most trusted Hrand in the seclor continues fo be crifical
fo our sustainable ond longer term success.

UOHOLIOWI BUIO

8rlliant properties  Property/ Our focus on working with high and mid ranked Universities means that we will
_o_ development recycle capital into higher performing cities. Property development is o higher risk,
higher return activity.
Growing and Fnancing maintain a timely opproach fo amanging new debt and extending debt maturities,
susioinable eamings reducing the cost of funding, diversifying our funding sources and infroducing new
lenders to the Graup. Secure q strong bakance sheet with appropriate levels of leverage
) 0 and liquidity to ensure the business con withstand any property cycle.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Credting the right corporate
culture for effective risk

management

The Group's risk management framework
is designed to identify the principal

risks and ensure that risks are being
appropriately monitored, controls are in
place and required actions have clear
ownership with requisite accountability.

The orgonisotion hos an open ond
accountable culture, led by a stable and
experenced leodership team that has
operated in the sector for a number of
years. This cultura is set by the Board n the
way it conducts its Board and Committee
meetings and cascodes through the
oganisation eénabiing the same culture
for risk management.

During 2016, this corporate culiure was
assessed as part of the Board’s effectiveness
evaluation, using the key learnings from
the Financial Reporting Council [FRC)'s
recent report, Corporate Culture and the
Role of Boards.

62 Read more: Efeciiveness

The culture of the organisation recognises
- and accepts — that risk is inhersnt in
business and encourages an open and
proactive approach to risk management
as opposed to 0 blome culture. By viewing
our risks through the lens of our three
strategic objectives, the Group isable to
ensure risk managernent is prooctive and
pre-emptive and not a tick box exercise.

The Board has the overal responsibility for
the governance of risks and ensures there
are adequats and effective systemsin
place. It does this in vorious ways:

» Risks ore considered by the Board as
an ntrinsic part of strategy setting and
consideration of new opportunities —
risk is recognised as an inherent part
of each opportunity

> A twice yearly formal review by the

Board of principal risks, haow they

are changing and considering any

emerging risks

Risk Committee reviews the principal

risks that the Group is facing or

should consider

» Specific risk managerment in
dedicated Board sub-committees
allowing focus on specific risk oreas
{for example, the Audit Committee
and Health & Safety Committee)

-

Our risk management framework

> Risk Committee scrufiny and challenge
of Busingss Unit risk rnanagement
activity allowing a focused forum
tor risk idenfification and review

* Board drectors also sit on Business Unit
boords ond thus provide the Boord with
direct line of sight to Business Unit risk
management octivity

> Risk assurance through external and
internal cuditers as well as specialist
third party risk assuronce where
appropriate (e.0. specialist
indapendent heatth and safety
complignge in the Openations andg
Propesty Business Units).

Robust assessment

of principal risks

The directors confirm that they have
conducted arobust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group. The
process for how the Board determined
these principal risks is explained above
and the specific principal risks are set
outon pages 26 1o 29.

The board Lo
Risks assessed as part » Owned by the Board and its Committees
of sirategy selting > Twice yaarly formal risk review and ongoing monitofing
and risk oversight of risk integral to Boged meetings
\L/ \[ ’
Risk management Policies and controls Composition
of Risk Commitiee
3 Owned by the Risk Committee and the Underpinning risk management Chrls Szpojnarowicz
Business Unit boards tsuch os Capital Operating Guidelines; Campony Secretary
> Monthly risk tracker review at Business Treasury Policy: Anti-Bribery Policy: Major and Head of Legaland
Unil boards Investment Approvals Commitiee and the Chair of Risk Committee

> Risk Committes review of allrisk trackers intermat controls framework]
Joe Lister
| Chief Financial Gtficer
h \// ' ~ 7 and MD of Pecple
and Cormmunications

People and culture r(% Richard Smith

Chief Executive Gfficer

Embedded risk
management culture

Qpenness. fransparency and clear ownership of
risk management (through risk frackers) cascades

Richard Simpson
through the organisation

Group Property Director
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Key Risk Indicators (KRis)
{inked to our KPls and our
three sirategic objectives

Greaat service Customer
sotisfachon

Safety
Higher Education trust
% MNorms v. Direct Lot

Briltiont Net assat value
propedies Age of asset
Qccupancy
-0 Rental growth
Growing and Eomings per share
sustainable Total return
somings Net debt

Loan-to-vaive ratic
Net debt : EBITDA

| Viability statement

The Directors have assessad the viability
" of the Group over a three-year period
to December 2019, laking account of the
Grmoup's cument position and the polential
impact of the principal risks. The Directors
consider the three-year lockout period to
be the most aporopricte as this
fundamentally aligns with the Group's
own strategic planning period combined
with the levels of planning certainty that
can be derived kom the development
pipeline. Based on this assessment, the
Directors have a masonabie expectation
that the Group wil be able to continue
in operation and meet its kabilifies as they
fall due over the period to December 2019.

As exploined above, the Group has
developed on annudl business planning
process, which comprises a Strategic
Pian, a fnancial forecast for the curent
year and a financial projection for the
forthcoming three years [which includes
strass tesfing and scenario planning and
also rolls forwards for a further hwo years).
This plan is reviewed each year by the
Board as part of its strategy setting
process. Once opproved by tha Board,
the plan is cascaded down across the
Group and provides o basis for setting all
detailed financial budgets and sirategic
actions that are subsequentty used by
the Board to monitor performance.

OQur risk management in action; Brexit

One lool in our risk management
process is arisk ‘deep dive’, This involves
an in-depth review of a specific risk with
Brexit 0 key focus since the prospect

of an In/Out referendum first crystalised
in 2015,

in the period through to June 2014, cur
risk deep dive process concluded that
no specific pre-emptive actions [other
than ongoing engagement with the
Higher Education sector) should be
taken for our business in the event of

a Leave or Remain vole. This decision
was driven by the anficipated impact
to our business if there was o Laove vole
{see below} and the minimum two-year
transitional period under Arficle 50
Engagement with the Higher Education
sector is helping inform our thinking on
implications for the PBSA sector anc
specifically our business.

Qur risk deep dive process concludes
that Brexit should not significantly
impact our business for the
following reasons:

> Following a periad of initial
uncertainty immediately after the
resultin june 2014, confidence has
returned to the PBSA market with

a high volume of portfofios and assets
trading in the second half of 2016

EU research funding is important to UK
Universitigs and this, together with the
immigration siatus of EU academics
and EU students in the UK more
generclly, clearty creates uncertainty
for the Higher Education sector along
with the broader uncertainty in the
wider economy. This uncertainty is
moderated by the strength of UK
Universifies {the second lorges?
destination for infemnational

students after the US). the ongoing
internationdiisation of Higher
Educafion with fhe global rise of the
middle classes. Sterling depreciation
also makes UK Higher Education/
occommodation mare affordable
for international students

v

25

The forecost performance outlaok is also
used by the Remuneration Committee to
establish the targets for both the annual
and longer terrm incentive schemes,

The financing risks of the Group are
considered to have the potential greatest
impact on the Group's inancial viability.
The two principal financing risks for

the Group are: the Group's ability to
arange new debi/reploce expiing debt
facilities; and any adverse inferesi rate
movements. The Group has secured
funding for the committed future
development pipeline and prepares its
Strategic Plan on a fully funded basis in
line with the three-yaar outiook period.
Yo hedge against the potential of
adverse interest nale mavements the
Group manages its exposure with a
combination of fixed rate facilites ond
using interest rate swaps for its floating
rate debt. During the year the Group has
complied with all covenant requirements
attached toits financing faciities.

L Read more: Finoncial review

> EU students’ funding arrangements
under curment tultion fee arrangements
are confirmed for 2016/17 and 2017118,
but there is uncertainty beyond then.
BV students represent 9% of our
customers and so any impact on
EU student nurbers would have
alimited impact on our occupancy

» Despite these brooder uncertainties.
the supply/demand outicok remains
favourable and with the benefit
of our development pipeling, the
strengthening of our University
relafionships and our focus on high
and mid-ranked Universities, our
business is well ploced 1o navigote
the uncertainty risk.

we continue to monitor the
developments and engage in the

other risk management actions outlined
in the principal risks (see page 26).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

Market risks

1. Demand reduction (driven by Government policy or other macro events)

Fomible events Impact

> Brext impacting numbers of EU students coming to study In the UK

> Charges in Government policy on Higher Educahon funding

» Immigration policy changes afecting intemational student numbers
and behaviour.

coming fo the UK

What happened in 2016

Student numbers in the UK continue 1o grow with approxirnately 3,000 more applicants than 2015204
The fotal rumber ot applicants in 2014 also graw with 155,000 mane applications than places

Sttonger growth (3% in acceptances) in the high and mid-tanif Universities

Unite Students occupancy of 98% (201472017} compared ta 99% {2015/2014) but more beds 49.000
at 31 December 2014 as companed with 46,000 at 31 December 2015 increase in overall student
numbers continues to lranskate 1o mare students staying at Unie

EU students funding amangements for duration of study confirmod for 201 6/2017 and 2017/2018
Durng 2014, we have seen an ncrecs e in nomnations with more comymilied to beds than ever
before 58% beds - 2016/2017 v5. 57% 2015/2014

3l Read more' Occupancy and success of nominalions

v v v

v v

> Potenfial reduction in demand and hence profitabilly and asset values
» Depariure from ELlimpacting EU research grants and EU students

Risk management

Ongoing monlionng of Brexil implications,
Govermment pecy and its impaoct on UK,

EU and intermndtticnal student numbers shudying
1n the UK. Reguiony reviewing our portioho to
ensura we have the highest quality parttolio.
approprately szed and in the right focatiorns.

Risk Mmigotion In 2014
Risk deop dive into impact of Brexit.

25 Read more: Our risk managemant in actior Seexd

Thwough implementation of Home for Success ~ our core purpose 10 provide environments thathelp
stuctents achlave more during their irme at University - we are seeing consistently hugh customer
satzfaction and Higher Education trust scores.

20 Read more: Key parformancs lndicators (KPls)

Focus tor 2017

Shalegic objective

OHering great service k key to helping us sustain
oy reduction in demand Qs wetl as ensuring
we have brllant propertes ond growing

and sustainab ke eamings fa manage any
demand deficit),

5 Read more: Our siclegy

00

Continued engagement with the Higher Educalion sector to undersiand and be ready for the impact of Brexit and other HE pokcy changes

2. pemand reduction (due to societal change)

Posgible avents impoct

> Concarms over the costs of a University education - otfordabiity and
value formoney

> Aflermnative course delivery [such as Massive Open Online Courses|

> Shorfer/more semester led courses.

ond asset values

What happerred In 2016
During 2014, roed out PRISM, ow digital and scalable operating plattorm. driving efficiency and
custarmer service

n Read more: MISM

Applicalions ond accaptance data continue to provide evidence hat stronger Universifies are
performing bettar.

18 Read maore: Market Review

Enhanced senvice lavek over the tast tew year with faster Wi-F speeds, free communat clegns and
enhanced common spaces.

» More competition for value and reduced demand (o6 yeor round
student accommodation In the ionger term resuting m lower profitabrility

Risk mancgement

Ongoing morforing of afiorgabilty ond value for
maney andd the evalution of digial leaming and
ensuing we pariner with 1he stronger Universities
with properties In the bestlocations

Rk mitigation activity In 2014
Emsurad the successiul mil out af PRISM, enobiing online and more Haxile lenancies.

Conhnued investimentin market krawledge ard bulldng on our relalionships with the striengest
Univeraities, dnven by Home for Success and our Univensity parinerships team.

Focus for 2017

Simjegic objeciive

Offering great servics it key 1o ensuring we

hawe reiahonships with the higher ond medium
tanff Universiies {the cnes most lkely 1o sustan a
recuction it demaond). PRISM helps us delivar the
best custorner sarvice afficiently

3 Read maore. Our sinalegy

Using PRISM I drive enhanced customer sernce ond value ke money, through its scalablily and digital efficiency.

Continuead facus on Home lor Succass ond owr parinershps with the stronger Universihies.
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Greal service

Brrlian! properhes Growing and
sustanabie eormings

3. Supply Increase (due to increasing Interest in the performance and appeal of the PBSA sector)

Passibie avents

¥ New supply as sustainad high leveb of investment demand fillerinto the
development market, prirmanly through investors providing torwacd
commitments to smaller developers.

What happened In 2014
Yolume of PBSA assets fraded m 2014 moderated from record levels seen in 2015

impact
» Mote competition for the best sites
» Potentialimpact on rental growth ond occupancy

Dwring 2014 confinued roll out of Home for Success and maintaining a strong proportion of beds secured under nominations agreemenls af S8% (2015, 57%;.

Opening of five new properhes during 2016
34 Read more Properties delivered
Level of new supply

18 Read mote’ Markat review

Risk Migotion In 2016

We confinue with our focus and sirategy on:

> Markets with supply/demand imbalance

» BExposuwre fo the best Universities underpinned with new developrnents secuted withnominations deaks

38 Reod more: Operations review

> Investiment In our brand and student expenence - creating better environments within our new
developments threugh Home for Success mitkative
» Maintaining strong relationships with key Nigher Education pariners.

Focua for 2017

Siralegic objective

Offering great service as well as having
brisiant properties b critical to mitigating
any supply surplus.

Confinued focus on our porifolo in the towns and aties with the sirongest growth prospects and using PRISM, our scalable aperating platfarm. to difierenfiate

ourbrand ond offer consistently high levels ol service 1o students and Universities alike
Ensunng d sirong yet flexable capital structune so we con gdapt appropriately o supply grows,

Operafional risks

4. Major health & safety (H&S) incident in a property or a development site

Possibie evenis
? Fatalty or major injury from a fire or other incident at @ property
» Multiple contractor injunes ot a devalopment aor operational site.

What hos happened during 2015

With tire as our biggest salety fisk in our opesating porifolfo, during 2015 we established a PAmary
Authority Agreement with the Avon Fire Authority to locus on

> The development jourmney or our fire siralegy decisions

> Fire Safety Monagement - improved palicies ond procedures, risk assessments, training & tee records
> Maoinfenance Regimes - and planned preveniciive mantenance

» Specification for new bulkis and developments.

External assurance sought through.
> Appciniment of the British Sofaty Coundl s our new external safety auditor
» Physicol secunty review of our properties by WSP Parsors Brinckerho.

Continved good performance agalnst cur operational safety KPI. with five reportable accldents and
posiiive results agalnst our KPIs in our development activity.

EL Read mote: Key Performance Indicators (KIts)

knpact
2> impact to students ving with us, conlractors working on-site and visiors
> Reputational damage and rust n Unite Stuclents ot areliabie partner

Risk management

HRS ks given direct Board supervision by the H&S
Cemmitiee {a sub-committee of the Board)
which actively supervises H&S, ensuring robust
policies and procedures ars i place and
consistently comphed with.

70 Read more: HLS Commiies meport
H&S s also aclively reviewed in the Operatiors
and Froperty Business Units, ensuring that H&S is
top of mind in cuwr day to day operations and
regulany assessed and validated.

Risk MBgation In 2015

Requkxr external audits and internal inspections ot owr properties. Fullreview of our operalions risk
assessments 1o ensure adequats hazard control, together with improved contractor manogement and
permit to work syStem for hazardows work aclivities. improved salety iraining, vsing ouamentad realty.
focusing on griving for work, lone working, satety signage, housekeeping/manfenance, hazards such as
chemicak, mochinery. asbeslos ond persenal proleciive equiement. Ihus includes oninteractive game for
accident, incldent and necr misses.

Focuy jor 2017

Sirategic objeciive

Ersuring the H&S of owr customers, contractors
and empioyees is lundamental to us offering
great service.

L] Read more: Qur siraiegy

Wark on tha joumaey to intarde pendence with empowenrment in day to day HAS management ai the core of everything we do.
Ongoing focus on continuous improvement (Inciucing priorilising 1he fire risk review, crisls management, security review ond exiemal qudit recommeandatons

and actions)
Integrating wellbeing into e HAS Managament System.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

CONTINUED
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Poasibie aventy Impact

> She acqukilion msk - incredsing competition for the best sites pushes
up prices

3> Planning sk - deldys of fallure 1o get planning

» Construchon nsk = build cost infiation as the economy Improves

What ha n 206
Five sites ocguired, adding 3,082 beds to ihe development pipekne:

Five planning consents secured.
2016 schemes delivered, on time and 1o budget,
% read more: Property review

¥ NAV and EPS affected by abarted schemes and/of reduced financial
rehuns, with cash hed up in development.

Rizk manogement

Expenenced developrment leam with exlensive
site sefection and planning experhse, coupled
with strong track record and focus on project
delvery anct strong relationships with
construction partners with apprapnate risk
sharing. Group Board approval for comrmitments
abovi a certain thyeshold

HAnancialinvestimentin schemes carefully
managed prior 1o gront of planning

To ersure we hove the highest qualty portfola, we
g pursung new opporunities on a condillonal
basis. but with a fmited number of sites confracted
not condifional on planning foflowing a detaled
sk atsesvment of that opportunity

Riak MEIgation in 2016
Reguiar development team and property review, with Group Bocrd dkaector cversight fo ensure foilure

1o secure sites or complete on time are monaged In the budget.
Datalted plonning pre-applcations and due dilgence belora site gcquisition
2 Read more’ Development oclivity

Buid cost inflation regulany approked and refreshed in Praperty Board meelings Mid-sized lromework
contracion wed ond onger tem felationships estoblsined 1o mitigate oycicol swings.

Focys Sor 2017
Main focus will be on delivering multilecation developments and securing pipefina for 2020,

2 Read more Development plpeline

Strotegic objecfive
Billant properdies

5 Readmore Our shategy

Possible events Impact

» Buying orseBng properties at the wrong point in the cycle.

What happened In2014
volume of PBSA assets modarated n 2014 Tollowing record volumes in 2015

The vatye of the Group’s investment portfelio {including our shore of co-Investment vehicles) increased
to £2,277 milion 0s of Decemnber 2014 {3 December 2015: £2.065 millon] with the averoge porifolo
yiakd faling Pbps fo 5.4%.

During 2015 we continued to maximise our portfolio value through a programme of selective
Jeaveloprmants, ocquisitrons, disposals and relurbishments.

E2d Read moTe. Disposals
Customer satisfaction continues at high levet supporting rental growth and our portfolio value.
34 Read more. Rendal growth and portfolio volue

> Reduction in assel values reducing financial returns

Risk management

Group Board and Property Boord ongoing
manitoring of property marked, direction
ond vatues

Farecast renta growth and recuming profit
otfsets any yleld movement.

Ensuring we have a strang yet flexible capital
structure so we can adapt appropriatety to
market conditlons.

Llear and active gssef management strategy

Rizk Miigalion in 2014
Disposak —ongolng monitoring of our entire portiolio with setective dsposals to benefit from keener

prices in the markel. We sold £114 milkon of assets in 2018.

Acquisitions - dscipined acqubitions strotegy exercmsing cauticn over portioko premiumms being paidin
the market.

Carelul managemean! of net debt and see-through LTV,
Maintaining discipined approach to new development fransactions by maintaining Group hurdie rates

Focus for 2017
To continue to acquire sites in éne with Group huidle rates and to procure contracts in ine with budgets.

Strategic objective
Brilant properties.

5 Reod more’ Our siralegy
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Financing risks

7. Unable to arrange new debt or expiring debt facilities cannot be replaced or only

at high cost. Adverse interest rate movements

Possible events Impact

5 Unite breaches aloan covenant or fails to replace debt on expiry > tunabie to replace debt, then possible forced sale of assats

> Infesest rate increase

polentially leading to sales beiow valuation. Slowdown of

development aclivily. Reduced level of profitabilfity

» Adverserale movements con lead lo reduced profitabinty
and reduction in property values [through resulting expansicn
of valuation yields ond lower valuations).

What hoppened (n 2006
During 20156, LTV ratio improved to 34% rom 35% at the erd of 2015 and net debt grew by £45 mision

to £776 milkon. During 2016. £150 milion of new debt was aranged.
100% of debt at fixed rote/swapped.

Dwring 2014 cur average cost of debt has lgken to 4.2% from £.5%: 2015 ond we expect it to lall further
by the end of 2017 as @ proporhon af forward starfing swops become etfective.

48 Read more: Fi jol review/capiol siruch

Risk management

Proactively managing debt maturities to
refinance these faciiities at least 6-12 months
petorne rmatunty and in poraie) diversifying ow
saurces of tinance to repay more expensive and
less faxibie bomowings.

Control of future cash commitrments in ine with
progress of disposals and refinancing.

Interest rates monitored by the funding team
s anintegral part of cur refinancing activity
—awned by the CFO and with Group Board
overighl. Gearing ratios defined i our Capitat
Cpetating Guidenes,

Hedge exposure with intevest rate swaps ong
refinance focities with fixed rates.

sk fMigation in 2014

Reguiar and reflable engagement with lenders.

With benigninterest rate environment. have continued 1o take advartage of historically low rates (both
on new debt and ako entering into forward starting interest rate swaps locking in rates for our 2007 and
2018 development pipefkne).

40 Reract move. Debt renewal/d prment debl ond swops

Focus for 2017

Shrategic

Growing ondsusiginable eamings.
5 Read mare: Gur sinalegy

Funading future development ocquisitions as well as 2017 funding requirements for the Group. USAF and LSAY.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

GREAT
SERVICE

Our commitment to proviiing

a Home for Success for students
and to be the most trusted brond
in the sector is centred araund our
high quallty properties, helpful
stalf and a commiiment to great
cusfomex service for both our
studenis and University poriners.

The implementation of our operating
platform, PRISM, has brought considerable
improvements to our customer service.
allowing us to move o a seven day
operoting madel, offer online room
viewings and to adopt paperiess tenancies.
These improvements have resulted in the
time for tenancies 10 be confirmed
reducing to five days from 15 days.

30% of bookings are now done onling or
fhrough mobile bookings, ensuring the
process of securing accommoedation is

os easy and as efficient as possible for
students. Additionally, through our Living
with Unite app, 75% of maintenance jobs
are now fixed within 24 hours.

Qur Home for Success investment
programime, which has seen us invest

£40 miliion across key areas of the busingss
including physical, digital custormer

service and people, has been completed.

We have enhanced our Wi-Fi speeds
across student rooms and communal
spaces to S0Mbps, completed the
instatiation of our LED ighting programme
and our Student Life Hul continues o
prove populor with students.

We cantinue fo build on our strong
relatfionships with over 60 high and
micl-rank Universities, with nominations
agreements now representing 58%,
with new tarms agreed for o longer

THE UNITE GROUP P1LC ANNUAL REFORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2014

duration, on avarage 10 years, compared
to seven yaars for existing amrangements,
Our partnerships ensure that Universities
ore able to provide their students with
accommodation close to campus and

o safe and secure environment in which
fo live, succeed in ther ocademic studies
and meet feliow students.

Our confinued focus on customer service
has led to high occupancy levels with
98% of beds let and rental growth of 3.8%.
In 2016, we achieved record high levels
of customer satisfaction and a growing
proportion of return students,

; demonsiraling our cormmitment 1o

helping students grow and succeed
at University and beyond.
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BUILDING ON OUR GREAT
SERVICE THROUGH THE
LAUNCH OF OUR NEW
OPERATING PLATFORM

Simon Jones
Operations Director

Related sections
5 Business model and stralegy

12 Relationships

18 Market review

» Key performonce indicators (KPIs)

26 Principal risks and unceriainties

QeA

Simon Jones addresses some topical questions
from our shareholders

How has PRISM benefiited the
services Unite provides?

Nl Our operating platform, PRISM,
which is unique to Unite, cllows

us to drive gredater efficiencies of scale
while oHfering the best possible service
fo our customers. PRISM has allowed
us to move to g seven day operating
modei and offer new sarvices such as
online bockings and room viewings, in
addition to papertess tencncies. These
mproverments have not only delivered
efficiencies for the business but greatly
improved the service we provide
fo our students. As we continue
1o grow the portfolio, PRISM enables
us to demonstrate a different
approach to other operations.

a Do you envisage growing the
proportion of your beds offered
through University porinerships?

Y We pride ourselves on our
partnerships with Universities

and work with them 1o ensure that
they are able to offer high quality
accommodafion and services to their
studants, an important component

of the overall student experience.
Nominations agreements rmake up
58% of the portfolic with the remaining
beds let directly to students, We continue
to explore future partnerships with
Univarsitias. which typically spon

10 years and provide visibility on future
income. We expect to remain at
around this level.

How imporiant is the aflordabllity
of your accommodation to your
business model?

Affordability is important for

students and therefore it is
important to us, We offer a wide range of
price points and room sizas as part of our
focus on delivering o more affordable
proposition for students. Cver the past
few yeors, Unite has focused on
delivering a more affordable proposition
for students. We also reinvest each year
in the accommodation and extend our
student services so that students get
value for money.

o How do you assess and value
competition and what do you
do o counteract 7

P Ve monitor the market closely and
competition for sites and property

portioiios has continued. We continue to
invest in our key differentiators such as our
portfolio scale and the localions or our
bwildings as well as PRISM, through which
we deliver unmatched customer services,
and through our Higher Education
indusiry experience and relationships.
Qur expertse continues to be important
as investor interest in the sector increqses.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Summary EPRA income stotemeni

0% 2015

m Em

Unite’s share of rental income 1591 1443
Unite’s share of property operating expenses (42.8) (3.8}
Net aperating [ncome (NO1) 183 1045
NOI margin 73.1% 725%
Management feas 140 120
Cperating expenses (23.1) 2.9
Finance cosls (45.9) {48.1)
USAF acquisition and net performance fee 8.9 20
Development and other costs {5.5) 7.2}
EPRA garnings 2.7 41.3
Yield reioted slement of performance fee {1.4) {11.8)
Adjusted EPRA somings 41.3 495
Adjusted EPRA EPS 27.7p 2.1p

* A lull reconciliation of Profit before fax to EPRA eamings 1 584 oyl in note 2.2 of the finoncial statements.

The Group continues 1o report on an IFRS
basis and to also present its performance
in line with best praclice recommended
by EPRA. The Operotions ond Property
roviews focus on EPRA measures as these
Qare oyr key internal measures and aid
comparability ocross the real estate sector.

Sales, rental growth

and profitabillty

The key strengths of our operating business
are Qur people. our PRISM operating
plotform, the strength of our brand and
the strength of our relationships with
Universities. We have continued to build an
fhese strengths throughout 2016, resulting
in 0 £11.8 million, 24% increase in Adjusted
EPRA eamings to £61.3 milion compared
1o last year (2015: £49.5 million). This growih
hos Qgain been driven by high occupancy,
rental growth and the impact of porttolio
movements as well as further operational
efficiencies and ongoing cost discipline.

The Group's share of rentalincome has
incregsed by £14.8 million, up 10%, os a
result of new openings and sustained
rental growth, NOI margin improved to
73.1% {December 2015: 72.5%), refiecting
turther operating efficiencies that were
driven by the implementation of our new
PRISM operating platform during 2016,
PRISM provides us with the ability to
differentiate oursetves from others, driving
efficiencies thraugh the use of technology
which engbles us lo provide enhanced
levels of service to our customers. We
maihiain our expectation that NCI manging
will improve towards 75%, olthough
balancing margin growth and service
level gnhancement will remain our
ovefriding priority.

we are now managing 42.000 beds
compared to 46,000 at 31 December
2015. Alongside this increase in beds
there hos been o growh In overheads of
£1.2 million, driven mainly by depreciation
costs associated with the new PRISM
systern, and we expect a further small
increase of depreciation costs in 2017,
Recurring management fee income from
joint ventures increased by £2.0 milion to
£14,0 million [2015: £12.0 million), as a result
of the growth of assets under manogement
in USAF and LSAV. In addition to the
recurring asset management fees. @ further
£4.9 milion of net USAF performance

and acquisition fees werg generaled
{2015; £22.0 million}. Qur key overhead
efficiency measure [folal operating
expensias less management fees asa
propartian of Unite's share of property
value] continues ta improve and now
stands at 40bps (December 2015: 48bps),
and we remain focused on our target of
25-30bps by the end of 2017 bosed on
current vields.

The £6.5 million USAF net performance
fee is payabie in unifs and is based

on USAF's cumutative total return at

31 Dacember 2016. The component of
the fee that relales to yield movement
has been excluded from Adjusted EPRA
eamings purposes to reflect o normaiised
level of earnings. The operational elerent
of the perfarmance fee is driven by USAF's
income and rental growth pertormance
and is not expected to significantly add
{0 our earnings performance going
forward given the curment valuction yisids,
gearing levels and rental growth oullbok.
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Finance costs decreased to £45.9 million
{2015; £48.1 million). An increase in net
debt of £45 million fo £776 milion (2015;
£731 milion) wos offset by o lower
average cost of finance of 4.2% (2015:
4.5%,) as we have added new debt
facilities at tower average rates, toking
advantage of the historically low cost

of debt. In addition, the increose in net
debt has been driven largely by spend
on development octivities which hasin
turn lead to an increase in the amount
of interest that is capitalised into
development schaemes to £5.9 million. up
from £2.7 million in 2015, We expect the
level of interest capitalisation to remain
at around this level given the ongoing
level of davelopmenl activity in 2017,
Development {pre-contract) and other
costs fall to £5.5 million {2015: £7.2 million),
refiecting tha levels of site acquisition in
the business, the earmings impact of share
based incentives and our contribution to
our charitable trust, the Unite Foundation,

Occupancy, reservations

and rentat growth

Occupancy across Unita's portfolio for
the 2016/17 ocademic year stands ot 8%
and like-for-like rental growth of 3.8% was
achieved on our stabfised portfolio. We
have continued to grow the praportion
of beds iet to Universities with 58% of
ooms under nominations agreements,
up by 5,000 beds over the last three
years. Enhanced service ievels and our
deep understanding of student needs
have resulted in longer term and more
robust portnerships with Universifies.

We expect the propertion of beds let

fo Universities to rermain at or around

this leved in the future, This batance of
nominations and direct-let beds provides
the benefit of having incorne secured
by Universities, as well as the ability fo
offer rooms to returning stugents and to
deterrnine market pricing on an annual
basls. On average. rents on nominations
rooms are £.5% below direct let
equivalents and, based on our recent
axperiance with new agreements. there
is an opportunity 1O close this discount in
the caming years.

Reservations for the 2017/18 accdemic
yearare encouraging, at 73% (67% al the
samae paint last vear) as aresult of our
confinued focus of working alongside the
UK's best Universities as well as our locai
presence in China building relationships
with Chinesea Universities. This structural
growth within the cities we operate,
fogether with our differentiated service
offering, provides us with further
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69%

Reservations for the 2017/18
acadamic year

THE FINAL ELEMENTS OF
PRISM WERE DELIVERED
IN 2016, PROVIDING FULL
ONLINE VIEWING AND
BOOKING FUNCTIONALITY
ALONGSIDE ENHANCED
MAINTENANCE SERVICE
LEVELS AND REVENUE
MANAGEMENT
FUNCTIONALITY

confidence in occupancy and rental
growth for the 2017/18 academic year
which we expect to be in the region of
3.0-3,5%.

Homae for Success

Qur Home for Success investment
programme providas us with o reat
point of differentiation to other providers
of student occommodation, The
programme, which wos initiated in 2014,
generated significant enhancemenis in
our operating platform, the establishrment
of communal study and relaxation
spaces that our customers have told us
that they want and the development

of a sense of home within gur praperties.
These foctors, together with our service
levelk. student insight, prime locations
and mid-market price points, make us
stand out for students and Universifies.

investment In people,

technology and relationships
Satisfaction with service and the strength

| of our relationships with Universities hos

. been maintained at high levels as both

students and Universities benefit from
the investments thot we ore making.
The final elements of PRISM were
delivered in 2014, providing full crline
viewing and booking functionality
olongside enhanced maintenance
service levels and revenue manogement
funcfionality. We will continue o invest
in and evolve this platform 1o maintain

| our sector leading advantage in this areq.

We have cantinued to invest in our
digitai capabilities, focusing on the
student experience. In 2016, this hos
seen us deliver further enhancaments

to our student-focused apps and our
website, a portolio-wicte communications
portal to drive engagement and to help
students access the information they
need to support them during the course
of the academic year, Qur gprs and
digital platiorms pravide students with

@ hassie free salution fo every day
concems, provide them with the support
they need and so allow them to focus
on their studies and time at Univarsity.

Developing our teams remains a priofity
for us and we have implemented new
leadership programmes across the
whole grganisation over the past two
years. These programme:s ensure that
we are providing our teams with the
troining required o deliver excellent
customer service as well as developing
their careers, and they have been on
integral part of our succassful attainment
of investors in Pecple Gold status in 2014,

We also continue to invest meaningfully
in our Higher Education sactor
reiationships. Our Universities Partnerships
and Engagement feam is dedicated o
building strong working relationships
with key University partners, and this
opproach has seen us incorporate
University requirements into new
developments and driven the growth

in the numiber of beds under nominotions
agreements.

In Ching, our marketing office is now
fully operotional and qur local oniine
presence has been established. We
have also started to create meaningful
relationships with both local and British
Universities in Ching, as well s providing
important support 1o our Chinese
customers before they fravel io the UK
and {o thair parents while their children
are overseds. We are confident that this
investment will deliver long-term benefit
fo the business as well as to Chinese
students and UK Universities.

Simon Jonas
Operations Director
22 February 2017
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PROPERTY REVIEW

BRILLIANT =

PROPERTIES

Stopleton Howse, London

In 2016, we opened five new
bulldings, adding to our portfolio
of high quality, conveniently
located accommaodation for
students studying in the shrongest
University fowns across the UK.
The new bulidings Increased

our number of beds by 3,082

to a fotal of 51,310. The bulldings
compiise mainly cluster flat
accommodation and provide
facilities such as on-site laundry,
study space, communal areas
and dry cycle storage. We
entered 2014/17 with the largest
ever number of sfudents at the
stant of an academic year.

More than half of the beds, 1,561, are
located in London at our two new siles:
Qlympic Woy and Stapleton House,
Otympic Way, which hos been let {o
Middlesex University under a nomination
agreemant, sits next to the iconic Wambley
Stadium and is part of the regeneration
of that areq. Stopleton House, Holloway
Road, alsa opened its doors to students
in September 2016 and is let under

a nomination agreement lo London
Metropolitan University.

Two turther completions, Greetham

Street Portsmouth and Far Gosford Street
Caventry, were acquired by USAF, recycing
capital for the Group's development
pipeline, with an additional development
completed in Aberdeen. The acquisition
by USAF was funded with a new

£100 million, five-yeor facility provided

by Wells Fargo. Both properties are on
nomination agreements 10 Portsmouth
University and Coventry University and are
fully let for the 2018/17 acadernic year.

We continue to progress our 7,.000-bed
development pipeline which extends out
to 2019, with five schemes set to open in
Septermber 2017, These developments will
provide o home for students studying at
some of the UK's sirongest Universities in Cavsewayenc
Coventry, Edinburgh, Liverpool and Oxford, '
In addition 1o this, we acquired five
development sites: $t Vincent's Sheffieid,
International House Birrmingham,
Chaucer House Portsmouth, Skelhorne
Street Liverpool and Millennium Way
Coventry and secured four pkanning
consents (Skelhorne Street Liverpool,
Intemafional House Birmingham,
Millennium Way Coventry and Brunel
Chaucer.)

Greethorn Skeet, Portsmouth



THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

COMPLETION OF FIVE BRILLIANT
PROPERTIES AND STRENGTHENING
OUR DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director

Related saclions
5 Business model and sirolegy

12 Relationships

18 Market review

20 Key performance indicators {KPis)
26 Principal risks and uncertainhes

QA

Richard Simpson addresses some topical questions
from our shoreholders

Hasinvestor oppetite for the
sector continued?

N Furpose built student

accommeadation confinued o
attract high levels of investment in 2016
at £3.25 billion, albeit at slightty lower
ievels than seenin 2015 at £5.5 billion.
Transaction volumes have remained
healthy, supporting current valuations,
with aronge of buyers in the market. This
continued interest refiects the dafensive
nature of the asset ckass and atiractive
renial growth outiook.

Q

a Arg you sesing tuture development
opportunities given the levels of new
supply coming onto the market?
There is still strong demand for
afferdable, wel-located and

high quality accommeodation in
leading University towns and cities.
Qur development pipeline of 7,000 beds
spanning wntl 2019 1s progressing well.
We conlinue to monttor the market for
development opportunities that are in
line with our target returns for regional
development, focusing on high to
mid-ranked Universities in fowns and
cities which we expect wil see the
strongest growth.

Q Do you envisage the London market
for devalopmant opening vp?
Nl e ore starting 1o see signs that
opportunities may re-emerge in
London. However, returns on potential
new projects in London remain below
our hurdle rate due, principally to
exceassive planning levies and higher
alternalive use values for prospective
sites. We monitor the market closely

and remain ative to future opportunities,
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PROPERTY REVIEW

CONTINUED

EPRA NAY growth
EPRA NAV pershare increased by 12% 1o

446 pence at 31 December 2016, up from
579 pence at 31 December 2015, In totol,

EPRA nef assets were £1,557 million ot

31 Decembaer 2016, up from £1,394 million

o year exxlier,

Looking forward, our portfolic iswell placed
to defiver continued value growth. Our
focus on the strongest University locations
undemnpins rental growth prospects and we
will continue to deliver meaningful upside
frorm our development activity. in fofol our
secwed pipeline s expected to deliver

43 pence per share of NAV uplift and

» Capital expenditune on developmants
of £144 mithon and £12 million gn
investment assets reloting to
refurbishment and LED instaliations
Disposals of E114 millian

Voiuation increases of £136 miflion on
the investrment and development
portfolios, with like-for-like rental growth

-

The main factors behind the 47 pence per | 13 pence of eamings per share of 3.8% being generated on the
share growth in EPRA NAV per share were: | ONCe completed. stabilised porifotio
> Increased share of USAF of £32 million,
> The growth in the volue of the Group's | Property portfolio Qs aresult of the performance fee
share of investment assets (+34 pence), | The valuation of cur property portfolio at earned in 2015.
as a result of rental growth {+26 pence) 3 December 2014, including our share of
and yield comprassion (+8 pence) gross assels held in USAF and joint ventures,
» The valve odded to the development was £2,277 million [31 Decermber 2015:
portiolio (+21 pence) £2,065 million}. The £212 million increase
> EPRA earnings for the period (+25 pence] | in portfolio volue (Unite share) was
> Dividends paid of 14 pence attributable to:
reduced NAV.
Summury balance sheet
016 215
wholly Share of wholy Share of
owned Fund/ivV Toial owned Fund/sv Total
£m tm tm £m £m £Em
Rental properties 1,062 1,023 2,085 1,024 an 1,835
Properties under development 185 7 12 150 80 230
1247 1.030 2277 1,174 891 2.065
Adjusted net debt (432) (344) {778) {448) [283) {731)
Other assets/{liabllities) (15) (4) (29) 5 8 (23)
Convertible bond a5 - &5 83 - &3
EPRA nei assets 885 872 1,557 804 590 1,394

“ A reconciiation of the IFRS balonce sheet 1o EPRA net assets s set outin section 2.2 of the financial stiolements

The proporfion of our property portiolio that is income generating is 92%, up from 89% at Decernber 2015, with 8% now under
development. With the completion of tha LSAV developrnent pipeline, the majority of development activity rekates to wholly-owned
assats. we will continue to manage the development weighting of our balance sheet and expect it fo remain at ground these
levels, well within our intemal cap of 20% going forward.
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Unite investment porticlio onalysis at 31 December 2014

wholly Untle
USAF awhed Lesexse ool shoee
London Value (Em) 351 945 425 - 1,741 988
Beds 2014 5.861 1.98%9 260 10,124 4TR
Major provinciol Value [£m) 1,584 44 440 - 2,068 426
Beds 20,656 331 5914 2577 29478 0%
Provincial Value (£m) 3z - 197 - 519 an
Beds 4904 - 3.253 1,059 9.116 13%
Total Value [£m) 2257 1.009 1,041 - 4,327 2,085
Beds 27.474 6,192 11,156 3,898 48,718 100%
Unife awnership share 2% 50% 100% -
Unite ownership (Em) 519 505 1,041 - 2,085

The invesfrment porifolio (see-throughi i spiif between London [47%] and the rest of the UK (53%]. broadly in ine with previous years.
The regional focus of our development pipefine means that the Londen weighting is ikety to fall to around 35% as the portfolio is buill out.

Student accommodation yields
The level of fransoctions in the student
accommaodation sector hos remained
high in 2014 following the unprecedented
lovels seen in 2015, with over £3 billian of
assets trading during the year. The majority
of buyers have been supported by global
institutional capital. An element of
unceriainty in the few months following
the EU referendum in June was replaced
with confidence in the market with g high
volume of portfolios ond assets trading

in the secand haill of the year.

As aresult of the investor appetite and
subsequent fransactions, there has been
a madest level of yield compression
across the sactor. This yleld compression
has been reflected in our portfolio and
the average yield (on o see-through
basis] at 31 Dacembaear 2015 was 5.45%,
an inward movement of nine basis

points over the yeor.
Indicative voluation yields

31 Dec 2t M Dec NS
Londog_ . 45.50%  45525%
Prime provincial 526-5.75%  5.35-58%
Provincial 4.0-65% 4.0-6.5%

Development acfivify
Development activity continues 1o be

a significant driver of growth in NAV and
future eqrnings. We are continuing to see
opportynities to selectively secure sites
for delivery in 2019 and 2020 in strong
regional locations alongside high-guality
Universities within our target mnge

of 8.0-8.5% vield on cost. Returns on
potential new projects in London shill
remain below our hurdle rate of 7.0%

due principally ‘o higher alternative

use values for prospective sites and
planning levies, and we have not seen
the corection in lond prices that were
anficipated foliowing the EU referendum.

20V and 2017 completions

We completed five schemes during 2016
in line with budget and programme. Over
70% of these beds are let to Universities
under nominations agreements for the
2014/17 academic yeor, with an averoge
duration of 1Q years.

The 2017 pipeline is progressing well.

We are on track to deliver three wholly-
owned schemes in Edinburgh, Liverpoaol
and Coventry and, in USAF. two forward
funded deveiopments in Oxford and
Edinburgh, adding a total of 2,200 beds.
We expect all of the schemes to be fully
tet for the 2017718 academic year.

fReglonai deveiopmeni pipsiine

During the year, we have continved to
grow our 2018 and 2019 regionol pipeline
and have now securad a fofal of eight
schemas which are expecied o deliver
approximatety 4,800 beds in addition

to cur ongoing 2017 projects. Allnew
regional developments are being
undertaken wholly on bolance shaet
and prospective returns for the secured
pipeline are very attractive ot an avemge
8.5% yvield on cost.

Planning is now in place on all of the
schemes in the pipeline [with the
exception of the Oid BRI site in Bristol
which is expected tc receive consent
in the first half of 2017). During the yedar,
we have reorganised the phasing

of deliveries in 2018 and 2019, with
Aberdeen and Bristol being pushed
back to 2019 and Birmingham and
Sheffigld oceelerated to 2018, This will
ensure o balanced level of activity
ocross the two years.
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PROPERTY REVIEW
CONTINUED

Secured develapment pipetine {(wholly ovwned)

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REFORT AND ACCIUNTS 2014

olal Totod Fonecost
compdaled deveioprneant Cooex n Capex Forecast NAY yeald
Sacured Deds volue: <085 peroq nemanrg ramamng of oot
Na £m £m Em Em £&m L)
2017 completions
St Leonards Edinburgh 581 64 41 15 i3 7 9.5%
Millen iy Paint Coventry 91 34 24 12 12 4 8.8%
Tara House Liverpool 776 £5 46 24 13 6 9.3%
2018 complsfions
Newgate Street Hewcastle 575 46 ¥ 7 » 8 B5%
Brunel House Sristal 7 28 21 1 10 5 B5%
ChaucerHouse  Portsmouth 484 41 Y P 2% P 80%
St Vincent's Sheffield 545 46 3% 1 T3 10 8.2%
international House  Birmingham 586 48 B 1 37 1 B0%
2017 completions
Skelhorne Liverpool 1,085 e 73 14 0 16 B8.0%
Oid BRI Brisfol 706 93 74 2 58 P 8.4%
Constitution Street Aberdeen 800 54 40 __,,Ok _ 33 7 8.4%
Totol (wholty owned) 6,561 411 442 a3 324 102 8.5%

' Subject to obtainng plonreng consent.

Secured forward fund pipeline {USAF)

USAF has secured two assets on a forward fund basis in Oxford and Edinburgh. These acquisitions are consistent with its strategy
fo increase expasure to high quality Universities and to expand its presence in markets to ioke advantoge of scale,

Whilst USAF has fully deployed its equity, USAF is making good progress with @ small number of further acquisitions and covid
expect o deploy more capital, released from portiolio recycling activities into these opportunities

Secured cutnp!::ll mbpr":':: Copeax Capex Formcast NAV Forecast
beds valoe costs n period remnceng remanng ymid on cosl
. No. £m £m £m £m £m %

USAF T o

2017 completions

Beech House Oxford - 23 18 11 8 3 6.3%
Lution Court Edinburgh 237 33 il 18 g 4 0%
Total USAF 404 54 a7 29 17 7 6.1%
trdte share of USAF n/a 13 1 7 4 2 41%
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QOur development pipeling remains @ source of significant future value and eamings growth and the tabia below summarises its
potential impact on future NAV and earnings per shore;

Hustralve returns (oy 2019}

Fulure Future
NAVps EPS
Secured regional projects [wholly owned) 42 13
Secured USAF projects 1 -
Totol secured pipeline 43 13
Asset disposals
During 2016, £52 million of assatt were sold in third-party fransactions (Unite share: £46 million). In addition, Unite sold two wholly- o
owned assels in Portsmouth and Coventry to USAF for a combined total of £88 milion, taking tatal disposals on a see-through basis Q
1o £114 million, All of the assets were sold in line with book value. g
Asset disposals remain an impartant part of our strategy going forward ta ensure that we clign our portfalio with our strategy to work .
with high and mid-ranked Universities. Disposals also provide the copitol to fund further growth In cur development pipeline in 2019 E
and 2020. we remqin focused on our copital discipline to balance further growth opportunities with our leverage targets and 3
axpect to make around £150-200 milion [Unite share) of disposals in 2017. In February 2017, we exchanged contracts tosell a %
regional portfolio of 4,175 beds for £295 million (Unite share £102 million] in line with book value. )
Richard Simpson
Group Properly Director
22 Februory 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Gostord Sirest, Coveniry

GROWJING AND
SUSTAINABLE

Our strategic objective

- @

Qur consistent stralegy confinyes
to dediver sustainable and growing
earnings underpinned by our
highly accretive development
pipefine, strong University
parinerships and scalable
operational platform, PRISM.
Recuiring profits increased

by 24% and our dividend s up

by 20%. We achieved renfal
growth ol 3.8% increasing
eamings and NAV.

Cur high quality portfolio with a wide
range of price points ond room sizes,
sector-ieoding brond and services continue
to attract students and to deliver a
superior experience for students and
universities, driving sustainable income.

PRISM is fully implemented and delivering
improvements to customer service and
demonstrating efficiencies of scale.

EARNINGS

Qur net operating income rmargin is
up to 73% and cur imgroved overhead
efficiency of 40bps is on track o meet
target of 25-30 basis points by the end
of 2N7.

We continue fc operate a strong capitoi
struciure maintaining LTY at 35%. Our
cost of debt has reduced to 4.2% and
anet debt to EBITDA ratio of §.5 remains
within our largeted range of & fo 7 times.
Qur strong debt position means we
have limiled refinancing requirgments
before 2020.

In Navember 2016 at a General Meeting
for shareholders, the Company's
conversion 1o Real Estate (nvestrent

Trust (REIT) stotus was approved., effective
on | January 2017, strengthening the
earnings and dividend focus of the business.

Recycling capital through assel disposals
rernains an importont part of our strategy
to maintain capital discipline and to fund
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Olympse: Way. London

further growth in cur 2019 development
pipeline. In total we defivered £125 million
of asset disposals during the year including
the disposal of two properties to USAF

in September 2016 and the disposal of
Curzon Gateway in Birminghom to HS2
under a compulsory purchase order
agreement in July 2016, in ine with the:
book valuve of the assef.

In May 2016, USAF issued £125 miliion

of bonds under ifs existing debt funding
platform established in June 2013, The
proceeds were used o repay secured
debf and fo fund further growth in

the Fund.
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FOCUS ON DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH IN RECURRING PROFITS
AND CASHFLOW

Joe Lister

Chief financial Officer and
Managing Director of People and Communications

QRA

Joe Lister gddresses some topical questions from cur sharehoiders

During the year, the Group
elected fo be faxed as & REM
with effect from 1 January 2017.
The election will not change the
core business model of Untle
Students, and we remain focused
on providing affordable purpose-
built student accommodation,

B} wrotnorem

REMs provide a way for investors to

axccess the risks and rewards of
holding property without having to buy
it directly. REITs were introduced by the
Govaernment in 2007 with the aim of
supporting investment in UK real estale
and HMRC has supported groups
convarting to REITs over the last ten years.

REIT status means that the Unite Group
is exempt from paying corporation tax
on profits and gains arising from its UK
propearty rental business. However, il will
still pay corporation tax onincome
arising from any non-property related
activities such as management fees and
interest income. REIT status has no effect
on VAT, stamp taxes and employment
taxes, and REITs continue 10 pay these
iaxes as normal,

Ry Whot is the Impact on
dividend paymenits?
il There are strict conditions set by
HMRC for groups to remain as REITs,
including the requirement to distribute
at least 90% of their property profits
{as calculated for tax purposes which
may differ to the accounting profit] fo

shareholders, For UK shareholders, this
distribution is freated for fax purposes
as property renial income rather than
dividends, and overseqs sharehokders
suffer withholding tax at the basic rate
of tax. The net effect is that the taxation
of property income is moved from

the REIT to the shareholder thareby
allowing tax efficiency while protecting
the UK Exchequer.

The tax-exemp! property profits that are
distributed to shareholders are known
as Property income Distributions [PIDs).

A REIT can glso distribute post-tax profits
fram its other activities, known asa
Non-Property Income Distributions
{non-PIDs). Any one distribution from

a REIT may be solely PIDs, solely non-PIDs
or arnixlure of the two.

In line with REIT conversion the dividend
pay-out ratio will be increased to 75%
of 2017 adjusted EPRA eamings,

Q Why Is Unite Students becoming
aRET?

JRl Unite Students hoids a large
porioio of shudent occommodation

and has g strong dividend. s business
is therefore aready well suited to
becoming a REW which provides a
tax efficient enviranment for property
investment groups that meet a dividend
requirement. Conversion 1o o REIT will
enable Unite to continue with its core
business whilst increasing its investment
in its property portfolio and growing
the retum to shareholders. It can do
tis without needing to consider the

impacts of tax on disposols of capitel
assets and while offéring an efactive tax
transparent environment to investors in
relafion to its property income.

As a REIT, Unite is able to attract a wider
pooi of investors, most especiaty those
who are exermpt from kax in the UK who wil
na longerindirectly suffer tax at the level of
the group. In addition, the concept of

© REIT s widely understood and valved
by the: global investor community.

a What ks the Impact In 2014 for Untte
el Stucents of RET conversion?

Yl The Group has historicalty been
required under internationgl

Accounting Standards to recognise
a deferred tax liability in respect of
increases lo the market value of its
investment properties. This deferred tax
liaility is not tox that the Group owes,
but instead is an accounting provision
for estimated tax that could become
payable were the Group fo sellits
investment properties in the future
{on the excess of market volue over
the amount originally paid). As a REIT,
such gains will be exempt from UK
corporation tax and hence no provision
for defered tax is required to be
recognised. The provision at | kanuary
2016 has therefore been released during
the year, The Group has still provided for
the potential defered tax kability relating
1o assets that are not exemopt as a REIT
{including investments in joint veniures)
af the baiance sheef date where it is
expecied that the timing difference wit
give rise fa faxable profits as it unwinds.
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FINANCIAL REVIEUW

CONTINUED

Income statement and

profit measures

A tull reconciliation of profit befors tax
0 EPRA eomings megasures is set out in
summary below and in full in section 2
of the financial statements.

o6 2015
tm £m

Adjusted EPRA eamirgs 613 495
EPRA eamings &2.7 613
Valuation gains and
profit/loss on dispasal 1343 32446
Changes in valuation
of interest rate swaps
and debt breok costs 1.0} 03
Minarity interest
and taxincluded
in EPRA earnings 34 22
Profit before lax 2014 3884
Adjusted EPRA
eqarnings per share Zrp 2p
Basic eomings pershare  101.3p _ 164.20

EPRA eamings of £42.7 million 1o

31 December 2016 (2015: £61.3 million) is
stiated after deducting tox changes, share
option costs and abortive/pre-contract
development spend of £5.5 million.

The significont reduction in profit before
tax is primarily the resutt of o lower level
of unrealised vatluation gains of

£136.3 million being recognised in 2016
cermpared with the £324.6 million
racagnised in 2015,

Cashflow and net debt

The Operations business generated
£61.3 milion of net cash in 2016 (2015:
£40,8 miilion) and see-through net debt
increased marginally to £776 million
{2015: £73) million). The key components
of the movement in sea-thraugh net debt
wara tha operationol cashflow and the
disposal programme (generating total
infiows of £175 million) offset by total
capital expenditure of £158 milfion and
dividends poid of £34 millior, tn 2017,

we expect net debt to increase by

a similar level as capital expenditure

on invastment and development activity
will exgeed anticipated asset disposals.

Dividend

Wao are increasing our dividend pay-out
levelto 75% of EPRA earnings fexcluding
USAF performance fees) and are
recornmending a fully covered final
dividend payment of 12.0 pence per
share {2015; 9.5 pence), making 18.0
pence for the full year {2015: 15.0 pence}.
Subject to approval at Unite's Annual

General Meeting on 11 May 2017, the
dividend wil be paid on 19 May 2017
to sharehokders on the register at close
of business on 21 April 2017,

Tax and REIT conversion

During the yvear, the Group elected to
convert to REIT status with effect from

1 January 2017. This has resulted in the
release of the provision for deferred

tax on property business assets totalling
£41.] million as disposals of investment
property, as a REN, will be exempt from
tax. The remaining deferred tox liability
reloting to unrealised gains on joint
venture investmants of £17.2 million, which
are not exempt from fax, exceeds the
deferred tax asset relating to tax adjusted
losses camied forwerd of £11.8 million.

As the losses can be set against gains as
they grise, the defermed tax asset relating
1o the losses can be recognised in full
agaoinst defermed tax liabilities.

Cerlain octivities, primarily the investment
managerment of joint ventures, whilst
expected to fall within the limits of the
balance of business lests, wilkinCur a tax
charge which we expect to be in the
region of £2-3 million per annum.

Debt financing

During the period, we have maintained
owr focus on controlling gearing lavels,
extending debt maturities and minimising
financing costs:

Key debt statislics (see-thraugh basis)

0% W15
Net deb! £776m £731m
LTV M% 5%
Net debhEBITDA
rafio 6.5 69
Avarage delbt
maturity 4Pyears 5.4 vyean
Average cost of
debt 4.2% 4.5%
Proporiion of
invastment debt at
fixed rate 100% 0%

The Group's see-through LTV improved
to 34% at 31 December 2016, from 35%
at the end of 2015 as aresult of the value
growih of the portfolio exceeding the
increase in net debt. We will continue

to manage our gearing proactively and
intend to maintain our LTV around the
mid-30% level going forward, assuming
currant yields. With greater focus on the
edarnings profile of the business, we are
ako now monitoring our net debt to
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EBITDA ratio, which was 6.5 times in 2016
and we pian 1o keep thisin line with
current levels going forward.

interest rate hedging

anangements and cost of debt
Our see-through cost of debt has
reduced to 4.2% (2015: 4.5%) as we have
secured additional debt on our recent
completions ond refinancing in USAF at
historically low levels. The Group has 100%
of its see-through investrnent debl subject
fo a fixad interest rate (2015: 90%) for an
average lerm of 4.9 years,

Convertible bond

The Group's £90 million convertible bond
is due to mature in Oclaber 2018, Under
the terms of the bond. early conversion
of the debinto equity could be tiggered
by us from October 2016 onwards if

the shore price trades over 1.3 times

the conversion price tor a period of time.
The initial conversion price of £5.10 has
reduced o £4.88 following share placings
and dividend payments and therefore
EPRA NAV has been prepared on the
basis that the bond will convert in the
future. This has resulted in NAY dilution

of 15 pence per share as at 31 Decamber
26, Conversion would result in around

a 4% point reductionin LTV,
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Urnle
Property Net Other Net shore
assels debt assers aasels of NAY Tokal
&m £m £m £m ratum Maturly Unite shore:
Vahicle
USAF 2288 (714} {al) 1,523 352 1% Infinite 23%,
LSAV 1.009 {354} {15} 640 320 15% 2022 50%
Funds and joint ventures The asset management faes from both

The table above summarises the key
financials for each vehicle.

USAF and LSAV have continued fo
perform well in 2016, LSAV's totalreturn
is driven by stronger capital growth from
deveiopment returns,

USAF currently does not have any
acquisition capacity following the forward
fund acquisitions and acquisitions from
Unite made in the year, but will continue
1o ronitor acquisition opporiunities
funded by caopital recycling.

Fees

During the yeaor. the Group recognisaed net
feas of £21.7 millon {2015; £35.9 million)
from its fund and asset managament

USAF and LSAV have increased as o result
of the growth in the portfolios under
management during the year generated
by acguisitions and valuation growth,

A tolal performance fea of £8.1 million
was earnad and wilk be paid in unifs
during the first quarier of 2017. The net
fee recagnised of £6.5 million is after
deducting £1.1 million, which represents
the Group's share of the performances
fee paid by USAF and after advisory costs
of £0.5 milion, The levelof the fea s
sensitive to movermnenis in property
vaiuations and is therefore significantly
lower than in 2015 due o the high levef of
yield compression in 2015. After payment
of the fee. our stake in USAF will remain

ot 23%.

asunwaaoB sjouodiory

ivitias gs follows:

activites g Joe Lister -

2014 s | Chiet Financlal Officer a
tm &m_ | 22February 2017 §

USAF e

Asset 9

rmanagerment fee 10.0 8.7 §

Acquisition fee 0.4 1.8 2

Net

performance fee 6.5 20.2

LSAV

Asset and property

monagement fee 4.0 33

Deveiopment

management fsg 10 19

Total fees 21.9 359

* A ful breakdown of the net performance
fea 15 i note 2.4(c) of the notes to the
finoncial stalerments,
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Up tou$S

Ovur ambition is to create homes
to support the development

of future generalions of dynomic
and successful graduates,
equipped to make positive social
and economic contributions.
We have a unique opportunity
to make a valuable contiibution
to society by helping our 49,000
students every yeur jo learn.
adoept and develop responsible
living habits. The management
of, and accountablity for,

our Impact an our world Is
embedded as port of our
day-to-day operations.

UP

uS

It has always been important to Unite fo act
os a responsible business. Qur first buildings
werg ranovations of existing vacont
properties in Bristol where there was alack
of good quality student accommiodation.

In 2014 we started work on a new
responsible business strategy, called Up
to uS, addressing the key sustainability
ssues affecting our business and supply
chains, Up to u§ is o plon designed

to equip us for a future in which our
retevance to students will depend on our
ability {o help them protect their world.

Up to us will deliver sustainable value

for our stakeholders and make us the
leading sustainable purpose-built
accommodation provider. However,

we want to go further than being the most
susiainable business in our sector. Further
even than making ongoing improvernents
o what we do as we grow and the world
evolves. Ulimately our goal is fo use our
business 1o drive positive social change.
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WE’RE MAKING A POSITIVE
CONTRIBUTION TO OUR PEOPLE,
OUR UNIVERSITIES, OUR STUDENTS
AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Joe Lisfer

Chief Financial Officer and

Managing Director of People and Communications

Up to uS underpins oyr unique business
model to creote long-lerm valye through
the effective use of resources and
relationships. It s driven by the some
strategic priorities as our business model;
to be the most trusted brand, 1o have the
highest quality portfolio and strangest
capital structure.

U 10 uS covers four main themes:

Greot workploce 45

The environment 45

Social impact 48

Trusted pewiner 48
Great workplace

We want fo credate an inclusive and
positive workpiace for all of our people.

Highlights and key commitments

In 2016 we received Invesior in People
Gold Aword and our farget now is to
achieve Investor in People Platinum
by 2020.

We invested £110,000 into o programme
for paid interns, supporting current
students towards employability and
@iving our smployees opportunities to
work directly with students, gaining
valuable insights into their worlds.

Qur pricrities in this area are:

Divarsity and inclusion

We believe hat inclusivity and diversity
across the organisation i critical fo owr
continued success. Our emplayees are
from many different backgrounds and
have diverse experiences, pernpectives
and skills. We aim to have aworkforce
that is fruly representative of all sections
of society, where each employee feels
respected ond gble to give their best.
Unite Students will promote a Culture

of equality ond faimess for all and
ensure NG person acting on our

behaif shall discriminate in any
situation against another individual

or group, directly or indirectly.

In 2014 we conducted our first
company-wide Diversity Survey and
the insights provided by this will help
inform the development of policies
and working practices.

Career entichment

We hove created a comprehensive
range of training courses and
development programmes forour
employees at all levels. These are
focused on lechnicol skills, personal
development and management
competances. Our leadership ramework
includes programmes such as Becoming
a Supervisor, Becoming a Manager and
aleadership development programme.

Welibelng

The health and wellbeing of our
employees ks critical to creating
sustainoble performance. in 2016 we

Gender divensity

introcluced o wellbeing portal on our
infranet, providing advice and tips to
enable employees to kok after their
personal health, financial and mental
weallbeing. Creating a cohesive wellbeing
strategy will be a focus for 2017.
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Human Rights

Unile betlieves that human rights are
universal and recognises that the UN
Guiding Principles on Business and
Human Rights set a standard of conduct
expecied of companies. We do our
best o ensure that everyone involved

or associated with Gur business is
prolected, freated fairly and subject to
our Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policies,
Health and Safety Policy, and various HR
palicies including those covering data
protection, disciplinary, perfarmance
management, lexibie working,
grievanca, leave, equality and divessity,

The environment

We wan! fo reduce our environmenlai
impact and encourage responsible
behaviour in our students, employees
and suppliers.

Highlights and commitments

In 2016 we achieved further
improvements across varous metrics
including o four star rating from the
Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark (GRESB), were placed in the
98th percentile of the FTSE4Good index,
and were rated B for our ciimate change
perfarrmance by the Carbon Disclosure
Project {CDP]. These reflect our ongoing
efforts to reduce our contribution to
climate change, and improve our
broader environmentgi performance.
We were shortlisted for the 2014 Energy
Awards and the 2017 EDIE Sustainability
Awards for our behavioural change and
gngagement programme,

Qur envikonmenial strategy focuses on
four main objectives. which together help
us reduce our three material environmenital
impocts: energy and carpon; water; ond
resource use and waoste.

In 2016 we pledged to develop a
science-based carbon reduction target.
in line with the Paris Climate Agreement
1o limit warming 1o less thon two degrees.
and have been working with the Science

Based Targets Initiative (SBTI) to set
an ambitious and credible target.

wa have also set arange of targets to
help reduce our gther ervironmental
impacts too:

» Wasigned up to the intemational
RE100 scheme, committing o buy
100% renewabile energy by 2020

> We are working to a larget of doubling
our energy produclivity by 2032 under
the internationa! EP100 programme,
meaning we will haive our energy
consumption per bed

> We aim to send zero waste to kandfill
from our sitas by 2025

> Allnew buikdings cpening from 2018 on
will achieve a BREEAM "Excellent’ rating

> By 2020 we will aim fo effectively
engage 50% of our students every
year with sustainability campaigns
while fving with us.

Sustainabie bullkdings

Building on our Energy Savings
Opportunity Scheme [ESOS) surveys and
Energy Performance Certificate update
in 2015, we are producing individual
action plans for each of our buildings

to identify the full range of energy and
water efficiency opporiunities. Over 2017
we will bring this into a coordinated plan
aiming to deliver significant energy and
water afficisncy improvements. As well
as complying with the 2018 minimum
anargy efficiency standards and the
2019 ESOS deadline. this will deliver
significant carbon reductions across our
existing estate. Ahead of this we have
continued our ongoing £21 million LED
lighting vpgrade, and instclied a range
of new technologies 1o understand how
best to achieve the energy and water
efficisncy improvements. During 2016 we
deployed wireless networked building
controls, instolied PY panels and gir-source
heat pumps, and assessed a range of
other polential tachnologies including
demand side response and battery
storage. This activity has heiped deliver
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o 10% reduction in energy per bed from
2014-2015 and a 4.8% reduction from
2015-2004.

Sustainable behaviour

Our Up to Ul Sustainability Engogement
Programme is now in its third year, ond
seeks to deliver lasting changes in
behaviour fowards more environmentaly
responsible living and working habits. wWe
see this os o unique opportunity to help
our students adopt enduring sustainabile
living habits that stay with them after they
move on from Unite Students, creating a
legacy of positive environmental impact.
Aligned with the WUS Green Impact
Awards, the programme usas individuai,
tocal and natfionolinitiatives to moximise
engagement, During the 2015/14
academic year we recruited more than
120 student volunteers to help us deliver
a range of activities 1o raise awareness
of sustginable living choices. Going into
2016/17 we launched our Pledge for
Good campaign which includes
commitments ta follow sustainable
beahaviours thatl could deliver more

than 30 tennes of carbon reduction,

Sustainable Construction

As well as improving the existing estate,
we are alsc committed to making sure
our new buildings deliver high standards
of anergy efficiency ond environmanial
performance, and help our students
live mora responsibly and sustainably.
From 2017 onwards all of our new builds
will @im for an ‘Excellent’ rating under
the widely used BREEAM environmental
assessmeni methodology.

Sustainable Energy

As well as improving energy efficiency,
we are looking af how best to use
renawabie energy o further reduce
our carbon emissions. Cver 2017 we will
be iooking at a range of short and long
term cpfions to identify the best way

to use credible renewable energy 1o
reduce our footprint and deliver wider
business benefits.

Calcvlation of market based emissions factor for grid electricity suppled under contract

Carbon Draxde

Supokess residual amssons for each  Resdual Fuel Mocx CO,

fuel rrx fuelsouee EMESIcns

Primary energy source used for generahcn [l [kQ/RWh) (kQ/kWh[
Coat 14 091 0.1454
Natural Gas &b 039 02574
Nuclear | 0 a
Renewables 16 0 8]
Other Fuels i 0.59 0.0059

Overall emissions factor

0.4089 kgCO2/kWh
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Corbon
Contributions
Change vs Change v
2014 215 DNOT yeor 218 prior year
Year end bed numbers 43,039 45,447 5.5% 48,637 7.02%
Carbon contributing bed numbers 39,125 43,084 10.12% 45,926 6.60%
Carbon contributing floor area (m?) 1,097,060 1,207.804 1009% 1,282,018 6.14%
Energy ond waler consumption
2014 15 2014
Chonge vs Change vs
Consumphion Consumption DNOF yaar Comnsumpiion pricr year
Electricity Abscolute (kwhj 111,948,211 110,948,791 0.89% 112,524,058 1.42%
Retative 1o bed numbers (kWh/ted}) 28561314 2.575.154 -10.00% 2,450.108 -4.84%%
Retative to floor area (kwh/m?) 102,045 91.860 -9.98% az.m 4457
Natural gas Absolute (kwh) 23,328,332 26,977,762 15.64% 29,075,459 7.78%
Relative to bed numbers (kwh/bed} 596.251 626.162 2.52% 633.096 0.02%
Rekative 1o flioor areo (kWh/m?) 21,264 22,336 5.04% 22.630 1.54%
Waoter Absolute (rm?) 1,819,569 221820 2.N%
Reictive to bed numbers [m/bed} 42233 48.300 14377
Relative to floor areo
{m3/m?) 1.507 1.730 14.85%
Greenhouse gas emissions
004 2015 2008
Change vs Change vs
Cansumpton Consumpton pnor yeor Consumption prior yeor
;0;1?5'3 §§°De 1 Absolute [tonnes CO.e) 439376 537305 2.9% 575032 7.02%
10on.
s Relative 1o bed numbers (ftonnes COze/oed) an 02 11.05% 013 QA.40%
Relative to floor aea (kg COwe/m?) 40050 4.4484 11.08% 4.4854 0.83%
Total Scope 2 Absolute (lonnes COqa) 56,0257 5238217 -6.50% 47,352.15 -9.60%
:’""55;9"5 Reiative fo bed numbers (fonnes CO.e/bed) 1.43 1.2 L00% 1.03 -1277%
|OCO 1 based
on ) Relative to flnor areqa (kg CO-e/m3) 510692 43.3498 -15.08% 35,9354 -14.84%
Total Scope 2 Absolute {tonnes CO-a) 48,488.98 45,997.70 -1.08%
e:‘ﬁ('";‘; a Relative 1o bed numbers (fonneas CO,e/bed) 113 1.02 -8.38%
[market based) Relative lo ficor area (kg CO.e/md) 40.1464 34.65%2 -AEY%
Total Scope Absalute (lonnes COze) 60.419.73 57.755.22 -4 1% 53,10247 -2.06%
! ;3: ﬂ;_"'”'ggsed Relative o bed numbers (fonnes CO,e/bed) 1.54 1.34 -6.14% 116 -10.51%
localionbased) b \ative fo fioor crea (kg COze/m?) s50742 478184 JA17% 414210 -13.38%
Total Scope Absolute {lonnes CO%) 5386203 5274802 -207%
(';2 e:""’;'g;zd Relative ta bed numbers (tonnes CO,e/bed) 1.25 115 b.75%
Il
ane I Relative to ficor orea (kg COe/m?) 445950 411445 7.74%
Total Scope 3 Absalute {tonnas CO) 14,802.20 15,4869 4.62% 1548629 -L74%
emissions Relative to bed nurmbers (fonnes COe/bed} 0.38 0.36 -499% 0.36 -7.82%
{location based) | 5
Relative 1o floor crea (kg CO.e/m?) 13,4925 128219 -4.97% 1207746 -5.79%

Scope | emissions include gas consumption and business vehicies use.
Scope 2 emussions nclude geid electnicity ond heat
Scope 3 emissions include supply chaln emissions such as waler and paper use. business fravel. and energy supply chain emissions {fransrmission

and distnbuhon losses and well-to-tank ernissions).

Location based emissions are calculated using DEFRA 2016 eenissions factors.

* "perbed" amissions use pro fata bed numbers, taking into account the length of kme the site was under our cwnershic.

Market based emissions ore calculated using morket bosed emssions foctor based on supptiar's siated residual fuel mix shown below:
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Scope 1 and 2 emissions have been
calcukited in fine with the DEFRA
Environmental Reporting Guidelines
2013, DEFRA 2005 emissions factons
have been used, except for market
posed emissions which have been
cakeuiated using an emissions foctor
reflective of our elechicity supplier's
generation mix as shown below:

Scope 132 CO,0 emissions per bed

Scopa 142 CO,e emisslons per m?

More detagils on our environmental
strategy and impaocts are avallable on
our website and will be updaled over
2017 atong with more detals of cur wider
approach o Up o us.

The fooie on page 47 summaorises

our carbon foetprint compared o the
previous wo years, Although energy
efficiency improved, a 6% increqse in
total bed numbers resufted in an overall
1.4% increase in electricity consumption.
Gas consumption also rose by 7.8% due
o more widespread use of gos in newer
openings compared to older properties
that typically use alectricity for heating.
Daspite this, however, our carban
footprint shrank: changes to the DEFRA
carton emissions foctors in 2016 meant
our combined location-based Scope 1 +
Scope 2 carbon footprint shrank by 8% in
absclute terms, or 10.5% pef bed. The
reduction in our absolute and per-bed
market-bosed Scope 1 + Scope 2 footprint
was 2% and 6.8% respectively, with the
smaller reduction here driven by Chonges
in our supplier's net generation mix,

Soclalimpact

Delivering positive impacts to help young
people succeed in Higher Education
and build sustainabile fives.

Highlights and commitiments

In 2016, we donated £2 milion fo charities,
inctuding the Unite Foundation and ouwr
charity of the year Sport Relief. More than
33% of our empioyees volurnteered with
local communities.

These are qur prioritias:

Community

Our students and employees have o
crucial rale in shaping their communities.
ond have a more enriching experience
by being integiated with tocal residents
and groups. Over the forthcoming years,
we are committed to doing evan more
with our communities through use of our
properties, giving support 1o community
groups and collaborating further with
Universities and students’ unjons. we want
1o use the research we commission In our
annyallnsight Repart to help develop
meaningful engagement with young
peopie in the communities we opearate
in fo help prepare them for University life.

Charlty

Supporting charitabie crganisations is

at the heart of our values at Unite
Studenis. We balieve we have a unique
opportunity 10 help raise awaraness of
charitable giving to the future generation
of charitable givers, while also providing
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a great opporiunity for engagement
between ouremployees, students and
Universities alike. We ore commitied to
supporting charitable organisations that
ore aligned to our business, whather nis
is through cash orin kind donations.

VYolunteering

Volunteering provides a briliant basis for
engagement with the locol communifies,
giving valuable resowce and expertisa
10 organisations to really make a tangible
difference, while also developing skills,
feam building and increasing maotivation
for those taking port. In just two years,

our employee volunteering scheme has
achieved mere than a 30% participation
rate and we are committed to continuing
fo grow this in future years, with parficulor
focuys on skills-matched volunteering.
Alongside this, we absolutely recognise
the opportunity to develop student
volunteering opportunities. While done
on a smalk scaole cutently rough

our NUS Green Impact scheme, we

are locking to develop this so that

it becomes scolabie, providing
opportunities for students wheather

they are looking to de this fo develop
employability skills, or just to give their
support 1o a great couse.

Trusted pariner

We qim lo develop trusted and open
rekationships with our investors as well as
Universities and other stakeholders who
partnes with us. This is fundamental fo
our long term sustainability,

Highlights and commitments

In 2016 we were recognised in the
Building Public Trust Awards for aur
strategic reporting. We were glso
awarded Business of the Year 2014 by
the Brisio! Post, in our home City. We ore
committed to maintaining the highest
standards of ransparency and integrity
in our reporting and our relationships.

Pricrities

3 Maintaining high ESG ratings, with

indices such as FTSE4Good ang GRESB.

in 2016 wa received o FISE4Good £5G

Roting ICB Supersecior Relative

Percanfile Score 98, with 100 being

the highest possible. We ochieved

Greenstar status for the third

consecutive yeqr, increasing oyr

2014 score to 71, from &4 in 2015

Building longer lerm commercialty

sustainoble rekationships with our

University pariners and increasing

our Higher Education frust score

» Devetoping o more sustGintble supply
chain, warking with suppliers certified
by the CIPS Sustainabliity Index,

w
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Affordabiilty

Unite Students recognises that going

to University now represents a big
investrment for students, and their
accommodation needs represent a
significant component of those costs. We
have a responsiblity to ensure that the
living environment we offer our students
represents good guality accommodation
at the best possible value for money.

To meet the students’ needs, we offer

a choice of roorm types at different price
points, in punpose bwilt environments, which
include common spaces and, wherever
passible, g quiet study rom, ouldoor spoce
and even a gym. Qur proposition further
differs from traditional Homes of Multiple
Cccupancy (HMO) properties, where
we believe we represent better vofue in
a number of key areas. These include not
charging booking of administration fees,
and offering a range of flexible paryment
plans, Qur rents ako include a range of
value-added components such as
all-inciusive utility bills; high-speed
broadband accass; a forinightty cleaning
sarvice for shared spaces: best-in-Class
contents insurance; on-sile laundry senvice;
24-howr securtty; a 24-hour heking service
centre; and discounts with well-known high
street retailers.

For scholars from the most challenging
backgrounds, the Unite Foundotion was
established in 2012 to provide assistance
to those who mighi not otherwise be able
1o attend University. Working with 10
Universities across the UK, the Foundation
providies free accommodation and is
currently supporting 128 active scholars.

CREATING AN

ENGAGING
ENVIRONMENT

In setting our renls, we will continue

to routinely work with Universities®
accommodation servicas, through
nominotions agreements and more widely,
to ensure that the living environment

we offer our students represents the best
possible value for money.

The Unite Foundation

Unite Students is the founder of and

@ major donor fo the Unite Foundation,

a charity that helps undergraduates who
lack family support. The Foundafion
frovides its scholars with accommodatiion
throughout the study years ang
applicants are selected by the Universities
o which they apply from the 10 Universities
which part of the Foundation programme.,
Established in 2012, the Foundation

has supporied 179 people to date

and currently has 128 active scholars,
The end of the 2015/16 acodemic year
saow 18 Foundation schokars graduate.

Unite Students hosted a Foundation
Fundraiser ot the Natural History Museum
in 2014 Yo cetebrate its 25th anniversary.
Guests heard from 2016 Foundation
graduate Errily Drew obout herexperience.,
Unite Students iself donaled a further

£5 million to the Foundationin 2014. The
donation tock the form of an investment
in the Unite Student Accommaodation
Fund {USAF} in order to give the
Foundation greater long term security.

Our 2014 Strategic Report from page

1 to poge 49 has been reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors on
22 February 2017.

Joe lister
Chief Financlal Otficer
22 February 2017
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

TO GOVERNANCE
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A GOOD GOVERNANCE
CULTURE SITS AT THE HEART
OF GROWING LONG TERM
SUSTAINABLE EARNINGS

Phil White
Chairman

I'm pleased to present our Corporate
Governance Report on behalf of the
Board. 2016 has been a busy year. The
Leave vote has led to a dynamic external
market while in paraliel — as we celebrate
Unite's 25th anniversary - we are seeing

a maturing PBSA sector.

Succession planning and corporate
culture has been a focusin 2016. We had
a change in Chief Executive, with Richard
Smith foking over from Mark Allan after

17 years with Unite, 10 as CEQ, as wellas
the Group converting to a REIT effective

1 January 2017,

The Board's governance rote has focused
on the impact of change in the wider

economy, while ensuring we are prepared
for change in the Higher Education and
PB3A sectar, This preparation includeas our
substantial investment in technology —
rolfing out our scatable operating platform
PRISM = a5 wel s ensuring our development
pipeling is well funded.

Our governance fromework is designed
1o help us navigale these extemal and
internal changes. It is imperative the
Board is able fo provide the necessary
oversight and challenge to secure the
Group's long term sustainable success,
building on all we have learnt in our 25
years, and the following pages provide
insight as fo how we are doing this.
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Govemance overview underpinned by the Corporate Governance Code

Governance framework

Qur governance framework,
underpinned by the Corporgte
Governance Code, is designed to
support our strategy ond ensure
our long term sustainable success.
Similar to our risk management
framework {descriced on

pages 22 to 25), our govermaonce
frarmework is driven by on open
and colicborative Board and
broader Unite Students cuiture,
creafihg an enviranment for
people fo have confidence to
challenge the norm. For example,
we now consider proceeding with
ceridin site acquisitions not
conditional on pkanning, provided
certain planning risk thresholds are
satisfied. Below and on the next
two pages. we describe how
governance has supported our
strategy during 2016 and how this is
linked to our principail risks. We also
describe our governance pricrities
for 2017,

Accountabiiity

The internat controls and the
Audit Committee Report (pages
66 10 £9), together with our risk
management framework and
principal risks {pages 22 ta 29),
describe how we ensure a fair,
balonced ond understondable
assassment of Unite's position and
prospects, the assessment of our
principgl risks and their alignment
with Qur strategic objectives and
how we maintain an appropriate
relatianship with Deiloitte,

QuUr external auditors. consistent
with the Code and statutory
requirements.

Leadership

On pages 54 and 55, we describe the
compaosition of the Board explaining
their skills and experience. On pages
57 10 61 we explkain how the Board
operates as an effective boord.
colectively responsible for the
long-term sustainable success of
Unite, the clear division of responsibilities
of the Board and the role of the
non-executive directors o
constructively chalienge ond
develop our sfrategy.

Remuneration

The Unite remuneration policy and
implementation chart [page 75)

and Remuneration at a glance

chart (page 78) provide an overview
of this complex areq, together with
the detailecd Remuneration Report
[pages 73 to 95) describing how we
ensure Exacutive Director remunerahion
is designed fo promote the long-term
success of the Company and how we
develop our remuneration policy.

Effectivensss

Pages 42 and 63 describe how

our governance framework ensures
the effectiveness of the Board.
Recognising how critical corporate
culture is to effectiveness and
sustainable success, during 2016
our Board evaluation focused on
{cmong other things) our corporate
culture and govemance
leadership. In addition, in a year
when the CEQ role fransitioned,
Richard Smith’s induction os fhe
incoming CEQ has been critically
important to develop his Chief
Executive skilks and relationships
and ensure g smooth transition,
The Nominotion Committee
Report [pages 64 and 65) deascribes
how we manage our succession
planning. our broader leadership
development, our approach

to diversity and inclusivity and

how we ensure we have a deep
tolent pipeline.

Shareholder relations
and engagement

Page 56 describes how we engage
with shareholders, which during
2014 included o Capital Markets
Day in April, which allowed
investors to see our Coveniry
portfolio ond development
pipeline and the opportunity to
interact with our digital operating
platiorm, PRISM, and then a second
Capital Markets Day in Decernber
inLondon demonstrating how
PRISM improves and sireamlines
our operations. We alsa describe

in our Remuneralion Report [pages
73 to 95} how we have engaged
with sharehoiders during 2016

on our Remuneration Policy and
executive remuneration,
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

TO GOVERNANCE
CONTINUED

How governance supported our strategy during 2016
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Siralegic Unk fo
obiectve BoonT's govemance role Principal Risk 2015 Board activity
Graat service PRESM 24 R Board review of our digiial sirotegy.
Oversght on PRISM delvery ond the reloted Morkef sk -supply  Oversight tha! PRISM dedivars:
;::‘g;w s service and operating and demand ¥ Arobust booking system
¥ Anmmproved and scalable platiorm tof revenue
management ond custormer engagermant
> Enhanced service leves for both Universifies and students
> Market dilferentation.
» Reod mone” Opetions eview
Afiordabliity and value for money 26 Readmore  Analysis of the HE accommodalion sector and ensuring we
Marked tisk - > confinue to cffer gn affordable and value for money product.
and demand 31 Reoxd more: Aflordabillity
Hedlih & Safely 27 Read more, 1@ Board reviews the salefy of ourstudents, visitors and
Ai we develop our brand through the Operational Risk employees, as well as contractors ot our develspment sites,
implermentation of Home for Success, ha kol g paomn s at each Board mesling.
g:':fjh & mh?'h:? dcgruglng our repu;t':hﬁgn solely (HAS) Incident  H&S Committee, a sub-committee of the Board. focus on”
increcses. nce O
health & soroty. wellseng ood securty of na. 0 Propary ora > Fira, ourbigges! sotety ik, and the appaintment of the
49,000 sfudents who make Unste Sludents thelr S eiopment she Avon Fire Authortly as our Primary Authority lead
home Is crifical o the Group's confinued success > Extenol safety asyrance ‘hrough the appointment of
and trusted reputation, the Bntish Safety Council as Gur new extemal safaty auditor
3 Physicol security review of our properties by WSP Porsons
Brinckerholt,
To Read more: HLS Commities neport
Home for Succes 24 Read more Board review of the ongong implemeniation of the £40 mitlon
Chollenging the substontiolinvestment mtHome e on e ™ onp Home Jor Success reinvesiment programime. Stroteglic review
tor Success and how it is transiating into real and and demand of the naxt phaie of Home tor Success ko ensure the Group
Mproved cuslomer axperiences and stronger confinues to deliverimproved customer axparience inan
University relationships. increasingly compatitive markelplace
30 Read more: Operafions review
Brilkant Dwvylopment pipeiine 28 Read more: Boord emnsuned dativery during 2014 of live rew developments,
properties Board scruting of city and sile selection for new Property/ " representing 3,082 beds on programme and budget. 2.000
developrents ogainst bockdrop of ncreasing Development risk ol these secured with kang term nominations.

<competfion kar the bast sites. Govemnance of
devajopments/acquisthons to ersure they run o
budget and schadule and ore eamings accrelive

34 Read mon: Property review

reid

2016PCs Beds on cost
Stgpleton Howse 862 89%
Olympic way, Wembley 699 88%
Gostord Gate, Coventry 286 0%
Greetham $1, Portsrmoyth :<% 93%
Couseway View. Aberdeen k24 8%

3,082 1%

Tobg|




THE UMITE GROUR PLC ANNUA. REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2816 53

1R —
Key
«“
g
g
g
Shralegic Link ta
objective Boord™s govemonce role Principol Risk 204 boord aciivity
Bdtiant Property disposals 28 Read . Board ensuring further growth through development activity.
properiies Board oversight on disposals - emsuning value Propedy market "~ Dwring 2016, four schemes éxchanged ond five planning
obtained and proceeds recycled etficientty. cyclermk consents. 2,152 beds due for gelivery n 2017 and good
prograss on our devetoprment and tunds pipeline.
2 Read more. Developrmant pipefine
Yiekd
2017 PCs Beck on cost
Developments
St Leonornd’s Edinburgh 581 5%
Millenniurn View, C oventry m Be%
Tara Howse. Liverpool 776 3%
1,748 3% 3
Forward funds (USAF) n
Beeck House, Oxlord 167 0% EN
Luton Court. Ecinburgh 7 81% =
Total 2152 =
i
Growing and Capifoi siructure 2 Reaamoe, C7O0NG Scard review of our Capital Operating Gudetines. .
sustainabie Group 8oard focus oh o strong and flexksle Anancing rsk - * Confinued focus an locking In debt at historically low rates for
ecrnings capltal structure, whitth can adapt to market Unable to arange new new debt facifties ond forward starting Interest swaps for
conditions, and reducing and diverafying the debt or axpiring debt tulure bomowings for secured deveippment pipeiine.
cost of tunding. SacWies cannol be Al Ihe end of 201&:
replaced or ohly > Loan-lo-vakse 34%
alhigh cost. > Averoge cost of debt 4.2%.
rale movemenis 4@ Read more. Financiol review
Tox strotegy/REIT conversion Board review of the Group's tax posiiion and stratagy Analysi n
Group Board review ol tax strategy for of conversion to REIY and wiy this is right for the Group. a
publcation In 2017 and our conversation Ovensight of angeing REM conditions and headroom for 3
to a REIF, operating within the Balance of Business RE kests. g
41 Read mone QLA on REIT conversion g
@
E
2017 governance priorities » Delivery of the development Compliance with UX Comporate 3
> Greal service pipeiine - o budget and on time anve‘munCQ Code @
Student and University expectations — with continued focus in fowns During _2016. our governance framework
are constantly increasing. Governance and cities with the strongest was buitt on the UK Corporate
1o ensure: growth prospects Govemance Code [the Codel. The Code
> Portfalio recycling with disposal remained the minimum standard against
5 Continued investment in Home for proceeds deployed effactively. which we measured ourselves during
success fransiating into value for 2014. We complied with all the provisions
money for our customers and > Growling and sustoinable eamings in the Cocle during 2016 ond expect to
market differentigtion In the uncertain world following the be fully compiliant during 2017. The Code
» PRISM, our scakable digital Leave vote, Governance 1o ensure: i published by the Financial Reporting
operating platform, delivering Council [FRC) and is avaiable at
improved custormer service, > A strong and flexible capital www.frc.org.uk. g
efficiency and thys offordability. structure to enable us fo adopt 3
appropriately to market conditions Phil White =
> Brlllant properiies as the cycle evolves Chairman of the Board g
PBSA sector maturing. Govemance > Compliance with ongoing RET 22 February 2017 3
to ensure: status following conversion on §'

1 January 2017
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

From laft fo righ
Chiris Szpojnarowicz Andrew jones;

Phil White. Joe Listar, Richard Simpson,

Richard Smith, Elizabeth McMeikan,
Tim Wilson and Manjit Wolstenholme.

Boord commiites key
N Nomination Commitiee
A Audit Committee
H Health & Sofety Committee
R Remunerotion Committee

1 Phit White
Chalman
Chair of Nomination Commitiee
Remuneration Commitiee

Relevant skilis and experience

Phil was appointed Chairman in May
200%. The majerity of his executive career
was spent in the public transport sector,
during a period of deregutation and
privatisation. He was Chief Executive of
National Express Group pic from 1997

0 2006, leading the business through
considerable growth both in the UK and
overseas. Phil is cumently Non-Executive
Chairman of Kier Group pic and Lookers

pic, and Non-Execulive Director of Vp plc.
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2 Richord Smith
Chief Execulive Officer

H

Ralevant skills and experience

Richard was appointed Chief Executive
in June 2016, Prior to this, Richard was
Unite's Managing Director of Operations
from 2011. tThat MD role involved Richard
leading the service provided to

our customers, and managing the
maintenance and facilities manogement
across the Group's portfolio,

Richard joined Unite as Deputy Chief
Financial Officer in 2010. Priar to this he
spent 18 years in the transport industry,
working in the UK, Europe, Austratia and
North America. Richard spent 13 years
ot National Express Group where he
heid a range of senior finance, strategy
and operations roles, including Graup
Development Director and Chief
Financial Officer, North America.



THE UMITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT ANG ACCOUNTS 2814

3 Joe Lister
Chiel Financial Officer and Managing
Divecior of People and Communicolions

Relevant skills ond experisnce

Joe joined Unite in 2002 having qualified
as a charfered accountant with
PricewaterhouseCoopers, He was
appointed as Chief Finance Officer

in tanuary 2008 having previously hedd
a variaty of roles including Investment
Diwector and Corporate Finance Direcior,
In addition to the Group's finance
function and investment strategy, Joe s
now also responsible for People and
Communications. Joe is @ member of
the Council at the University of Essex.

4 Richord Simpson
Group Property Director

Relevani skills and experience

Richard is Group Property Director and sets
the strategic direction for all aspects of
the property porifolio. oversees the fund
management of Unite's co-invesiment
vehicles and leads the property
development aclivities. Richard joined
Unite in 2005 and has held o variety

of senior roles within the Group. He is

a quaiified charered surveyor and

a fellow of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors.

Richard has been a Non-Executive of
Citywest Homes frarm Jjanuary 2017

5 Professor 5ir Tim Wilson
Non-Executive Director
Chair of Health & Safety Committee

H A R N

Retevant skills ond expetience

Sir Tim was appointed Knight Bachelor
for services to Higher Education and o
business in the 2011 New Year's Honowrs
list. He s o strong advecate of the role
of Universities in economic development
ang is acknowiledged as one of the
leading thinkers in U niversity business
collkaboration. He is the author of the
government commissioned Wilson
Review of Business—University
Collaboration, published in March 2012.

Formerly Vice-Chancelior of the
University of Hertfordshire, Tim served

on the Board of the Higher Educcation
Funding Council for England (HEFCE),
was Deputy Chair of the CBI Innovation,
Science and Technology Committee and
a trustee of the Council for Industry and
Higher Education {CIHE). He has extensive
experience in both UK ond international
Higher Education.

Tim was appointed 1o the Boord in 2010,
He holds Honorary Degrees from London
South Bank, Plymouth and Hertfordshire
universities and is currently, as Chairman
of Arden University, a member of the
Committee of University Chairs.

¢ Manjit Woistenholme
Senior Independent Director
Chair of Audit Committee

A R N

Relevant skilis ond experience

mManijit qualified as a chartered
occountant with Coopers & Lybrand.
Her background includes roles as Director
and Co-Heed of Invesiment Banking

at Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein, and
Partner ot Gleacher Shackiock. She is
Chair of Provident Financial and Senior
Independent Director and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee of Future pic
as well as Chair of Cala Group Haldings
ond Chair of Audit ot CMC Markets pkc.
Manjit was appointed o the Board

at the end of 2011.

7 Ellzabalh McMeikan
Non-Executive Direclor
Chair of Remuneration Commitiee

R A N H

Relevant skills and experence

Liz was appointed Non-Executive Director
in Fabruary 2014, She has significant
experience in customer-focused
businesses Tesco and Colgate Paimolive,
where she was successful in driving
growth through an understanding

of custorner needs and an innovative
rmarketing approach.

Liz is Senior Independent Director at
FTSE 250 pub group JD Wetherspoon
and Chair of the Remunenation
Committea at FiyBe pic. She is a Non-
Executive Director at importfexport fruit
and vegetable company, Fresca Group
Ltd, and CH & Co Ltd, a privately-owned
cotering company.

In Novembar 2012, Liz was appointed
Chair of Moat Homes Lid, a leading
housing association working in the
Sauth East.

8 Andrew Jones
Non-Execuitve Director

Redevant skilis and experience

Andrew Jones is Chief Executive Officer
of Londonmetric Property, following the
2013 merger of London & Stamford and
Metric. Andrew was o co-founder of
Metric and Chief Executive Officer since
its inception in March 2010. Andrenw's
previcus roles include Executive Director
ond Head of Retfail at British Land. He
joined British Land in 2005 following the
acquisition of Plkar froperty where he
was on the main Board, with responsibilities
for thetr retail portfolio and the Hercules
Unit Trust.

Andrew was appeinted to the
Boord in 2013,

* Chris Sapojnarowice
Company Secretary
Relevant skills and experience
Chvris was appointed Company Secretary
and Head of Legol n 2013, following
Genenal Counssalsoles at GE, MV
Networks and other multinationals and
previously an MBA /corporate and
commercial lowyer at Cifford Chance
and Baker McKenzie. Chris uses his general
counsel and comporcte/commercial legal
experience fo fuse ocur corporate and risk
governance with our business activity. In
this way. Chris links his Company Secretary
and governance leadership rale with that
of Head of Legal.
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Board attaches a high priority to
effective communication with shareholders
and with other providers of capital fo the
business, and welcornes their views on
the Group's approach to corporate
governance. In addition to the final and
interim prasentalions, a series of meetings
betweaen institutional shareholders/other
providers of capitol and senior
management were held throughout 2016,
The Board is made aware of the views of
major shareholders concerning the
Company through, armong other means,
regular analyst and broker briefings, and
surveys of shareholder opinion. That
process will continue throughout 2017,

During 2016, the Remuneration
Committee canducted a consultation
with shareholders representing around
two-thirds of the issued share capital,
as well os key UK institutionglinvestors,
regarding proposed changes in our
Remuneration Policy

73 Remuneration

The Boord. fogether with its professional
advisers, actively anolyses the Register of
the Company with a view o ensuring the
long term stabifity of the Register.

The Company maintains o corporote
website containing a wide range of
information of interest t¢ insfitutional and
private investors. The Company has
frequent discussions with shareholgers on
a mnge of issues affecting its performance,
bath following the Company's
announcements and in response {o
speciic requests. The Company regulorly
seeks feedback on the perception of

the Company amongst its shareholders,
the investor community more broadly
and its stakeholders.

Sava in exceptional cicumstonces,

all members of the Boord atlend the
Company's Annual General Meetings
and shareholders are invited o ask
questions during the meeting and to
meet with Directors prior fo, and after,
the formal proceedings. At the meeting,
the Chairman reviews the Group's
curent troding.

The resulis of the votes at the Annual
General Meetings, fogether with details
of the levet of proxy votes lodged for
each resolution is made available on

o regulatory informaotion service and
on the Company’'s website ot
www.unite-group.co.uk.

155  Nofice of the Annual
General Meeting

Results of 2014 Annval General Meeling

For Aganst
R Voltes % volas
Resoiulion cast oast
1 Receive Annual Reports & Accounts 100.0 Q0
2 Directors’ Remuneration Policy 989 1.1
3 Annual Report on Remuneration .7 0.3
4 Declare a final dividena 100.0 [e]4]
5-14  Appointment of Directors 938-999 0O.1-43
15 Appoint the auditor 100.0 0.00
14 Auditors’ remuneration 100.0 000
17 Approve performance share plan 8.3 17
18 Approve employee share scheme 99.1 09
19 Authority 10 allot shares B8.4 11.6
20 Pre-emption rights 98.6 1.4
842 158

21 Allow generol meetings on 14 days’ notice
—
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Investor days

We regularly hold investor days 1o
profite the lotest developments in

our business and showcase our new
properties and iocations, During
2014, these events included a Capital
Markets Day in April, which allowed
investors 1o see our Covenfry
portfolio and development pipeline
and the opportunity to interact with
cur digilal operating platiorm, PRISM,
and ¢ second Capital Markets Day in
December in London demonstrating
how PRISM improves and streamlings
our operations. These events allow

us to demonstrate the breadth and
depth of our management team
who help ensure thot Unite Students
continues to avolve.

Shareholders by geography

Top 10 sharehoiders
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LEADERSHIP

Corporate culture ond
govemnance leadership

The Board has uitimate responsibility to
Unite Students’ shareholders for oll the
Group's activities and aiso o broader
responsibility, extending 10 environmental
and social issues, recognising that the
Group is home 10 49,000 students during
a crucial stage cf their personal
deveiopment and with Universities right
across the UK. To discharge this broader
responsibility effectively. the Group needs

to operate in an open, harmonious and
kansparent mannes. One way in which
this is achieved is by ensuring open
communication between the Board and
senior leaders. Varous membens of the
senior leadership team regularly present
to the Board, During 2016, Unite’s
Operations Director, Student Experience
Director, Head of Digitol, Area Managers.
Development Director, Funds Director
frepresenting our various co-invesirment
vehicles), University Partnerships Director
and Head of Legal & Company Secretary

7

[among others) presented to the Board.
This direct access to management opens
dialogue bevond the board room itself,

Further, with Boord meetings located in
cities across the UK, the Board visits our
new developments as well as existing
properties mesting with our Operations
teams and giving them a graunded nsight
to the implementation of our sirategy.

Board structure
. Unite Opmiations
board s o
Unite Property
Nomination Audit Health& Safety  Remuneration Board
Committee Committee Committee Commitiee
PAR White - Chalr Mangjit Wolstenholrne Sir Tim Wilson — Chair Eizabelh McMelkan
Andrew Jones -Chaw Fichard Smith - Chair
Ehzabeth Mcmekan Enzabeth McMeikan Efzabeth McMerkan Andrew Jones
Sie Tim Wilson Sir Ti Wikson Phil White Risk Cormwnittes
manjit woktenhohme Sir TIm Wison
Manijit Woktenhoime Christopher
o 86 70 73 SZROjNarowicz
Nomination Audit Health & Safety Remuneration {Heod of Legal and
Commiltee Report Committee Report Commitee Report Committee Report Company
) Secretary) Chair
The Remuneration Richard Smith
Commifiee Report L
15 Incoporated Joe Lister
Into this Corporate Richand Simpson
Govemnance
Stolement
by reference.
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L EADERSHIP
CONTINUED

Board operating rhythm - linked
to strategy and business oversight
The Board has an annugl operating
rhythr with o forward agendao of ifems
for the forthcoming year built around our
three strategic ablectives. The Board's
meetings are split between strategy
{these consider the Group's longer term
strategy having regard to emenging risks
or the review and appraval of specific
investments abave cartqin thresholds)
and routine operationgl, property ond
financiol updates (these provide context
for the strategic discussions as well Gs
governance oversight of in-year activity).

Meetings take place throughout the UK,
often ot Universities in order for the Board

Board operating rhythm

Regular vpdates frarm the Board
Committees on their activities
and recommenddations

Operagtional. properly
ond finonclal vupdates

Market and Highet Education
secior updates

Strategy and five-year plan

Risi

New development schemes

Tralning

Review ol Group policies

to meet Vice-Chancellors ond leam
about their experiences with Un'te, their
accommaodation requirements more
generally and broader developments in
the Higher Education sector.

The: Board is able to oversee the setting
ond implementation of the Group's
strategy due to its flat management
structure; three members of the Board
are Executive Directors and therefore
octively involved in the day ta day
implementation of the strategy. This
executive perspective is balanced by five
Non-Executive Directors, including the
Chairman, whao bring a depth and breadth
of experience in senior management,
Higher Education, finonce, customer
service ond real estate.

Seniorleaders are regularly invited fo
attend meetings and present {o the
Baard, This provides the Board, and in
particular the Non-Executives, with direct
and open access {0 feaders throughout
the Group and helps inculcate o cutture
of cpenness and directnass. In addition,
external experts are also invited to
present fo the Board (such as University
Yice-Chancellors and property valuers)
fo give the Directors @ broader and
independent perspective,

Detais of the number of Beord and
Committee meetings held during the
year, and Director attendance, is
available in the table on page 61.

Ensure that the delailed work performed in the Board Committees
is considered by the Board as a whole

Provide the Board with the necessary information fo track the Group's
performance and challenge any problems with performance

Ensure the Boord is equipped with the most up to date knowiedge aond

understanding of the indusiry and enviionment we are operating in

Discuss, review and approve our strategy and five-year plan, and track
how we are performing against our current strategy and the five-year plan

Review and discuss our principal risks at g Group level and also a review

of our operational level risks {the Board’s operational risk review is to verify
that risks have been properly identified and that appropriate risk mitigation
pkans are being correctly managed with clear actions and cwnership)

Review and chailenge new development schemes being recommended
by management and, due to the significant capital expenditure

involved and key sirategic decisions required. approve these new
development schemes

A review of the Board's training needs and also to ensure that the Board
is up 1o date on key jegal and regulkatory changes. During 2016, training
was conducted on how we are using technology and sacial media in
the busingss as well as governance training on various tapics, nciuding
the Market Abuse Regukations

Review of key Group policies, such as the Anti-Bribery Palicy, to ensure
they are appropriate and implemented effectively
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Board activity and annual programme

fabruary & e O EvO o e «0
m Corporote Post completion Property —approval  Prefiminory resulfs Treasury
resporsibiftyand  review —review of land acqusihion POkCY review
Home for Success  of 2015 property in Liverpoc|
complgtions
March &
m Nominations
Committee
- succession
plancing
Apdl - ] & &
[31 Deveiopment Aporoval of land Training: Market
plipeline acquisition Abuse Regulations
in Birminghom
and construchon
contractsin
Portsmouth
May & - :e & &
m Unite Foundaotion Internal audit plan  Assess oucditors Review internal H &5 Committee
* 0 controls
PRISM workshop ﬁ &
Principal
risks reviow
June & . & L
m Markel review Half-year Acquisition Adophng
valuation opportunitios new Inside
preview - approval of Information
lond acguisihon Policy ond Share
n Sheffield Deatng Policy
July =%
m ntenm results
September & & o L 4 ¢
m Strategic Plan Bourct evaluation  USAFASAV/whOity Tox review and H & § Commitee
and folent review owned portfolo REIT conversion
L2 reow
November g g 'y o O -
E] Principal risks review 2017 budget Sales cycle Capital pperating  REIT Circular
themes review guidefines review  appraved
December 1 AE ] W & -
m Customers Approve Prospective Whistlebiowing Training: Corporate  H & S Committee
satisfaction 2017 budget yearend oul-turn  raview Govermance
0 Anti-bribery review
Cigriod
a Strotegy Cpemtional E Commerciql . Invesior relations * Governance D Workshop

1 Goat seMoeo Brgant ptopedheso Growing and sustalnadic earnings * NG board activiy in January, August and October
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LEADERSHIP
CONTINUED

Compotition and appointments
The composition of the Board during 2016
is set outin the table on page 57.

The Board currently consists of the
Choirman, three Executive Dieciors and
four Non -Executive Directors.

Board composifion

Rale

In gocordance with the requirerments of
the Code, each of tha cument Diractors
offers themselves for re-election ot the
Annual Generol Meeting to be convened
on 11 May 2017, Brief biographies of al the
Directors ane set out on poges 54 and 55.
Following the individual performance
evalugtions of each of the Non-Executive
Directors seeking re-election, it is
confirmed that the performance of each
of these Nan-Executive Directors
continues lo be effective. They each
demonsirate commitment to the rote,
and add value and relevant experience
to the Board.

Descripiion

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT ANO ACCOUNTS. 2014

Roles

The Group's terms of refarence for the
Chairman and the Chief Exacutive
cleorty establish the division of
responsibility between the twa roles.
Summarias of those roles, and thot of the
Senior independent Director, are set cut
in the lable below.

Chairman

Phil White's principal responsibilifies one:

» Te establish, in conjunction with the Chief Executive, the sinolegic objectives of the

Group, for approval by the Board
> To organise the business of the Board

> To enhonce the standing of the Compaony by communicating with shareholders,
the financial community and the Group's stakehoiders generaity

Chief Executive

Richord $Smith has responsibility for:

» Establishing, in conjunction with the Chairman, the sirategic obiectives of the Group,

for approval by the Board

Y Implementing the Group's business plan and annual budget
> The overall operoﬁclnol and financial performance of the Group

Senior Independent Director

As Senicr Independent Director, Manjit Wolstenholme's principal responsibilities are to:

> Actas Choir of the Board if the Chairman & conflicted
> Actasa conduit to the Board for the communication of shareholder concerns if
other channels of communication are inappropriate

v

Ensure thot the Chairman is provided with effective feedboack on his performance

Responsibility ond delegation
A schedule of specific matiers is reserved
for the Board, Those include;

> Approving the strategic objectives of
the Group and the business plan to
achisve those objeclives

> Approving major investments,

acquisitions. mergers and divestments

Approving major development schemes

Approving appaointments to and

dismissals from ihe Board

» Reviewing systems of internal control
and risk management

v v

> Appraving policies reloting fo
Directors’ remuneration.

These lopics are scheduled as part of the
board’s annual operating rhythm and
forward agenda or brought lo the Board
on an ad hoc basis, gs and when this

is necessary.
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Board and Commiltee allendance at meetings in 2014

[}

"""

Date of Health &
Current Appoiniment Audit  Remunaraton Norminahon Satety
Dyeclors Status 10 the Baard Boord Commiitas Committee Committee qmnrﬂhi
Phil White Chairrnan 210109 9 N/A 5 2 NfA
Sir Tim Wilson inclependent 01.12.10 9 4 5 2 a
Manjit Wolstenhoime Indepandent DiZN 9 4 5 2 N/A
Andrew Jones Independent 0.0213 ? N/A 5 2 N/A
Elizabeth McMeikan Independent 01.02.14 9 4 5 2 3
Joe Lister Executive 02.01.08 9 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Richard Simpson Executive 01012 9 MN/A N/A N/A N/A
Richard Smith Executive 014a1.12 9 N/A N/A N/A 3
Resigned during the year
Mark Allan
Resigned 31.05.16 Executive 17.11.03 474 N/A N/A N/A 0
Patrick Dempsey
Resigned 31.08.14 Independent 01.03.14 474 2/2 2/2 11 1/

Board Commiittees

The Board has delegated certain
responsibilities to its Committees, as
detailed on the following pages. The
terms of reference for eoch Commitiee
are reviewed annually and the current
versions ore availoble an the Company’s
website at www.ynite-group.co.uk. The
current membership of ecch Committee
of the Board is set out in the chart on
page 57.

Board fenure

Each of the Executive Direciors has a roling
contract of employment with a 12 month
notice pericd, while Non-Executive
Directors are, subject to re-election by
shareholders, cppointed fo the Boatd for
a term of approxirmately throe years. In
accondance with the recommendations
of the Code. the Directors wilt all retire

at the Annual General Meeting and wil
submit themselves for re-election by
shorehclders,

The groph below shows the current
balance of tenure of the Non-Executive
Direclors, including the Chaimmaon.

Board lenure

Prolessional advice

and Board support

Directors are given access to
independent pyofessional advice at the
Company's expense when the Directory
deem it necessary in order for themto
carry out ther responsitilities. The Directors
glso hove reguior diclogue with, and
direct access 1o, the advice and services
of the Company Secretary who ensures
that Board processes and corporate
govermnoance practices are followed.

Insurance

The Company maintains Direclors and
Officers ligbility insurance, which is
renewed on an annual basis.
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EFFECTIVENESS

Induction

On appointrment to the Board.
eqach Director takes partina
comprehensive and personalised
induction programme covering:

> The business and operations of the
Group and the Higher Education
sector; the role of the Board and
mattens reserved for its decisions; the
terms of reference and membership
of Board Commitiees: and powers
delegaied to those Committees

> The Group’s corporate govermnance
practices and procedures and the latest
financial information about the Group

» Their legal and regulatory responsibilities
as a Director and, specifically, asa
Director of a fisted company.

As port of the induction program, each
Director alse visits key locations to see our
business oparations ond properties first
hand and the Higher Education institutions
we parinerwith. Also, they meet with key
senior execulives so from the cutset they
have access to managers throughout the
organisation 1o help thern form their own
indepandent views on the Group and ifs
performance, ond the Higher Education
sector we operate in. In addition, they
are given the opportunity 10 meet

with representatives of the Company's
key advisars.

This induction is aiso supplemented with
ongoing training throughout the year ta
ensure the Board are kept up to date with
key legal, regulatory ond indusiry updaotes,

Richard Smith's CEO induction
Fellowing Richard Smith's appointment
as CEOQ, aspecific induction plan was
developed. Richard already had
considerable expearience with the
Company, but a plan was devised to
reflect his new role os CEQ. This included
meeting with various sfakehgalders in this
new roke as wel as building o development
plan to help ensure Richard'’s transition
into his new role.
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2014 evaluation key themes
Corporate culture and
governance leadership:

This year, we expanded our Board
evaluation to ask searching aquestions
about our corporate culture and
governance leadership {see quastions
set below] using the learnings from the
FRC report. Corporate Cullure and the
Role of Boards, The cutput was very
encouraging. with o consensus that
we have a positive and coherent
corporate culture with strong
governance leadership. We plan to
build on this for 2017, using our Horme
for Success brand grehitecture and
ways of working to develop KPs fo
help meaiwe performance.

Collaborative team:

The Boord and its Committees operate
0s a collaborative team. balancing
their collective responsibility
appropriately. Comments across

the Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors were

oroadty simikar, indicoting noreal
outhess or divergence of views.

Questions in Board Evaluation focusing on corporate culture and govemance leadership

Does the Board have clear agreement on its role in shaping, embedding and ovenseaing the Group’s corporale culture?

Does the Board devote sufficient time and resources 1o evatuating govemance isadership?

Does the Board have visioiity over KPis which measure corporate value arsing from Unite Siudents’ brand and reputatian?

Are the Executive Directors aigned in Unite Students’ purpose and values?

Is the brooder leadership team aligned with Unite Students’ purpose and values?

Do the Non-Executive Directors have appropriate ine of sight access to the business?

Does the Company Secrelary provide independent and kansparent advice and guidance on corporate govermnance matters?

Does Unite Students enjoy a high level of rust withir its investor base. with a posifive say/do ratio?

Does Unite Students enjoy o high level of frust within its wider stakeholder base. with o positive say/do ratia?
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Performance evaluation

Eoch yeor the Board, its Commitiees

and Dwectors gre evoluated considering
[among other things) the balance of
skills, experience, independence ond
knowlaedge on the Board., its diversity
[inciuding gender), how it works together
as g unit and other factors relevant 1o

ils effectivenass.

During 2016, this Board evoluation
specifically explored our corperate
Cultyre and govemance leadership.

The key leamings from the FRC's recent
report, Cormporate Culture and tne Role

of Boards, werte used as the basis for this.
I cadition, the evoluation considered
the behaviours and processes of the
Boord, its Committees and each member
of the Boord, including the Chairmon,

The Company’s policy & fo conduct an
externally faclitated evaluation every
third year. During 2016, the evaluation
was conducted intemaily, The previous
external evaluation was 2014 and the
next external evaluation is expected
to be during 2017,

The 2016 evaluation ook the form of @
questionnaire gsking searching questions
of the Boarg and Committeas. This was
conducted on an anonymous basis—to
encourage fronk and direct feedback
—and the resuits then colialed by the
Company Secretary and shared with
the Group Boord and each Committee.
In addition, the recommended aclions
from the 2015 evoluation were reviewed
to determine progress against them,

i Chairman and

Non-Execulive Directors

The Board considers each of ils four
Non-Executive Directors fo be
independent, Accordingly. the Compony
meets the requirement of the Code in
relation to memibers of the FISE 250 that
ot keast haif of the Booard [excluding the
Chairmany, is mode up of ndependent
Non-Executive Directors. In gddition,
Phil wWhite {Chairman of the Board}

was considered independent on his
oppointrment 10 that role.

The Chairman and the Non-Executive
Diractors constructively challenge and
help develop proposals on strategy, and
bring sfrong, independenf judgemeant,
knowledge and experiencs to the
Board's defiberations. Non-Executive
Directors are expected 10 commit
approximately 20 days per annum

to the business of the Group.

The terms and conditions of appointment
of the Non-Exacutive Directors cre
available for inspection at ihe Comparny’s
registered office and at the onnual
general meeting.

&3

Training

The Boord reviewed their froining needs
and considered it imporiant that the
Directors have g broader perspective

of the digital and technology needs of
the business. This led ta a Digital and
Social Media Workshop for the Board.
demonstroting PRISM and its functionality
and user experience in May 2014, In
addition, the Board considered it
imporiant thot the Cormmitiee Choirs
continue 1o receive relgvant functional
training [such as on accounting, UK
Corporate Governance Code and
exacytive remuneration reporting
developments] and accordingly the
Committee Chairs attend relevant
exfernal seminars, The Board receives
on-going training on corporate
governonce developments, which in 2016
included fraining on the Market Abuse
Regulation in anticipation of this coming
info effect during 2014,
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Phil White Chairman

Nomination Commiitee

Chair's overview

Earlierin the report, 1 explained the Board
changes during the year, with Richard
Smith appointed Chief Executive foliowing
Mark Allan's resignation after 17 yeqQrs
with Unite, including 10 as Chief Executive.

With succession planning and talent
development a key area of focus for the
Committee over the years, it has been
especially pleasing thot this culminated
in the smoofh transition of the role of the
Chief Executive role with an internal hire.
This focus on succession planning and
talent development has also enabled the
expansion of the roles of our Chief Financial
Officer, Joa Lister, and Managing Director
of Property, Richard Simpson. Joe Lister's
mle expanded to include Pecple and
Communications and Richard Simpson’s
to include Health and Safety, Procurement
and Asset Management. This has resulted
in the number of Executive Directors on
the Board reducing frorm four to three.

This fecus on succession planning and
talent development has enabled the
Executive Directors lo step up, with a
comasponding stepping up in the senior
leadership team. On an gngoing basis,
the Committee reviews our talent pipeline
for future Board appointments as well as
reviewing the skills we need in our senior
leadership team. Thesea reviews are
measuned against cur three core strategic
objectives. The Committee's focus
exiends to developing high performing
individuals befow Board levet, ensuring

a deep talent pipetine to secure the
business’s long term sustainalkility.

Phil White
Chalir - Nomination Commiitee
22 Febryary 2017

Commitiee overview

Composttion

The Committee consists enfirely of
Non-Executive Directors. The members of
the Committee are set out on page 57 of
the Corporate Govermnance Statement.
At the invitotion of the Committee.

any other Director or ather person may
be invited to attend meetings of the
Committee if considered desirable in
assisting the Committee in fulfiling its role.

Role
The rele of the Committee is o

» Ensure that appropriate procedures
are adopted and followed in the
nomination, selection, raining.
evaluation and re-election of Directors
and for succession pianning, with due
regard in all cases to the benefits of
diversity on the Board, inchuding gender

3 Regulorly review the structure, size,
composition, skills and experience
of the Board and to make
recammendations with regord to any
adjustments considered necessary

> When it is agreed that an appointment
to the Board should be made, lead o
selection process that is formal, rigorous
and fransparent

» Beresponsible foridentitying, reviewing
and recommending candidates for
appointment 1o the Board.

Activifies in 2014

Successlon planning

Reviewing succession planning and
ensuring we have a clear talent pipeiine
for future Board appointments — this
considers both Executive Directors as well
as the Non-Executive Direciors. Specifically
for 2016, this succession planning led to
the appointment of our former MD of
Operations, Richard Smith, as our new
CEQ, following Mark Allan's resignation.

As anintegral part of our executive
succession planning, the Committee
oversees the senior leadership
development programme {part ofa
broader skills development programme]
to ensure we are growing and nurturing
our talent and developing our high
potential, high performers.
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Review of Board composition

An ongaing review of the Board's
composition 1o ensure it has the comrect
balance of skilks, experence, independence
and knowledge. The Commiltee believes
the Board has the correct batance al

the moment, butis conscious of the
developments in digital, technology and
customer experience and reviews this on
an ongoing basis.

Group Board Diversity Policy

We recognise that diversity and inclusivity
ot Board level and throughout the Group
is critical component of our long-term
sustainability. We are proud of the diversity
of the Group as a whole, an crganisation
made up of employees, who like our
customers, ore from many different
backgrounds and countries and have
diverse experiences. perspectives

and skills,

Beyond the Board room and within Unite
Students more generally, we have been
reviewing our approgach to diversity and
in¢lusion during 2016, We recognise this
as a kay building block of our pecple
strategy and that the UK workforce and
our students are increasingly diverse, To
remain competitive we need to develop
a diverse and inclusive workplace that
will in tum best represent and support our
customers in creating a Home for Success.

During Q3 2016, we conductad an
anonymous survey of our employees.
which has led not anily to a greater focus
on female representation af senior levels
within the business but also broader
dliversity and inclusion initiatives.
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This is translating into the foliowing
actions and focys for 2017, being driven
by a senior leadership working group:

> We are widening our recruitment
channels 1o bring in increased diversity

¥ We are fraining alt recryiting managers
and the resourcing team on
unconscious bias to ensure that we are
recruiting the best person for the job

» We are ensuring that all custormer
facing teoms are diverse and
appropriately representative of our
iocol community and our students

> We are aclively supporfing our high
patential fermale employees

» We are ensuring that all lieadership
roles have diverse candidaies on the
short list

> We are actively working with
organisation such as Stonewall and
Business Oisability Forum to roise
our awareness

¥ We arereviewing all HR policies and
procedures to be more inclusive with
relafed fine manager training

As regards the Board itself, the Nomination
Committee considared during 2016
whaether it wonted to set specific targets
for fernale representation on the Board.
The Committee believes the curent
focus of diversity and inclusivity should

be on the Group as a whole with the
deveiopment of a diverse and inclusive
talent pipeling ncorporating the inifiatives
outlined above. The Committee is not
currentty considering setting diversity
targets for the Board itself believing thisis
not necassarily in the bast interests of the
Group ond s siokeholders, but gender
diversity, aiong with all other gspects of
diversity and inclusivity, will be corsidered
along with its more general remit to
cansider the bakance of skills, experience,
independence ond knowledge when
revigwing appointments to the 8oard.

65

ACCOUNTABILITY

internaf control

Tha Board has overoll responsibifity for
the Group's system of internal control.
However, such a system is designed 1o
achieve business objectives and con only
pravide regsonable and noi absolute
assuronce against materiol misstatement.

The prowisions of the Code in respect of
internal controls require that Directors
review and monitor oll controls including
operstional, complionce ond risk
management, as well as financial
controk, Through reports from the Boord's
Committees, the Group's Risk Committee
and the Group's Busingss Units Boards
[Cpergtions Board and Property Board],
the Board has reviewed the effectivaneass
of the Group’s system of internal confrols
for the period covered by the Annual
Report and Accounts and has concluded
that such controls were effective
throughout such period.

Further information on the Company's
internal control fromework is set out in
the Audit Commitiee Report on the
following pages. The Board delegates
certain of its duties, responsibilities and
powers 1o the Audit Committee, so thal
these can receive suitably focused
attention, but in sc doing the Audit
Cornmittee acts on behalf of the full
Board, and the matters reviewed and
mahoged by the Audit Committee
remain the responsitility of the Directors
token as a whole,

Going concem

After making enguiries, the Direclors
have a reasongbile expectation that the
Group and the Company have cdequate
resources 1o continue in operational
pxistence for the forasesable future.

For this reqson, they continue o adopt
the going concern basis in preparing

the accounts,

Risk monagement

The Board, when setting the strategy,

aiso determines the nature and extent

of the: principal risks and its risk appetile

in impiementing this strategy. Each year
the Boord reviews the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management systemns and
how the Board did this during 2014 is st

out on pages 22 o 25.

Business model
For a description of the Group’s busingss
model, see page 5of the Strategic Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Manjit Wolstenholme Chairrmon

Audit Commitiee Chair's overview
During 2016, the Audit Committee
confinued its key oversight role for the
Board with its speciiic duties as set out

in its terms of reference to reassure
sharehclders that their interests are
properly protected in respect of the
Group's financial managernent

and reporting.

The Audit Committee works to a structured
programme of activifies, with agenda
items focused to coincide with key events
in the annual financial reporting cycle,
The Cormmitiee reportsregularly to the
Board on its work.

During the year, the Committee has
continued to monitor the integrity of

the Group's financial statements and
supported the Board with its ongoing
monitoring of the Group's risk
management and internal contro!
systerns in line with the enhonced
requirements under the Corporate
Govermance Code. The Committee also
determined the focus of the Group's
internal audit activity and reviewed its
findings and verified tha! recommendations
weare being oppropriately implemented.
In addition, recegnising the value of an
effective whistieblowing channel, the
Committee again reviewed arangements
for the Group's employees to raise
concerns in confidence.

Further to the appoiniment of Deloitte

as the Group's auditors during 2015 and
subsequent 1o the completion of their first
audit report in February 2016 the Audit
Committee undertock a full evaluation
of the qudit approach 10 ascertain the
effectiveness of the external audit
function. Further to the completion of the
evolyation of the external audit process
we are satisfied with both the auditor's
independence and audit approach and
hove recommended to the Boord that
they be re-appointed in 2017.

As noted in this Corporate Governance
Statement, the Board delegates certain
of its dulies, responsibilities and powers
to the Audit Committee, so that these
con receive suitably focused attention.
However, the Audit Committee acts on
behalf of the full Board, ond the matters
reviewed and monaged by the
Committee remain the responsibility

of the Directors as o whole.

Role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has delegated
authority from the Board set outin its
written terms of reference. The termys of
reference for the Audit Committee take
into account the requiraments of the
Code and are available for inspaction
at the registered office and at the
Annual General Meeting, and can

also be found on the Group website

at www.unite-group.co.uk/about-unite/
corporate-governunce.

The key objectives of the Audil
Committee are:

¥ To provide effective governance and
cantrol over the integrity of the Group's
financial reporting and review significarnt
financial reporting judgements
Te support the Board with its ongoing
monitoring of the effectiveness of the
Group's systemn of internal controls and
risk management systems
To monitor the effectiveness of the
Group's intemal audit function and
review its material findings
3 To overses the relationship with the
externol auditor, including moking
recommendalions fo the Board in
rekation to the appointment of the
externol auditor and monitoring
the external auditor's objectivity
and independence.

A4
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Compostion of the

Audit Committee

The members of the Committee are

set out on page 57 of this Corporate
Governance Statement, The Committee
members are all independent Non-
Execufives and have been selected with
the aim of providing the wide range of
financial and commerciol expertise
necessary to fulfil the Committee's duties.
The Board considers that as a chartered
accountant | hove recent and relevont
financial exparience. In addition, in
contempiation of a change in the
Corporate Governance Code effective
for our next Annual Report, the
Committee considered whetheritas a
whole has competence in the student
accommaodation sector. Having regard
to the Audit Committee members
experience in both the Higher Education
sector and their experience with Unite,
the Commitiee believes it does have the
requirad competence.

Meetings are attended. by invitation. by
the Chief Financial Officer, the Deputy
Chief Financial Officer and the Group
Financial Confroller.

1 also invite our external auditor, Deloitte,
to each meeting. The Committee
reguiarly meets separctely with

Deloitte without others being present.

As appropriate, t also invite our internat
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers {PwC),
to attend the meetings. Deloitte and PwC
meet independently of management to
ensure alignment, to update on
respective findings and consider the
Impact on the relative appwoaches of
their worlk.

Committee meetings

The Committee meets four times during
the year and atendance at those
meetings is shown on page é) of this
Corporate Governonce Statement.

Main activities of the Committee
during the year

Meetings of the Committee generally
take place just prior to a Group Board
meeting and | reper to the Boend as part
of o separate agenda item, on the
activity of the Committee ond matters of
partficular relevance to the Board in the
conduct of theirwork. At its four meetings
during the yaar, the Commitige focused
on tha activities described belkorw.
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The Committee reviewed the haff year
ond annual financial siatements and
the significant financial reporting
judgements. As part of this review, the
Committee supported the Boord by
reviewing the financial viability and the
basis for preparing the accountson a
going concern basts as outlined belaw.
The Committee also raviewed and
challenged the external auditor's
report on these financial statements.

As discussed above, the effectivenass of
the externol cudit function was consicienad
during 2014, subsequent 1o the tender
ond appointment process of Deloitte in
May 2015. During the evaluation process
the Committee consiclered: the:
independence and objectivity of the
external auditor; the make-up and
quality of the audit teom; the proposed
audit approach and the scope of the
audit the execution of the audit and
the quality of the audit repart o the
shareholders; as well as ultimately the
fee structure.

The Committee discussed reports from
PwC as the Group'sinfernal auditor on
their audit and assessment of the control
environment, The Committee reviewed
and proposed areas of focus for the
internal oudit progromme of review
including the approach to ensure that
the internal oudit activity is aligned fo
the principal Group risks.

Financial reporting

The primary focus of the Committee, in
relation to financicl reporting in respect of
the year anding 3i December 20156, wos
to review with both management and
the externagl auditor the appropriateness
of the half year and annual financiol
statements concentrating on:

> The quality and acceptability of
accounting policies and practices

> The clarity of the discloswes and
compliance with financial reporting
stondards and relavant financial and
governance reporting requirements

> Material areas in which significant

judgermenis have been opplied

or where there has been discussion

with the external auditor

whether the Annuol Report and

Accounts, taken as a whaole, is fair,

balanced and understandabile and

provides the information necessary for

shameholders 10 Gssess the Group's

position ond performance. business

modeal and stratagy.

v

The Commitiee’s assessment of the
Annuo! Report ta ensure that it is fair,
balkanced and undersiandable took into
account the following considerations:

* Areview of what fair, balonced and
understandable means for Unite

> The high level of input from the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer with early opportunities for the
Board o review and comment on the
Annual Report

» Ensuring consistency in the reporting

of the Group's performance and

management information [os

descrived on pages 20-21), risk {as

described on poges 26-29), businass

maodel and strategy [as described

on page 5)

A cross-check between Board minutes

and the Annual Report is undertaken

to ensure that reporting s balanced

whether information is presented

i a ceor and concise manner,

ilustrated by oppropriate KPIs

o faciitate shareholders’ access

to relevant information.

v

w

Te aid our review, the Commitiee considers
reports from the Group Financial Controlier
and aiso reports from the external auditor
on the outcomaes of their half year raview
and annyat audit. As @ Committee,

we support Delottte in displaying the
necessary professional scepticism thei
role requires,

Significant issues considered

by the Committee

After discussion with both management
and the external auditor, the Committee
determined that the key risk of missiatement
of the Group's 2016 financial statements
related Yo:

> Property vaiuations
> Joint venture accounting.

Property valuations

The Group's principal assets ang
investment propeartias ond investment
properties under development that

are either owned on balance sheet orin
USAF or LSAV. The investment properties
are cariad at fair value based on an
appraisal by the Group's external valuers
who canry out the valuations in cocordance
with the RICS Red Book valuation guide.
taking into account transactional
evidence during the year. The valuation
of property assets involves significont
judgement and changesin the core
assumptions could have a significont
impact on the camying value of these
assets, Management discusses the

&7

underlying performance of each asset
with the exlernal valyers and provides
detailed perfarrmance data to them
including rents, University lease
agreemants, occupancy, property costs
and costs fo complete [for development
propertes). Maonagement receives
detailed reports from the voluers and
performs a detailed review of the
valuations to ensure that they consider
the vaiuafions fo be appropnate. The
valuation report is reviewed by the Chief
Financial Officer and Managing Director
of Property prior to sign-off.

During the year, the Committee andfor
the Board met with members of the
Group's valuers and challenged themon
the basis of their valuations and their core
assumptions, including the yield for each
property, rental growth and forecast costs.

The Committee questioned the external
vaiuers on markef irends and fransactional
evidence that supports the valuations.
The Committee was satisfied that the
Group's valuers were approprictaly
qualified and provided an independent
assessment of the Group's assels,

The Committee was satisfied that an
appropriate valuation process hod taken
place, the core assumptions used were -
reasonable and hence the carrying
volue of investment and development
properties in the financial staterments
was appropriote.

The auditor explained thex audit
procedures o test the valuation of
investment and development properties
ond the Group's disclosures on the
subject. On the basis of their audit work,
the auditor reported no inconsistencies
or misstatermenis that were material in
the context of the financial statements
Qs a whoie.

36 Further analysis and delail
on asset valuations
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

CONTINUED

Joint venture accounting

Two of Unite's signitican! assets are s
investrnents in USAF and LSAY which the
Group has historically accounted for as
jaint ventures.

The Group adopted IFRS 10-i2 from the
2014 financial yeor end which provides
guidance on how an invesior should
account for s interests in other entities,
in¢luding a definition of controi and
Quidance on how to classify and account
for jointly controlled arangements.
During the year, Monagement undertock
a detoiled review of its classification

for tath USAF and LSAV, and folowing
that analysis concluded thot there had
been no material change in its onginal
assessment in 2014 thot both USAF and
LSAY should be treated as joint ventures,
The Committee considered this and
agreed there was no material change
ond occordingly it was oppropriote jo
continue to account for USAF and LSAY
as & joint venture under IFRS 11, with Unitae
recording its 23% share of the results and
net assets of USAF as a joint venture using
equity accounting. and likewise 0%

for LSAV.

Risk management

The Group's risk assessment process and
the way in which significont business risks
are managed is a key area of fiogus for
the Committee.

Qur work here was driven primarity

by perferming an assessment of the
approach taken oy the Group's Risk
Commitiee. The Risk Committea is
responsible for the delivery of the Group's
risk management framework, which

the Committae has approved, and the
Groyp's assessment of its principol risks
ond uncertainties, as sef ouf an pages
7240 29.

The Board also formally reviewed the
Group's principal risks at two meetings
during the year. Through these reviews,
the Commitiee considered the risk
management proceduras within

the business and was satisfied that

the key Group risks were baing
appropriately managed.

The risk assessment fiogs the importance
of tha internal control framework fo
manoge risk and this forms a separale
areq of review for the Commitiee.

intemal controls

Led by the Group's sk assessment process,
we reviewed the process by which the
Group evaluated its controt environment.
Management ks nesponsible for estalishing
ond maintaining odequate internal
confrols. Internai controls are designed fo
provide reasonable assurance regarding
lamong other things} the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation
of the financial statements for external
reporting purposes. A comprehensive
strotegic planning, budgeting ond
ferecosting process is in placs. Monthly
financial information and perforrnance
insight s neported to the 8oard.

The Commitige's work {o review the
eflectivanass of the intfernal controls was
driven by the Group Financial Controller's
reports on the sffectiveness of internat
conirols, supportad by the work of the
internal guditor ond their reports to the
Audit Commitiee. The leedback from the
Group’s internal auditor on specific areas
of control s tested on a perodic basis
and they request our axternal guditor to
provide specific feedboack and assessment
ot the Group's financial controls

and highlight any areas of weakness.

No significant weaknesses were
identified through the course of the
Commitiee’s reviews.

Intemal audit

The Group engages PwC 10 perform
internal qudit activity, with this internal
oudit function reporting directly to the
Audit Committee.

The Committee considered and

the scope of the infernat audit activity to
be undertaken during 2014 and locking
forward on a twelve-month basis fo
ensure that the intemal audit approach is
more adaptabie 1o the risk environment.
The Committee also discussed and
challenged the output from the internal
audit reviews undertaken in the prior year
ond concluded that the reviews provided
good support for staternents made by
manogemen ond that the control
environrment is solid in the areas tested
over the last three yvears.

During the year, PwC focused ther infernal
audit work on corporate tax. fund
manggement and revenue manggement.
All areas of internal audit were being
reviewed for the first time in 2016 ond
overoll PwC concluded that controls
ware well designed and are aperating
effectively. Since PwC first reported on
internal controls in 2011, it was noled that
in each subsequent reporting period
there has been on improvement in the
overall contro! environrment.

External audit

The etfectiveness of the external audit
process is facilitoted by appropriate audit
risk identification at the start of the audit
cycha which we receive from Deloitfe

in o detoiled oudit plan, identifying their
assessment of thesse key risks.

For the 2016 financial year the significant
risks identified were in relolion to

the valuation of properties and the
classification of joint ventures due 1o the
inherent management judgment required
in these areas. Thesa focus areas were
discussed at the Committeg ond it was
agreed that they should be the principal
areas of focus as they reprasent the
areos with the grectest ievel of
judgement and materially impact the
overal] performance of the Group.

Thase risks ore frocked through the yeor
and we chalienged the work done by the
auditor fo test management's assumptions
and estimates around these areas.

We assess the effecliveness of the audit
process in addressing these matters
through the reporting we receive from
Deloitte at both the half year and year
end and oko repors frorn management
on how these risks are being addressed.
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For the 2016 financiol year, the Cormmitiee
was satisfied that there had been
appropriate focus and challenge on the
primary areas of audit risk and Qssessed
the quality of the audit process to be
good. We hold private meetings with

the external avditor at each Committee

meeting ko provide additional opportunity

for open diolegue ond feedbock from
the Commitiee and the auditor without
management being present, Matters
typically discussed include:

> The auditer's assassment of business
and financial statament risks and
management activity thereof

The transparency and openness

of intferactions with managernent,
confrmation that there has been no
restriction in scope placed on them by
managerment and the independence
of their oudit

How they have exercised professional
scepticism.

v

v

| also meet with the external lead audit
partner outside the formal Committee
process throughout the year.

Independence and exiemnal
audH tender

The Committee considers the re-
appointment of the external auditor,
including the rotation of the audit partner
which is required avery five years, sach
yeaor and also assesses theirindependence
on an ongoing basis. The Group tendered
the external audit in May 2015 and
appointed Deloitte as the external auditor
fallowing @ robust review; the 2015 year
end was the first year with Deloitte as the
Group auditors.

The Committes reviewed Deloitte's audit
work and determined that appropriaie
plans are in place to camy out an aftective
and high quality audil. Deloitte confirmed
to the Commitiee that it maintained
appropriate intemal safeguards o ensure
its independence and objectivity. As part
of the Cormmittee's assessmeant of the
ongaing independence of the auditor,
the Committee receives details of any
relationships between the Group and
Deloitte that may have a bearing on their
independence and raceives confimation
that they are independent of the Group.

i As discussed obove, an assessment of

Deloitte’s effectiveness, its processas,

- audit quality and performance wos

undlertaken in May 2014 following
completion of the 2015 audit.

Buring the year, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the
Statuiory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market investigation
{Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender
Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilifias} Order 2014,

Non-audit services

To further safeguard the objectivity ond
independance of the exfernal auditor
frorn becoming compromised, the
Committee has a formal policy governing
the engagement of the exfernal oudifor
fo provide non-audi services. No material
changes have been made fo this policy
during fhe year, This preciudes Deloitle
from providing certain services such

as valvotion work or the provision of
accounting services,

For certain specific parmitted services
[such as reporting accountant octlivities
and cormpliance work), the Committee
has pre-approved that Deloitte can be
engaged by management, subject to
the policies sat out above, and subject
to specified fee imits for individuol
engagements and fee limits for each
type of specific sarvice. For all other
services, of those permitied services
thot exceed the specified fee fimits,

| as Chairman, or in my absence
another member, can pre-appiave
pefmitted services.

Throughout 2016, no fees have been
paid to the Group's auditor {Deloitte)

for non-audit services, During the year,
Deloitie chamged the Group £0.3 million for
audit services. The Committee appraved
the fees for audit services for 2016 after
areview of the level and noture of work
to be performed, including the impact of
ocquisitions, and after baing sotisfied by
Deloitte that the fees were appropriate
for the scope of the work required.

These feas are also benchmarked against
other listed rea| estate companies of
comparabie size and compiexity.

Commiitee evalyation

The Commitiee’s activities formed part
of the evaluation of Board effectiveness
performed in the year. Details of this
process can be found under
‘Performance evaiuation',

Manjit Wolstenholme
Chair -~ Audit Committee
22 February 2017

wodal Difiejous

o
~,,.
x
p=
o

EOMTNG A

SHUBLLIS|DYS [DIOUD

uOYDULIOU BUIO



THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REPORY AND ACCOUNTS 2014

HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

Sir Tim Wilson Chairman

Healtth and Safety Committee
Chair's overview

The Health and Safety Committee
ansyras effective governance of the
health, safety and wellbeing of cur
employees, customers, contractors

and other visitars fo our properties. itis
paramount the business recognises that
health and safety does not stand stil,
there will always be lessons to learn and
scope lor continuous improvement. Lam
committed to ensuring that health and
sofety is at the heart of everything that
the business dees and have visited

a number of ocur properfies this year,
accompanying the city and health and
safety tearms, understanding and seeing
for myself how health and safety is tbeing
implemented wifhin the business and

a pasitive culture is being established.

Unite Studenis is home to 42.000 students
and their safety, wellbeing and security
i$ iImperative. We work Closely with
stakehalders including Universities and
amergency services to ensure that heatth
and safety is ¢t the heart of ourmost
trusted brand. It is recognised thot fire

is the bigges! hazord 1o the operating
paortiolio and the business is proactive

in ils approach 1o fire safety, setting up

a prirmary fire autharity agreement with
the Avon Fre Autharity, which ensures
appropriate advice and guidance to
our strategic fire prevention decisions.

A successhul fire safety compaign has
been delivered fo students focusing on
cooking safety, This will directty influerce

fheir behaviours and prevent firg reloted
ncidents. Security can be a challenge
and an externol review hos been
undertaken to ensura that strengths and
waaqknesses are identified and appropriate
measures designed and built in to protect
both student and employee alike.

During the year, we appointed the British
Sofety Council as our new safety auditor.
They are conducting an external review
of cur H&S Management System o ensure
the appropriate systems and procedures
are developed and being implemented.
This provides qssurance thot the
appropriote checks and measures are
being camied cut.

$ir Tim Wilson
Chalr = Health and Safety CommiHee
22 February 2017

Commitiee overview
Composition

? SirTim Wilson [Chair)

» Elizabeth McMeikan

> Richard Smith

Richard Simpson (Group Property
Director). Steve Batley [Eslates Director).
Julie sarvey {Head of Health and Safety}
ond Anthony Amold (Construction
Directar] regularty attena mesatings

of the Commitige.

Role
The role of the Health and Safety
Committee is fo

» Ensure that the Group's hedalth and
safety policies and procedures are
reviewed annually and affectively
implemented 1o ensure lagal
requirements ore met as well as striving
for bast practice

3 Ensure that the business is aware of
regulotory chonges and understands
the impact upon the business

> Remoin updoted on performance
and any major heaith and sofety
incidents so a5 1o ensure monagement
identifies and implements appropriate
corrective actions.

Activities in 2014

There hove been positive improvements
throughout the yedar to embed the Keep
us Safe ogendo to develop safe and
healthy employees and custarmers.

The most trusted brand is of the forefront
of our minds and our core values are at
the heart of heglth and safety:

> We care about the haalth, safety and
wellbeing of our employees and
customers and it is at the heart of
everything we do

> We lead by developing robust systems
and promoting good practice

> We unite with stakeholders to develop
positive engogement

» We dellver by alwoys seeking confinuous
improvement ond good practice.,

The H&S Monagement System {HSG 65)
has been daveloped and implermenfed
to include robust policies, procedures
and hazard conlrots. The scope of the
system is fo implement effective poficies,
hazard conlrols, health and safety
training, equipment management,
effective communication, occupational
health provision, auditing ond raview,
documaent control as well as identifying
whare legal compliance i raquired.

The Group H&S Policy documenis the
Group's commitment to a safe waorking
envionment ond ensure the safety of
our ermployees and anyone who may
be oFfected by our businegss os wel

as demonstrating compliance with
legislative requirernents, The policy isa
farmaol rmechanism for the adherence

of the principles of the H&S Management
System (HSG 45] and sefs out our aims,
details the structure of our organisation
and how we will monage and promote
our haalth and sofety objectives.
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Along with embedding aur H&3
Management Systern through HSG 65,
the key improverments this year have
inclyded:

» The implementation of regional health
and safety committeas to ensure
affective consuliation with employees
A fulireview and update of the
operations risk assessments to ensure
adeguate hazard control
? Revised contractor management and
pearmit to work system 10 manage
hazardous work activities
> Improved induction training platform
which encompasses hast videos and
augmented readlity learning and an
associated handbook. The videos
focus on driving for work, lone working.
safety signage, housekeeping/
maintenance hazords such as
chemicals, machinery, asbestos and
persang| protective equipment.
There s an inferaclive game for
accident, incident and neor misses.
The augmenied reality technology
is based on hazard spotting and picks
up key areas of risk that smployees are
Ikely 1o come across
Updaled property inspections with
rmonthiy city and quarterty feam checks
as well as additional developrment
site Inspections
?» Quarterly health and safety reviews
with all three framework development
coniractors which include directors
and heaith and sofety repraseniatives
> An external audit has also been
underiaken of property development
sites and encompassed the principal
cortractor and princitxal designer
? Unite branding has been ntrcduced
on ine developrnent sitas to drive the
message from a client perspective
External benchmarking of site
inspection scores via Considerate
Constructor Scheme [CCS), and UKCG
?» EBlevated Unite health and safety profie
by becoming a client pariner
of the CCS
Implemented a Yellow Cord systerm
at the deveiopment sites 1o holt works
immediately if there & significant
concern aver haalth and safety.

b 4
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Extemat audit

The British Safety Council was appointed
to undertoke ¢ best practice audit of the
H&S Management System [HIG 65) and
its effectiveness. The audit focused an kgy
areas including: policy and organisational
responsibilities, strofegy ond plonnihg,
implementation and operation,
performance measurement. evaluafion
and review, leadership and commitment,
It also benchmarked performance
indicators, which formed part of the
evaluation and included: continuatl
improvement, leadership. stakeholder
engagement, dsk management and
health and welioeing. The H&S
Management System was awarded a
three-star rating, with & number of areas
ot good practice identified as well as
orecs for confinuous improvement fo
attain best proctice and strive fora
four-star rating next year,

The lead auditor was imprasted with

the properties, commenting: “If my child
naeded student accommedation | would
definitely ensure they stoyed with Unite.”

The British Safety Council has also
undertaken an audit for the property
develocpment operations of theiwr principal
contractors and principal designer, visifing
three development sites and reviewing
appropriate documentation, As aresult
of these oudits appropriate stakeholders
are now being consulted and reguiar
meetings set up to work fogether an
taking recommendations forward.

Security

WSP Parson Brinckerhoff undartook

an external security review providing
comprehensive recommendations for
continuows improvement. A seniar lavel
steering group is establishing the sirategy
with @ clear vadmap for security to be
built info our projects’ design, tayout and
customer impact. A business security
consultant is being cppointed 1o take
the lead and provide the necessary
odvice ond guidance 1o ensure the
recommendations ore taken forward.

n

THE ORGANISATIONAL
CULTURE WITHIN UNITE
STUDENTS AS A
BUSINESS WAS FOUND
TO BE QUTSTANDING, IT
WAS 0BVIOUS TO THE
SURVEY TEAM THAT ALL
STAFF THAT REPRESENT
UNITE STUDENTS ARE
COMPLETELY COMMITTED
TO THE ORGANISATION'S
FOUR CORE VALUES, IN
THAT THEY CARE, LEAD,
UNITE AND DELIVER

Security risk review report
WSP Parson Mrinckerholf

Crisis manggement aiso forms part of
this work and it is imperative to test our
emergency preparedness and response
plans and procedures. Hence. an
emergency test ook ploce at an
operating property in tondon. A raview
of the: exetcise has enatled the sharing
of good practice and lessons feamt, to
drive further improvermnents and bwild
on the positive angagerment with the
emefgency services.
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

CONTINUED

FIRE SAFETY

Richard Bobryk joined us in August as
our Prirmary Fire Authority Lead Fire
Officer [photo above with Alastair
Weston, Health and Safety Manager
on the lett and Richard Bobruk, Avon
Fire tind Rescue on the right}.

This will cirive focus on fira security through:

» integrating fire sirotegy decisions into
the development journey

» Fire Safely Management — policies and

procedures, risk assessments, fraining.

fire records

Maintenance Regimes — testing and

planned preventative maintenance

Specification for new builds and

developments,

A

v

we have completed g benchmarking
exercise and produced a fire risk review
which provides clear direction for
designing out risk and suggestions for
fire safety stralegias.

The external fire risk gssessrment
programme is baing implemented with
a threa-year rofing cycle and internal
annual reviews. Clearer risk ratings

have been established with pricritisation
and accountability.

Mental health and wellbeing
Mentat health issues ore of grave concern
1o the Higher Education secterand also
to us ot Unite, especially since we are
their home while at University. Employees
receive mantal health first gid training

to look tor signs and signpost help. The
student support services teom provides
support to employoes and students

alike and works closely with the University
support fecms,

Incidents

Opaerations

Incidents involving our employees.
customers or visitors:

> Five reportable injuries (under RIDDOR)
to employees relating to injuring
themsetves following a fall or knock

» 314 mingr {non-reporiable) incidents
{employees 166, custorner 125,
contractor 23).

Development

During 2014, ihere hove been four
RIDDOR reportable incidents and 20
minof incidents in our development
activity. This performance is within our
Unite Students internal benchmaorks —
beating the industry standard — as follows:

InCkaants <P Baronmork
4RIDDQR 0.23 0.30
20 minar 1.13 5.00

* KPlcakculated as: No. of incidents x 100,00G

hours/hours worked
Development incidents for 2016
Non-
RIDDOR neportable
Projact HOWs Incicdents madents
Slapleton House T 317.024 ) 0
Olympic way 345,810 1 1
Greetham 5t 281,443 o 2
Causeway End 239,090 1 4
Far Gasforg 150.849 0 1
Tara House 238,857 2 2
StLecnards 96,544 o] 10
Millennium View 79.815 0 Q
BRI Bristol 5780 o 4]
TOTALS } 1,766,912 4 20
Priorities for 2017 The focus for continuous improvement by inffiating o contractor forum to share

Qur vision for thie next three years is
tha journey 1o interdependence with
empowermert iy day to day health
and safety manggement at the core
of everything we do.

Qur aim is to ensure the health, safety
and weilbeing of employees. and have
a posiive influence on customers

and contractors,

inclyges: prioritising and pragressing

the fire risk review, crisis management,
security review and external audit
recommendations ond actions.

Specific fopical projects include
bespoke manual handling fraining ond
assessment, infegnoting wellbeing info the
management sysiern, near miss reperting
campaign and engaging with our
stakeholders on health and sofety

good proctice, lessons leamt and ensure
the very best contraciors work on
Qur properties.



THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNLIAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2914
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

Elizabeth McMelkan Chair

Dear Sharehoider,

©On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure
to present the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for 2016.

As in previous yeors, this report is splitinto
three sections: this Annugl Statement, the
Policy Repaort and the Annual Report on
Remuneration. Qur Remuneration Policy,
detailed on pages 77 10 83. remains
consistent with that approved by
shareholders at the 2016 AGM, and

is reproduced in full for both eass of
refarence and in order fo provide confext
to the decisions faken by the Committee
during the yeor.

As evidencead earker in this Annual Report,
2014 has been anothar strong year for
Unite. Financial highlights have included
a 20% increase in adjusted EPRA EPS, a
totalretum of 15%, further reductions in
sea-through LTV, o three pence incregse
in aur annual dividend, and our 3-yeor
TSR continuing to out perform the FTSE 350
Reql Estate Index. Operationally, we have
continued fo increase Gurnumber of beds,
while also maintaining high occupancy
rafes. cusfomer safisfaction levels and
University trust scores. More broadiy Unite
has continued to deliver against its strategy,
with progress against the three pillars of
delivering great service to students and
University partners, operating oriiliant
buildings and maintaining high-quality
earnings and a strong capital structure,
aiding our transition to REIT status effective
1 January 2017.

The year also saw a change in the
executive team, with Richard Smith,
formerly Managing Director of
Operations, taking on the Chief Execufive
role further to the departure of Mark
Alian. There were chonges 100 for our
other Executive Directors, as bath Jee
Lister and Richard Simpson look on g
numiber of key additional responsibilities
as part of an overall streamiining of the
executive team.

Inlight of the above, the Committea’s key
decisions during the year related to the
following areds:

Salaries for Execufive Directors
During the shareholder consultation

that preceded the 2016 AGM, the
Cormmittee set out itsintention of increcsing
the salaries of Executive Direciors by
between &% and 9% for 2016, with a further
increqse for the Managing Directors of

up to 9% in early 2017. The fiest of these
planned increases was made with effect
from | March 2014 for each of Richard
Smith, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson.
Mark Allan received a 2% increase,
consislent with genenal increases for
employees aeross the Company.

Following Mark's resignation, additional
salary ncreases were made to the
rernaining Executive Directors with effect
from 1 June 2014, details of which arg set
out below,

Changes in leadership

In light of his promotion to CEC. the
Commitiee reviewed Richard Smith's
solary against g range of factors and
elected to set it at o level of £430,000 per
annum, representing o ¢.3% reduction to
his predecessor, effective 1 June 2016,

Reflecting the key odditional responsibififies
taken on by the piher rermaining Execulive
Directors, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson,
the Commities raviewead G number

of alernative approaches for their
emuneration with the ultimate gim

of ensyring that they remain focussed

on delivering Unite's strofegy during a
period of potential instabliity. Following
careful consideration of the clitermnatives
permitted within our remuneration policy,
and discussions with some of aur mojor
shareholders, the Committee determined
1o increcse each of their base salaries

by ¢.20% to £350,000 and £325.000 per
annum respectivety with effect from

1 June 2016.

- The remaiinder of eoch Executive Direclor’s

| remuneration package has stayed

| consistent with that outlined in last year's

" report, narnely efigibility for an annual

| bonusof up to |44% of salary {with personal
objectives updated for new roles ond/or

[ responsibilities), LTIP awards of 200% of

salory {mode in June 2014} vesting on

Unite's performance over three years

( and subject 1o a two-year holding

! peried, pansion contributions of 20% of

salory and other applicable benefits,

Further details of our considerations in
making these changes are set out in the
relevant section on pages 85 and 86.

Annual bonus ovicomes
for the financial year
Executive Drectors will each receive
bonuses of 62.5% of sakary {cf. a maximum
of 144% of salary} in respect of 2016
performance. Overall bonus oulcomes
reflect sofid fingncicl performance by the
Group and the individual contributions
made by each of the Exacutive Directors
over the Iast year, including significont
progress in their new and exponded rotes.

Cespite strong periormance against
profit fargets, the overalt bonus outcome
is just below lorget and is sorne woy
below that received in previous years,
which the Commities considars
appropriate in the context of amore
challenging yedr in tenms of broader
i business circumstances. Financial
performance was above target under
both the adjusted EPS and net debt to
EBIIDA ratio elements but this was offset
by totak return performance being below
target and a set of strelching custormer
satisfoction torgets set by the Committee
at the start of the year being missed,
| Reflecting a transitionory period,
and despite a number of notable
achievemeants, the Committee assessed
. each of the Executive Directors’ individual
| perforrmance @s ‘on target’, mariting

o 1.0x personal performance multiplier
l {cf. the maximum 1.2x muttipfier].

! Further detaits, incluging annuai bonus
, fongets, cutcomes and detgils of personal
achigvernents ore incluged on page 87,

Heds: oBawong
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Long-term Incentives

Executive Directors were each gronted
an awaid under the LTIP in June 2016
based an performance over lhe three
financial years to 3t December 2018.
These owards will vest to the extent that
challenging EPS. fotal return and relative

TSR targets are achieved over the petiod,

with any award vesting required to be
held for an additional two-yeor period.

Performance share awards made

in April 2014 vested on performance to
31 December 2014, These gwards were
similorty based on EPS, Tolal Return

and TSR outperformance of the FTSE3S0
Real Estote Super Sector Index, The
Company exceeded maximum forgets
for each element, rasulting in 100% of the
original award vesting. The Committee
is satfisied that the implied vesting levet
reflects the undertying performance of
the Compony ond the progress made
over the lost three years. Cansistent with
the rules of the plan at the time of grant,
these awards shares will vest in franches
with two-thirds releqased on the third
anniversary of grant in April 2017, and
the rernaining one-third released after
a further year-long holding period.

Overall pay for 2014

The Committee is satisfied that overall
pay oulcomes are appropriote and
refiect Unite's performance across the
vorious time horizans covered. Fixed pay
levels are competitive but not excessive
when taking into account similor roles at
comparable companies, individual
conlributions, experience and overall
levels of responsibility. Annual bonus
outcomes reflect a more challenging
financial year, with autcomes below
thase achieved in each of the last three
cycles, whilst the LTIP — which makes up
the maijority of each Executive Director's
single tigure for the year —reflects strong
finoncial and operationai performance.
and significant value creation over the
three-year measurement period.

Implementation of policy for 2017
The Committee has reviewed the cument
Remunaration Policy and is confident
that it continues to effectively support
Unite's short- and long-term strategic”
objectives and promote management
and shareholder alignment. We are
satisfied also that the proposed
implermentation is appropriale given the
Company's conversion 1o a REIT, which
becamae effective 1 January 2017,

For 2017, the annual bonus will operate on
the same basis as in previous years, save
for two minor changes. The non-financial
alemeant of the ‘corporate’ scorecard,
currenity based entirely on customer
safisfaction, will be supplemented with
University Reputation, with each measure
weighted 12,5% in order to salisfy the
75/25 financial/non-financial spfit
permitted under our Remuneration Policy.
The inclusion of University Reputation
recognises the equalimportance of
Unite's retationships with Higher Education
partners together with the opinions of our
student customers direclly, ond hos been
wsed as one of our operational KPis for

a number of years. The other change
relatas to the individual performance
multiplier where it is proposed that the
maijority of objectives will be snared
across each of the Executive Directors in
order to reflect the collabomative ethos

of the executive teom. As always, Ihe
Committee will providie retrospeciive
disclosure on the key achieverments

next year in order to qllow sharehoiders
to make an informed voting decision.

Save for these minor changes, the
implementation of policy for 2007 will

be consistent with that applied in recent
years. Further details, including propased
salary ond fee increases, are included
on page 90.

Leaver arangements for

Mark Allan

Mark Allan stepped down as Chief
Executive effective 31 May 2016 and
ceased being o director of the Company
om the same date, remaining employed
in an advisory capocity with the Company
until 31 Oclaber 2016. For the period

1 June 2014 io 31 Oclober 2016, Mark
continued fo receive base pay, pension
and other contractual benefils, He was
not eligitle to participate in the 2016
annuyal bonus and there was ne payment
in lieu of nofice.

Full detaits of how the Commitiee treated
Mark Allan's outstanding long-term
incenfives are set out in the relevant
section on poge 0.

Areas for future consideration
The Committee will continue to monitor
market trends throughout 2017 in order
lo assess ongoing requirements for the
Compaony's remuneration practices,
and will consull with shareholders about
making changes should any significant
departures from best practice arise. We
ore mindful of the continuing debate
around Executive Director remuneration
and of the varlous updates to shareholder
thinking in this areq, ond while we are
propasing no materiol chonges for 2017,
this s something that we will continue

to take into account as we review the
effectiveness of our arrangaments

each year.

Elizabeth McMeikan
Chair of Remuneration Commiitee
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Overview of Unite remuneration policy and implementation

Ovarnew Of policy

Remunermtion in respect of 2016

AIDIRS 350y

> Reviewed from time 1o time,
with reference 10 salory levels
for similar roles at comparable
companias, to individuol
contribution 1o performance;
and ko the experience of
gach Executive

> Sglaries incregsed by between 2%
and ?% effective | March 2016

> Foliowing role changes, salary of new
CEO, Richard Smith, set ait £430,000
effective | June 2016. Sakanes of Joe
Lister and Richara Simpson Increased
by €.20% to £350.000 and £325,000
respectively from the same date,
reflecting significant increase in
responsibiiities

implementation of pokcy in 207

¥ Solories increqsed by 2% effective

\ March 2017, as follows:

> CEOQ. Richard Smith = £438,600

> CFO, Joe Lister = £357.000

?» MD Property, Richard Simpson
= £331.500

77 Reod more

B85 Reod rmore:

71 Read mone

SOUAQ UOISLIdY

> Pansion contributions of up 1@
20% of salkary of an equivalent
cosh allowance

* Benefits typically consist the
provisian of o compaony car
or g car allowance, and
rivate health care insurance

> inling with pelicy

2> No change to pension conkibulion

rates or benefits for 2017

77 Reod more

85 Reod more

91 Reod more

$nuog jonuuy

?* Maximum annua! bonus
opportunity for all Executive
Directors of 144% of sakary

> Performance measures

typically include both

financlal and non-finoncial
metrics. as well as the:
achigvement of individual
objectives

Payments delivered in cash.

except where an individuatl

has not met their
sharehoiding guidefines,

in which case yp

10 50% is defered in shares

for three years

> Mafus and clawback
pravisions apply

L

8 Reod more

» Annual bonuses of 62.5% of salary for
each Executive Drector [43.4% of
maximum opportunity] Dased on:

» acorporate scorecard qutcome
of $2.5% of salary {out of 120%)

» Individuol performance muttipliers
of 1,.0x {cf. 1.2x maximurm)

» Bonuses to be paid in cash in early 2017

> Maximum annuadl bonus opportunities
o remain at 144% of salary
2 Payrments to be determined taking into
consideration a corporate scorecard
based on 75/25 on financial/non-
financia! performance, and ofter
appilying an individual perforrmance
muttiptier of up to 1.2x
For 2017, the non-financial element will
be supplemented with g measure of
University Reputation; indwidual
objectives to ba more team focussed

'

86 Reod more

1 Read maore

din

* Maepdmum awend size for all
Executive Directors of 200% of
salary in normal circumstances

> Awards vest sublect to
performance overa
three-yeor period, Vested
shares are typically subject
to an additional hwo-year
hokding period

> Malus ond ckawback
provisions apply

> 2014 LTIP vested al 100% based on:

> 2006 odjusted EPS of 27.7p vs.
astrefch target of 23.5p

> Total Return over ihe period 2014-16
of 21.3% p.o. vs. o sirelch larget of
14.5% p.a.; and

» Relative TSR outperformance of the
FISE350 Rag! Estate Indax of 10% p.a.
vs, a stretch target of 9% p.o.

¥ Awards of 200% of salary to be made
o eoch Executive Dinector in April 2017

¥ Performance to be measured over ihe
period 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019 against EPS, jotal return and
relafive TSR

> Two-year holding period will opply
o vesied shares

Fas Read more

88 Read more

92 Read mona
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF

THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

2016 Remuneration at a glance
2014 Single total figure of remuneration for current Executive Direclors

Richord S8 Richang
st Lter Srpson
Satary INE17 32702 298367
Taxable benefits 15,256 15,854 15,234
Pension benefit 40,843 55,979 55,604
Annual Bonus 227083 203385 188,802
LTIP 528559 584,742 528,559
Other 0 0 0
Tolol 1,191,378 1,182,442 1,084,568
2014 Annual Bonus outcomes
Corporate fargets
‘Threshald' “Target’ ‘Stretch’
5% Tox 100% 120% vest  Corporale
Macsure Weright of salary of saiary of saiory of sokary Actual % saiory) veshng
Adjusted EPS 25% 24.7p 25.7p 7.2p 28B.2p 27.7p 97 5%,
Total Retum per share 25% 79p 87p 00p 108p 83p 15.0% $2.5%
Net debt to EBITOA rofio 25% é.5x 6.3x 6.0x 58x b.2x 0%
Customer satisfaction 25% 83 84 85 87 80 0;:4
Overall Overall bonus ovicoma
Corporate Parsanol %of Kot
_FuculTve veshng multiprhes salory I MLIM £
Richard Smith 1.0x 62.5% 434% 227083
Joe Lister 62.5% 1.0x 62.5% 434% 203385
Richord Simpson 1.0% 62.5% 434% 188802
2014-2014 LNIP oulcomes
Targets
Threshokd Streich Owverall
Meaiure Waight 25% vest 100% ves! Actuai R vesl £ vest
2016 Adjusted EPS 143 18.1p 235p 27.7p 100%
Total Return p.a. [2014-2016) /3 8.5% 14.5% 21.3% 100% 100%
Index InClex
Relafive TSR outperformance 1/3 Index +%%p.a +10%pa. 100%
QOverall vesting
Execulve Oveal % vest Interests veshing Dale vesing Estmated vaive
Richard Smith 86,566 £528.559
Joe Lister 100% 95,753 10 ARAI 2017 12/3) £584.742

10 ARl 2018 {1/3)
Richard Simpson 86,566 £528.559
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION POLICY

This report has been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and Schedule B of
the Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups [Accounts and Reporis]
Reguiations 2008 {as amendedi. It aiso
meets ihe requirements of the UK Listing
Authority's Listing Rules and the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules.

in accordance with the regulations, the
fallowing sections of the Remuneration
Report are subjact fo audit: the single
total figure of remuneration for Directors
ond pccompanying notes [poges BS

o 88}, scheme inferests awarded during
the financial year [page 90), payments
to post direciors {page 91). payments for
oss of office [page 82} and the statament
of Directors' shoreholdings ond share
inferests (page 80]. The remaining sections
of the report are not subject 1o audit,

Unite's Remunemtion Policy was approved
by shareholders at the 2014 Annuai

> Referances to fingncial years have
been updated where appropriote

% Pay for performance scenario
charts hove peen updated o reflect
2017 salaries

> Current Non-Executive Director
appointment expiry dotes have
been updated

» Section on consideration of sharehalder
views updated to reference consuliation
on pay increases made during the year
to reflecting changes in responsibilities

Directors' Remunerafion Policy
The Group gims i balance the need

to attract, retain and moftivate Executive
Directors and other senior executives of
an appropriate calibre with the need to
be cost effective, while ot the samae time
rewarding exceptional performance. The
Committee has designed a remuneration
policy that bakances those faclors, taking
account of prevalling best practice. investor
axpactations and ihe level of remuneration
and pay awards mode generally 1O

| In addition 1o the abave, the remunerafion
policy for the Executive Directors and
other senior executives is based on the

[ following key principles:

J > A significant proportion of
remuneration should be tied to the
| achievement of specific and stretching
| performance conditions that align
| remuneration with fhe creation of
| shoreholder vaiue and the defivery
‘ of the Group's strategic plan.
. » There should be a focus on suslained
{ long-term performance, with
i performance medasured over clearty
specified timescales, encouraging
exgcuylives fo take action in kne with
the Group's strategic plon, using good
business mancgement principles ond
taking well considered risks.
¥ individuals shoukd be rewardea for
success, but steps should be taken,
within contractual obligations,
10 prevent rewards for failune.

General Meeting. The report below employees of the Group. This section ot tha report sats out the Policy
is a3 disciosed in the 2015 Directors' for Execufive Direclors, which shoneholders
Remuneration Report save for a number approved at the 2016 Annuol General
of minor changes as follows: Meefing ond which came into effect
from that date.
Policy Table
Function Operation Cpporiynity Parformoncs meincs
Base salory Base salaries are reviewed from time to Any base salory increases are applied in Nore
Torecognise the  time, with referance to salary kevels for fine with the outcome of the review as part
individual's skills  similar roles ot comparcble companies, of which the Committee also considars
and experience o individual confribution fo performance;  averoge increases across the Group.
gr:; ?r: ;?:;v.d: and fa the experience of each executive. ln_resp_e ci of axisting Execu_ﬁve Directors
base reward it is anticipated that salary increases wil
’ genearally be in line with those of sakaried
employees as a whoie, In exceptional
circumstanices (including, but not imited
to, a materialincrease in job size or
complexity] fhe Committee has discrafion
to moke appropriate adjustments 1o salary
levels o ensure that they rernain market
competitive. This was the cose for solary
increqsas awarded during the course
of 2016,
Pention All exgeutives are either members of The Executive Directors receive a pension None
To provide an Unite Group Personagl Pension schame contribution of 20% of sokary oran
opportunity for of receive a cash pension dllowaonce. equivalent cash aliowance.

executives to
build up income

upon refirgrment.

Salary is the only element of remuneration
that is pensionabie.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

Funchon Qperation Ooportunity Parlormance meincs
Benefits Executives raceive benefits that consis Benefils vary Dy role and individual None
To provide prirarily of the provision of a company circumstances; eligibility ond costis
non-cash car or a car allowance, and private reviewed periodically,
benefits which health care insurance, although can . . . .
are competitive  include any such benefits that the The Commme: s:fams ﬂ:_s dI;CdTGTIOn
in the morket in Committee deerns appropriate, k.’ apprave 0 figher cost In certain
which the circumstances (e.g. relocation)
o or in circumstances where factors
executive is A .
amploved. outside the com_pcny § co_nfrol have
changed materiaily (e.g. increases
in insunance premiums).
SAYE An HMRC-approved scheme whereby Savings are capped al the prevailing None
To encourage employees [including Executive Drectors)  HMRC limit ot the time employees are

the ownership may save up to the maximum monthiy invited to participate.
of shares in Unite.  savings iimit {as determined by prevailing

HMRC guidelines) over a period of three.

Options granted ot a 20% discount.
Funchion Operalion Opportundy Parformance mairics
Performance Performance measures, targets ond For Executive Performance is assessed on an annual
related weightings are set at the start of the year,  Directors, the basis, as measured against specific
annual bonus e ,  maximum annual cbjectives set af the start of each year. The
To incentivise The scheme has two ?Itiagwenr'ls. a m‘?olfmte bonus opporiunity 5 measures typically include both financial
andreward sirang  Slement c:r;dhcn ‘"d"'f ":’C' mu ":) ter 144% of base sakxry, and non-financial metrics as well as the
performance slermant. A_ the end o'” e :/je?r e " comprising: achievement of personal objectives.
agains} financial Remuneration Commitlee determines the . . .
and non-financial extent towhich iargets have been ochieved. » A moximum Corporolfe meaasures will be weng'hted
annuat torgets, Bonus pay ts are delivered in cash bonus under qumumt?ygwh yaqr accordlpg to
thus delivering less an 'ndeivlid al's sharehaldin the corporate business pnc?ntfes. Measures may include,
value 1o :’equsj;’m;n . hot’e ol boen meﬂn efement of but are not limited to, adjusted EPS, total
shareholders which case up to 50% of the annual bonus 120% of salary; refum growif, fhe ratio of net debt
andbeing payable 1o the relevant Director is salisfied achieving to E_BITQA cnd‘cufrf.amer satisfoction.
corsistent with by an allocation of shares in the Company, on-target Wweightings of individual measures may
the delivery of which are held in ifs Employee Share performance vary between 10%qu 50%, with the range
the strotegic pan.  Ownership Trust warrants a of performance required under each

ersnip frust. bonus equivalent  measure calibrated with reference
Awards under the performance rekated to 70% of salary to Unite's infermal budgets. Financial

annual bonus are subject to malus and
clowback provisions, further detaits of
which are inclvded s a note to the
policy fable.

3> A moximum
multiplier under
the individual
element of 1.2,
with a onge
ofzeroto 1.2

For threshold level
performance, the
bonus will be 50%
of base salary.

measures will make up at least 75%
of the total opportunity under the
corporate element.

The individual element is based on the
Committee's assessment of an executive's
personal performance over the course of
the year, as measured by the Performance
Devalopment Programme reviem.

The Commitee has discration fo adjust the
formulaic bonus outcomes both upwards
{within the plan imits) ond downwards
{ncluding down to zem) to ensure alignment
of pay with performance, e.g.. in the event
of one of the targets under the bonus
baing significontly missed or unforeseen
crcumstances outside of management
control. The Commitiee alse considers
measures cutside of the bonus framework
[e.g. H&S) to ensure there is na reward

for failure.

Further details of the measures, weightings
and targets applicable are provided on
page 79. 86 and 9.
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selected annually to reflect the Group's
main short- and long-term objectives and
refleci both financial and non-financial
pricrities, as appropriate.

The Committee considers that EPS (used
in both the short- and long-term incentive)
is an objective ond well-accepted
measure of the Company's performance
which reinforces the strategic objective
of achieving profitable growth, while

Targets applying fo the performance
reiated annual bonus and LTIP are
raviewed annually, based on a nurnber
of internal and extemal reference points.
Performance targets are set lo be
stretching but achievable, with regard

to the particulor strotegic pricrities and
economic environment in @ given year,
Underthe bonus, forget performance
typically requires meaningful improvernent
on the previous year's outtum. and for

performance and salary levels in
compamble companies. The Company
is also now @ hully accredited Living
Wage employer.

In terms of variable incentives, oll
employees are eligible to participate in
an anhual bonus scheme with business
area-specific metrics incorporated
where appropriate. Senior managers
[c.18 individuals) are eligible to

L ) a—
w
d
]
3
4]
Function COperation Opportunily Performance metricy g‘
LTie The LTIP comprises a Performance Share The LTIP provides for  Vesting of LTIF awards is subject to
To drive sustoined Flan {PSP) and an Approved Employes anawardupfoa confinued employmant and performance
long-term Share Option Scheme (ESOS). nofmal aggregate  against three equally-weighied medsures,
m’:‘zsz The ESOS is used fo deliver @ proporfion :;",gggoggum Wh'cf' are cumently as follows:
the creation of 1h‘e LTIP in a fax-efficient mannesr, Directors, with an > Adjusted eamings per share (EPS):
of shareholder and is subject to the same performance overall fimit of > Tolal 'return {TR), ond
valve. conditions as awards made under the PSP, 300% of sakary » Relative total shareholder return (TSR}
Award levels ond performance conditions  in exceptional The Commitlee has the discretion o adijust
are reviewed before each award cycle circumstonces, the performance measures 1o ensure thot
fo ensure they remain appropriote ond The currentintention  they continue o be linked to the delivery
no kess stretching than the first cycle. is to aword each of Company strategy.
. Executive Director
Awards under the LTIP are subject 1o molus  qwards equivalent  Under sach measure, threshoid
and clawback provisians, further details to 200% of salary. performance wil resylt in 25% of
of which are included as a note to the maximum vesting for that element,
policy table. Awords moy include  rising on a straight-ine to full vesting.
a grant of MMRC
opproved opfions  Awards made under the LTIP willhave a
not exceeding performance pericd of of least three years
£10,000 per annum,  9nd a minimum vesting period of three
valved on a fair years. If no entiterment has been earned ot
value exchange the end of the relevant parformance
(currently 50-60% period, awards will kapse. A proportion of
of o PSP aword). vested awards may, at the discration of the
Committee, be subject 1o a mandciory
Apaymentequal  hojding period following the end of o
to the volue of three-year vesting period. The Committee’s
dividends which intention is that under future LTIP cycles, all
would have awards will be required o be heid for an
accruedonvested  gdditional two-year peried post-vesting. I
shares will be maoade 9
foliowing the As under the Performance Reiated Annual 2
releasa of awards Bonus, the Cormmittee has discretion to 2
to participonts; adjust the formulaic LTIP outcomes to %
either in the form enwre alignment of pay with performance, g
of cash of a5 Le. to ensure the culcome s a true a
odditionclshares.  'efiection of the performance of Z
the company.
Details of the targets to be ysed in future
LTIP grants are included in the Annual
Report on Remuneration,
Notes to the policy lable a focus on tolal retum [also used in financial measures, targets are
The Committee is satisfied that the obove | both the short- and long-term incentive) typically in line with the upper enc
Remuneration Policy is in the best interests | is consistent with one of our stated of market consernsus.
af shareholkders and does not promote obyectives and a key indicator of company
excessive risk-taking. performcn.ce in fh_e real esmk? sactor._The Remuneration Policy Q
use of relative TSR Ts sirongly aligned with | for other employees i
Ferformance measure selection sharehoclders and e?::res that exe'cuhves Unite’s approach fo arnual soiary 5
and approach to target setting :"fe mrdred o‘nv.:sfor?ozxge*::\i he reviews is consistent across the Group, g
Measures used under the performance : v er:ir?gt';secfor achieve with cansideration given o the level 3
reloted onnual bonus and LTIP are e ) of experience, responsibility, individual 'g’
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CONTINUED

participate in the LTIP with annual awards
cuerentty up to 75% of satary. Performance
conditions are consistent for all porticipants,
while award sizes vary by level. $pecific
cash incentives are also in place fo
molivate, reward and retain stoff below
Board level.

Allemployees ore eligible to parficipate
in the Company's SAYE scheme on the
saome terms,

sharehoiding in the Company.
Sharehoiding guidelines are in place that
require Executive Directors to acguire

a hokding {excluding shares that remain
subject to performance conditions]
equivalent to 250% of base sakary for the
Chief Exacutive and 260% of base salary
for each of the other Executive Directors.
Until $he relevant shareholding levels are
acquired, up fo 50% of the annual bonus
payabie to the relevant Direcior will be
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Malus and clawback

Awards under the Performoance Related
Annual Bonus and the LTIP are subject

tes malus and, from 2014, clkawback
pravisions which can be applied to both
vested ond unvested awords. Clawbock
provisions will appty for o period of at
least two years post-vesting. Crcumstances
in which malus and clowback may be
applied include a materiai misstatemeant
of the Company's financial accounts,

Shareholding guidelines

The Committee continues fo recegnise
the importance of Executive Directors
aligning their intarests with shareholders

through building up @ significant on Remuneration.

Non-Executive Director remuneration

subect to deferral into shares and are
fransferable to the Director after three
years, Details of the Executive Directors’
current personal shareholdings

are provided in the Annual Report

gross misconduct on the part of the
aword-holder and eror in cakculating
the award vesting cutcome.

Non-Executive Director Date of servoce contract
P M White 10 January 2009

R J TWilson 1 December 2010
M Wolstenhoime 1 December 2011
A Jones 18 October 2012

E MchMeikan 13 Novamber 2013

Subject to annual re-election by shareholders, Non-Exaculive Directors are appointed for an initial term of opproximately three
years. Subsequent terms of three years may be owarded. Current appointments will expire af the Annual General Meeting in 2017
in the ¢ase of Elizabeth McMeikan and Sir Tim Wilson; al the 2018 Annual General Meeting in the case of Phil White and Manjit
wotstenhoime, and ot the Annual General Meeting in 2019 in the cose of Andrew Jones. The oppaintment and re-appoiniment
and the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors ore matters reserved for the fuil Board.

The Non-Executive Directors are not eligible fo participale in the Company's performance relaled bonus plan. long-term incentive

plans or pansion amrangements.

Detoits of tha policy on fees paid o our Non-Executive Directors are set out in the table below:

runcton Operahon Opoxortunity Performance metncs
Foes Feea levels are reviewed annually, with any  Non-Executive Director fee increases are None
To atfract adjustments effective 1 January in the year applied in line with the outcome of the

and retain foliowing review. annyal fee neview. Fees for the year
Non-Executive . . commencing i January 2017 are sat out
Ditectorsof the  1ne f6€s paid ta tha Charman are in the Annual Report on Remunerafion,

highest calibre determined by the Commitiee, whilst

with broad the fees of the Non-Executive Directors Fee levels will be next reviewed during 2017,
commercialand &€ determined by the Board. with any increase effective 1 Jonuary 2018.

other experience Additional fees are payable for acting It is expacted that increases to non-

relevant to as Senior independent Director and as axecutive director fee levels will be in ine

the Company. Chaimman of any of the Board's Commitiees  with salaried employees over the life of

[Audit, Rernuneration, Nomination and
Health and Safety).

Fee levels are benchmarked against sector
comparators and FI15E-listed companias

of sirmilar size ond complexity. Time
commitment ond responsibility are taken
into account when reviewing fae levels,

the policy. However, in the event that there
is @ materiol misalignment with the market
or o change in the complexity, responsibility
or fime commitrent required 1o fulfil

a Mon-Executive Director role, the Board
has discnation to make an approgriate
adjustment 10 1he fee level,
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Pay for perddlormonce scenorios

The charls below pravide on illustration of the potential future reward opportunities lor the Executive Directors, and the potential
split between tha ditferent elements of remuneration under three different performance scenarios: Minimum, On-darget

ond Maximum,

Potential reward opportunities are bosed on Unile's Remuneration Policy, applied to the base solaries effective 1 March 2017. The
annual bonus and LTIP are based an the moximum opportunities set out under the Remuneraiion Policy for normal circumstonces;
being 144% of salary and 200% of saiary respectively. Note that the LTIP awards granted in a year do not normally vest until the third
anniversary of the date of grant, and the projecled value is based on the face value ot oward rather than vesting (.., the scenarios
exclude the impact of any share price movement over the period).

The Minimum scencrio refliects base salory, pension and benefits (i.e., fixed remuneration} which are the onty elements of the

Exacutive's remuneration packages not inked to performance. B
e}
|

The Cn-torget scenario reflects fixed remuneration 0s above, plus bonus poyout of 70% of salary and LTIP threshold vesting of 25% 8

of maximum award. g

The Maximum scenario reflects fixed remuneration, plus ful payout of all incentives. %
=

Approach to recruitment remuneration “

External appointment o the Boord

In tha cases of hiring or appoinfing o new Exacutive Director from outside the Compony. the Remunerotion Commitiee may make

use of all the existing components of remuneration. as follows:

Maximurm annuot
Componsnt Approach grant value
Base solary The base salories of new appointees will be determined by reference 1o relevant market
data, experience and skills of the individual, internal relativities and their curent basic
salary. Where new appointees have initiol basic sakaries set below market, any shortfall
may be managed with phased increcses over a period of two fo three vears subject to
the individual's devetopment in the rola. Q
=
Penslon New appointees will receive pension contributions or an equivalent cash supplement g
not greater than the existing policy. g
Benefits New appointees will be eligible to receive benefits which may include (but are 8..
— —— _— notlimited tg) the provision of a company car or cash afternative, private medical g
SAYE insurance and any necessory relocation expenses. New appointees will also be
gligible to participate in oll employee share schemes.
Perormance The struciure described in the policy table will apply Yo new oppointees with the 144% of soiory
Related Annual  reievant maximum being pro-rafed to refiect the proportion of employment over the
Bonus year. Targets for the individual elemant wilt be tailored o each executive.
[L{[ 4 New appointees will be granted awards under the LTIP on the same terms as other 300% of salary

executives, as described in the policy table, The normal aggregote limit of 200% of
salary will apply. save in exceptional cicumsiances where up to 300% of salary may be
awarded.
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In determining appropriate
remunaration, the Remuneration
Commitiee will take into consideration all
relevant factors {inctuding quanium,
nature of remyuneration and the
jurisdiction from which the candidate was
recryited) to ensure that arrangements
ore in the best interests of both Unite ond
its shareholders, The Committee may
make an award inrespect of a new
appointment to buy- outincentive
amangements forfeited on leaving a
pravious employer on a like-for-like basis,
which may be owarded in addition fo
the remuneration structure outlined in the
table above. In doing so. the Committee
will consider relevant factors including
fime to vesting, any performance
conditions attached to these owards and
the likelhood of those conditions being

met. Any such buy-ouf awards will
typically be made under the existing
annual bonus and LTIP schemes,
although in exceptional circumstances
the Committea may exercise the
discretion avaiiable under Listing Rule
9.4.2 R 1o make awards vsing a different
structure. Any buy-oul awards would
have a fair value no higher thanthe
awards forfeited.

Intemnal promotion to the Board

In cases of appointing a new Executive
Director by way of internal prometian, the
Remuneration Commitiee and Board will
be consistant with the paolicy for external
appointegs detailed above. Where an
individual has contractual commitments
made prior to their promolian fo
Executive Director level, the Company

Service contracts and treatment for leavers and change of control
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will continue to honour these
arrangements. The Remuneralion Policy
for ather employees is set out on page 79.
Incentive opportunities for below Boord
employees gre typically no higher than
Executive Direclors, but measunes may
vary 1o provide better line-of-sight.

Non-Executive Directors

In recruiting @ new Non-Executive
Direclor, the Remuneration Cornmittee
will utilise the policy as set out in the toble
on page 79. A base fee in line with the
prevailing fee schedule would be
payable for Board membesship, with
odditional fees payable for acting as
Senior Independent Director and/or as
Chairman of the Board’s Committees.

Executive Date of service: coniract
1 1Lister 28 March 2002
R C Simpson 28 September 2011
RS Smith 28 Septernber 2011

Executive Director service contracts,
including arrangements for early
termination, are carefully considered by
the Commiltee. In accordance with
general marke) practice, each of the
Executive Direciors has arolling service
contract requiring 12 months' notice of
termination on either side. Such confracts
contain no specific provision for
compensation for loss of office. other
than an obligation to pay for any notice

period waived by the Company, where
pay is defined as salary. benefits and any
other statutory payments only, Executive
Diractor service contracts are awaikible
1o view at the Company's registered
office,

The Remuneration Committee will
axercise discretion in making oppropriate
payments in the context of cutplacernent,
settling legal clamns or potential legal

claims by a departing Executive Director,
including any other amounts reasonakbly
due to the Execulive Director, for
example to meet the legal fees incurred
by them in connection with the
termination of employment, where

the Company wishes to enter infoc o
setflement ogreement and fhe individuol
must seek indepeandent legal aavice.
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when considering axit payments, the Commitiee reviews ali potential incentive outcomes to ensure they ore fair to both sharehokders
and participants. The fabie beiow summarises how the awards under the annual bonus and LTIF are typically treated in specific
circumstances, with the final freatment remaining subject to the Committee’s discretion:

Recson for isaving Colkcuanon of vesting focyment
Annuol bonus
Resignation No annugl bonwus payabile.
'Good' leqver! Cash bonuses will onty be paid 10 the extent that finoncial and individua! objectives set

Change of control

at the beginning of the pkan year have been met. Any rasutting bonus will be pro-rated
for time served during the year.

e
Reasignation QCutstanding awards lapse
‘Good’ leaver’ The Committee determines whether and 10 what exient culstanding owards vest

Chonge of control

based on the extent 1o which perfarmance conditions have been achigved and the
proportion of the vesting period worked.,

The detemination of vesting wili be made as soon os reasonably practicat fotiowing
the end of the perforrmonce period or such earlier date as the Commitiee may agree
[within 12 months in the event of death),

In the event of a change of control, Unite awards may alternatively be exchanged
for new equivaient awards in the acquirer where Gppropriate.

' ‘Good' keaver s defined os a parhicipant ceasing o be emplaoyed by the Group by reqson of death, disability. (Il heaith, redundoncy, refirement
or any othes reason that the Committee determinesin its absolute discretion.

The trectment of shares subject fo deferrol
or holding periods will be subject tc the
Remuneration Committee’s discretion
and will 1ake into account the
circumstancas of the time.

External appoiniments

with the approval of the Baard in each
case, and subject fo the overriding
requirements of the Graup, Executive
Directors may accept exlemal
appointments as Non-Executive Direciors
of other companies and retain ony fees
raceived. joe Lster is currently a member
of the Cauncit of the University of Essex
for which he does not receive a fee.
Richard Simpson joined the Boord of
CityWest Homes of the beginning of 2017
Richord Smith does not currently hold

an external appointment,

Annual General Meeting for the new
Remuneration Policy, During 2016 we
consuited with shareholders representing
around twao-thirds of Unite's issued share
capital regarding Executive Director
salaries following the role changes arising
as ¢ result of Mark Allan'’s resignation

and subsequent reorgonisation of
responsibilities. The Commitiee will
continue o monitor trends and
developrments in corporate govermnance
and market practice to ensure the
structure of the executive remuneration
remains appropriate.

| Consideration of conditions

j elsewhere in the compony
when making decisions on Executive
Director remuneration, the Committee
cansiders pay and conditions ocross
Unite, Prior to the annual salary review,
the Group People Director provides the

( Committee with a summary of the

i proposed leve) of increase for overal)

’ empioyee pay. The Remuneration
Committee does not formally consult

| with employees on the executive

‘r Remuneration Policy and Framework.

! Considerafion of shareholdes views
The Remunergtion Comimillee maintaing
a regukar dialogue with its major
sharehoiders, and is encouraged by

| the support received al the 2016
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

The following seclion provides details
of how Unite's Remuneration Policy was
implemeanied during the financial year
ending 31 December 2016

Remuneration Committee

membership in 2014
The primary role of the Committee is o:

» Review, recommend and moniior the
tevel ond structure of remunerction
for the Executive Directors and other
senior executives

> Approve the remuneration packages
for the Executive Direciors and
ensure that pay outcomes reflect
the performance of the Company

> Detaermine the bolonce between
base pay and performaonce related
alements of the package so as
to align Directors’ interests to those
of sharaholders.

The Committee's terms of reference are
set out on the Compony's website, As of
31 Dacember 2016, the Remuneration
Committee comprrised five independent
Non-Executive Directors.

> Elzabeth McMekan (Cormmitlee Chair)
» Phil White

» Sir Tim Wilson

» Manjit wolstenholme

¥ Andraw Jones

During the year, Pafrick Dempsey, who
joined the Board effective 1 March 2014
ondresigned effective 31 August 2016,
also served on the Remunsarotion
Committee. Cerlain axecutives, including
Richard Smith {Chief Executive],

Mark Allan (former Chief Executive]

and Ruth George {Group Peopie Direclor)
have been, from time fo time, invited

o attend meetings of the Commitiee,
ond the Company Secretory, Christopher

Szpojnorowicz, acls os secretary fo the
Cormmiltee, No individuals are involved
in decisions relating to their own
remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee met five times during the year
and details of members’ attendance ot
mestings are provided in the corporate
governance section on page 61.

Key activities of the Remuneration
Committee in 2016 included:

» Reviawed and approved the Exscutive
Directors' performance against annual
objectives and LTIP targets: delermined
banuses payable lincluding balonce
between cosh and shares), and
approved LTIP vesting

» Determined leaver treatmaent for
Mark Alan, including trectment
of outstanding incentives

» Reviewed Executive Director
remuneration following role changes
and reorganisotion of responsibilities,
and undertook consultation with
mgijor shareholders on proposed
changes o Executive Director salaries

» Confirmed treatment of Mark Allan's

incentives following end of

empioyment and reaffirmation of
dutles contained in compromise
agreement, Followed up with
shareholders surmmarising changes
mage during the year

Considered remuneration

market trends ond corporate

governance developments

> Reviewed and approved salary
increases for the Executive Directors
and senior monagament for 2017

» Detfermined the Executive Directors'
bonus and LTIP performance targets
for 2017 in line with the stralegic plan

» Reviawed and approved the
Chairman's fee

> Prepared the Directors'
Remuneration Report.

A4

Summary of shareholder voling at the 2016 AGM
The following table shows the results of the binding vote on the forward-looking Remuneration Policy and of the advisory voles on
the 2015 Annual Report on Remuneration and the amendments to the 2011 Perforrmance Share Plan ot the 2014 AGM:

Advisers

Kepler Associates, o brand of Mercer
|'Kepler’) were appointed s the
Committee'sindependent adviser
following a competitive tender process
in 2014, and were retained during the
year, The Committee undertakes due
diligence periadicatly to ansure that
Kepler remoins independent ond that
the advice provided is impartiat and
objective, Kepler i o founding member
and signatory of the Code of Conduct
for Remuneration Consultants,

details of which can be found at
www.remuneragtonconsultantsgroup.com.
In 2014 Kexpler provided independent
odvice on revisions to Unite's
Remuneration Policy, updales on the
extemal remuneration environment;
performance testing for long-term
incentive plans; and support during
the sharehokder consuliation process.
Kepler reports diractly to the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and
does nol advise the Company on any
other ssues. Their total fees for the
provision of remuneration services to
the Committee in 2016 were £44,775

on the bxasis of time and malerials.

Remuneration Annual Repott Amsndments o
Polcy on Remuneiion 2011 PSP
For {including discrationary) 184,101,530 95.9% 187.241,043 ¢9.7% 185,286,970 98.3%
A_goinsf ] 2,088,144 1% 591,183 0.3% 3.170.07% V7%
Total votes cast (excluding withheld votes) T lgs189.674 187.802.226 188.457.069
Votes withheld 300,425 657,873 33,030
Total votes cast {including withheld votes) 188,490,099 188,490,099 188,490,059
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Single folal figure of remunetation for Executive Direclors (audited)
The lable balow sets out a single figure for the totai remuneration received by each Director for the year ended 31 December 2016

and the prior year:
Richard Smith Joa Lister Richord Simpson Mork Adlan*
201 2215 201 05 206 2005 2018 2015
£ £ ¢t £ £ £ L E
Sakary 3594617 245,452 322,702 273,483 298,347 246,692 183,003 432233
Taxable benefifs? 15,256 14,084 15.854 15,268 15,236 13874 7.694 23.31%
Pension benefit? 60,863 47,336 55979 49,147 55,604 43,355 2,162 75964
Annudl Bonus* 227,083 314,579 203,385 348,742 188,802 314,579 ] 551.180
LTipss 528559 748450 S84.742 828041 528559 748451 0 1,29%9.189 o
Other’ 0 4,459 0 2.249 0 0 0 0 2
Total 1.191.378 1,375,620 1,182,682 1,516,928 1,006,568 1,366.970 222,860 2381885 f
P

' mark Alian stepped down effective 31 May 2014 ond ceased being a director of the Company om the same date He rernained employedin an
advisory capacity with the Comgpany unhl 31 October 2016. Amounts above reflect remuneration received as a fesult of his role as Cnief Execufive,
with getails of remuneration received for the period 1 June to 31 October 2016 disclosed under 'Ext payments’ sechon on page 90,

* Toxable benefits for 2016 consist pamenly of company Car or car allowance ond private health core insurance.

e higunas abave include car benehis of £14,147, £14,583, £14,167 and £7,223 for Messrs. Smith, Lister, Simpson and Allon respeciivety.

! Perwion figures include contributions to The Unite Group Personal Pension Scheme and cash allowances. where applicable.

+ paymaent for parformance during the year. Having aready reached their share ownership guidednes, each Exacutive Diractor will receive 100%
of their 2014 bonus aword in cash. Mark Alan wos not efigible for 2016 annual bonus payment, See following sections for furiher detaits.

2015 figures: LTIP awards granted in 2013, and which vested based on performance o 31 December 2015, ore volued using the marke prices o
the dole of vesiing (10 Apfil 2016} of 636p. These amaourits have been revised trom last year's report to reflect the actuail share prices on the dotes
of vesfing.

¢ 2014 figures: For the 2014 awards, the market price on the ciate of vestingis cumentty unknown and so the volue shown is estimated using the
average market value over the last quarter of 2014 of 575.9p. Mark Alan's Unvested 2014 awards lopsed on his resignation from the Compony.

S
-
T
=

Ea)

See following sections for further details, LTIP figunes alsa include cash payments in Key of dividends for vested awards. %‘
T 'Other includes the embedded value of SAYE options at grant. §
Single tatal figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (avdited) g'—
The table below sets out o single figure for the total remuneration raceived by each Non-Executive Director for the year ended &
31 Dacember 2016 and the prior year: g
Base ‘on Commiiee Chor feet SID fee fotaf =
2014 05 20% 05 20% 05 200 015
£ £ [4 £ 3 £ ¢ £
P M White 129.450 127,100 - - - - 129,650 127100
R JTWilson 45,000 44,100 6,600 6,475 - - 51,600 50,575
M Wolstenhoime 45,000 44,10G 9,350 9,150 5250 5125 59,400 58,375
A Jonhes 45,000 44,100 - - - - 45,000 44100
E McMeikan 45,000 44,100 9,350 2,150 - - 54,350 53,250
P Dempsey’ 22 500 - - — - - 22,500 -
Q
' Potrick Dempsey joined the Boord on 1 March 2016 and resigned effective 31 August 2016, duning which lime he served Qs o member of the i{
Remuneration ond Health and Safety Commitiees. g.
Remwuneration ovtcomes for the yeor ended 31 December 2015 (oudited) 531.
Base salaries ]

As foreshadowed it kast year's report, salary increases of between 6% and $% were mode with effect from 1 Morch 2006 to eoch of
Richard Smith, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson. Mark Afian received a 2% increase, cansistent with general increases for employees
acrass the Company, from the same date.

Foliowing his promotion fo CEQ, the Commitlee reviewed Richard Smith’s sakary against a range of internal and external faciors
and elected to set it at o level of £430,000 per annum effective 1 June 2016. For the other remaining Executive Diractors, Joe Lister
and Richard $impson, the Commitiaa raflectad on the intention to operate with a smaller managernent feam going forward, and
the aaditional key responsibilities taken on by each individuat. Specifically, Joe Lister will now iead investor relations and has fine
management respoensibiiity for the Corporate Affairs and Peopie diectorates, while Richard Simpsan has been fasked with heoding
up Unite's Heqlth and Safety, Maintenance and Lifecycle and Asset Managerment functions.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Considering these tignificant role changes, and mindful of the need to retain successful, experienced and weli-regarded Executive
Directors in a competitive sector, the Committes reviewed o number of alternative approaches for the rermmuneration of Joe Lister
and Richard $impson fo ensure they remain focused on delivering Unite's strategy during a period of potential instability.

Following careful consideration of the alternatives permitied within the recently approved remuneration policy. the Committee
detaermined o increase the base salaries of Joe and Richard by ¢.20% to £350,000 and £325,000 per annum respectively with effect
from 1 June 2014. In taking this deciion, the Committee noted the altemative of making exceptional LTIP awards but concluded that:

> Salary levels were the element of remuneratfion most significontly below market (particularty taking into account the additional
responsibiities), whereas iong-term incentive opportuniies, at 200% of salary. are market competitive

> Anincrease in long-term incentive opportunifies had aiready been implemented for 2016 from 150% to 200% of saiory; ond

» Mainfaining the current ratio between fixed/variable pay and short-term/long-term poy is important so as not to incenfivise
excessive risk-taking.

Details of the evolution of each Director’'s roie and saiary over the course of the yearis summarnised in the toblke befow:

Base sakary from
Bosesaiaryto 1 Morch 2016 Base sakory
28 Feonqary o3 May Percenioge fram 1 June Perceniage
Exgculive Drechor Roler 2014 2006 change 2015 chonge
MD, Operations £247,700 £270,000 %
R § Smith 59%
{3% below
Chiof Exgcutive £430000  prececessor)
11 Lister Chief Financial Officer £274,600 £291,000 &%
Chief Financial Officer+ £350,000 2%
. %
R C Simpson MD, Praperty : £247,700 £270.000
Group Propetty Director £325,000 20%
MC Allan Chief Executive E434,000 £442.480 2%
Total Board £1,204,000 £1,273.680 5.8% £1,105,000 -13.2%

Performancae related annual bonus in respect of 2016 performonce

The 2016 annual bonus consists of two elements, corporate and individual. The corporate element of the bonus is calculated ona
sliding scale up to o maximym of 120% of base salary, in accordance with which an-target performance by the Group resultsina
corperale bonus of an amount equivalent to 70% of base sakary. To determine the aclual bonus payment to an Executive DireClor,
o multiplier {being the individuat element of the scheme), ranging between zero and 1.2 is applied against the corporate bonus,

Applying the maximum individual multiplier (of 1.2), against the maximum corporate bonus (of 120% of base salory). resultsina
moximum annual performance reiated bonus opportunity of 144% of base solary. However, bonus payments at that level would
only be made subject to the achievement of extremetly strelching corporate performance targets and exceptional individual
performance by the relevant Orector. Target performance typically requires meaningful improvement on the previous year's
outturn, and for financial measures, targets are typically in line with the upper end of market consensus,

The performance related bonuses awarded in respect of 2016 reflect corporate bonuses of 62.5% of bose salary. After applying
individual muttipliers, actual performance related bonus payments awarded 1o the Executive Directors were 62.5% of their
respective base salaries (43,4% of their maximum bonus opportunities}. Further details, including the targels set and performance
against each of the metrics, are provided in the fables below:

Corporate element outcomes
Onginal performence targets
‘Threshokd' Taget’ Straeh’
s0%of 70% of 106% of 120% ot vast
Megasure Weight sakary sakxy Oy salary Actual 1% sokory)
Financial Adjusted EPS 250% 24.7p 25.7p 27220 28.2p 27.7p 27.5%
Totalreturn 250% 7vp B7p 1000 108p B3p 15.0%
per share
Net debt to 250% 6.5x &3 4.0x 5.8 6.2x 20.0%
EBITOA ratio ~
Non-finoncial  Customer 25.0% a3 84 86 87 80 o%
satisfaction

Total corporate vesting (% of salary) - 62.5%
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Individuol element outcomes g
Execufive Achigvermenis dunng the yearincluded; Personal mulhiphker

» Successful delivery of Operations and Group KPIs Covering both roles as Monaging
Director, Qperations and Group Chief Executive.

% Completed an effective fransition 1o the Group Chief Executive role, providing clear
ond valued leadership 1o the Group in the second half of the yeor.

R $ Smith » Effectively delivered a realignment of roles and responsibilities across the other two 1.0x
Execuiive Direclors cnd wider senior manggement teom ensuring the confinued
defivery against the wider Group's KPls and the retention of the Group's key talent,

» ted the evolution of the Group stratagy, focused particuiarly on the development
of our brand and earning focus.

> Successful delivery of finance related KPis and our capilal operating guidelines.
» Successful execution of the REIT conversion pion.
¥ Execution and evolution of a debt financing, fundraising and hedging strategy aliowing
JJLister the Group to toke advantoge of low interest rates while retoining cppropriate balonce 1.0x
sheot strength and flexioility.
» Embraced new areaqs of responsibility including the Group's Peopie and Communication
agenda following the management chonge in mid-year,

> AllProperty related KPls successfully delivered for the year.
» Delivery of high quolity growth through a secured development pipeline in an
increasingly competitive market.
> Oversaw product development and design innovation activitias, ollowing the Group 1.0x
fo maintain atiractive retums on new development. :
» Embroced new areas of responsibifity inciuding the Group's heaith and safety
and mainlenance and procurement agenda following the management change
in mid-year.

Iy
-
[
ey
=
3

R C Simpson

Individual objectives were updated following the changes in roles and responsibitiies, with additionai stretching goals set to test
executives in their new roles. The ratings above reflect a holistic view by the Committee of the extent to which each indiviaual has
periormed in their expanded role during the year, guided by these new objectives.

Ovarall bonus outcomas
Overall bonus outcome

Executive Corporate vesting Personal multipler (% of sakry] (%.of moximum) &

RS Smith . . 62.5% o 43.4% 227083

"1 jlister 25% 1.0x 62.5% 43.4% 203,385
R C Simpson 1.0 62.5% 43.4% 188,802

SUBLIBION [OOUBUL

The Commiltee is satisfied that the overall bonus cutcomes ore appropriate. The Company's sirong financial performance,
particulary under the adiusted EPS and net debf fo EBITDA rofio elements, is festoment fo both management and the broader
employee population, and while exacutives fall short of the stretehing customer satisfaction largets, the 2016 result still places
Unite in the upper quintile of our benchmark.

Each of the Executive Directors has been o signficant contributor o the achievernent of key business objectives, whilke continuing
1o demonsirate both strong personol progression and exceplional teamwork despite a year of significant change. The proposed
On-target individual multipliers of | .Ox reflect our satisfaction with the progress that each individual has made in their new roles and
wa witl look for this o be progressad further as wa move info 2017,

Having aready reached fheir respective share ownership guidelines, each Executive Director will receive 100% of their bonus
awards in cash.

UOYDUICIUL IBYIC
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2014 LTIP veding (vested on performance to 31 December 20146}
Awards in 2014 were made under the new LTIP, consisting of the Unite Group plc Performance Share Plan and the Unite Group plc
Approved Employee Share Option Schame. Vesting of the owards was dependent on three equally-weighted measures aver
a three-yeor performance period; tatal return per share, Earnings per share and TSR outperformance of the FTSE 350 Real Estale
Super Sector Index. There was no retest provision. Further details, inciuding vesting schedules and performance against each
of the mefrics are provided in the fable betow:

Maasure Waghhing Targets Ouicoms Vo5t %

0% vesting below 8.1 pence 27.7 pence 100%

25% vesting for 16.1 pence

100% vesting for 23.5 pence or more;
Straight-line vesting between these points

2016 Adjusted EPS 113

0% vesting below 8.5% 21.3% 100%
TR pershare p.a. n 25% vesting far 8.5%
{2014 - 201¢4) 100% vesting for 14.5% or more:
Straight-line vesting batween these points
TSR 0% vesting if Group underperforms the Index Index +10% p.a. 100%
outperformance 25% vesting for maiching the Index {55.6% raturn)
of the FTSE350 i3 100% vesting for cutperforming Index by 9% p.a.:
Reai Estate Super Straight-line vesting between these points
Sectorindex
Tatal LTIP vesting {sum product of weighting and vest %) 100%

The performance period for the each of the elaments ended on 3t December 2016. Two-thirds of awards will vest on the third
anniversary of the date of grant, with the remaining one-thirg vesting after an additional holding period of one year,

Intenests Intevesis Dove Asurmed Estmated

Executive Drecicr haid vashng % vesting vesting mariet price vohoe

R 5 Smith 86,564 846,564 10 Apr 2017 (243} £498.572
: T T o wea YT 17 Y

J JLlister 95,753 100% 95,753 10 Apri 2018 (1/3) 575.9p £551,484

R C Simpson 86,566 84,566 £498,572

In fing with regulations, the value disclosed above and in the single totat figure of remuneration table on page 85 captures the full
number of interests vesting (i.e. excluding the one-year hokling period]. As the market price on the date of vesting is unknown at the
time of reparting, the value is estimated using the overage market value over the kast guarter of 2016 of 575.9p. The actual volue ot
vesting will be trued-up in the 2017 Annual Report on Remuneration. Executives ako became entitied to cash in liew of the dividends
payable on vested LTIP shares over the three-year performance pericd. These payments arg included in the row entitled "LTIP® in the
single total figure of remuneration table an page 85, and omounted 1o £29.987. £33,258, and £29.987 for Messrs. Smith, Lister and
Simpson respectively.

Percentage change in CEQ remuneration
The lable below shows the perceniage change in CEQ remunerofion from the prior yeor compared to the averoge percenlage
change inremuneration for off employees.

The CEO's remuneration inciudes base salary, taxabie benefit and annuat bonus and for 2014 is calculated as an aggregate of the
rernuneration of Mark Allan until 31 May 2016 and of Richard Smith thereafter ([annual bonus rekates to Richard Smith fuli year]. The
pay for cll other emplayees is colculated using the increase in the earnings of fuli-time employees for tax vears 2015 and 2016. The
analysis excludes part-time employees and is bosed on a consistent sat of employess, i.e. the same individuals appedar in the 2015
and 2016 popuiations.

CEQ Al smpioysas
20 015 % change % chonge:
—_ - f i 215-16 MW15-16
Base salary 433,837 432,233 0.0% 20%
Taxabie benefits 17.07% 23,319 (24.8]% 4.4%

Annual bonus 227083 551,180 (58.8)% {58.6)%
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Relative Importance of spend on pay
The toble below shows shareholder distributions (i.e. dividends ond share buybacks] and icial employee pay expenditure for the
financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 Decembber 2014, akong with the percentage change in both.

016 08 % change

£m tm 2015-15
Total employee pay expenditure 9.2 43.7 10.31%
Distributions to sharehoiders 35.3 33.2 4£.3%

The Directors ane propasing a final dividend inrespect of the financial yeor ended 31 December 2015 0f 12 pence per ordinary
share. Employee remuneration exciudes social security costs.

Review of past pesformance
The fellowing graph charts the TSR of the Company and the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Sector Index over the eight-year period from

| January 2009 10 31 December 2016, While there is no companator index or group of companies that truly reflects the octivities of
the Group, the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Sector Index {the constituent members of which are all property holding and/or
developrment companies of real estate investment trusts within the UK), wos chosen as it reflects trends within the UK property
market generally and tends to be the index against which analysts judgae the performance of the Company. The table below
details the Chief Executive's singie figure remuneration over the same period.

Historical TSR performance
Gixevitc T#Hcpeiosenaire @y pothetical £100 holding over the 8 years fo 31 December 2016.
Growth In the value of a hypothelicol £100 holding aver the 8 years to 31 December 2014

o
3
2
3
n.
=}
g
§
Q
2009 2010 011 2012 2003 2014 2015 2006 3
M C Akan =
MCAKP  MCAln  MCAICh  MCAfn  MCaAlan  MCAkn  MCAlon R SSmith Q
CEQ single figure of £229 860 3_
remuneration (£000] £845313 £487175 £1,475577 £993,754 £1,943,734 £2987 402 £2.381,885 £1.191,378 g
STl award rates against nja
maximum opporkunity 42.0% 43.4% 75.8% 63.4% 84.0% 89.4% 88.2% 43.4%
LTt award rates against nfa
maximum oppontunity 0.0% 0.0% B82.4% 26.3% 83.1% 95.2% 100.0% 100.0%
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Scheme inferests awarded In 2015 {oudited)

Lrie

tn June 2016, Executive Direclors were granted awards under the LTIP with o maximum face value of ¢.200% of thei respective
salaries. The three-year performance period over which performance will be measured began on 1 Januory 2016 ond willend
on 31 December 2018, Any awards vesting for performance will be subject 1o an additional two-year holding period.

Shares over whch Market proe of
Expcu’va Drecior Date of gront owards granted' date of awand foce valve
R 8 Smith 134,882 £B45,248
J J Lister 23 june 2016 109,941 &41.50 £705,272
R C Simpson 102,147 £655,273

' Combinafion of HMRC approved options under the ESCS {935) and nil cost ephions under the PSP calcuiated using a share price of 641.5p. being
the ciasing mid-market price on the day the awords were calculated.

Vesting of 2016 owards is dependent on three equally-weighted measuras over a three-year performance period; total return per
share. eamings per share and TSR ouiperformance of the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Sector Index. There is no retest provision. The
Committes considers that the targets opplying under each of the performanrce megasures one na less strefching than in previous
years. Details of the vesting schedules are provided below:

Measurs Wasghling fargels L
2018 Adjusted EPS 1/3 0% vesting below 30 pence:
25% vesting for 30 pence;

100% vesting for 38 pence or more;
Siraight line vesting between these points

TR per share p.g, 1/3 0% vesting below 9% p.o.;
{2014 - 2018) 25% vesting for 9% p.a.;
100% vasting lor 15% .a. or more;
Straight line vesting between these points.

TSR outperformance of the FISE 350 Real Estate (Super 1/3 0% vasting it Group underperforms the index;
Sector] Index [2015 - 2017) 25% vesting for matching the index;
100% vesting for outperforming Index by 9% p.a.:
Srraighf-fc'ne vesting between these points.

SAYE
During the year under review, ne new SAYE awards were gronted fo the Executive Directors.

Exit payments made in the year (audited)

The terms of Mark Allan’s exit were set out inan agreement at the time he gave notice to the Company. In formalising this agreement,
the Committee sought 1o ensure that the outcomes were fair 10 sharehoiders. to the Company and to Mark Allan, kaking into account
the terms of his departure and his service to Unite aver his 17 years of employment with the Group, including almast 10 years as
Chief Executive. The agreement ako set oul some additional undertakings which included remaining with 1he business in an advisory
capacity until 31 October 2014 to support the new Chief Executive, as well as sirengthened nen-compele and non-poach arangements,
all of which were consigered to be in the interests of the Company and of our shareholders.

For the pefiod 1 June 2014 to 31 Ociober 2014, Mark Allan continued to receive base pay (£201,476), pension [£32,417) and other
contractual benefits {£7.884} totalling £241,777. He was not eligible to participate in the 2016 annual bonus and there was no
payrment in ieu of notice.

For the purposes of cutstanding long-team incentives, Mark Alan was not considered a 'good’ leaver, with the default peilicy position
dictating that al of his ouistonding awards woukl lapse upon leaving the Company, unless the Commitiee would determine otherwise.
Refiecting o number of considerations set out Deiow, the Commitiee exercised discretion to allow vesting of LTIP awards that had
already been parformance tested and were within a few days of vesting at the time he made his announcement, This use of
discretion tock into account that:

> The relevant awards wouid have ordinarily vested three days after the officiol announcement of the change in Chief Executive
{i.e. 10 April 2014}, out that Mark elecied to announce os early as possible in order 40 permit an orderly handover of his duties

> The applicable performance periods had been complated ond vesting was strong under each cycle and

» Other elements of Mark's package were minimised under the terms of the compromise ogreement. Namely no onnual bonus
would be payable in respect of 2016, and the previously announced &% salory increase would instead be kept in ine with generot
increasas across the group at 2%.
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As a result, and having honoured his obligation o remain employed with the Cempeny in an advisory copacity through 1o 3] Oclober
2014, the final third of Mark's 2012 LTIP award {which vested as fo 95.22% of maximum based on performance fo 31 December 2014}
and fhe first two-thirds of his 2013 LTIP awaord (which vested in full based on performance fo 31 December 2015} were preserved and
become capable of axercise, subjact 1o malus and clawback provisions. from 1 November 2016 and 1 April 2017 respectively —in
both cases being an increased astferral period from the original vesting date. All ather cutstanding and unvesled awards (ie. fhe
final third of his 2013 LTIP awards. and each of the 2014 and 2015 LTIP owards) lopsed following Mark's resignation. Details of the
praserved awards are inclyded in the table below:

interests Original Revised Markel pnoeg
Award Cycler vesting vasting date vesting chate an vesting Value
V2 LTP 104,7 1 Novermnber 2016 54% £574,940
2 04725 10 Aprd 2016 P
203UP 131.209 1 Aprk 2017 575.9p' £755,633

T As the market price on the aate of vesting s unknown at the tirme of reporting, the value i estimoted using the average maorket volue over the lost
quarter of 2016 of 575.9 pence.

TdAO

Paymenls to past directors (audited)
save for Mark Allan's remuneration detailed above, there wera no further payments 1o past directors during the yeor.

LR T

impftementation of Executive Olrector remuneration policy for 2017
Base salary
The Committee has approved the following sakary increases with effect from 1 March 2017:

<
)
=
'

Base salary from Base solory from

1lune 20151028 1 MachZn?028 Parcentage

Executive Drector February 2017 Fabruary 2018 Niyoose

R § Smith £430.000 £438,600 %

J JLister £350,000 £357,000 %

R C Simpsaon £325000 £331.500 2%
o
Proposed salary increases are consistent with the average increqse applied across the Group [c.2%). ?,
4
Pension z
Executive Directors will continue 1o receive a pension contribution of up to 20% of salary or an equivaient cash allowance, I
Performance related annual bonus §-

Corporate
—— o _frecmres W&

Financial [75%) Adjusted EPS 250%

Total retum per shore 250%

Net debi to EBITDA rotio 250%

Non-financial (25%) Custorner satisfaction 12.5%

University Repulgtion 12.5%

The performance reloted onnual bonus for the 2017 financial year wilk operote on troadly the same basis s in 2016, The Commiittee

has approved an unchanged maximum bonus opportunity for each executive of 144% of salary, consisting of a maximum of 120% g
of salary under the 'corporate’ element and @ maximum individua! multilier of 1,2x, []
s
For 2017, the ‘corporafe’ elerment of the annual bhonus will confinue o be based on ¢ combination of finoncial and non-financial g
measures, wesghted 75% and 25% respectively. The Commitiee intends to supplement customer satistaction with a measure based a
on University Reputation, with each weighted 12.5%. The inclusion of University Reputation recognises the equal importance of g

Unite's relationships with Higher Education partners, iogether with the opinions of our student cusiomers directly, and hos been used
as an operational KPI for a number of years. it is also intended that the majority of 2017 objectives under the individual performance
multiplier will be shared across each of the Executive Direciors. Proposed target levels hove been set 10 be challenging relofive

1o business plan, although specific targets are deemed to be commercially sensitive af this fime. it is the Committee’s current
infention fo disciose these fargets. and the key achievermenis by eoch Execuflve Diector, retrospectively in the 2017 Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Annuol bonuses witl confinue fo be paid in cash, uniess the recipient has not met their shareholding guidatines, in which case up
1o 50% of the amaunt payable will be satisfied by an allocation of shares in the Company. deferred for three yeors, Clawback and
malus provisions apply to all awards.
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For 2017, the LTiP will continue to operate broadly on the same basis asin the 2014 financial year. The Committee. having considered
the performance of the Company and other relevant factors, intends that Executive Directors will each receive an award
aquivaient to o maximum of 200% of salary delivered through a combination of the PSP and ESOS, with the final leved of vesting
dependent on the achievement of three-year performance targets refating to EPS, TR ond TSR, as follows:

Meaasure WwWeghting Torgets
2019 Adjusted eamings Y3 0% vesting below 36 pence
per share {EP3S) 25% vesting for 36 pence

100% vesting for 42 pence or morne;
Straight line vesting between these points

Tolal return (TR| per share 173 0% vesting below 7% p.a.

p-a. (2017 = 2019) 25% vesting for 7% p.a.
100% vesting for 13% p.Q. of more;
Straight line vesting batween these points

TSR outperformance ofthe  1/3 0% vesiing it Group underperforms the Index
FTSE 350 Real Estate Super 25% vesting for malching the Index
Sectorindex (2017 - 2019) 100% vesting for outperforming Index by 9% p.Q.

Straight ine vesting between these points

Targets have been set with reference to internal and external reference paints, including our strategic plan and broker consensus
esfimates. and are designed 1o be sfretching buf achievabie for parficipants. Full vesting urnder each elerent will require continued
exceptional performance over the naxt three years. Any awards vesting for performance will be subject to an cdditional two-year
holding period, during which time clawbock provisions will also apply. Further details of the grant date ond number of interests
awarded will be disciosed in the 2017 Annual Report on Remuneration,

Implementation of Non-Execulive Direclor Remuneration Policy tor 2017

Chalman ond Non-Executive Director Fees

Buring the final quarter of 2014, the Board undertook its annual review of Non-Executive Director fees. Following consideration of
solary incregses across the Group and indicative fee increasas at secior and FTSE comparators, the Board defermined that the
Hasic fee shovld be increasad from £45,000 p.a. fo £45,900 p.a. and that oddifionat fees should be increased by a similar rate,

in both cases being broadly in line with increases for the broader employee population.

In respect of the Chairmnan of the Board, Phil White, the Committee determined that with the new executive leadership structure
now in place, and given the significont increase in the size of the Company in recent years, the timing was appropriate to undertake
@ full morket assessment of the Chainman rote. Having considered a number of reference points, including data for sector and size
comparators and time cormmitment, the Commitiee recommended an increase in the fee payable to the Chairman to £185,000 p.a.
which will position him around lower quarfile against the blended market assessment. The Commitiee considers this increase
appropriate given Phil's significant experience and leadership of the Company over his tenure to date.

A summary of the fee increases, which are effective 1 January 2017, is sat out in the table bealow.

Position 2015 fmes 2018 foes 2017 twers

Base lees

Chairman 7 £127,100 £129.650 £185,000

Non-Executive Director £44,100 E45,000 £45,900

Addifional lees

Senior Independent Direcior £5,125 £5,250 £5,400

Audit Committee Chair B £9,150 £9,350 £9.550

Rem unercﬁ_o n Committee Chair £9,150 £9.350 £9,550
_ Nomination Committae Chajir n/a n/a n/a

Health and Safety Committae Chair £6,475 £4,600 £6,750

' As Chairman of the Baard. Mr 'White does notf receive any odditional fee in respect of chairing this Committes.
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Directors’ nferests (audited)

Qrdindry Shares  Orciinary Shares

ot 25p each of ot 25pecchat

31 Decernber 31 Cacamber

2016 w15

R $ Smith 166,346 81,313
4 Lister 410,936 430,981
R C Simpson 159026 75,625
P M White . _¥1 D,_'?SZ‘ o 10,92
R 1T Wilson e 6275 6,275
M Wolstenhalme e 7,995 7.995
A Jones 15,000 15,000
E McMaikan 5,000 5.000

A table setting out the beneficial interests of the Directors and their families in the share capital of the Company as al 31 Decamber
2014 is sat out to the right.

Nane of the Direciors has o beneficial interest in the shares of any other Group compony. Since 31 December 2016, there have been
no changes in fhe Direcfors” inferests in shares.

Details of Direclors' share options are set out in the lables below.

Share price information
As at 31 December 2015 the middie market price for ordinary shares in the Company was 605p per share. During the course of the
yaar, the market price of the Company's shares ranged from 543.5p 1o 663.5p per ordinory share,

Executive Directors’ shareholding requirements (oudited)
The table helow shows the shareholding of @ach Executive Director against ther respective shareholding requirement as at
31 December 2016:

Intenests
Sumect to  Unvested and/or Sharshoding Curent
Owned celro/hokding subyect 10 port. recuirement® shareholding % Requrerment
outnght penod condiions solaryflee solary ffee’ met®
R § Smith 184,346 99,249 286,827 250% Koy Yes
J JLister 410,934 41,827 277,788 200% 750% Yes
R C Simpson 159.026 70.088 253,892 200% 3646% Yos
P M White 10,952 51%
R 4 Twilson 8,275 85%
M Walstenholme T Trsss 108%
AlJones 13,000 202%
E McMeikan 5,000 57%

' Includes shares subject 1o a holding penod under the 2013 LTIP and defemed bonus shares, where opphcable.

2 Based on share price as at 31 December 2016 of 504p. Shares subject to defemalfholding penods are taken on a 'net of lox’ bass for the purposes
of the current shareholding calculation.

3 As of the date that he stepped aown from the Soard, Mark Allan nod exceeded the applicable shatehoiding guideine of 250% of salary.
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Directors’ interesis in shares and options under Unite incentives (audited)

Deferred bonus
Intensls heid Infenasts heta ot
ab ) Jonuary Gronled during  Marke! pnoe per Intenests veshed nterests Kpsed 31 December DBetamal
Expcutive W6 the: yaar share of grant dunng the yeor during tha year 2016 penog
R C Simpson 0,790 - 31000 30,790 - - 07.03.13
-0603.16
32,277 - 44200 - - 2277 0703.14
-D6.03.17
43,087 - - 30,790 - 32277 -
R 3 Smith 33.869 - 310.00 33,869 - - 070313
-D603.14
32,277 - 442.0p - - 32277 07.03.14
-0603.17
29,161 - 533.50 - - 22,186} 240215
-230218
95.307 - - 33,849 - 41,428 -
LTiP awarcds
OQutstanging at
Inlerests aworded 31 DeCember
during the yeaor 2014 {ordincary
{odinaryshones  Markst pace per Inlerass vestad shores of 250 Perod of
Interasts heikd  of 25p sachin the shargwhen  fof parformancs Intarasts \opesd aachinthe qualtying
Exacutive at0lp! 18 Corngxany| aworded dunng the ysor dunrg thes yeor Cotnparty) conditions
JJ Lister 125,482 - 319.0n 125,482 - - 100413
- 100416
95.753 - 428.6p - - 25,753 100414
: _ _ -1004.17
72074 - 583.5p - - 72,094 020415
-0204.18
- 109,941 641.50 - - 109,941 230616
- 23069
293329 109,941 - 125,482 - 277.788 -
R C Simpson 113,432 - 31900 113432 - - 100413
~ 100414
84,566 - 428.6p - - 86,566 1004.14
~10.04.37
85,179 - 583.5p - - 65.179 0204.15
~{204.18
- 102,147 441,50 - - 102,147 230616
- I ~ 23069
285177 102,147 - 113432 - 253,892 -
R S Smith 113,432 - 319.0p 113,432' - - 100413
- 100416
84,566 - 428.6p - - 86,566 100414
~1004.17
45179 - 583.5p - - 65,179 0204.15
-Q204.18
- 134,882 641.5p - - 134,882 230614
- 2304.1%
265177 134,882 - 113,432 - 286,627 -

' One-third of awards vested for performance ore subject to on additional one-year holding period, i.e. 41,827, 37,811 and 37,811 shores In respect
of Messrs. Lister, Simpson and Smith respactively,
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Ophons neid Options heid ot
al | January Gronted cunng Exercsad Option pnce 3] Dacember
Executive 2016 the year during the ysar per share 216 Malunty dote
. 7.299 - - 205.5p 7.29%9 011217
JJ Lister
- 1,708 - 527.& 1,705 011218
R C Simpsen 5216 - - 345810 5214 011217
R § Smith ~ 3411 — 527.60 3411 01,1218

The highast, lowest and clasing share prices for 2016 are shown on page 93.

Detaits of the qualitying performance conditions. in relation to the above referred to awards made in 2014 and in 2016, are set out
earlier in this report. Those delails should also be taken as farming port of the ‘cuditable port® of this report. Details of performance
condifions cpplying to the 2015 awards were set out in the 2015 Directors’ Remuneration Report.

BRI S F L. [

Awards made in 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 took the form of o combination of nil cost opfions under the PSP and HMRC approved
options under the ESOS. No varniations have been made io the terms or conditions of any awards.

The fair value in respect of Direclors’ share options and LTIP awards recognised in fre Income Stafement is as follows:

)
e
=3
i3
i

s 015
Execulve t 4
J | Lister 312,135 415856
R C Simpsaon JI7 A7 429954
R S Smith 407,570 470354
M C Alian (469,737) 654775
The Directors’ Remuneration Report hos been opproved by the Remuneration Committee and signed on its behalf by: Zé‘
2
Elizabeth McMelkan 8-
Chalir, Remyneration Commitiee g
22 february 2017 &
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

As at 22 Februory 2017 the Company had
received notifications from the following
companies and institutions of the voting
interesis of themselves and thelr Clients in
3% or move of the issuved ordinary share
capital of the Company.

Percaniage
of Share
Shorencides Copal
BlackRock Inc 8.01
APG Asset Management NV 636
Cohen & SteersInc 438
Aberdeen Asset
Managerment Group 3595
COid Mutual pic 379
Rovallondon
Asset Management 360
Irvesco Lid 3.50
Principal Finoncial Group 331
Norges Bank
3.09

Investment Management
-—

Share caplial

At the date of this report, theme are
222,048,787 ordinary shares of 25p eoch in
issue, all of which are fully paid-up and
quoied on the London Stock Exchange.

During the year and through to the date
of this report, a total of 45,408 ordinary
shares of 25p each were olictted and
#sued pursuont 1o the exercise of options
under the Unite Group plc Savings
Related Share Opfion Scheme ond

a total of 72,468 ordmnary shares of 25p
each were allotted and issued pursuant
1o the exercise of aptions under the
Approved Scheme.

The rights attaching to the Company’s
ordinary shares, as well as the powers of
the Company's Direclors, ore set oulin
the Company's arlicles of association.

Thers are no restrictions on the tronsfer

or voting rights of ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company {other than those
which moy be imposed by low kom time
to time or as set out in the Company’s
articles of association).

In accordance with the Market Abuse
Regulations, certain employees are
required fo seek approvol to dealin
the Company’s shares.

The Company is not aware of any
agreements between sharehoklers thot
may result in restrictions on the transfers of
securities and/or vofing rights, No person
holds securities in the Company carrying
special rights with regard to control of the
Company. Unless expressly specified to
the contrary, the Company’s articles of
associction may be amended by speciol
resolution of the sharehalders.

Change of control

Ail of the Compony's share schemes
coniain provisions relating o a change

of control. Outstanding rewards and
options would normolty vest and become
exercisable on a chonge of control, subject
to the satisfaction of any performaonce
conditions. Other than certain of the
Group's banking facilities, there are no
other significant ggreements to which the
Company is a parly that affec, alter or
terminate upon a change of controt of
the Company following a tokeover bid.
Nor are there any agreements batween
the Company and its Directaors ar
employees providing for compensation
for toss of office or employment that
occurs because of a takeover bid.
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Following a change of control of the
Company. the convertible bonds issued
by Unite Jersey Issuer Limited and
announced on 3 Octobar 2014 become
redeemable and/or convertible into
ordingry shares of the Company (at the
option of the holder).

The Directors have no aouthority to buyback
the Company's shares.

Detals of proposals to be put 1o the Annual
Generai Meeting in relation to the power
of Directors to issue shares in the Company
are set out under the heading 'Annual
General Meeting'.

Going concern and

viability statement

The going concarn statement and
viability staternent is set out on pages 65
and 25 respectively and i incorporated
into this Direclors’ Report by reference.

Disclosure of information

o avditors

The Directors who held office af the
date of approval of the Directors’ Report
confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant qudit
information of which the Company's
auditor is unaware; and gach Director
has taken all the steps 1hat he gught to
have taken ¢s a Director to make himself
aware of any retevant audif information
and {0 astablish that the Company's
auditors are aware of that information.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Compaony has procedures in place
for managing conflicts of interest, A
Drector is 1o notify the Chairmnan {and
the Chairman notifias the Chief Executive)
if they become aware that they, or any
of their connected parties. may have

an interest in an existing or proposed
transaction with the Company or the
Group. Directors have a confinuing duty
{o update any changes to these conkiicts.

Political donations
No political donations were made during
the yeor ending 2016.
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Other information

Incorparated by relerence
The fallowing information in the Strategic
Report is incorporated into this Directors’

Report by reference:

Results and dividend Poge !
Post balance sheetevents Page 109
Greenhouse gos emissions  Poge 47
Financial Instruments and

financiai risk manogement  Page 29
Employrment of disobled
persons/Ernployee

involvement Page 46

The Corporote Governance Siatament
on poges 501c 95 ond the Statement of
Directors’ responsibilities on page 99 are
incorporated into this Directors’ Report
by raferance.

Management Report

This Directors’ Report fogether with the:
strategic report ana other sections from
{he annual report forms the Manggement
Report for the purposes of DIR 4.1.8R.

Annual General Meeling

The Annual General Meseting of the
Compaony will be held at 3 Rivergate,
Tempie Quay. Bristol BS1 $GD, at 10.00 om
on 11 May 2017. Formol nolice of the
meeting is given on pages 135 to 159,

Resolution 14:

Authority to gllot shores

In addition to the ordinary business of the
mesting. Resolution 14 will be proposed
as an ordinary resolution to grant the
Directors authority to allot shares in the
Company, and grant rights to sybscribe
for of to convert ony security info shores
of the Company. up o an oggregate
nominal value of £18,505,732 (representing
approximately one third of the issued
share capital of the Company as of the
date of this report). In occordance with
guidelines issued by the Investment
Associafion, this resolufion also grants the
Direclors quthority to allot further equity
securities up to an aggregate nominal
vaiue of £18,508,732. again representing
approximataly one third of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this repart.
This additional auihority may only be
applied to fully pre-emptive rights issues.

Resolutions 15 and 14:
Disapplication of pre-emption
rights resolulions

If the Directors wish fo ailot new shares
and other equity securities for cash (other
than in connection with an employee
share schema), company law requires
that these shares are offered first to the
shareholders, in proporfion fo iheir existing
hoidings. The DirecClors consider if gesioble
o have the maxirmum flexidiiity permitted
by corporate governance guidelines

to raspond fo market developments

and to enable allotments to take place
o finonce business opportunities without
making a pre-emptive offer fo existing
shareholders. This connot be done under
the Companies 2006 ACt uniess the
shareholders have first waived their
pra-amption rights, The purposé of
Resolutions 15 and 16 (logether the
‘disapplication of pre-empfions rights
resoiutions’] s fo enabie sharehoiders

1o 50 woive their pre-emption rights,

Resolution 15 authorises the Directors to
ot new shares pursuant 1o the outhornty
given by Resolution 14 {the oliotrment
resclution) for cash:

{a} In connection with a rights issue
or pre-emplive issue; and/or

{b} Otherwise up fo a hominal value
of £2,775,859, equivalent fo
approximately 5% of the total
issued ordinary share capital of
the Cormpany as at the date of this
repor, in each case without the
shares first baing offered to existing
shareholders in proporfion fo their
existing holdings.

Resolution 14 additionally authorises the
Directors to allot new snares for cash,
without the shares first being offered to
existing shareholkders in proportion fo their
existing hokiings, in connection with the
finoncing |or refinancing, if the outhority
5 to be ysed within six months after the
origing! transaction) of an acquisition

or specified copital investment which

is annouhced contemporanecusly with
he aliotment or which has taken ploce
in the preceding six-month period and

is disclosed in the announcerment of the
alictment. The cuthority under Resolution
14 is fimited to a nominal value of
£2,775.859, equivalent o gpproximately
5% of the nominal value of the ordinary
share capital of the Company inissue

as af the date of this report.

7

Taken together, thase disopplication of
pre-emption rights resolutions will oliow
the Directors fo issye new shares for
cash withgut offering the shares first

1o existing shareholders in proportion to
their existing holdings under the
following circumstances:

» In conneciion with a rights issue or
other pre-emptive issue, with g nominal
volue equivalent to fwo-thirds of the
presant issued share capital {which will
allow the Directors 1o make exclusions
or such other arrangements as may be
appropriate ta resoive legal or
practical problems which, for exarnple,
might arise with overseas shareholders);

¥ Fot any ofher purpose, with Q nomingl

volue equivalent 10 5% of the prasent
ssued share capitat and

In connection with the finanging

or refinancing of an acquisition or

specified capital investiment which is

announced Contermporaneously with
the alfotment or which has taken place
in ther preceding six-month period and

s disclosed in the announcement of

thea aliotment, with a nominal value

equivaient o 5% of the present issued
share copital but subject to an

overoll aggregate imit equivalent

to two-thids of the present issued

shore capital,

v

The Directors intend tc adheare 1o the
provisions in the Pre-Emption Group's
Statermsnt of Principles, as updated in
March 2015, and not o allot shares for
cash on a non-pre-amptive basis
pursuant 1o the authority in Resolution 15
either in excess of an amaeunt equaito 5%
of the fofal issued ordinary share capital
of the Company or in excess of on
amount equal to 7.5% of the total issued
ordinary share copital of the Company
within a rolling three-year peniod, without
prior consultation with shareholdars.
Even though adherence to the principtes
would nof preciude issuances under the
outhority sought under Rasolution 16, 1he
Directors cumenily do not intend to use
such authority without prior consultation
with leading shareholdars,

The aliotment and the disapplication

of pre-emption rights resolutions comply
with the Share Copita) Management
Guidelines issued by the iInvestment
Association in July 2016 and the
disapplication of pre-emption rights
resolutions follow the resoiution templates
issued by the Pre-Empfion Group in

May 2016,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED

if the resolutions are passed, the authorilies
will expire at the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company
of, if earfier, 10 August 2018, this being the
date 15 months from the passing of the
resolutions, whichever is the earfier.

Resolytion 17:

Amend Arlicle 94 (Directors' fees)
of the Articles of Assaciation
Resolution 17 is a proposal o amend
Article 94 of the Articles of Association

to increcse the limit on Directors’ service
fees (as distinct from solary, remuneration
and other poyments 10 the executive
directors} from the current £500,000 to
£750,000 per annum. This iy 10 allow the
Company some headroom in relation to
ony further appointrments Gf Non-Executive
Directors orincreasesin Directors’ fees.
There is no current intention to utilise the
proposed increased fimit and the level of
fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors
will continue to be monitored by the
Board, which intends that aif such fees
should be in line with market practice,

Resolution 18:

Nofice of General Meetings

The Companies (Shareholders' Rights)
Regulations 2009 (the Shareholders'
Rights Regulations}, increased the notice
petiod for general meetings of the
Company fo 21 days unless sharehcliders
approve a shorter notice period, which
cannot be less than 14 cleardays. At the
annual general meeting of the Company
held in 2015, sharenolders authorised the
caling of general meetings. other than
an annual general meeting, on not less
than 14 clear days' notice, Resoltution 18
seeks the approval of shareholders to
renew the authority to be able to call
general meetings (ather than an annual
general meeting) on 14 clear days’
notice, The flexibility offered by Resolution
18 wil be used where, taking inlc cccount
the circumstances, the Directors consider
this appropriale in relation to the business
of the meeting and in the interests of the
Company and shareholders as a whole.
Tha Company undertakes to meet the
requiremnents for electronic voting under
the Shareholders' Rights Regulations
betfore caliing o general meeting on 14
clecr days' notice. If given, the cpproval
will be effective until the Company's

next annual general meeting. when it is
intended that a similar resclution will

be proposed.

By order of the Board
Christopher Szpojnorowicz

Company Secretary
22 February 2017
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and Accounts and the
Group and parent company financial
staternents in aCeondance with appicabie
law and ragulations.

Company law requires the Directors

to prepare Group and porent company
financial stalements for each financial
year. Under that iow they are raquired to
praparg the Group financial staternents
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the EU) and opplicoble low ond have
elected fo prepare the parent company
financial statements on the same basis.

Under company iaw, the Orectors must
not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give

a true andg fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and parent company and
of their prafit orloss for thot perioa.

in preparing eoch of the Group and
porent company financial statements,
the Dirgctors are required ka:

» Sedect suitabie accounting poiicies
and then apgly therm consistentty

» Make judgments and estimates that
are regsonable and prudent

> State whether they have been prepaned
in accordance with IFRSs as adopled
by the EU

» Prapare the fingncial statements on
the going concern basis unkess it is
inappropricie to presume thaot the
Group and the parent company
will continue in business.

The Direciors ane responsibie for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the parent
company's transactions and disclose with
reascnable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the parent company
and enable thern to ansure that its
finoncial sioterments comply with the
Companies Act 20046, They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are
reqsonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to pravent
and detect troud and other imegularities,

Under applicoble iaw and regulations,
the Directors are also responsible for
preporing o Directors’ Report, Directors
Remuneration Repaort and Corporte
Govemnance Statement thot comply
with that low and those reguliations.

The Direciors are responsivle for the
raimenance and integrity of the
comporate and financial informaticon
inciuded on the Company's website.
Legisiation in the UK goveming the
preporation and dissemination of
firancial statements may differ from
legisiation in other jurisdictions.

Each of the Directors, the name of whom
are set out on poges 54 and 55, confirms
that o the best of his or her knowledge:

» The Annual Report and accounts taken
as a whola is fair, balanced and
understondabie and provides the
information necessary for sharehaiders
to assess the Company's position
and performance, business model
ond strotegy

» The financiol statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standords, give o true and
fair view of the assets, kabilities,
fimancial position and profit and loss
of the Company ond the undertakings
included in the consalidation taken
as a whole

> The Directors' Report includes

a fair review of the developmeni
and performance of the business
and the pasition of the issuer and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the
principalrisks and uncertainties that
they focs.

R Smith J Lister
Dlirector Director
22 February 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

Opinion on financial stalements of The Unite Group plc
Our opinlon on the financial statements is unmodified

In owr opinion:

> the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's ond of the parent company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2016 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

> the Group financial statemenis have been praperly prepared in accordance with Interngtional Financial Reporting
Slandards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

> the parent company financial statements have been property prepored in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
Ewropean Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and

> the financial siaternents have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compaoanies Act 2006 and,
os regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The financial statements comiprise the Consolidated and Company balance sheets, the Consolidated income statement, the
Consoldated statement of comprehensive income, the Consokdated and Company slatement of changes in shareholdens’ equity,
the Consofidated and Company statements of cash flows and the relkated notes. The financial reporting framework that has been
appied in ther preparation s appicable kaw and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company
financiol staterments. as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Going concem and the diectors’ assessment of the principal fisks thaf would tiweaten the solvency

or quidity of the Group

As required Dy the Listing Rules we have reviewad the direciors' statement regarding the appropsiateness of the going concesn basis
of accounting contained within the Regulkatory disclosures section of the Govemance report to the financial staterments and the
drectors’ statement on the longer-term viabiity of the Group contained within the strategic report on page 25.

We have nothing material lo add or drgw attention 1o in relation to:

> the directors’ confrmation on page 99 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group. including thase thot would threaten its business model, fufure performance. solvency of quidify;

> the disclosures on pages 24 1o 29 that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated:

> the directors' statement in section 1 to the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate 1o adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and ther identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's
ability to confinue ta do so over @ period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements:

> the director's explanofion on page 9% as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they
have done 50 and why they consider that period to be approapriate, ond their statement as to whether they have a
reasanable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its iabilities as they fall due over
the period ot thair assessment, including any related disciosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications
or assumptions.

Wea agreed with the drectors’ adoption of the going concem basis of accounting and we did not identify any such material
uncertainfies. However, because not alt future events or conditions can be predicled, this stalement is not a guarantee as to the
Group's ability to continue as a going concem,

Independence

We are required 1o comply with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standards for Auditors and we confirm that we are
independent of the Group and we have fulfiled our other ethical resporsibiliies in accordance with thase standards. We also confrm
we have not provided any of the prohibited non-Qudit services referred to in those standards.

Qur assessment of risks of material misstalement
The assessed risks of materal misstatemeant described below are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy,
the aliocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement teom.

Last yaar our report ncluded a risk around the recognition of deferred tax assets, which & not included in our report this year. We have
identified @ new risk relating to the impact of the Group becoming a REIT on 1 January 2017 as the REIT fransition has had a significant
mpact on the measurement and presentation of defered tax assets and liobifities.

The: description of risks below shoukd be read in conjunclion with the significant issues considered by the Audit Committee discussed
on page 56.

Thase matters weave oddressed in the context of our gudit of the financial statements 0s 0 whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we dG not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Risk: invesiment and development property valualion (£2,2746.4 milion)

The Group's principol assets are investment propertias and investment properties under development that are either owned on
bakance sheet or through the investments that the Group holds in LSAV and USAF. The investment properdies are caried at far value
based on an appraisal by the Group's independent externail valuers who Comy out the valuations at si-monthly intervals for the Graup
n accorgance with the Royal Institytion of Chartered Surveyors Valuation ~ Professional Standards {the 'Red Book'), taking into
account fransactional evidence during the yeor.

Management conduct @ detailed exercise in the assessment of the valuafion of the Group's property portfolio. The valuation of these
properiies 5 underpinned by a nurber of judgements and assurmplions, such as properly yields, rental growth, occupancy and
property management costs. A small change in these assumptions could have a significant impact on the valuation of properties
and, with respect 10 the valuation of the USAF properties, could ako have a signfficant impact on a key input to the calculation of
the performance fee recognised for the yeor anded 31 December 2076 as this & based on the nef asset value of the fund.

With regards to the investrent properties under development, additionol judgement is required to forecast discounted cash fiows
with a deduction for construction costs fo complete.

Refer to Section 3.1 Wholy owned property ossets

How the scope of our audit responded fo the risk
We performed testing on the property valuations and critically assessed the judgements and estirnates that had been made.
This work included:

» Understanding and documenting the underlying business process and then evaluating the design, determining
implemenfation and testing operofing effectivenass of the relevant controls:

>  Understanding and challenging the assumpticns taken in relation 1o key drivars such as rental income and growith,
occupancy, Yields and cosls with reference 1o the frends at the end of the yeor and the following yeor's budget and
Group's strategic plan;

>  Meeling with the Groyp’s valuets fo understand the assumptions being taken and consistency of the judgements
with prior yaar:

> Working with aur valuation specialists within cur Deloitte Real Estate team to validate the assumptions used against
market da‘a;

> Assessing the Group's development apprakal process through meeting with the development team and assessing
the forecost cost o complete against budget aond substontive testing of costs incumed to dote: ond

> Use of dota analytic tools to determineg whether there were any anomalies in the valuation spreadsheet data sent
to the valuers.

Key observations
We are sotisfied with the approach and methodology adopted in voling the property partfolio and consider the vatafions to be
suitable for inchusion in the financial statements ot 31 December 201 6.

Risk: accounfing for joint ventures (£692.9 million)

A significant proportion of the Group's assets are hekd within USAF and LSAV which are jointly owned entities that are accounted for
as joint ventures, At 31 December 2014 Unite had a 23% awnership in USAF and 50% ownership in LSAV, and acts as manager of both
joint vanture vehiclas,

Due 1o the complexity of the contractual arangements, and the Group's role as manager of the joint venture vehicles, the
assessment of control involves judgements around o number of significant factons, parficukarty with regards to USAF given thatitisa
multHnvestor fund and the Unite ownership stake is subject to change. In accordonce with iIFRS 10, there is a need to ossess control
with regards 1o the abiity to drect refevant acfivities, have exposure 1o variabie returns and the ability to use power to offect refums
ot eoch reporting pericd.

Refer to Section 3.4: Investments in joint ventures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

CONTINUED

How the scope of our audil responded to the risk

Qur audit procedures on this area focussed on assessing the activiies of the businasses, understanding the confractual aogreements
in place and idenfifying the methodoiogy applied by management in reaching their business decisions in order to consider the
appropriateness of the ckassification of these arangements as joint ventures in accordance with the requirements of IRRS 10.

With regards to both USAF and LSAV, we have:

> Understood and documeanted the underlying business process and evaluated the design. determined impiementation
and tested operating effectiveness of the relevant controls;

> critically assessed the key activities and how they impoct the retumns to the Group from the funds ond challenged
Management's own consideration of these factors in their appiication of IFRS 10: and

> gssessed the Group's monitoring of ifs role and the three key factors ralating to control and its exercise in accordance
with the judgement required under IFRS 10.

Given the parficular focus on USAF, we have:

> assassed the role of the USAF Advisory Committee (which represents the interests of all unitholders) an an on-going basis,
including obtaining evidence as to how it has cared out its duties and evaluated where decisions were faken that did
not involve the Commiltee as to indications of the ability of the Group to exercise control; and

> crifically evaluated the impact of the percentage ownership on a regular basis.

Key observafions

There has been no change to the structure and underlying assumptions on determination of control of USAF and LSAV in the
period and the role played by Unile as investor and asset/development monager.

We consider the fraatment as joint ventures 1o be appropriate.

Risic: RENT fransifion

The Group possesses significant potential defered tax liabilities in relation to future gains on investiment propertias and unit trusts
and also significant potential deferred tax assels in respect of tax losses. The recognition of both ligbiities and assets depend
on an assessment of forecast taxoble profits, forecasts themselves primarily dependent on the conversion to REIT status on

1 lanuory 2017, The recognition of both deferred fax assets and fiabilifies in this perod therefore involves judgements regarding
their appropriate freatment on REIT conversion and assessment of the certainly of conversion and ongoing maintenance of
REIT status.

Refer to Section 2.5: Tax

How the scope of our audlt responded to the risk
Our audit procedures included:

> Understanding and documenting the underlying business process and then evaluating fhe design, determining
implementation and testing operating effectiveness of the relevani confrols;

> working closely with our tax audit specialist team, including newty introduced REIT specialists, 1o ensure that the key
judgemsnts relating to REIT transition are understood:

> considering the clarity and presentation of the Group's disclosures of its tax baiances and effective tax rate reconciliation:
and

> testing the Group's curent and forecast compliance with the REIT regime rules.

Key observalions

We are satisfied with Management's assessment of the impact of REIT conversion on the deferred tax position of the Group and agree
with the resulting credit of £39.8m on the derecognition of deferred tax previously recognised on revaluation of investrment properfies,
accelerated capital gliowances and property business tax losses. We consider the presantation of the discicsures of the fax balances
and effective tox rate reconciiation to be appropnate,
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Our appilication of materiality

Wwe define materiality as the magnitude of misstaternent in the financial statements that makes it probabie that the economic
deckions of a reasonably knowledgeabie person woukd be changed of influenced. We use materialty both in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evoluating the resulis of our work.

we detemnined materiality for the group to be £i14.8 milion (2015: £9.3 million], whichis 1.0% of net assets {2015: 1% of net assets).

In cadition to net assets, we consider the EPRA earnings measure to be a crifical financial performance measure for the Group and
we have gpplied a lower threshold of £3.0 milion (2015: £3.1 milfion] based on 5% of EPRA earnings (2015: 5% of EPRA eamings) for
testing of revenue, cost of saies, operafing expenses, loan interest and similar charges, finance income, share of joint venture profit
and toxation,

We agreed with the Audit Comyritiee that we woukd report 1o the Commiittee off audit differences in excess of £153.000 (2015:
£186.000}. as well as differences below that threshold 1hat, in our view, waranted reponing on qualitative grounds. We alsc frepart
o the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.,

An overview of the scope of our audii

O group oudit was scoped by obtaining an understonding of the Group and its envionment, including Group-wide controls, and
assessing the risks of malericl misstaterment at the Group level, The Group is audited by one audit team, led by he Senior Statutory
Auditor. The qudit is performed centrally, as the bocks and records for each entity within the Group are rmantained at head office.
We also fested the consolidafion process and camed cut analyfical procedures to confim our conclusion that there were no
sigrificant risks of moleriol misstoternent of the aggregated financial information. We audit ab of the Group's subsidiaries and joint
ventures which are subject o audit at statutory materiality level, which in rmany cases is substaniialy lower than Group rnateriality”.

Opinion on other matfers prescribed by the Companies Act 2004

In Gur apirion:

sounueACl BiIod0D

> the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006; and
> the information given in the Strotegic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial stotements.

Matlers on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we ore required 1o report Yo you ¥, in ouwr opinion:

> we have notf received all the information and expianations we reguire for our audit, or

>  adequate accounting records have not been kapt by the parent company, or returns adequate for our qudit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

> the parent company financial siatements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retuens.

We have nothing o report in respect of these raters.

Direclors’' remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are abo required o report if in our opinion certoin discioswes of direcfors’ remuneration have not
been moade or the part of the Directors’ Remunerotion Report to be audited i not in ogreerment with the cccounting records ond
returns. We have nothing to report arising from these matters.

Corporate Govemance Statement
Under the Listing Rules we are obso reqguired o review port of the Comporate Governgnce Stotement relating to the company’s
compliance with certain provisions of the UK Corparate Govemance Code. We have nothing to report arising from our review.

Q
3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY
CONTINUED

Qur duly to read other information in the Annual Report
Under Infernational Standards on Audifing (UK and fetand), we are required 1o report to you if, in our opinion, nformation in the
annual report is:

> materally inconsistent with the informaotion in the audited financial statements: or

> appurently materally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group acquired in the
course of perfarming our audit: or

> otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsktencias between our knowledge acaured during
the audit and the drectors' statement that they consider the annual report is far, balanced and understandable ond whether the
annual report appropriately discloses those matters thot we communicated to the audit committee which we consider should have
been disclosed. We confim that we have not identified any such inconsitencies or misleading statements.

Respective responsibliities of directors and auditor

As explained more fuly in the Directors’ Responsibilities Staterment, the drectors are responsible for the: preparation of the financial
statements and for being satifed that they give a rue and far view. Our responsibility is to audit ond express an oginion on the
financial statements in accordance with appicabie low and intfemationa Standards on Auditing (UK and reland). We also comply
with Intemational Standard on Quality Contral | {UK and fredand}. Our cudit methodology and ools aim to ensure that our quality
control procedures are effective, understood and apphed. Cur quality controk and systems include our dedicated professional
standards review teom and independeant pariner reviews,

This report is made solely to the company's members, as ¢ body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Port 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Ouwr audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state fo
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsitility
fo anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body., for our cudit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed,

Scope of the audit of fhe financial stafements

An cudit involves obldaning evidence about the amovunis and disclosures in the financial siatements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstaternant, whether caused by fraud or eror. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group's and the parent company's crcumstances and have
been consistentty appked and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors:
and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
annual report to identify material inconsstencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any infomation that s
apparently materally incomect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acguired by us in the course of performing
the audit, if we become oware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies. we consider the implications for our report,

Ny

Judith Tacon (Senlor stafutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Delolte LLP

Chartered Accouniants and Statutory Auditor
London

Uniled Kingdom

22 February 2017
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These financial stclements are prapared in accordance with #FRS. The Boaord of Direclofs also presant the Group's pedormance
o on the basis recommended for real esiale companies by the Europecn Public Real Esiafe Associofion (EFRA). The reconclialion
between IFRS performance measwres and EPRA pefformance measures con be found in Seclion 2.2 b} for EPRA eamings
and 2.3 ¢} for EPRA net asset value (NAV). The adiusiments to the 1FRS resulls are infended to help users in the comparablifty
of these results across oiher irted reol esiale companies in Europe and reflect how the directors monlior the business,
We have grouped the ncles to the financial stalemends under six main headings:
> Resulls for the year, including segmental informalion, EFRA eamings ond EPRA NAV
> Asset management
> Funding
>Working capital
> Key management and smployse benefils N
> Company subsikdlaries and Joint ventures Q
Each saction sets oul the relevant accounting policies opplied in these financial statements together with the key §
judgemens and estimoles used. &
Q
Primary statemnents %
Comsolidated income staterment 2
Consoidated statement of comprehensive income 3
Consclidated balance sheet ©
Company balonce sheet

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Cormpany statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Staternents of cash flows
Sechon 1: Basks of preparation
Section 2: Resulls for the year

2.1 Segmaental information

2.2 Eamings

2.3 Net assets

2.4 Revenue ond costs

2.5 Tox

2.6 Audiit fees
Section 3; Assef managemend

3.1 wholly owned property atsets

3.2 Inventories

3.3 Other non-curent assats

3.4 Investments in joint ventures

3.5 Investments in subsidiaries
Section 4: Funding

4.1 Borrowings

4.2 Interest rate swaps

4.3 Net financing Costs

4.4 Gearing

4.5 Financial risk factors

4.4 Operating leqses

4.7 Capital management

4.8 Equity

4.9 Dividends
Saction 5 Working capiial

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

5.2 Trade and other receivables

5.3 Credit risk

5.4 Trode ond other payables

5.5 Transactions with other group companies
Sechion &: Key maonagemen and employes benelits

&.1 Staff numbers and Gosfs

4.2 Kesy rnanagement personnel

6.3 Share based compensation
Saction 7. Eventy after the bolonce shest date
Saciion & Company subsidiares and joint ventures ——
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2014

0% D15
Nole tm £m
Rental ncome 24 97.1 930
Property soles and other income 24 236 1158
Totol revenue 120.7 2088
Cost of sales 24 (44.9) [114.9)
Operatfing expenses {25.0) {28.5)
Results from operating activitias 808 65.4
Profit/(Loss} on disposal of property 04 {0.8)
Net valuation gains on property 31 772 1448
Profit bedore net finoncing costs 1284 294
Loan interest and similar charges 43 {20.9) (22¢)
Mark to market changes in interest rate swaps 43 - {06}
Swap cancellahon Costs _ 4.3 {1.0) ~
Finance costs 43 (21.9) {23.2)
Finance incomea 4.3 0.3 0.2
Net financing costs 43 {21.8) (23.0)
Shore of joint venture profit 3.4b 94.3 1818
Profft before tax 204 388.4
Current fax 25 {2.3) [1.8)
Defexred tax 2.5 27.3 [31.1}
Profit for the year 2264 3857
Profit for the yeor athfbutable 1o
Owmners of the parent company 22c 2240 3519
Minority interest 2.4 38
224 4 355.7
Eamings per share
Basic 2.2¢ 101.3p 164.2p
Diuted 2.2¢c 94.7p 150.3p
All results are derived from continuing activities.
for the year ended 31 December 20146
2016 15
Nate tm £m
Proftt for the yeor 2254 355.7
movements n effective hedges 42 (v2) (R R4}
- Defemed taxin relation to movements in effective hedges 2.5d .1 1.0
Gains on hedging instruments fransfered 1o income statement within mark o market
changes in inferestrate swaps - 03
- Defered fonin rekation to hedging instruments fransferrad to income statement - ©.1)
Share of joint venture movaements in effective hedges 34b (1.4) 0.6
- Defered tax in relation to shore of jint venture movernants in effective hedges 2.5d (0.5) {0.1)
Other comprehensive nceme for the year {12.2) {0.2)
Total comprahentive income for the year 2142 3555
Alnfbutable o
Ownes of the parent company 211.8 3516
Minority interast 24 3.2
2142 3555

All other comprehensive income may be clossiied as profit and loss in the future,



THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016 w7

e
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET .
At 31 December 2016 §
&
g
£
6 2015
™Nofe tm £m
Assefs
Invastment property 34 1.061.4 1.024.4
Investiment property under development A 1848 1428
Investment in joint ventures J4b 592.% 61046
Other non-cument assets 33 298 245
Defered tax asset 2.5d - 1.0
Total non-cumrent assets 1,968.9 1,810.3
Inventories 3.2 29 3.4 o)
Trade and ather receivaties 5.2 779 83.0 9
Cash and cash equivaients 54 427 270 g
Totol cumrent assets 1235 1134 &
Total assets 20924 1,923.9 ‘%
5]
Uabiities §
Bomowings 4] (1.3) (31.3)
Trade and other payobles 5.4 (1237 1115.5)
Cument fax ligbility (2.4} [2.3)
Total curent Hablities (127.4) (149.1)
Borrowings 4.1 (471.5} (443.8)
Interest rate swaps 4.2 (11.8) (2.3
Defarred tax abikty 2.5d {4.4) (31.0}
Totat non-cument Rabilities (489.5) {477.1)
Totct Noblifles {616.9) (6256.2)
Net assels 1.475.5 1.297.7
Equity
Issued share capital 48 555 555
Share premium 48 4934 4933
Mearger resarve 402 402
Retained eamings 867.9 6795
Hedging reserve {15.0) 2.8}
Equity portion of convertible instrument 4.1 v.4 9.4
Equily atiributabie to the owners of tive parent company 14514 1,275.1
Minorty interest 29 24 o
Total equity 14755 12977 E
These financial staterments of The Unite Group plc, registered number 3199160 were approved by the d of Directors on %
22 February 2017 and were signed on its behaf by: 3
RS Smith § ) Lister 8
Direclor Director
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Al 31 December 2016

2006 015
Noler tm £m

Assels
Investments in subsidicries 3.5 725.4 648.3
Total mvestments 1254 6483
Loan fo group undartaking 3.5 1799 179.9
Total non-cumrent azsels 9053 828.2
Amounts due from group undertakings 5.2 6864 639.3
Cuaosh and cash equivalents 5.1 - -
Total current assets 6864 639.3
Total ossets 157 1467.5
Current Roblllies
Barowings 4.t ©.1) (1.4)
Amounts due to group underiakings 34 13) {58.2
Other payables 5.4 (3.0) (2.7)
Total currerd loblifies {4.4) (62.3)
Bormowings 4.1 (175.3} (173.0)
Total non-current lobiities (175.3) (173.0)
Tolal ab:Mifes (11e.7) (235.3)
Net assels 1,412.0 12322
Equify
Isswed share capital 55.5 55.5
Share premium 4#3.4 4933
Merger raserve 402 402
Retoined somings B13.3 6338
Equity portion of inlercompany loan 9.4 9.4
Total equity 1.412.0 12322

Total equity is wholly attributoble to equity halders of The Unite Group plc.

These financial staterments of The Unite Group plc, registered number 3199160 were approved by the Board of Directors on
22 Februaxy 2017 and warte signed on its behalf by:

RS Smith J 1 Uster
Director Director

T #HiA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Ecpuily porfon Alviiable
sued Share Nawger Medalined Hedging  of converibie 10 cwners Minoriy
sheyre capiial prévium: relarve edmings [ wirument of he parent Inherest Tolal
£m £m [ tm £m tm £m m m
Al January 2016 555 4933 40.2 8795 (28) v4 1.276.1 226 1.297.7
Profit for the year T - - - 224.0 - - 2240 24 264
Movements n effective .
hedges (net of ! ;
associated deferred tax] - - - - (12.2) - (122} - {(122).
Total comprehensive
income for the yecr - - - 224.0 (12.2) - 2n8 24 2142
Shares issued - 03 - - - 03 - 0.3
Deferred tax on share
based payments - - - (0.1) - - {o.1) - ((R))]
Far valye of snore based
payments - - - 1.2 - - 12 - 12
Own shares acquired - - - 2.5) - - {2.5) - (2.5
Dividends paid to owrars
of the parent company - - - {34.2) - - (34.2) - (3a2) -
Dividends fo minority
interest - - - - ~ - - {1.1) {1.1)
At 31 December 2014 55.5 493,46 402 867.9 {15.0) 7.4 1.451.6 239 14755
Equry porton Afruicbie
Bsued Share Marged Retained Heagng  of converible 10 ownens Moty
share caprhal prSwm nesarve: SIS reserve InsiTument of the parent ntenast Tolat
£m £m £m £m £m im &m £m £m

Al 1 lonuary 2015 504 385.8 402 3592 (2.5) 9.4 ad2.5 19.8 8823
Profit for the year ) - - - 351.9 ~ - 3519 38 355.7
Other comprehensive '
income for the year - - - - (0.3} - {0.3) a1 0.2
Total camprehensive
ncome for the year - - - 351.9 (0.3 - 3816 39 355.5
Shawes issued 5.1 107.5 - - - - 1124 - 1126
Deferred tax on share
based payments - - - 0.8 - - 08 - [eX-}
Fair value of share based
payments - - - 29 - - 29 - 29
Own shores ocquired - - -~ {3.4) - - {3.4) - {3.4)
Dividends paid 1o owners
of the parent company - - ~ {31.9) - - 3.9} - 31.9)
Dividends to minority
nterast - - - - - - - (i (1.4}
Al 31 December 2015 55.5 4933 402 479.5 (2.8) 94 1,275 2.6 1297.7

The notes on pages 112 to 153 form part of the financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015

lesund Shere Mergar Retcined ity poriion of
share coplial remium oY "amings  Inlrcomparty loan Tokal
#m £m m £m zm &m
A 1 Jonuary 2018 555 493.3 40.2 633.8 7.4 12322
Frofit for the yexr & other comprehensive income - - - 2137 - 213.7
Shares issved - 03 - - - 0.3
Dividends to shareholkders - - - (34.2) - {34.2)
At 31 December 2014 55.5 493.6 40.2 8133 94 14120
suad Share Merger Raionec Ecpaty portion: ot
shiare caprol premum regene eamings  nlemompony loon Tod
£m £ im £m £m £m
At 1 January 2015 50.4 385.8 402 3758 94 8616
Profit for the year & other comprehensive income - - - 2899 - 239.9
Shares ksued 5.1 107.5 - - - 112.4
Qividends 1o shareholders - - - 131.9) - 131.9)
At 31 December 2015 555 493.3 402 433.8 v.d 12322

The notes on pages 112 1o 153 form part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS .
8

For the year ended 31 December 2015 3
Q.
®
g
3

Group Company
D 5 P ams
Note £m £m m £m

Cash flows from operdling oclivities 51 703 120.8 (2.8) {22)

Cash flows from taxaion (22) 0.3) - -

Investing activities

Froceeds from sale of investment property 126.1 0.8) - -

Paymants to/on behalt of subsidiaries - - (157.4) [194.9}

Payments from subsidiaries - - 59.1 54.4 o

Repayment received of joint venlure investment loan - - - - %

Loan to joint ventures - {30.5) - - a

Dividends received n2 229 1393 557 g

Inferest received o1 0.2 - - %

Investment in joint ventures - (52.4) - - 3

Acqukition of intangible assets 8.2) (7.7 - ~ %

Acquisition of property {131.0) {94.3) - - ]

Acquisition of pkant and equipment o o Ban oWy -

Cash flows from invasting oclivilies 13.1 {148.5) 41.0 (64.8)

Financing aclivities

nterest poid i respect of financing octivifies (23.7} {21.8} {5.5} (5.5

Ineffective swap payments - 2.3 - -

Swap cancsllation costs (1.0) - - -

Proceeds from the issue of share capital 0.3 1124 0.3 1128

Payments o acquire own shares 25 (3.4} - -

Proceeds from non-curent borrowings 9.0 17.6 23 1.8

Repayment of bomowings (102.3) (36.1) - -

Dividends paid to the owners of the parent company (34.2} (3191 (34.2) (31.9)

Dividends paid to minority inferest () w1 - =

Cash flows from finoncing activities {65.5) 3.6 (37.1) 7.0

Nel (decrease)/increass in cash and cash equivalents 15.7 {i4.4] 1.3 {10.0}

Cashond cash equivalents ol statofyeer @b 44 04 8é

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5.1 42.7 270 0.1 {1.4)

0
g
g
3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 1: Basis of preparation

This sechion kays out the Group's accounfing policies thal relate fo the inanciad statemends a3 a whole, Where an accounting
policy iy specific to a particular note 1o the finoncial stalemaents, the policy i3 described in the note to which i relates and has
been clearly identifled In a box,

The financial statements cansolidate those of The Unite Group pic, {the Company) and ids subsidiaries (together referred to as
the Groupj and inciude the Group’s interests in jontly confrolied entities. The parent company financial siatements present
infermation gbout the Cormpany as a separate entity and not as a group.

Both the parent company financial siatements and the Group financial statements hove been prepoared in accordance with
Intemational Francial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU [Adopted IFRS) and approved by the Directors. Or publishing
the parent company financial statements here togethar with the Group financial statements, the Company k taking advantage
of the exernplion in 5408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual income statement ond related notes.

The accounting policies have been oppied consistantty to afl pericds presented in these consolidated finoncial statements.
The Company is domicied in the United Kingdorn.

Going concem

The Group's business activities, together with the factors fikely to affect its future development and position are set out i the Strategic
Report on pages | to 49, In addition, section 4 of these Notes 1o the financial statements includes the Group's cbjectives, pokcies and
processes for managing its capital; detais of its borowings and interest rale swaps, ond in note 5.3 it exposure o aredil sl

The Group hos prepared cash flow projections three years forward to December 2019 and the Group has sufficient headroom

to meet all s commitments. The Group added £100m to an existing faciity during 2016 and this together with existing facilfies wil

be sufficient 1o fund the Group’s commitrments over the next three years. The Group mainfains positive relaffonships with ffs lending
banks ond has historicolly secured new facilities belore maturity dates and remained within its covenant levek, The Group s in ful
compiiance with its covenants at 31 December 20146, Owr debt faciities nclude koan-to-value. inferast caver and minimurn net worth
covenants, all of which have a high level of headroom. In order to manage future financial commitmients, the Group operate a
formal approval process. treough its Major Investrment Approvals commiftee. fo ensure appropriate review i undertaken before

any transactions are agreed.

The Directors consider that the Group has adequale resources fo continug in operational existence for the foreseeable future,

Measurement convention
The financial staternents are prepared on the historicol cost basis excep! for mvestment property. nvestment property under
devsiopment, investments in subsidianies and interest rate swaps of of which are siated at therr fair vaiue.

Basls of consolidation

Subsigicries are those entities conirolled by the Company. Control exists when the Compony has on existing right thot gives it the
cument abikty 1o direct the relevant activiies of the subsidiary, has exposure or nght to vanable retums from its invotvernent in the
subsicliary and has the alodity 10 use its power to affect its retutns, The financial statements of subsidianas are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that conirol commences unfil the date that control ceases.

Infra-group balances and transactions, and any urrealised gains and losses anising from intra-group ransactions, such as property
disposak and management fees, are efiminated in preparing the consoiidated financial statemenits. Unrealsed gains arking from:
transactions with joint veniuras are eliminated o the extent of the Group's retained interest in the entity, Urrealsed losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains excep! where the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net redlisable
vakse of curent assets or an impaiment in value of fixed assets.
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Section 1: 8asis of preparation confinued

Impaci of accounting standards ond interpretadions in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements. the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs thal have
been issued but are not yel effective and in some cases had not vet been adopted by the EU:

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments”:

IFRS 15 '‘Revenue from Contracts with Custormers';

IFRS 16 'Lecses’;

IFRS 2 [omendments) “Classification ond Measurement of Shore-based Payment Transaction’

IAS 7 [amendmenis] 'Disclosure Initiative'

IAS 12 [amendments) ‘Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses'

IFRS 10 and |AS 28 jamendments) ‘Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor ond its Associate or loint Venture';

VVYVYVVY

The directors do not expect that the adoplion of the standards ksted above will have a material impact on the financial stalements
of the Group in fulure periods, except that IFRS 9 will impact both the measwerment and disclosures of financial instruments, IFRS 15
may have an impact on revenue recognition and retfated disciosures and IFRS 16 will impact the reatment of ieases. Durning 2616 the
Group continued to monitor the potential mpact of these changes. Beyond the information above. it I not practicable to provide
a reasonabie estimate of the effect of IFRS 9. IFRS 15 and IFRS 14 untika delailed review has been cormpleted.

sounusascl ajoiodioD

Accouniing estimates ond

The preparation of financial stotements requires mancgement 10 exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies.
It ako requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and babiifies, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions ore based on historicol experience and varicus other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the resulis of which fonm the bosis of maoking judgements albout camying values of assets

and lickilifies that ore not readily apparent from other sources. Actuat resuits may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assurnptions are raviewed on an ongoing basis with revisions recognised In the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement of complexity are set out below cnd are explained in mone detail in the related
notes to the financial staterments.

The areas involving the most sensitive estimates and assumptions that are significant to the financial staternents are set out below and
in More detait in the related notes:

> valuation of investment property and investment property under development [note 3.1)
The accounting policy descriptions set out the areas where judgement needs exerching. the maost significant of which is as follows:

> classification of joint venture vehicles (note 3.4)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulis for the year

This secHon focuses on the resulls ond perdormance of the Gioup and provides a reconcilalion between the pimary
o stalements and EPRA performance meotures. On the following pages you will find disclosures exploining the Group's

results for the year, segmental Information, taxalion, esomings and net asset value pef shore.

The Group Uses EMRA eamings and NAY movement os key comparable indicalors across other real estate companies

n Europe.

Pedomance measures

~ote e x5
Eamings basic 2.2¢ £224.0m £351.9m
Earnings diuted 22¢ E227.7Tm £351.9m
Basic eamings per share (pencej 22c 101.3p 164.2p
Diuted eamings per share (pence) 22c . 7D 150.3p
et assets Basic 23c £1.457.6m £1,275.\m
Basic NAV per shora (pence] 2.3d &53p 574p
EPRA performance measures

Note 016 x5
EPRA eamings 2.2a £42.7m £61.3m
EFPRA eamings per share {pence) 22¢c 28.4p 28.4p
Adjusted EPRA eamings 2.2a £61.3m £49.5m
Adjusted EPRA somings per share [pence) 22c 7.1 23.1p
EPRA MAY 2.3a £1,557.3m £1,394.4m
EPRA NAY per share [pence] 23d ép 579p
EPRA NNNAY 23¢ £1.517.3m £1,330.2m
EPRA NNNAV per share [pence) 2.3d £30p 552p

2.1 Segmental nformation
The Board of Drectors monitor the business along two activity Iines. Operctions and Property. The reportatie segments for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 Cacember 2015 are Operatians and Property,

The Group undertakes its Opearations and Property aclivities directly and through joint ventures with third porties. The joint ventures
are an integral part of sach segment and are inCluded in tha information used by the Board to monitor the business.

The Group's properties are located exclusively in the United Kingdom. The Group therafore has one geographical segment.

2.2 Eamings

EPRA eamings armends IFRS measures by removing principally the unrealised investment property valuation gains and losses such
that users of the financials are able 1o see the extent to which dividend payments [dividend per share) are underpinned by eamings
arsing from purely operafional octivity. The reconciliation between Profif atfibutable i ownerns af the parent company and EPRA
eamings is available in note 2.2 {b).

The Operalions segment manages renfal properties. owned directly by the Group or by joint ventures. Its revenues are derived fom
rental income ond asset management fees eamed from joint ventures. The way in which the Operations segment adds vale 1o the
business i sat out in the Cperations review on pages 30 to 33, The Operations segment is the main confributor to EPRA eamings and
EPRA EPS and these are therefore the key indicatars which are used by the Boord to monitor the Operations business.

The Boord does not manage or monitor the Operations segment through the bokance sheet and therefore no segmental information
for assets and labikfies is provided for the Operafions segment.
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Section 2: Resvifs for the year confinved -

2.2 Eanings continved

d) EPRA ecmings

2014

Group on
HRA
LUNITE Share of joint veniures bals
Totad USAF LSAV Tokd Tokd
tm m tm £m n

Rentai income 971 389 251 42.0 1591

Property operafing expenses (29.3) (10.7} {2.8) (13.5) {42.8) §

Net operating Income 478 26.2 223 485 1é.3 a
3]
Q

Managerment fees 208 {2.8) (4.0) (6.8) 14.0 2

Operating expensas (22 4} {0.4) 0.3 {on {23.1} %
23
(o]

Operating lease renfals* a5 - - - (13.5) o

Net financing costs {20.8) {5.7) 5.9) {11.8) {32.4)

Qperciions segment resull 319 173 12,1 294 $1.3

Property segmend result {1.0} - - - no

Unallocated to segments 2.4 - - - 24

EPRA samings 33.3 173 121 294 427

Yield related USAF performance fees (1.4} - - - {1.4)

Adjusted EPRA samings s 17.3 12,1 29.4 613

* Operofing lease rentak anse from properfies which the Groue M sold and s now leasing back. These properties were sold to generate financing ond
they now contdoute fo the Group's rental income ond incur properfy operafing expenses. Therefore the Group consider thase lease cosfs fo be o forn
of financing.

Included in the above is rental income of £18.5 milion and property operating expenses of £5.9 milion relafing fo sale and
leaseback properties.

The unaliocated fo segments balkance ncludes the fai value of share based payments of {£1.2 milion), UNITE Foundafion of
(£1.0 milfon), fees received from USAF relating to acquisitions £0.4 milion, net USAF perforrmance fee of £5.5 million, deferred tax
of (£0.3 miNon) and curent tax charges of (£2.0 million;.

g._
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulis for the year confinued

2.2 Eamings continued
a) EPRA samings conlinued
2015
{FOUp an
EPRA
UNITE Share of ot veniures boss
foral BAL Lsav Tolkat Tota
im £m 3 im £m £m

Rental ncome 930 3.6 9.7 51.3 144.3
Property operaling expenses (28.2) 5.3} {2.3) {11.8) (39.8)
Nst operdling income 8 23 17.4 anr 104.5
Management fees 17.5 [2.2) 3.3 {5.5) 120
Operating expenses 213 0.3) (0.3} 10.6) (21.9)

51.0 128 13.8 336 94.6
Operating lease rentals® {14.5) - - - {T4.5)
Net inoncing Costs (23.6} (5.6} (4.4 {10.0) (33.6)
Operciions segment resull 29 142 9.4 236 4.5
Froperty segrmunt result {1.8 - - - £.8)
Undllocated 1o segmenis 146 - - - 16.6
EPRA samings 377 142 7.4 23.4 613
Yield reloled USAF performance fess 111.8) - - - (1.8
Adjusted EPRA samings 259 142 7.4 23.4 49.5

* Operating lease rentals anse from properfies which the Group has sold and & now leasing back. These propertes were sold to generate inancing and
they now confiibute o the Group's rental Income and iINCur property operating expenses. Therefore e Group consider these lecse costs to be @ form
of financing.

Included in the above is rental income of £20.3 million and property operating expenses of £6.6 milion reiating to sale and
lecseback propertias.

The unallocated to segments balance incluces the fair volue of share based payments of (£2.9 milkon), UNIE Foundation of
(£1.0 milion), fees received from USAF refoting to acquisifions £1.8 mikion, net USAF performance fee of £20.2 miion, deferred tax
of (£0.1 mifion) and cument tax charges of (£1.4 million),
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Section 2: Resulis for the year continved

2.2 Eomings continued

b) IFRS reconcliolion to EPRA eamings

EPRA eamings axcludes movemenis rekating to changes in values of mvestment properties and interest rate swaps, profits from the
disposal of properties and property impairments, which are included in the profit reported under IFRS. EPRA eamings reconcile to the
profit atfribufable to owners of fhe parenf company Qs follows:

016 2015

No'a tm fin

EPRA samings 2.2a 627 81.3
Net valuation goins on investrment property 33 77.2 1648
Property disposat and write downs 0.3 68
Share of joint ventre gains on investment property 3.4b 58.8 1527
Sharg of joint venture property disposals and write downs - 03
Mark to market changes n interest rate swaps* 43 - 0.6}
Interast rate swap payments on ineffective nedges™ - 12
Swap canceliation costs (1.0} -
Share of point venture swap canceliation costs 340 - 3
Defered lax relating to interest rate swop movement - 0.2}
Deferred tax relafing to properties 27.6 (309}
Minority interest share of reconcifing items™ (1.6) (3.2)
Profit alifbutable o owners of the parent company 240 351.y

*+ Swaps ore desgnated s hedging instruments within hedge relafionships concluded to be effective for the year ended 31 Decerriber 2016 ond 50 are
reported within Other Comprehensive income for the year. in the pricr yeor certain hedging rekafionships were concluded 10 be ineffective and hence
the for value movement of the swaps desgnated os hedging nstruments in thase relationshies were recorded within the Incame statement rather than
Cther comprehenave income,

* The rinarity inlerest share, or non-controling interest, arises as a result of the Company not owning 100% of the share capital of one of its subsidianes,
USAF [Feeder] Guemsey Lid. More delaitis provided in note 34.

poda 2189104

aoLuounoh apoiadio?)

Q
=
]
5
g
3
g
g
=



129 THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REPORT AND ALCOUNTS 2005

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Sectlion 2: Results for the year continved

2.2 Eamings confinuved

¢) Bamings per share

The Basic EPS calkculation is basexd on the eamings atfributable to the equity shareholders of The Unite Group pic and the weighted
average number of shares which have been in issue during the year. Basic EPS & adjusted in fine with EPRA guidelines in order to aliow
users lo compare the business performance of the Group with other isted real estate companies in a Consistent manner and to refiect
how The business is managed ond measurad on a day to day basis. EPRA EPS and EPRA EPS pre yield related USAF performance fee
are cakcuated using EPRA eamings.

The cakcukations of basic and EFRA EPS for the year ended 31 December 2016 i s follows:

014 ais

Note &m Erm
Eamings
Basic 2240 3519
Diluted 27.7 as19
EPRA 2.2a 82.7 613
Adijusted EPRA [exciuding yietd reloted USAF performonce fee) 2.2a 1.3 49.5
Weighled average number of shares (thousands)
Basic 2103 214,304
Diutive potential ordinary shares [convertitle bond and share options) 19,318 19,877
Diuted 240,328 234,181
Eamings per share (pence)
Basic 1013 164.2p
Diuted 4.7p 150.3p
EPRA EPS 28.4p 28.6p
Adjusied EPRA EPS (exciuding yield reialed USAF performance fee) 27.7p 23.1p

Movements in the weighted average number of shares have resulted from the isue of shares arsing from the employee share based
payment schemes.

Excluded from the potential diutive shares (shore opfions). in 2016, are 16,838 (2015: 191,000} options which do nof affect the diluted
waighted average number of shares,
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Secftion 2: Resulls for the year continued

2.3 Nef assets

EPRA Net Asset Value per share makes adjusiments 1o IFRS measures by principally removing some items that are not expected to
materialse in normal circumstances fike itermns of deferred fax ond fhe fair vaiue of financial derivatives. The reconciliation between
IFRS NAV and EPRA NAY is available in note 2.3 ().

The Group's Property business undertakes the ocquisition and development of properties. The Property segment’s revenue comprisas
revenue from development management fees eamed from joint ventures. The way in which the Property segment adds value to the
business is set out in he property review on pages 34 to 39

o)

a) EPRA net assels §

2014 015 g

Yeholy owned Shawe of SV Tokal Whally ow rad Share of Svs Tofal T

£m £m £m £m £m im Q

investment properfies 1.081.4 1.023.2 2,084.8 1.024.4 aios 1,835.2 é

Investment properties under development 184.4 7.2 m.a 1498 80.2 2300 2

total propertty portfollo 1,244.2 1,030.4 2276.6 1.174.2 8910 20652 §
Debt on properties (474.8) (356.8) (841.6) (475.1) (304.4) 7797
Cash 42.7 2. 658 27.0 220 49.0
Net debt (432.1) (343.7) (775.8) (448.1) (282.4) (730.7)
Other assets/lliabiities) {14.5) (14.3) (28.%) (4.9] {18.3} (23.2)
EPRA net ossets {pre convertible) 799.5 6724 1.471.% 721.2 590.1 1,313

Convertible bond* 85.4 ~- 854 83.1 - B3.1

EPRA net asseds 8849 4724 1,557.3 804.3 5v0.1 1,3%4.4
Lacn #o value % 3% 4% 8% 3% 5%

* Linder the tems of the Convertible Bond, edrty conversion of the debt inta eguily can be inggered if the share price trades over 1.3 times the
conversion pace for a perad of fime, soe more detalin Note 4 Sb).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Sectfion 2: Resulls for the year confinued

2.3 Nel gssets conlinued
b) Movement In EPRA NAY during the year
Contributions to ERRA NAY by each segment durng the year is s follows:

2016 Group on
A
UNITE Share of joirt veniures bomis
tokdl USAF BRAY Tokal Tokat
tm m m £m em
Operafions
Operafions segmeant result 3y 17.3 121 29.4 a3
Propedy
Rental growth 58 4.8 12.0 268 2.8
Yiek moverment 4.9 72 7.5 4.7 19.4
Disposals and ocquisition gains 1.0 - - - 1.0
investment property gains 1.7 220 195 41.5 832
Development property gains 365 0.4 14.5 149 5.4
Pre-confract/other development costs (1.0} - - - {1.0)
Totaf property 772 224 34.0 564 133.4
Unoliocated
Shares ssued 03 0.3
investimant in joint ventures 33 7.3 [10.6) [EX.)) -
Convertibie bond 23 - - - 23
Dividends paid (34.2) - - - (34.2)
USAF performance fee 8.5 - - - 6.5
USAF property Goquisition foe 0.4 - - - 04
Swap cancelafion costs 1.0} - - - (1.0}
Other (6.3) - - - (8.3)
Total undliccated (28.7} 7.3 (10.6) (3.3) (32.0)
Total EPRA NAY movement in the year 80.6 458 55 823 142.9
Total EPRA NAV brought forward 804.3 305.3 2048 590.1 1.394.4
Tolal EPRA NAY canfed forward 884.9 352 20.3 4724 1.557.3

The £5.3 milion charge that comprises tha other balance within the unallocated segment inCludes a tax charge of £2.3 million,
fair value of share options charge of £3.0 milion and £1.0 rmition for the UNITE Foundation.
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Section 2: Resylis for the year continued

2.3 Net assets contiwed
B) Movement in EPRA NAV during the year continuad

Graupon
PRA
205 UMNTE Share of ot venhaes i
Total USAF LSAV Tolal Totcd
£m £m £rn £m £m
Operations
Operations segment result 229 42 T4 23.6 4.5
0
Propery 3
Rental growin 24 58 222 28.0 49.6 g
Yield movement 97.6 370 411 78.1 1757 13
Disposals and acquisition costs 17.3) ol 02 0.3 {(17.0) 9
Investment property gains 1019 429 63.5 106.4 208.3 §
Development property gains 457 - 36.) 36.1 818 8
Pre-confract/other developrment costs {1.8] - - - 1.8} o
Total property 1458 429 9.6 1425 288.3
Unalloccted
Shores ssued 1124 - - - 12,4
Investment in jont ventures (57.8) 41.6 6.2 57.8 -
Converiicle bond a3 - - - B3
Dividends paid (31.9) - - - [31.9)
USAF perfarmance fee 198 - - - 19.8 o
USAF praperty acquisition fee 1.7 - - - V.7 L
Swap losses and debt exit costs {1.1] {03 - 0.3} (1.4) 'E
Other {5.4) - - - [5.4)
Total unalocated 121.0 413 162 575 178.5 b5
z
Total EPRA NAY movement in the yeaor 289.7 98.4 125.2 223.6 5133 "
Total EPRA NAV brought forwasd 514.6 2069 159.6 366.5 881.1
Total EFRA NAV camied forward 804.3 2053 2348 5901 1,394.4

The £5.4 milion charge that comprises the other balance within the unoflocated segment includes a tax charge of £1.5 milion,
fair valug of shara options charge of £2.9 million and £1.0 million for the UNITE Foundation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Secfion 2: Resulls for the year continved

2.3 Net assels continved

<) Reconcliation fo IFRS

To detemmine EPRA NAV net assets reported under IFRS are amended to exclude the mork to market valuation of swaps. deferred tax
kabilties and to recoghise oll properties ot market vaive.

The Group also manages NAV using EPRA NNNAY, which adjusts EPRA NAY to include the far value of swaps and debt. Under EPRA
best practice guidelines this is considered 1o give stakehoiders the most relevont comperable information on the cument for volue of
all the assets and Rabilities in the Group.

The Net Assets raportad under IFRS reconcia 1o EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAV as follows:

2014 s
_ Note #m £m
Net asset vaiue reported under IFRS 1.451.6 1275
Meark to market interest rate swaps 14.9 4.3
Deferred tax 54 319
EPRA NAV (pre convertible) 23a 14719 13113
Convertible bond 85.4 83.1
EPRA NAYV 1.557.3 1.394.4
Mark o market of fixed rate dedt (19.7) [28.0)
Mark to market interest rate swaps {14.9) {4.3)
Deferrad tax {5.4) {31.9)
EPRA NNNAV 1.517.3 1,3302

d) NAV per share

Basic NAV s based on the net assets oftributable to the equity shareholders of The: Unite Group pic and the number of shores in issue
at the eng of the year. The Board uses EPRA NAYV and EPRA NNNAV to monitor the performance of the Property segment on a day
to day bask.

-l 015

Nole tm £m
Net asets
Basic 23c 1.451.6 1,275.1
EPRA 2.3a 1.557.3 1,394.4
EFEA diuted 1.559.9 1.396.7
EPRA NNNAY [dilifed] 1,5200 1.332.5
Number of shares (thousands)
Basic 222258 222,051
Convertible bond shares 18,424 18,124
Cutstanding shore options 762 1,027
Diuted 241,454 241,202
Net asset value per share (pence}
Basic 453p 574p
EPRA 847p 581p
EPRA [fully diiuted) 446p 57

EPRA NNNAV (fulty diluied) 430p 552p
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Seclion 2: Resulis for the year continued
2.4, Revenue and costs
The Group eams revenue from the following activities:
e xS
Noje £m £m
Rerdal income Operations segmerit 223 7.1 3.0
Manogement fees Operations segment 140 15.2
Development fees Property segment 1.0 1.9
Properly sales Unallocated - 770
USAF performance fee Unaliocated 7.0 2.4 g
121 209.5 g
Impact of minority interest on management fees (0.4} 0.7} %
Total revenve 120.7 2088 @
-
®
The cost of sales included in the consolidaled income stotement includes property operating expenses of £30.3 milion (2015 3
£28.9 milon), operating lease rentals of £13.5 mikon (2015: £14.5 milion), costs associated with developmment fees of £1.1 milion §

(2015: £1.9 milion} and the canying value of property sales of £n7 (2015: £69.6 milion),

There were no disposals of properties heid as frading properties during 20146 and therefore no revenue was recognised. During 2015,
Stratford One, a trading asset. wos soid o LSAV resutting in £77.0m of revenue.

Accounfing policies
Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

Rerddl Income

Rentalincome from property leased out under operating leases {[comprising direct lets to students and leoses to Universities and
commercial tenants} is recognised in the income statement on a straight-ine bass over the term of the lease. Lease incentives are
sometimes granted on commercial units; these are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income and spread over the
term of the lease.

TIONUN A

15

Properly sales
Income relafing to the saie of frading properties is recognised once confracts for sake have beean uncondiffonally exchanged.

Monogement and performance fees

The Group acts as asset and property manager for the joint venfures and receives management fees in relation to these services.
In addition, the Group is entitied 1o performance fees from USAF and L3AV it the joint ventures cutperform cerfoin benchmarks.
The Group receives an enhanced aquity inferest in the JVs as consideration for the performance fee.

i
i

Management and performance fees are recognised, in line with the management contracts, in the period 1o which they relate
as services are plovided.

UCHOULIOIA 18O
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Sectlion 2: Resulls for the year continued

2.5 Tax
The Group has not paid any comporatian fax in the recent past due 1o the avoiabiity of capital allowances. indexation and brought
forward losses. However, it does pay UK income tax on rental ncome that arises from investments held by offshore subsidianes.

Accounting policies
The lax charge for the year is recognised in The income statement and the statement ot comprehensive income, according to the
accounting freatment of the related fransaciion. The tax charge comprses both cument and defered fax.

Curment tax is the expected lax payable of receivable on the taxable iIncome or loss for the vear and any adjustment o tax payoble
in respect of previous years, The curent tox charge is based on tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted at the yearend.

Defened tax arses due to certain temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and kabiiities for financial eporfing
purposes ang those for taxafion purposes. Temporary differences redating to investrments in subsidianes and joint ventures are not
provided for {o the extent that they wil probably not revense in the foreseaabie future. The amount of deferred tax provided i based
on the expected manner of realisation or setiement of the camying amount of assets and liabilities,

During the year, the Group elected to become a REIT with effect from 1 January 2017, As @ REIT, rental profits and gains on disposal of
nvestment properties will be exempt from corporation tax. As a result, no deferred tax provision hos been recognised ot the balance
shest date in respect of property assets [revaluation and capital allowances). and the provision for defered tax labiity on property
business assets of £41.1m at 31 December 2015 has been fully released.

The Group's investments in unit frusts ore not exempt from tax as a REIT and., where they remain within Ihe chorge to fox, a defered tax
kabiity has been recognised as appropriate. The Group wil be able 1o ufiise its tax adjusted losses against gains arising on the disposal
of its investrnents in unit frusts. As the deferred tax liabifty on non-property business investments excoeds the assel relating o the losses.
the defered tax asset in respect of the tax adjusted losses has been recognised in full,

a) Tax —income sialement
The total toxation charge/{credt) In the income staternent is analysed os follows:

2004 s

£m £m

Income tox on UK rental ncome arsing in non-UK companies 23 té
Curment tax charge 23 1.4
Reversal of deferred tax provision in respect of RET property business assets (3%.8) -
Onigination and reversal of temporary differences 137 72
Effect of chonge in tax rote {1.2) (4.1]
Recognition of previously unrecognised asset - 8.0
Deferred tax charge/(credl) (27.3) nl
Tolal fax (credit)/charge In income statement (25.0) 27

During the year, the Group elected to be taxed as a RET with effact from | January 2017, As a result of this, the Group's
investment properties are exempt from tax and no deferred tax is required on the balance sheel. Accordingly the Group's
defered tax now only relates 10 non-property invesiments {being primarily its interests in joint ventures) and historic tax losses.
The removal of the defered tax provision in respect of REIT property businass assets is comprised of credits of £29.2m in relation
to investment properties and £11.3m in relation to accelerated capital aliowances, ond a debit of £0.7m for ax adjusted losses
extinguished on conversion.

The movement in deferred tax provided is shown in more detail in note 2.5 d) below.
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Section 2: Resulls for the year continued

2.5 Tax confinued

a} Tax - iIncome siatement confinued

In the income statement. a tax credit of £25.0 milion arises on o profit before tax of £201.3 million, the taxation charge that would arse
at the stondard rate of UK corporation tax is reconcied 1o the actual tax charge as follows:

204 D15

m £m

Profit before tax 201.4 3884
Income tax using the UK comaration tax rate of 20% (201 5. 20.25%) 40.3 787 [
Release of defered tax bakances due to REIT conversion {3%.8) - )
Property revaluotions net subject to tax {20.4) [28.4) g
Effect of ndexation on investments (2.1) 3.4} o
Effect of statutory iax refiefs (.5) 29 g
income due to Unite Foundation (1.0} - 3
Effect of tax deduction transferred o equity on shore schemes 04 1.1 %
Rate diference on defered tax (1.2) (4.1) ®

Movement on ynprovided defered tax asse! - 0.6}

Recognition of previously untecognised deferred tax asset - (7.4)

Prior years Gdjustments 0.3 0.3

Tolal tax charge in income siaterment (25.0) 27

The main rate of corporation tax reduced from 21% 10 20% with effect from 1 Apnl 2015, Accordingly, the reconclicion above has
been calcvlated ot a rate of 20% {201 5: 20.25%).

Following the Group's election o become a REIT (effective 1 Jonuary 2017}, deferred tax onits REIT property business assets is no
fonger required. Accordingly. the Group has recognised a credit of £39.8m in the income Statement reversing the provision for
deferred tax kobilities and assets recognised at 31 December 2015 relating 1o the revaluation of investment property. accelerated
capital allowances, and property business tax losses,

TUITNT NG

Deferred tox is on occounting odustiment intended o refiect tox thot the Group may have 1o pay in the future if cestain events occur,
and is distinct from the Group's curent tax chorge (the lafter being the ox actually payable to HM Revenue & Customs for the year).
Accordingly. the release of the deferred tax provision is an accounting only adjustment, and does nol result n the Group receiving a
tax credit o refund. The curent tax charge for the year ended 31 Deceimber 2014 is unaftected by the election o become q RET.

I

) Tox - othet comprehensive income
within other comprehensive income o lax charge tofdling £1.6 milion (2015: £0.8 milion credfit] has been recognised represanting
deferred tax. An analysis of 1his 5 Included in the defered tox movement on page 126.

<) Tax - stolement of changes in equlty
Within the staterment of changes in equity & tax charge takalfing £0.1 million {2015: £6.8 milkon credit] has been recognisext
rapresenting deferred tax, An analysis of this & included in the deferred tax movement on page 126.

UOHOULIO BUID
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year confinved

2.5 Tax continued

d) Tex = batance sheet

The table below outiines the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) that are recognised in the balkance sheet, together with their moverments
in the year,

2018

A 31 December {Credred) Charged A3 Decembar

015 Transters nncome n equity 216

£m £m £m £m m

Investments 14.7 - 25 - 172

Investrment property {REIT property business assets) 41,1 - {41.1) - -
Property, plant and machinery 0.3 -~ 0.2 - 0.1
Share schemes [1.6) - 0.1 0.5 (0.9}
Interest rate swaps 1.1} - 1.1 -

Interest rate swaps rekating to joint ventures {0.5) - 0.5 -
Tax value of caried forward kosses recognised [22.3) - no 0.4) {11.8)

Net tax {assels) Mablities 30.0 - {22.3) 1.7 4.4

2015

Al 3| Decembear (Creditech Charged At 31 Decemoer

Dla Tronsfcrs ¥ income ‘neaculy o151

£ £m £m £m £m

Investment property 7.3 - 16.7 - 340
Property, plant and maochinery 0.8} - 0.3 - 0.3

Investments in joint ventures 10.7 - 11.1 - 218
Share options (1.5) - {0.2) 0.1 1.6}
Interest rate swops 0.3 - 0.2 (1.0} {1.1}
Interest rate swaps relating o joint veniures [0.6) - - 0.1 0.5}
Tax volue of cored forward losses recagnised {24.4) - 3.0 {0.9) (22.3)

Net tax {assets)/licbililles 0.6 - 3141 .7 3.0

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 17% {effective 1 April 2020) was substantively enacted on 24 September 2014.
This will reduce the Group's fulure cument tax change accordingly, The deferred tax liability at 31 December 2015 hos been cakulated
based on the rate at which it is expected to reverse.

Fallowing the Group’s slaction to become a REIT, disposals of nvestment property will be exempt from tax and as a resutt no defered
tax iabiity has been recognised n relafion o these assets. The movernent of £41.1min the yeor s made up of a combination of in
year movement and reversal of the remaining provision. The Group's investments in property unit frusts (being primaxily its inferests

in joint ventures) are not exemipt irom tox a3 a RET. Where the interest in joint ventures rernoins subject 10 Yax, o deterred o fabiity
has been recognised on the excess of Ihe market vatue of thesa assels over ther histonc tax base cost. At 31 December 20146 the
defered tax liabilty in relafion to these investmenlts was £17.2m.

Company
Deferred tax has not been recognised on temporary diferences of £118.9 milkon [2015; £104.9 miflion) in respect of revaluation of
subsidiaries and investment in joint ventures as it is probable that the ternporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.6 Audit fees
Disclosures in respect of fees paid to the auditors can be found in the Audit Cormmittee Report, page 64,
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Section 3: Asset management

The Group holds ifs property porffolio directly ond through It joint ventures. The petformanc e of the property porifolio

o whather wholly owned of in joint venfres is the key kictor that drives net asset volue [NAV), one of the Group's key
pedommance indicalors. The lollowing pages provide disclosures about the Group's investmends in property assets
and joint venhures ond thelr perfformance over the year.

3.1 Whaolly owned propeity assets
The Group's wholly owned property portfolio is heid in two grouts on the balance sheet at the camying values detaled below.
In the Group's EPRA NAV, all these groups are shown at market value.

1) invesimers propesty [fixed aisels)
These ore assets that the Group intends o hoid for ¢ long period to eam rental income or capital appreciation. The assets are held
at far value in the balance sheet with changes in for value taken to the income statement,

1) Invesiment propaty uncier development (fixed asseds)
These are assets which are curently in the course of construction and which will be transterred to ‘invesiment property’
on compietion. The assels are held at far value in the balance sheet with changes in fair value taken to the income statement.

Accounting policies
Propertias held under operating leases are not included in assets, but the futue paymenis due in respect of these properties are
dsclosed in note 4.éa.

Investment property and investrnent property under development are held at far value,

Completed propertios, properties under developrnent and inventonies are shown at the lower of cost and net reqliscbie volue.

Net reaksable value i the estimated sefling price In the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion ond sefing
expenses. All costs directly associated with the purchase and construction of a property, and aft subsequent quaifying expenditure
is capitalised.

The recognition of acguisitions and disposcls of investment and other property occurs on uncondiiional exchange of conbracts.

Borowing costs are capitalsed it they are directly atiributable to the acquisition and construction of a property asset. Capitalsation
of porowing costs commences when the activities to prepore the asset ore in progress and expenditures and borowing costs ore
being incured. Capitafisation of bomowing costs continues untit the assets are substantiakly ready for ther intended use but stops if
development activities are suspended. If the resulting camying amount of the asset exceeds it recoveralble amount. an impairent
loss is recognised. The capitcisation rate is amived at by reference to he actudk rate payable on borowings for development
purposes o, with regard 1o that part of the development cost financed out of general borowings, 1o the average rate. During the
yeor the average capifolsafion rafe used wos 6.4% (2015: 6.4%).

The vaiuatian of property assets involves significant judgement and charges to the Core assumptions; market conditions, rentat
income, occupancy and property management costs, could have a significant impact on the carrying value of these assets.

Valualion process

The valuations of the properties are performed twice a year on the basis of valuation reports prepared by extemal, independent
valuers, having an appropriate recognised professional qualification. The far vaues are bosed on market volues as defined in
the RICS Appraisal ond valuation Manual, issued by the Royelinstitution of Charlered Surveyors. CB Richard Ellis Lid, Jones Lang
LoSalle Lid and Messs Knight Frank, Chartered Surveyors were the valuers in the years ending 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The valuations are based on bofh:

> Information pravided by the Group such as cument rents, occupancy, operating costs, terms and conditions of ieases and
nomination agreements, copital expenditure, etc, This information is derived from the Group's financial systems and &
subject to the Group's overatl cantrol enviconment.

> Assumptions and valuation models used by the valuers - the assumptions are typically market related. such as yiekd and
discount rates. These are based on their professional judgemen? and market observation.

The information provided 1o the valuers —ang the assumplions ond the valuation medels used by the valuers - are reviewsd by the
Property Boord and the CFO. This includes a review of the fak value movements over the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management confinued

3.1 Wholly owned properly assels continued

The movements in the canying value of the Group's wholly awned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 20146

are shown in the table below. Whie completed property is held at cost on the balance sheet, the Group marages the assets

based on ther market value (far value]. These properties are included in EPRA NAV at ther far valve, valued on the some basis
as for investmenit property and investirent properly under development, by external valuers. The fair vakue of the Group's wholly

owned properties of the year ended 31 December 201 6 are ako shown below.

2016
Irvastment
vesimerd  propardy undaer Completed
propanty development property Tokat
[ tm ™
At 1 January 2016 1.024.4 149.8 1.1742
Cost capitalsed 7.6 101.7 109.3
Interest capitalised - 59 59
Transfer from investiment property under development 3.6 (34.4) -
Transfer from waork in progress - 8.0 8.0
Disposals (44.0) 644y - (‘,m-i)ﬂ
Voluation gains “ne 4.2 Bs, |
Valtuation lassas (7.9) {1.0) - Q._?_)J
Net vatuation gains 370 40,2 772
Conying value of 31 December 2016 10618 184.6 1,244.2
Valuation gains not recognised under IFRS but included in EPRA NAY - - -
Brought forward - - -
Market value of 31 December 2016 1,041.4 184.6 12462
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Secfion 3: Asset management continved

3.1 Wholly owned properly assets conlinued
The movements in the camying value of the Group's wholly cwned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the fair value of the Group's wholly owned property porifolio ot the yeor ended 31 Decernber 2015 is as follows:

2015
Irrvaciment
Srrvashrent properly under Completed
prop : property Tokal
tm im 0m tm
At} January 2015 850.5 492 70.1 249.8
Cost copialised 8.6 97.4 - 1060 o
Interest copitalised - 27 - 27 §
Transfer from invesiment property under development 412 {41.2) - - g.
Tronsfer from work in progress - 1.0 - 10 ©
Disposals - - (70.1) {703} H
valuation gains 126.4 410 - 167.4 | 3
valuation iosses (23 ©.3) - 26 | g
Net valuation gains 1241 407 - 1648
Conying value of 31 December 2015 1.024.4 149.8 - 1.174.2
valuation gains not recognised under IFRS byt included in EPRA
NAV
Brought forward - - 312 312
Disposals - - 131.2) i31.2)
Market value ot 31 Decembaer 2015 1.024.4 149.8 - 11742

z
I
i

inchuded within investment propertias at 31 December 2016 are £31.5 mition {2015; £41.4 milion} of assets held under a long leasehold
andg £8.9 milion (2015, £10.5 milion] of assets hetd under short leasehold.

Total inferest capifalsed in investment and development properties of 31 December 2016 was £34,9 rilion (2015: £35.4 miion)
on a cumulative basis. Total intemal costs relating to construction and development costs of Group properties amount fo £51.1 milion
at 31 December 2014 (2015: £49.4 miion) on o cumulative bosis.

Recuning far value meansement

Allinvestment and develcpment properfies are classified as Level 3 in the foir valug hierarchy. While completed property and property
under development are held at cost in the balance sheel, the Group discloses the far vale of these assets and includes them at fair
value in EPRA NAV. Completed property and property uncer developrment far value measurements are categorised as Level 3in the
fair vaiue hierorchy ond their fai vaiue s measured wsing the same techniques as for investment properties and invesiment properties
under development.

UCHOLLOL JBUIO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management continved
3.1 wholly owned propertty assets coplinued

200 x5
Class of asset £m £m
London - Rental properties 424.9 409.4
Major provincial - Rental properhes 4402 43t.1
Other provincial ~ Rental properties 194.5 183.9
Maijor provincial - Development properties 1584 942
Other provinciot — Development properties 282 556
Market value 1,245.2 11742

The valuation fechnique for Investment properlies is a discounted cash Row using the following inputs: net rental income, estimated
future costs, occupancy and property management ¢osts.

Where the assel i leasad fo o university, the valuations ako reflect the length of the lease, the allocation of mantenance
and insurance responsibiiifies between the Group and the lessee, ondg the rnorket’s genergl perception of the iessee’s
credit worthiness.

The resulting valuations ore cross-checked ogainst the initial viekds and the capital volkue per bed derived from actual
market fransactions.

For development properties, the fair value & usually calculated by estimating the fair value of the completed property
{using the discounted cash flow method] less estimaled costs fo completion.

Fak value using unobservable iInputs (Leved 3)

% 215

£m £m

Opeaning far value 1.174.2 1.001.0
Gainsg and iesses recognised in ncome statemeant 77.2 164.8
Gaons and losses not recognised on properies under deveiopment - -
Acquisitons - -
Capital expenditure 124.1 10%.7
Disposals (129.3) {101.3)

Closing fair value 1.245.2 1.174.2
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Section 3: Asset management confinved

3.1 Wholly owned properly assets continued
Quantitalive informadlion about fair value measurements using unobseswvable Inputs (Level 3)

1

2014

Fak volue Valucion Waighted
£m Unobwervable inpuls fonge verage
London Discounted Net rentalincome (£ per week} £179 -£327 £249
- rental properties 4249 cash flows Estimated future rant (%) 1% - 6% 4%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 4.5% - 52% 4TR
Maijer provincial Discounied Netrentalincorne (£ per week) £105-£162 £129
—rental properties 4402 cash Aows Estirmated future rent (%) 1%-7% 4%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 5.2%-7.0% 57%
Other provincial Discounted Net rentalincorme (£ per week) £95-£153 £12¢
- rental properties 196.5 cash flows Estimated fuhxe rent (%) %~ 8% %
Dkcount rate (yield) (%) 55%-12.0% 2%
Major pravinciat Discounted Estimated cost fo complete (£m) £10.5m-£59.5m  £36.1m
- development properties 1584 cash flows Estimated future rent (%} % %
DCicount rate {yiek) (%) 4.3%-59% 54%
Other provincial Discounted Estimated cost 1o compiete (Emj £12.3m-£26.5m  £20.1m
- development properties 24.2 cash flows Estimated future rent {%) k4 %
Dicount rate [yield) (%} 57%-58% 57%

Fair value at 31 December 2016 12482

2015

Far vaue Valuaghen weighted
Em techrwue Unobservakle infauts Range gverage
Londaon Discounted Net rental income (E per week| £190- £3246 £244
- rental properties 4094 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 2% — 4% %
Discount rate {yield) (%) 4.6%-52% 48%
Major provincial Discounted Net rentalincome (£ per week) £95-£146 £120
~rental properiies 431t cQsh flows Estimated future rent (%) 1%~ 6% 4%
Discount rate {yield) {%) 52%-70% 58%
Other provincial Discounted Net rental income (£ per weaek) £77-8135 £z
~ rental properties 1839 cash flows Estimated fulure rent (%) 2%- 6% 4%
Discount rate (yieid) (%) 58%-74% 6.3%
Maijor provincial Discounted Estimated cost to complete {Em]  £9.4m - 47.6m £31.6m
- development properties 942 cash fiows Estimated future rent (F) % 3%
Discount rate (yield) {%) 5.2% - 5.8% 5.6%
Cther provinciol Discounted Estmated cost to complete (Em) £8.9m— £10.5m £100m
- development properties 55.6 cash lows Estimated future rent [%) I% %
Discount rate {yietd} (%) 58% - 59% 59%

Folr value ot 31 December 2015 11742

A decrease in net rental income. estimated future rents or occupancy will result in a decrease in the fair value, whereas a decreose in
the discount rate [yield) or the estimated costs to complete will result in an increase in fair value, There are interrelationships between
these rates as they are parlially detenrnmed by market rate conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3: Assel management confinued

3.2 Inventories
F 1) ams
£m im
Interests in land 08 0.9
COther stocks 21 27
Inventones 9 3.8

At both 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 the Group only has interests in one piece of land.

3.3 Ofher non-cumrent assets

Accounting policies

Propesty. plant and equipmen!

Other than iond and buidings; property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impaimment
losses [see below). Land and buidings are stated at fair value on the same basis as investment properties. Property, plant ard
equipment mainly comprise leasehoid improvements ot the Group's head office and Londoen office as wel as computer hardware
and software at these sites.

Depreciation is charged to the incomie staternent on a straightine basis over the estimated useful ives of iterns of property,
pkant and equipment. Freehold lond is not depreciated. The estimatea useful lives are as folows:

> Ledasehald mprovements Shorter #fe of lease and economic ife
> Other assets 4-20 years
intangible aneh

Intangitle assets predommnately comprise internally developed computer software which allows customers 1o book online and
processes ransactions within the soles cycle. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materiak. direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Expenditure on reseorch activities is recognised in the income statement as an expense
incurred, 2014: £NH, {201 5: £Nil). The qassets ore amartised on a straight-ine basis over 4 to 7 years being the estimaled useful lives
of the intangibke ossets, fom the date they are availoble for use. Armaitisation is charged to the income staternent within
opexating expenses.

The Group's other non-current assefs can be analysed as follows:

0% P15
Propty, plonk ‘bangle Propenty, piant Intangile
and equipment e fotal  gnd equpment assols Total
£m tm tm £m £m £m
Cost ot valuation
At T January 18.9 331 52.0 14.8 25.4 40.2
Additions ) 3 82 1.3 4. 77 e
At 31 December 20 413 3.3 18.9 33.1 520
Deprecialion, amortisalion and
Impoirnent lossas
At 1 Janvory v4 18.1 275 8.2 147 249
Depreciation/amortisation charge
for the year 1.6 28 44 1.2 1.4 2.6
Impoiment* 1.6 - 1.6
At 31 December 126 20.9 335 9.4 18.1 27.5
Carrying volue at 1 Jonuary .5 15.0 245 4.6 8.7 153
Comying amourt at 31 December 9.4 204 %8 25 150 245

* Baeing wiite down of leasehokd mprovemants on valahon of lease.

Intangibie assets include £3.9 mikion {2015: £10.1 milion) of assets not being amortiked as they are not yet ready for use. Property, plant
and equiprment assets include £1.1m (2015: £n) of assets not being depreciated as they are not ready Tor use. At 31 December 2016
the Group had capital commitrments amoeunting 1o £1.0 mifion reloting to intongible assets anct £1.8m relafing to Property, Plont &
EQuipment.
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Secfion 3: Asset management confinued
3.4 lnvestments in joint ventures (Group)

Accounting policles

Joint ventures are those entities over whose aetivities the Group has joint control, estoblished by contractual agreement. The
consolidated financial staternents include joint ventures intially of cost subsequently increased or decreased by the Group's share of
total gains and losses of joint ventures on an equity basis, Interest free joint venture investment toans are initially recorded at fokr value
- the difference between the nominal amount and fair value being treated as on investment in the joint venture. The impiied
discount s amortised over the contracted life of she nvestment loan.

The Directors consider that the agreements infegral 16 its joint ventures resutt in the Group having joint confrol; g significant degree
of judgement i exercised in this assessment due to the complexity of the coniractual amangements.

USAF and LSAV are jointty owned entities that are accounted for as joint ventures. Due to the complexity of the contractual
arongements ond Unite's role os monager of the jont venture vehicles. the assessment of joint cantrol following chonges to
accounting standards [IFRS10] involves judgemenis around a number of significant factors. These factors include how Unite as fund
manager has the abiity to direct relevant activities such as acquisitions. disposals. capital expenditure for refurbishments and funding
whether through debt or equity. This assessment for USAF is complex because of the number of unitholders and how their rights are
represented through an Advisory Commiittee. For some of the activities it & not clear who has definitive control of the activifies. in
some scenarios the Group can control, b others the Advisory Committee, However, for the activifies which ore considered to have
the greatest impact on the retums of USAF, acquisitions and equily financing, it has been determined that the Group and the
Advisory Cormmittee has joint power in directing these activiies and that on balance, it is appropriate to account for USAF as a joint
venture. The assessment for LSAV is more stroightforward because the Group and GIC each own 50% of the joint venture and there
s therefore much Clearer evidence that confrol over the key octivities i shared by the two parties.

SOUDALIRAOD SI0IOAI0D

The Group has two joint ventures:

Group's sharg
of osets/resulls Legalentity n which
Joint venture 114 (2015 Qbectve Partner Group has intersst
Thva UNITE UK Student 24.6%* [23.0%) Invest and operate Consortium of investors UNITE UK Student
Accommodation Fund student accommodation Accommaodation Fund.,
{USAF) throughout the UK o Jersey Unit Trust
London Student 50% [S0%) Develop and operate  GIC Real Estate Pte, Ltd LSAV Unit Trust, a Jersey Unit
Accommadation Veniure student occommodation in Reclestate  Trust and 1SAY (Hoidings)
{LSAV] London nvestment vehicie  Ud, incorporated in Jersey
of the Govemment
of Singapore

* Porl of the Group's inlerest 1 heid through a subsidiary, USAF (Feeder) Guemsey Lid, in which there is on extemol investor. A minorty nterest therefore
oceurs on corolidahon of the Group's resulls representing the extemal investor's share of profits and assels relciing to ris investrment in LSAF,
The ordinary shareholciers of The Unite Group pic are beneficially interasted in 23.0% (2015: 21.4%) OF USAF,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Seciion 3: Asset management continued

3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) confinued
o) Net assels and resulls of the joint ventures
The summarised balance sheets and resutts for the year, and the Group's share of these joint ventures are as foliows:

2016
USAF LSAY Tokal
£m im tm

Gross Share Grom Shae Gros Shave
Investment property 2287.9 5621 1,009 504.5 3.2%.9 1.046.6
Cash 418 19.3 27.0 135 488 38
Debt {755.5) (185.4) {381.4) (190.7) (1139 {374.3)
swap fiabilties 0.7 02 7.1} {3.5) 6.4) (3.3)
Cther curent assets 35 0.8 0.8 04 43 1.2
Other curent iabiities (55.3) (1.7} (14.8) {7.4) (70.1)} {19.1}
Net assets 1.523.1 3781 4335 3168 2,154.6 &929
Profit/{loss) for the yeor 1647 4.3 97.0 485 281.7 94.8
EPRA net assels 15471 521 8404 3203 2,207.7 4724
2015

USAF LSAV Total
em m &m

Grons Share Gross Share Gross Share
investment property 2,074.2 477.4 894.4 4472 29684 924.6
Cash 344 8.4 284 14.2 &5.0 224
Debt {638.3) {1469} [336.0) (£48.0) 974.3) [314.9)
swap kabilities - - 3.9} [2.0) (3.9} {2.0)
Other curent assets L9 05 10 a5 29 10
Other cuent liabilties (66.2) (1.8} (18.2) (9.4) {B4.4) (207}
Net assets 1,408.2 3278 565.7 2828 1.973.9 610.6
Profit/(loss) for the year 343 3.7 235.1 18.1 470.4 181.8
EPRA net assets 1,4082 305.3 569.6 2848 1.977.8 590.1

Net assets ond profit for the year above include the minority interest, whereas EPRA net assets exclude the minority mterest.
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Secfion 3: Asset management continved

3.4 Invesiments in joinf ventures (Group) conlinued

b) Movernent in carying value of the Group's nvesimenis in joint venlures

The camying voalue of the Gioup's investment in joint ventures has increased by £82.3 milion during the year ended 31 December 2016
{201 5: £226.8 milion}, resulting m an overol conying value of £692.% milion (201 5: £610.6 miion}. The following table shows how the
mncrease has been achieved.

2% 2015
£m £m

Recognised In he Income statement:
Operations segment result 294 236 O
Minority intesest share of Operations segment result 12 12 2
Management fee adjustment redated to trading with joint venture 54 4.1 %
Net revaluation gains 588 182.7 g
Delb exit costs - - <}
Loss on cancedation of interest rate swaps - 0.3) Ei
Loss on disposal of properties - 0.3 g
Other - 0.2 @

948 181.8
Recognizted i equity:
Movement in effective hedges (1.4) 0.6
Other adjusiments to the canying value:
Profit adjustment related to trading with joint venture (6.3) {19
Increase n loan 10 USAF - 30.5
Additional capital invested in USAF - 29.1
Perfomance fee units issued in USAF 256 -
Additional capital invested in LSAY - 233
USAF performance fee vz 3.7}
Distributions received .5 {22.9)
Increase/{decrease) In comying volue 823 2.8
Canying value at 1 January £10.6 3838
Camying volue ot 31 December 4929 6106
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management confinved

3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) continued

b} Movement in carying value of the Group's inveriments in joint venhuares confinued

In addition to its equity sharas, the Group has ako provided interest free investment loans to some of the joint ventures, Thess were
primcsily provided on the setting up of the joint venture 1o provide capital to acquire investment properties. As a result of being
provided interest free, the koans were discaunted on recognition to reflect the fair volue, the unwinding of the discount i reflected
n the Group's finance income,

<) Transactions with joint ventures

The Group acts as asset and preperty manager for the joint ventures and receivgs management fees in relation o these services.
in addition. the Group is entited 1o performance feas rom USAF and LSAV if the joint ventures cutperform certain benchrmarks.
The Group receives an enhonced equity interest in the joint ventures as considerotion for the performance fee. The Group has
recognised he following fees in its results for the year.

04 5

£m £

USAF 128 8.5
LSAY a0 4.7
Asset and properly management fees* 204 132
LSAV e 1.0 14
Development management fees 1.0 14
USAF performance fee ar 256
USAF acquisition fee Q.5 2,1
Invesiment management fess™ as 7.7
Total fees 30.3 423

* 2016 Agset and property managemant faes ane shown gross. 2015 Asset ond proparty management fees are shown as reporied, nat of froding
with jant veniures. The equivalent gross figures in 2015 were £10 7m for USAF ond £6.6m for LSAV.

* included in the movernent in EPRA NAV is & USAF perforrrence fee of £6.5 mision {2015: £20.2 mikon), This is the gross fee of £8.1 rmikon (2015:
£25.6 miion) paid by USAF net of adwisory fee costs of £).5 millon {2015 £2.2 millon) and o £1.1 millon (20152 £3.2 rikon) adiustment retated o
frading with jomt ventunes. The USAF performonce fee wil be settled in unlts in The UNITE UK Student Accommodahon Fund rather thon cash.
Ful detalls of the USAF performance fees are set out in the Strategic Repart on pages L 1o 49,

Included in share of joint venture profit in the incomae statement is a share of joint venture property management fee costs of

£1.6 milfion [2015: £1 4 milion). On an BPRA basis these costs are deducted from the property management fees shown above. plus
an adiustment for the minorty interest of £0.4 milion (2015: £0.2 milion). This results in the net fees included in the Operating Segment
resutt (note 2,20} of £14,0 milion [2015; £12.0 million}. Development managemens fees are included in the Property Segment resuit
[note 2.2a). Investment management fees are included within the unallocated to segmants (note 2.2a].

inchicled m the movement in EPRA NAV i a USAT property acquisition fee of £0.4 mikon [2015: £1.7 milkon). This is the gross
fee of £0.5 milion {2015: £2.1 mikon) paid by USAF net of a £0.1 milllon {201 5: £0.4 mikion) adjustment related o rading with
joint ventures,

During the yeor the Group hos poid operating lease rentals 1o USAF relating to two properties under a sale and leoseback
agreement omounlting to £2.2 milion (2015; £2.7 milkon).
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Section 3: Asset management continved

3.4 Investiments In joint ventures (Group) continved
¢} Transactions with joint ventures confinved

During the year the Group sold two properties 1o USAF for £88.4 million. Both properties were held on the balance sheet as investment
property under development within non-cumrent assets, the proceeds and canying value of the property are therefore recognised in
orofit on disposal of property and the cash flows in investing activities, One property was sold to LSAV in 201 5. The profils retafing to

sakes ond associated disposal costs and related cash flows are set out below:

Profit ond ke Profit and loss

W16 2015

LSAV LSAV

m £m

Included in property sales and other income [net of joint venture trading adjustment) - 772
included in cost of sales - {70.1)
Profit on dispasol of property - 7.1
Proit and loss Profit and loss

2016 5

USAF USAF

£m £m

Included in profit on disposal of property (net of joint venture frading odjustment) 3.2 -
Profit on disposal of properly 32 -
Cash Row Cash fow

s 015

LSAYV Lsav

tm &n

Proceeds - 84.3
Net cash flows includad In cash flows from operaling acliviles - 84.3
Canh flow Cash fow
ol M5

UsAF USAF

tm im
Gross proceeds 884 -
Nat cash flows included in cash flows from lnvesting activiles 58.4 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Seciion 3; Asset management continued
3.5 investments in subsidiaries (Company)

Accounling policles .
i the financial sfaterments of the Company. nvestments in subsidiaries are heid of fak value. Changes in for value are recognised
in other comprenensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity.

Caonying value of invesimant in subsidiares
The movements in the Cormpany's interest in unlisted subsidianes and jont ventures during the year are as follows:

Irrvesiment i SUESCKIMes

s 05

£m £m
At 1 January 548.3 4120
Revaiuation mi 2363
At 31 Dacember 725.4 5448.3

The carying value of investment in subsidianes has been calculated using the equity atiibutabile 10 the owners of the parent
company from the consolidated balance sheet adjusted for the far value of fixed rote loans and properties under development. This
includes investment property, investment property under development and swaps at a far value cokculated Dy a third party expent,
Allinvestment properties and investment properties under development are classified as Level 3 n the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy ond
have been discussed on page 129. The fixed rate loans range betwaen Level [ and Level 2in the IFRS 13 fair volue hierarchy and
have beer discussed further on page 129.

In addition to the equity investment in subsidicies and joint veniures, the Company has provided © loon with interest chargeable ot
6.125% 1o LDC (Hokdings| pic. The camying value of the lean to LDC (Holdings) plc was £90.0 miion {2015: £90.0 milion). A further loon
of £89 % milion (201 5: £89.9 milion) was provided to LDC {Holdings) pic with interest chargeable at 5.0%.

A full list of the Carmpany's subsidiaries and joint ventures can be found in note 7.
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Section 4: Funding

The Group finances its development ond investment ocitvities through a mixture of retained eamings, borowings ond
o squily. The Group confinuously monlton its inancing arangements to manage i gearing.

Interes! rale swaps are used fo maonage the Group's risk lo fluctualions in interest rote movements,

The following poges provide disclosures about the Group's funding posilion, including borrowings. gearng

and hedging instrumenis; s exposure io marked risks; and s capital monagement policies.

4.1 Borowings

Accounding policles

Interast bearing borowings are recognised initially at fair value, less atributable fransaction costs. Subsequent to initial recogntiion,
interest bearing borowings are stated at amorised cost with any difference between cost and redernption value being recognised
in the income statement over the period of the borowings on an effective interest basis.

On 10 October 2013 the Group ssued a convertible bond. The unsecured instrument pays a coupon of 2.5% unti 10 October 2018,

In accordance with iFRS, the equity and debt cormngonents of the bond are accounied for separately and ihe fair value of the debi
component has been determined using the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. As a result, £80.3 million was
recognised qs a iabiity in the bolance sheet on issue and the remainder of the proceeds, £9.6 million. which represents the equity
component, was cradited 1o resetves. The difference between the far value of the liablity and the principal value is amortised
through the incorme statement kom the dote of issue. Issue costs of £2.0 milion were allocated between equity and debl and

the element relating 1o the debt companent is being amortised over the life of the bond. The ssue costs apportioned 10 equity

of £0.2 milkion are not amorised.

The table below analyses the Group's borowings which comprise bonk and other loans by when they fall due for payment:

Group Company
2016 015 2016 015
Canrying Canyrg Comying Cairying
vae Fol value volue Far wive volue volue
tm tm £m £m o £m
Cunent

In one yedr or less, or on demand 1.3 1.2 313 31.2 0. 1.4

Non-curert
In more than one year but not more than two years 108.1 1322 15 1.4 85.3 -
In more thon two years but not more than five vears 126.3 1258 2022 2404 0.0 830
In more than five years 239.1 23,0 240.1 2255 - 900
4715 481.0 4438 4673 175.3 1730
Total borrowings 4748 4822 475.1 498.5 175.4 1744

in addition fo the borrowings curently drawn as shown above, the Group has available undrawn facilifies of £245.0 milion
[2015: £174.0 million). A further overgraft facilty of £10.0 milion (2015: £10.0 milion) is also available.

The carTying vaiue of bomowngs s considered to be approximate to fair value, except for the Group's fixed rate loans camied

ot £330.3 million [2015: £331.4 milkion) and the convertible bond comed at £84.2 milion {2015: £84.3 milion). The convedible bond and
£90.0 milion {2015: £90.0 milion) of the fixed rate loans are classified as Level 1 in the IRS 13 far value hierarchy and have a fair value
of £212.5 milion (2015: £218,4 milion). The IFRS 13 Level cotegorisation relates to the extent the far value can be determined by
reference ta comparable market vales, The classifications range from Levet 1 where insiruments are quoted on an active market
through to Level 3 where the assumptions used to arive at far value do not have comparable market data,

The remaining £240.3 mifion (2015: £241.4 milfion) of the fixed rate loans ore Ciassified as Levet 2 in the IFRS 13 far value hievarchy.
The far value of these fixed rate loans has been calculatad by a third pany expert discounting estimated future cash flows on
the basis of market expectations of future interest rates. The far vaive of these loans ks £215.1 million {2015: £226.4 mikon).

Properties with o camying value of £798.0 milion {201 5: £993.6 miion) have been pledged as security against the Group's drawn
down bomowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding continued
4.2 Inferest rate swaps

The Group uses nterest rate swaps to manage the Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations. In occordance with the
Group's reasury policy, the Group does not hald or issue interest rate swaps for frading purposes and only bolds swaps which
are considered to ba commercially effective.

Accounfing policles
Interest rate swaps are recognised inifialy and subsequentty at faik value, with mark to market movernents recognised in the income
statement unless cash flow hedge accounting is applied.

Hedge accounting, as defined in IFRS. & when the interest rate swap is designoted as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the
vanabiity in cosh flows atiibutable to the interest risk of borowings. The effective portion of changes n for volue of the interest rate
swap i recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve in equity. Any ineffective portion of
changes in the fair value of the inferast rate swap & recoghised immediately in profit of loss. The Group only applies hedge
dccounting when the hedge is expected to be highly effective.

When a hedging instrument of hedge relationship i terminated but the hedged fransaction i stil expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or lss at that point remains in equity with any subsequent movements in fair value taken to the income siatement. if the
hedged fransaction is no longer probable, the cumulative unrealised gain or koss recognised in equily is recognised in the income
staternent immediately.

The tar value of interest rate swaps i the astimated armount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the
balance sheet date, taking into account curent interest rates and the curent credit worthiness of the swap counterparties.

The following table shows the far value of interest rate swaps:

04 il
£m £m
Current - -
Non-cumrent } 1.6 23
Fair value of interest role swaps 11.6 23

The fair values of interest rate swaps have been calculated by a third party expert, discounting estimated future cash fiows on the
basis of morket expectations of future interest rates, representing Level 2 in the IFRS 13 lor value merarchy.

4.3 Net financing costs

Accouniing policies
Net finoncing costs comprise interest payable on bomrowings fess interest receivable on funds invested (both cakukated using the
effective intevest rate method) and gains and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised in the income statement.
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Section 4: Funding confinued
4.3 Net finoncing costs continved

2014 015
Recognised in the income stalement: m £m
Finance income
- Interest income on deposit (0.1) {0.2)
FAnance income (0.1) {0.2)
Grosg interest expense on loons %8 253
Interest copitalised 59 .. 2n
Loan interest and similkar charges 20.9 226
Changes in mark to market of interest rate swaps not accounted for as hedges - 0.4
Swap cancelation costs 1.0 -
Finance cosh 21.% 232
Net finoncing costs 218 230

The average cost of the Group's wholly owned investment debt at 31 December 2014 & 4.4% (2015: 4.7%). The overall average cost

of investment debt on an EPRA basis is 4.2% (2015: 4.5%).

4.4 Gearing

The Group's adiusted gearing ratio is g key indicator that the Group uses to manage its indebledness. EPRA net asset value (NAY)
and adjusted net debt are wed fo calculate adjusted gearing. Adjusted net debt excludes mark to market of interest rate swaps

Qs shown below.

The Group's gearing ratios are calcukated as follows:

4 x5
Note tm £m
Cosh and cash equivalents 5.1 42.7 270
Curment borowings 41 (.3) 131.3)
Non-curent bomowings 4.1 (473.5) {443.8)
Interest rate swaps liabiities 42 {11.8) {2.3)
Net debt per balance sheet (4427) (450.4)
Mark ta market of interest rate swaps 1.6 23
Adjusied net debl (432.1) (448.1)
Reported net asset value [atibutagbie to owners of the parent company) 23¢ 1451.6 1.2751
EPRA net asset value 23 1557.3 1,394.4
Gearing
Basic {Net debt/Reported net asset value) % 5%
Adjusied gearing (Adjusted net delbt/EPRA net asset value] 28% 32%
Gearing ([EPRA net debt/EPRA net asset value| 2.3a S0% 52%
Loan to value [EPRA net debt/Total property portfolio) 2.3a % 35%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Secfion 4: Funding confinved

4.5 Anancial sk factors

The Group's activifies expose it to a vanety of financial risks: market fisks ~ primarily interest rate risk. credit sk and kiquidity risk.
The: Group's freasury policy focuses on the unprediciabiity of financial markets and seeks fo minimise potenfial adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. Detaiks on credil risk can be foundin note 5.3.

a) Interest rale risk
Interest rate risk & the risk that the Group s impacted by significant changes in interest rates. Bomowings issued at or swapped
1o floating rales expose the Group to interest rale risk, The Group's policy & separated into two main areas:

I} Development and refinoncing
The Group had no specific development bomowings as af 31 December 2014 (2015: £nil).

The Group's principal exposure to interest rate fluctuations during development rekates ta movements in longer terrm interest rates
which affect the amount of debt the property income i capable of servicing at compietion, Significant adverse moverments
undemine the Group's abiity to release equity from its developments,

The Group will continue to review the level of its hedging in the light of the current low interest rate environment, The Group's policy
alows this exposure 10 be managed through the use of forward starting swaps.

) Medium and long-term finance

The Group holds its mediurn and lorg-term bank finance under both floating and fixed rate amangements. The maijority of this floating
debt is headged through the use of interest rate swap ogreements, although not all these arangements quaiify for hedge accounting
under IAS 39. Duning 2014, the Group's policy guidefime has been to hedge 75% and 95% of the Group's exposure for tenmns of
approximatety 2-10 yeors.

At 31 December 2016, after taking account of interest rate swaps, 100% (2015: 87%) of the Group's medivm and long-term investment
bormowing was held o fixed rates, Excluding the £52.9 milion {2015: £1.7 milion) of swaps the fixed investment borowing is at an
average rate of 4.6% {2015: 4.6%) for an average period of 5 years (2015: 6 years), including these swaps the averoge rate s 4.2%
(2015 4.6%).

The Group holds interest rate swaps at 31 December 2014 oganst £92.9 milion {2015: £1.7 milion) of the Group's borowings.
The maturity of these swaps and the applicable interest rates are as folows:

s W% 2015 s

Mominal Applcable Norminal Appic gbig

amourd hedged Inlerast s Omount necgea ‘nierest rees

tm % £m k]

Within one year - - - -
Between one and two years - - - -
Between two and five yeors 47.6 1.8 - -
asore than five yeors 453 22 1.7 5.6

During the yecx. if interest rates had increased/decreased by | %, pre-tax profit for the year would have been £0.6 milion
[2015: £0.7 milhon) lower/higher,

) Liquicily risikc

Liquidity risk is the rsk that the Group will not be abke ta meet iis inancial cbiigations as they fall due. For development activities, the
Group has a policy to inject substantially the full amount of equity required for each developmen before drawing debt against the
specific facility for the development. The funding requirements of each scheme are therefore subsfantialy ing-fenced” and secured
at the outsel of works.

The tapie below analyses the Group's financial iabikties and interest rale swaps into relevant maturity groupings based on the period
remaining untll the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the fabile are the confraciual undiscounted cash flows
{including interast}, so wil not atways reconcie with the armounts disclosed on the balonce sheet.
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Section 4: Funding confinued
4.5 financial risk factons confinued
b} Uquidity risk conlfinued
20146

Tolal conlrachsal Lass than Between Betwaan Cver

cach fows 1yscr 1 .and 2 years 2 and S yeas Sysan

Em £m £m £m £m

Bank and other loans® 4902 w7 409 1728 2568
Convertible bonds 938 22 1.4 - -
Trade and other payables 1237 123.7 - - -

O
interest rote swops - effective 15.7 08 27 82 4.0 §
Interest rate swaps — ineffective - - - - - Q

723.4 1464 135.2 181.0 260.3 g

5]

|4
2015 g

g

Total contractual Less than Betweaan Batwean Qver 8
cash flows. 1y 1 and 2yeor 2 and 5 yeor Syear
£m £@m £m £m £m
Barnk and other loans® 5093 50.3 19.4 171.5 2679
Convertible bonds 96.1 22 22 91.7 -
Trade and other payobies a5 1155 - - -
Interest rate swaps — effective 2.1 0.3 0.6 48 3.4
Interest rate swaps - neffective - - - - -
730.0 168.3 224 2468.0 2713

* The coniroctual undiscounted cashfiows InCiude £108 8m (2015 £114 3m} in rekahon 1o the Compony.

During 2013 the Group issued £89.9m of convertible bonds, The bonds have a maturity date of 10 October 2018, Under the terms

of the Convertible 8ond, earty conversion of the debt into equity can be tripgered if the share price trades over 1.3 times the
conversion price for a pedod of time. As ot 31 December 2016 this threshold has not been friggered. This threshokd was triggered as ot
31 December 2015; the bondholders had the right to exercise until 31 March 2016: no bondhoiders exercised during this period. The
bondnoiders may exercise the Conversion Right in cenain crcumstances discysied above but this s confingent on o numier of
factors and therefore the bonds are shown to matuity in the above disclosure.,

) Covenant complionce

Many of the Group's funding focilities camy covenants. The Group monitors its covenant position and the headroom available on
an ongoing basis. At 31 December 2016, the Group was in fukl compliance with all of its borowing covenants. The Group is able to
use available cash o reduce debt to increase headroom on ifs loan to value (LTV) covenants. The covenant headroom position
ts outiined below and assumes that the Group is able to use a mixture of gvailabie cash ond add additional property to banks'

security pools.
31 Decomber 214 3 Dacerrber 2015 Q
Weightec weighled Wwasghted weghtad &
covenont ochul Zovenanl acha -
Loon 1o value 74% 5% 74% 9%° g
Interest cover 1.5 4.04 1.47 4.47 _g_
Minimum net weeth - - £250m £1.394 g

* Calkculated an the bass that available cash s used 1o reduce debt and avallable properly con be used as addifional security.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 4: Funding continved

4.6 Operating leases
a) Payable

Accounting poficies

Faymenis made under operating lecses are recognised in the income statement on a straight- ine basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives received ore recognised in the income statement as anintegrat part of the total lease expense. Where the property
l inferes! under an operating lease is ckassified as an investment property, the property nterest is accounted for os if it were a finance
lease and the far valve model b used for the asset mcognised.

The Group has a number of sale and leaseback properties which are accounted for as operating leases.

The tatal future minimum lease rentals payabie under non-cancelioble operating leases fall due for repayment as foliows:

2014 15

£m £m

Less than one yeor 1as 147
Between one and five years 562 572
More than five years 171.0 154.5
Tolal 2410 254

These leases primarily relate to properties which the group has sold and leased back and on which rental income s eamed. The leases
are generaly for periods between 13 and 18 years and subject to annual RPHbased rent review, The tofal operating lease expenditure
incurred during the year was £15.3 milion (2015: £15.4 millon).

b) Receivable
The Group accounts for its tenancy controcts offered 1o commercial and individual tenants as operating leases. The future minimum
lease payments receivable under non-cancelkoble operating leases are as follows:

1N x15

£m £m

Less than one year 7.1 85.4
Between one and five years 1404 1243
Mole than five years 2472 26.7
Tolal 484.7 23464

4.7 Capital management
The capital structure of the Group consists of sharehoiders' equity and adjusted net debt. including cash held on deposit. The Group's

equity & onalysed inte its various components in the Stotement of Changes in Equity, The components and calculotion of adjusted net
debt i set out in note 4.4. Capital k managed 5o as to confinue as o going concern and to promote the long-term success of the
business and to maintain sustainable retums for shareholkders and joint venture partners.

The Group uses a number of key meincs fo mancge its capital structure:

adiusted net debt (4.4)

adjusted gearing (4.4}

LTV (2.3q)

weighted average cost of investment debt (4.5aii)

¥V VYV

In order ta manage levels of adjusted gearing over the medium term, the Group seeks to deliver NAV growth and to recycle capital
invesied in lower performing assets into new assets and property developments. £132.4 million of property assets were sold in 2016 and
we pian to sel an average of £150 - £200 milion of property each year. The Group targets a vield on cost of approximately 7%. The
Group does not commit to developing new sites until sufficient equity and funding 1o fulfil the full cost of the development is secure.

The Board monitors the ablity of the Group to pay dividends out of ovailabie cash and distibutable profits. The Operations Segment
generated cash of £61,3 milkon (201 5: £40.8 miion] during the year, thereby coverng the propossd dividend of £40.0 milbon, 1.5 times
[2015: £33.2 million, 1.2 times).
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Secfion 4: Funding confinued
4.8 Equity
Accounting policies

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attibutable to the ksue of new shares, other than on a business
combinafion, are shown as a deduction. net of tax. in equity from the proceeds. Share issue ¢costs incured directly in connection
with a business combination are deducted from the proceeds of the issue.

The Company's issued share capital has increased during the year as follows:

&

2014 i . KL_ B o '8

Called up, ciotted and fulty pald ordinary shares of £0.25p o e ol g

aach No. of shores m £m  No.ofshares £m £m Q

At start of year 221,930,911 55.5 4933 201.541803 504 3858 ]

share placing - - - 20137326 50 1073 §

Share opﬂc_)ns exercised L 1_16,9(5 - 0.3 251,782 Q] 0.2 8
Al end of year ' 222,047,816 55.5 4936 221930911 555 4933

The holders of ordinary shares are entitied to receive dividends as declared from fime to firme and are entitfed to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. Al shares rank equdlly with regord to the Company's residual assets,

4.9 Dividends

Accounding policles
Dividends are recognised through equity on the earfier of their approval by the Company’s sharehoiders or ther payment.

During the year. the Company deckred and paid an interim dividend of £13.2 milkon - 6.0p per share {2015: £12.1 mition - 5.5p per
shore) and poid o £21.0 milion fingl dividend - 9.5p per shore relating 1o the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: £19.8 milion -9.0p
per share).

1S WISNYNI
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After ihe year end. the Directors proposed a final dividend per share of 12.0p {2015: 2.5p). bringing the total dividend per share for the
yeor fo 18.0p (2015 15.0p]. No provision fas been made in relation to this dividend.
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CONTINUED

Section 5: Working capital

THE UNITE GROUP PLT ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2815

This sacllon focuses on how the Group generates iz operating cash flows. Careful manogement of working caplial
is vital to ansure that the Group can mest it frading and financing obligafions within s ordinary operaling cycle.
©On the foliowing pages you will find disciosures around the Group’s cash posifion and how cash b generated from
the Group's lroding activitles, and disclosures around irade receivables and payables.

—

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting policles

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investrments that
are readiy convertfibie to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificont risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an ntegral port of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash

and cash equivakents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

The Group's cash position at 31 December 2014 was £42.7 milion (2015: £27.0 million).

At 31 Dacember 201 & the Cormpany had an overdraft of £0.t milion [2015: averdraft £1.4 milion).

The Group's cash balances include £13.4 milion [2015: £8.5 milion) whose use ot the balonce sheet date & resincted by funding
agreements to pay operating costs and loan interest reloting lo specific properties.

The Group generates cash from its operating activities as folows:

Glouph Compony
018 5 2016 M8
hote £m £m Em £m
Profit/loss) fox Ihe year 2254 3557 2138 289.9
Adjustments for
Depreciafion and amortsation 33 a4 26 - -
Far value of shore based payments 6.1 1.2 29 - -
Dividends received - - {132.3) (55.7)
Change in value of nvestment property 3.1 {77.2) (164.8) - -
Change in value of investments 35 - - {7F7.1} {236.3)
Net fnance costs 43 N8 230 (0.3) {0.3)
[Profit} loss on disposal of invesiment property (0.4} 0.6 - -
Share of joint venture profit 3.4b {94.8) [181.8) - -
Trading with jaint venture adjustment 75 155 - -
Tax chargef[credit] 2.5Q {25.0) 327 - -
Cash flows from operaling activilles before
changes in working caphtal 63.9 84.4 2.9) (2.4)
{Increose)/decrease in frode and other receivabies (20.4) (39.6) - -
Decrease/(increase) in completed property and property
under developrment - 70.1 - -
Decrease/(increase} in inventories 0.7 0.3 - -
Increase/ (decreqse) in trade and other payabies . 261 kK3 0.3 02
Cash flows trom operaling aclivities 70.3 120.8 {2.6) {22)

£25.6 million of the brought forwrd trade and ather receaivables was settled in units in the USAF rather than cash.

Cash flows consist of the following segmentat cash inflows/ [outiows}: Operations £61.3 milion (2015: £40.8 milion). property
(£6.0 rmilfion} [2015: (£48.3 mikion)) and unallocated (£39.6 miion) (2015: £6.2 miion). The unallocated amount includes Group
dividends (£34.2 miion) (2015; (£31.9 mition)). tax payable of [£2.2 million) (2015: (£0.3 milion)], investment in joint ventures (£rl)

{2015: [£52.4 mion)). confributians 1o UNITE Foundafion (£1.0 milkon) {2015: (£1.0 miion]} and amounts received from shares ssued

£0.3 milion {2015: £112.6 rrilion).
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Secfion 5: Working capital confinued
5.2 Trade and other receivables
Accouniing policies

Trade receivabies are initially recognised af the amount invoiced to the customer (far value} and subsequently af the amounts
considered recoverable (amoriised cosi]. Estimales are used in determining the level of receivables that wiil not, in the opinion of
the Board, be collected. These estimates include such factors as histoncal experience and industry specific factors. A provision for
impaiment of frade receivables is established when there is sufficient evidence that the Group will nat be able fo collect al amounts
due. The camying value of trade receivables is considered 1o approximate far value.

Trade and Other receivabies Can be analysed as follows, ol frade and other receivables are curent.

asuowaaoh syoiodiod

Group Company

o4 015 w14 015

tm £m tm £n

Trade receivables 17.8 2.3 - -
Amounts due from group undertakings - - 685.4 6393
Amounts owed by joint venfures 34.3 41.7 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 8.4 7.1 - -
USAF performance fee 84 256 - -
Ofher receivables 7.3 8.3 - -
Trade and other receivables 779 83.0 686.4 6393

The USAF perfformance fee will be settied in units in USAF.

The Group offers tenancy conlracts o commercial (Univessities and retall unit tenants) and individual tenants based on the academic
year. The Group monitons and manages the recoverability of its receivables based on the academic year 1o which the amounts
relate. Rental ncome i payable immediotely, therefore all receivabies relating 1o tenants are past the payment due date.

i
=
d
I~
S
=

2015
Ageing by scademic yécs
Tolal 200417 S/ 1é Pior peas
Em tm im Em
Cormmercial lenants (past due and impaired) 04 0.3 0.1 -
Individual tenants (past due and impaired) 188 174 0.¥ 05
Prowvisions camied (1.4) 0.1) (0.8) (0.5)
Trode receivables 178 17.6 0.2 -
2015
Ageng by Goodemic yecr O
Todal W54 01415 Pricr vexars 5
£m £m £m £m @
Rentat deblors oy
Commercial tenants {past due and impaired) 08 0.6 [eR] a1 g
Individual lenants [pas! due and impaired) 34 1.9 07 10 =
Provisions camed {2.1) {0.4) {0.6) .y >
Tracie receivables 23 2.1 02 -

Arnounts receivabie from joint ventures are not past due or impaied.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 5. Working capital confinued

5.2 Trode and othey receivables confinued
Movements in the Group's provision far impaiment of frade receivables con be shawn Qs folows:

2014 2015

tm £m
At January 21 1.7
lrmpairment charged o income statement n yeor a7 0.4
Receivables wiitten off during the year [utilisalion of provision) {14) -
A} 31 December 1.4 21

5.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group ¥ a customer or counterparty o a financial instrument faik to meet its contractuat
obigations, it arises principatty from the Group's cash balances. the Group's receivables from custorners and joint ventures and loans
rovided to the Group's joint ventures.

At the year end, the Group's exposure 1o credit risk was as folows:

2005 15

Noker £ £m

Cash 3.1 427 270
Trade receivables 52 178 23
Amounts due from joint ventures (exciuding keans thot are copital in nature) 52 3.3 4.7
96.8 no

a) Cash
The Group operates investment guidelines with respect 1o surplus cash. Counterparty limits for cash deposits are largely based upon
long-term ratings published by credit rating agencies and credit default swap rates.

b} Trade receivables

The Group's custormers can be split into two groups — (i} students (individuals] and (§] commercial organisations including Universities.
The Group's exposwre to credit fisk i influenced by the choracteristics of each customer, The Group holds tenant deposifs of

£8.5 million (2015; £7.8 milion) os collateral against individual custorners. Based on the Group's expernence and historical low level
of bod debt the Group views these receivabies as recoveroble balances with a low risk of default.

c) Joint ventures
Armounts receivabole from joint veniures falt nfo two cotegories — working capital balances and investment ioans, The Geoup has
strong working retationships with its joint venture partners therefore view this as a low credit risk balance.

5.4 Trade and other payables

Accouniing policies
Trade payables are initicly recognised at the value of the invoice received from a suppler (far value) and subsequently at amortised
cost, The camying value of frade payables & considered approximate to far value.

Trade and other payables due within one year can be analysed as follows:

Group Company
2016 015 2014 05
Im £m m £
Trade payables 148 207 - -
Retentions on construction contracts for properties 58 4.4 - -
Amounts due o group undertakings - - 1.3 58.2
Other payables and accrued expenses 45.8 525 a0 2.7
Defermed income B . ss3 @ 37 - -
Tracie and other payables 1237 1155 43 60.9

Other pavable and accrued expenses include £8.5 milkon {2015: £7.8 milkon) in retafion to customer depaosits. These will be relumed at
the end ol the tenancy subjact to the condition of the accommodation and payment of any outstanding amounts. Deferred income
reiales to rental income that has been collected in aavance of it baing recaognised as tavenue.
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Secfion 5: Working capital confinued
5.5 Transactions with other group companies

e

During the year, the Company entered into vorious interest free loans with its subsidianies, the aggregate of which are disclosed in
the cash fiow statement. In addition, the Company was charged by Unite Integrated Solutions pic for corporate costs of £2.5 milion

{2015: £2.3 miion}.

As aresutt of these infercompany transactions, fne following amounts were due (10} ffrom the Company's subsidianies at the year end.

2006 s

fm £m

Unite Holdings pic 707 103.7
LOC (Holdings) plc §15.7 5344
UNITE Jersey Issuer Lid - 1.0
Amounts due from Group ynderdakings 686.4 639.3
Unilodge Holding Ltd - (58.2)
Unilodge Holdings (UK} Lid - -
UNITE Jersey Issuer Ld . (1.3) -
Amounts due to Group undertaldngs (1.3) {58.2)

The Company has had a number of fransactions with its joint ventures, which are disclosed in note 3.4c.

The Campany has guaranteed £121 mition of its subsidiary companies' borowings {2015; £121 milion), The guarantees have been
entered into in the normal course of business. A liability would only arise in the event of the subsidiary failing to fulfil its contractual

abligations. These guarantees are accounted for n accordonce with IFRS 4.

Hoda) pibayong
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section é: Key management and employee benefits

' The Group's grealest resource i s stalf and & works hard fo develop and relain ity people. The remunaration policies

i o In place are clmed fo help recognise the confiibution thaf Unlie's pecple make fo the pedormance of Hhe Group.
Cver the next couple of pages, you will find disciosures on wages and salarkes and share opfion schemes which allow
employees of the Group to foke an squlty intenest In the Group.

4.1 Staff numbers and cosis
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Drectors) during the year. anclysed by category, was os fokows:

Numibar of empioyees

W16 015
Managerial and adminisirative 25 330
Site operatives 881 758
— 1,206 1,088

The aggregate payroX costs of these persons were as follows:
11 15
&m m
wages and saianies 384 37.5
Social security costs 34 35
USAF performmance tee bonus - 22
Pensicn costs 1.2 1.1
Far value of share based payments 1.2 2.9
44.0 472

The wages and sakxes costs include redundancy costs of £1.0 mikon [2015: £0.7 milion).

Full detais of the USAF performance fees are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 1o 49,

Accounling policies
The Group operates a defined conhibution pension scheme. Obiligations for conmbutions 1o defined confrbution pension plans are
recognised as an expersa in the income statement as incurad.

4.2 Key management personnel

The Board considers that the key management personnel within the Group are those appointed 1o the Board, Assuch, the
remunerafion of key manogement parscnnel is contained within the Remunesation Report on pages 84 to 95, which covers
he requirements of schegule 5 of the reievant fegistation.
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Section 6: Key management and empioyee benefils confinued

6.3 Share based compensdlion

A tronsaction i ckassifed as c share based fansaction where the Group receives services from employees and pays for these

it shawes or similar equity instruments. The Group operates a number of share based compensation schemes allowing employees

to acquire shares in the Company.

a) Share schemes

The Group operates the following schemes:

Execulive share option scheme - 'The Approved Scheme’ } Detail can be found in the Directors'

Execulive share option scheme - ‘The Unapproved Scheme' Remuneration Report n

Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) 2

Save As You Eam Scheme (SAYE] Open to employees, vesting periods of three g

to five years, service condifion 8

3

Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) Used o award part of Directors’ and senior a

maonagers' bonuses i shares, vest affer three E‘,

1]

years' continued service

b) Quistancding share oplions
The table below summarises the movements in the number of share options outstanding for the Group ond ther average

exercise price:

Number of Number of
Weighled average opllont  weghied average NG
exerche pice (housmnds) axarcee price [thousands)
014 04 215 2015
Cutstanding at 1 January £0.7 2774 £0.57 34618
Forfeited during the year £0.80 (495} £1.3 (168}
Exercised during the yeor £0.40 (845) £0.35 (1,337)
Granted during the year £1.47 679 £1.76 441
Qutsianding ot 31 December £1.32 2113 £091 2,774
Exercisoble at 31 December £0.58 109

For those options exercised in the year, the average share prce during 2016 was £6.24 (2015: £5.93).

For those options stil outstanding, the range of exercise prices at the yeor end was Op 1o 642p {2015: Op to 584p) and the weighted
average remaning confractual ke of these options wos 1.6 yeors (2015: 0.4 years).

The Group funds the purchase of its own shares by the 'Employee Share Ownership Trust” 1o meet the obiigations of the LTIP and
exacutive bonus scheme. The purchases are shown as ‘Own shares acquired’ in refained eamings. As at 31 December 2014 the
number of shares neld by the ESOT was 1,165,592 (201 5: 1,589,285).

The accounting is in accordance with the relevant standards. No further informatien is given as the amaunts for share based
payments are imrmcterial.

Secfion 7. Events after the balonce sheet date

In the normal course of business subsequent to the year end the Group completed one acquisifion fransaction on ¢ february 2017
and one disposal fransactons on 17 February 2017 within Investment Property and investment Property hetd within its Investment in
joint ventures,

Q
g
=l
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g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Secfion 8: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures

In accordance with Sechion 407 of the Companies Act 2006, a full st of subsidiaries and equity accounted investments as ot
31 Decembar 2016 is disclosed below. Untess otherwise stated, the Group’s ownership interest represents 100% of the ordinary shares,
unils or portnership capital held indirectly by Unite Group pic. No subsidicry undertakings have been excluded from the consolidation.

Registered office: The Core, 40 5t Thomas Streed, Brstol, BST 6JX

Banchim Lmitad

Frzhardinge Properties Lmted

Hinerncx Limiled 031282941

Infolorth Umited {D434200]

LDC (A1B Warehouse} Limbed

LD {Aco! Rood) Lmite

LOC (Bruned House] Limed (09760628)™

LDC (Comden Court Lecsetiald) mited (5140520
LEC (Camden Courl} e (OS0R267 1)+

LC {Capiat Ches Nominee o, 1) Umided

LOC (Caprtat Ches Normnes no, 2} Urmited

LDC (Capral Ches Nomnee na 3] Lmited

LOC (Capral Cies Nomnee no. 4) imred

LDC (Capiat Cies) Linrted

LDC (Cousewayand) Lmited

LDC {Chaniry Cour Leasehold) dmnied (05140299
LDC {Chaucer House] Uimited (09898020

LDC [Conshiuton Sieet) Umited {09210998)

LOC [Conskructon Two) Lrmited {D4847268) ™

LDC {Curmon Srmat} Limved (0462827 11

LDC {Eura Loan) Limded

LDC {Far Gestard) unied {091 501 49}

LDC [Fery Lane 2} GP 3 Lmfted

LDC [Feny Lane 2) GP 4 Limiled

LDC ey Lane 2) Holdings Lmsted

LOC {Fnance) Lrnded

LDXC {Frogmane Stree) umited® (033895351

LDC {Greetnam Skeot} Lrmted

LDC {Gt Suffok 51) Lrmited Parinership

LDC [5Gt Suffok 51) Manogement umiled Partrership
LDC (G Sutiok Street] GP1 Lrnited

LDC (Gt Suftole Street} GP2 Lrnited

LDC (Gt SufTolk Street] Hoktngs Limiked

LOC [Gt Suffol Sireet] Management GP1 Limited
LDC (Gt Suffalk Street) Mancgement GP2Lmited
LDC [Hampton Street) Limited D641 5978

LDOC (Hihead) imiled

LOC (Hoidings) PLC"

LDC {Holoway Road 3] Limited (Q6333899)

LDC {impendd What] Lmiled [04541678)™

LDC [Intemafional Housef Limitect | 10131352)™

LDC [James Waison Leasehold) umited {03928026]
LDC [Ketham Isand] Limed 5] 52229]

LDC {Lecsehoid A} mied {0A066933)°

LDC {teasehold B) Urmitedt [05978242)*

LOC Lowghbarought Lemited

LDC (Mognet Cour Leoschold) Lmted (05140258
LDC [Mansfield] GP1 Liried

DG [Mansfeld] GP2 umited

DG (Marsfiekd] GP3 urritad (07434025)™

LDC {Manshiekd) GP4 Umited {07434017)™

LDC {Mansfield) Lmited

LDC [Mansfield) Urmeted Partnership

DC [Marsiels) Manogement Limited Partnershen
LDC [Margaret Ruie Freehold) Lrmited (06641265
LDC (Margaret Ryl Leasehok) uimied (046412611~
LD (Milennium View) Lmited {0PBR03751™

LDC (MTF Porftolio] Lirnted

uDC (Nom Street) GP 3 Lmited

LDC (N Skeet} GP 4 Limedad

LDC {Maam Streat] Hokangs Urnited

LDC {Newgatke) Lmiked (08875667

LDC | New Wakefield) mied

LDC Ok Hospital) Umited (09702143)*"

LDC [Oxford Rocd Bounemouth) Urnited 104407307
LDC [Pihwares) Lrmuled (OS91HB624]

LDC (Porifobo 100) mded

LDC [Portioks 1) Lemited

LOC (Poriolo fre Mommee| Lrraled

LDC {Portolio Five) imited (06079581)

LDC {Portiolo Fow Lmded

LDC {Partfola One| mited

LDC (Porttoso Ten) Umeed 0687751 7)%

LOC {Portfolo) Limited

LOC (Progect 110} urited

LDC (Progect 111} Lrmted

LDC (Radmearsh Road) Lmded

LDC (Skeihomea] Uimded 98981321

LOC (Smythfield) Limited (03373096)

LOC {5t Leonards) immited (08895630}

LDC {5t Pancas Way) GP1 Umided

LDC (S Pancres Way) GP2 Umded

LOGC iSl Pancres way) GP3 Limitea

LDC (3! Panors Way) GP4 Lrntad

LOC {S) Pancrss Way) Hokdngs Umited

LEC {St Pancras Way] Limred Parnenstp
LD (5t Pancras way) Manogement Limited Parinershin
LDC ($t vincenis) Lrnited (1021831017

LDC (Swindon NHS) Lirmited

LOC (fara House) Lmited (092141277

LDC {Thursa Streel} GP ureded (071990221
LOC Murse Seet| GPZ Umided (071 989791~
LOC {Mhurso Street] GP3 Umied (074340011
LDC {Murso Street] GP4 Limited (074341 351"
LDC (Thurso Street) Lmited Parinershp

LEC (Thurso Streat] Manogamen! Lmited Parinenshg
LDC {venivrg) umited

1DC (vemnon Squarel Limed (G4444132)™
LDC (wiliam Mo 1) mited

LOC Capid Cihes Two [GP) Umited
Leadmill Rood GP Lrnded 10601 6429)™
Lennon Stuchos Sludent Accommodation Umited
Pestnership

LSAV {angel Lane] GP2 Uniied

LSAY [Angef Lane] GP4 Urnifed

LsAV (Strafforgy) GR3 umited

LSAY [Strafford) GF4 imited

LSAV (Wembiey) GP3 Lirnted

LSAV {Wembley) GP4 Lmited

LSAV Rent Collecton Umited

LsAV (Stapleton) GPA Limited

L5AV {Stapleton) GP4 Limited

Rolyord GP Lvaed 04014485

Rotyord Sfudent Accommodafion Limiled Partrersnip
Stargesat imded

The UNIE Foundahen

Unite Accommaciation Management |4 Lmied
070813) 4)

Uride Accommadahon Management 17 Urmitecd
(0B 53228

Unide Accommodation Manogement 18 limited
{0B328484)*

Unve Accomimodchon Management 19 U ifed
Unite Acoommodation Management 2 Limded
Unile: Accommuodation Managemen! 20 Lrmiled
unile Accommacdahion Monagemant 4 Limied
(063862251

Unite Accommodiahon Manogement & Limted
Unde Accomynodation Managemeant 3 Limiled
Unie Accommodaton Managemen* ¢ Limded
(D61 P0B&3™

Urite Accammodahon Maragemen! Lmited
Untte Accommodation Monagemen] One
Hundred plrmited

UNITE Cogital Cries Holdings Limmad

UNTE Consinuchon (Angel Lone) smitexd (0B792204) ™
UNTE Construchon [Sicpleton) Lrritect (0902340¢] ™
UNTE Construchon [Wermiolery | Lirred (09023474
Urwe Finance umitea™ 43530051

UMNITE France One [ACCarr modation Senaces) Limited
Urnle Anonea One (Holdwigs) Larded (04314207
UNITE Fnarce One (Property| Linited 04303331 )*
LMNTE FM Limvted (06807562)

UNTE Fex Success Umited

Unite Hokdlingss Lid® 00 1a8448)++

UNTE Homes Limded (Q5140242)™

Urde infegrated Schions po

Unie Loncion umded

Urie MOaUKE Souhons Limted

Uriber Rertt Collaction Lirretact {0SPE9351*

UMITE Student tvng Limiec

USAF GP NO 11 Managemeant Limded

USAF LP Lirmitexd (05860874~

USAF Managoment GF No 14 umidec

USAF Manogement GF ~o.15 umited

USAF Management GP No. ) 4 Lrmitect

USAF Managemert GP Mo 17 immad

USAF Nommee No 7 Lim e

USAF Norrines iNo 7A Uriked

Zenth (Two} Laenited

LSAF Monagemeant 10 bmited

USAF Management 11 Lrmied

USAF manogement 12 Lmided

USAF Management |4 Lmied

USAF Management 18 e

USAF mManagemen] & Lrsled

LSAF Management 8 Lriled!

USAF Manogement umied

LDC {Feiry Lane 2| GP 1 umitexd [SD.00%)

LOC {Feny Lane 2 GP 2 Limied (SO.00%)

LDC {Ferry Lane 2] Lrniea Parinership (50 009%)
LDC [Fery Lane 2) Monagerman' Urted Partnershis
15000%)

LDG Stratford; GPI Lrsed [50.009)
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Section 8: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures continved

Registered office: The Core, 40 $t Thomas Sireet. Bistol, BS1 61X

LDC [Shatfard) GP2 Lmided {50.00%)

LDC {Sratford) Lmied Parnership (S0.00%)

LSAV {Angel Lone) GP1 Limied {SO.00%}

LSAV {Angel Lone) GP2 Limited (S0.00%)

L34V [Angel Lane) Livked Porinashg | S0.00%)

LSAV (Anpet Lona) Monogement Lrnied Parirersten
{S0.00%)

LSAY {Stoskatan) Umited Partiarshin 150 00%)

LSAY {Siapieion] Management Lirrad Partnersnn
15000%)}

LSAV [Sirctford) Managameni Limitad Partnarhip
150:00%}

LSAav (Wemioley) GPI1 Urmited (S0.00%)

LSAV {Wembley) GP2 mited {S0.00%)

LAY {Wembley) Limded Farinershw (50 00%)

LSAY (Wamblay] Monogement Limmied Partnershp
50:00%)

LSAV(Siopleion) GP1 Lrrwied {50.00%)

LsaviSiopheton) GP2 Limited {50.00%}

Urwie Copxiat Ches umited Partnarshp (50 00%)

Urrte Caprdal Criles Two Limited Partnersh (50 00%)
USAF Management No | 5 Limled Parterstup (22.20%)
USAF Management No. |6 Limited Portnershep (Z1.20%)
USAF Management MNo. 17 Umiked Partnenshp (23.20%}
USAF No | 5 Umiled Partnership [Z3.20%)

Fbert viloge Student Accommodaton Limitea
Parmership (22.90%)

Ferster Hol Umided Partrershes (22.90%)

Student Hok Nominees Lrmiad (22.50%}

USAF Manogement No 18 LP (2290%)

USAF ho | bmided Portnershe (22.90%)

USAF No 10 Limited Partnessren [22.90%)

USAF No 11 Uinited Portmassrg 122.90%)

USAF ho 1| Monagement Lmted Partnenhip (22.90%)
USAF No 12 Limited Parinershp 122 90

USAF ND 14 Limfiled Partnershep [22.90%)

USAF No |4 Management Limdad Partnarshio (72 0%
USAF Mo 15 Limited Partnedsig [22.90%)

USAF Mo 4 Umited Potnerstup (22.90%)

LSAF No 8 Lmved Pantnarship [22.90%)

LDC {Nom Skeet) Urnded Parnership (22.80%)

LDC {Nowm Sreet] Manopament umied Parinershin
(22B0%)

Fbert vikage GP Limitext {14 40%)

Forster Holl GP Urded! |14 40%)

LD (Nawm Street) GP | Limited ) 4.40%)

LDC (Nean Shreet) GP 2 Limited |1 4.40%)

USAF Finance 1 Lrmited (14.40%)

USAF GP No 1 Limsteadl {14.40%)

USAF GP Vo 10 Limited {14.40%)

USAF P No 1| Limied {1 4.47%}

USAF GP No 12 Limited {14.40%)

USAF GP Na 14 Limited {14 0%}

USAF GP Mo 4 Lifriteds {1 4.40%}

USAF GP No 15 Lrrfed {14 40%}

USAF P Na 18 rmited {1 4.40%)

USAF GP No 5 Limstexct {1 4,40%)

USAF GP No 4 Limeted {14.40%)

LISAF GP No 8 Lrmrted (14.40%)

Regislered office: 13 Caslle Sireet, 5t Heller, Jersey, JE4 5UT

LD (G Suffolk 51) Uret Trust
LLC (Monsfiekd) Line Trust

LDC [$1 Poncros Waoy] Urif Tasst
LBC {Thurso Strest) Uit Trust

LSAV (Jersey Managest Limited
Uriter {Capitcl Cities) Jersey Lirnded
UNITE Jersey fmuer Limited®

USAF jersey investments Limted
USAF Jarsey Manoger imded

LDC (Fexry Lane 2) Ut Trust (S0.00%)
LDC (Swatford Und Trusl (50.00%)
LSAV [Hokdngs) Ureddedt (50.00%)
LSAY {Trustes] Urmded [50.00%)
LSAV Urwt Trust (50.007%)

Registered office: Third Floor, Lo Ploiderie Chambery, $t Peter Porl, Guemsey. GY1 IWG

USAF Feader Guenmsey Limiled (45.20%]
USAF 15F Und Trust (23.20%)

Regisiered office: Third Floor, Barclays House, Victona Sireet, Douglas, Isie of Mon, IM1 2LE

Leaamill Road Slucent Accommodiation U Trust
Lennon Stucios Student ACCommadonon Unt Tnust

USAF Porttodo 15 Lt Trust (23.20%)
USAF Portfolo 16 Unkt Trust (23,205}

The Rodvard Student Accomrradafion Uit Trust

Regisiered office; Saltre Court, 20 Costie Terroce, Edinburgh, EH1 2 EN

LSAV [GP) Lrmded {50 00%)

* Heid directly by the Company.

LSV (Property Holdngs) LP{S0.00%)

USAF Holdingys B Limrted (14.40%)

USAF Holdinggs C Limied |14.40%)
USAF Holaings F Lmitet (14 40%;

USAF Holdings G Linoied {1 4.40%)
USAF Holcings H Lmited [14,40%)
USAF Holdings 1 Limadec {1 4 a0%)

USAF Holdings. J Limied {14.40%.)

USAF HoldIngs Limded {14.40%)

USAF Normeee No 1 Urmetedd [14.40%)
USAF MOmnee NO 10 Limited [) 4 40%)
USAF NOMINesa No 10A Limited {1 4.40%)
USAF Nomiree No 11 Lnded (14 40%)
USAF Nominee No 114 Limied {14 40%)
USAF Nominee No 12 smided (14 40%)
USAF Normnge No 1 2A Linited {1 4.40%)
USAF Normunee No 14 umited {1 4.40%)
USAF Norminee No 144, Livited {14.40%)
USAF Nominee No 18 Limided (14 40%)
USAF Normunee No 184 Lirniled (14 40%)
LUSAF Nerninge No 1A Limided (14.40T)
USAF NOfmines No 5 Limited (14 40%)
USAF Norminee No SA Limdect [14.40%)
USAF Nomnee No & LerWed {14.40%)
USAF Nommnee NO &A mped (14.40%)
LSAF Nominae Ne B Limwted [ 14.40%]
USAF Nominee No 8A Limidad [14,40%)
USAF RCC Urnged {14 40%}

UNITE Copital Cifies Uit Trust {5C.00%)
Shucent Halls Long Laase * Unk Trust (72 90%)
USAF Poxifcno 18 Urn Trust (2.90%)

LOC (NGim Stroet} Uit Frust (22.80%)

UNITE UK Shudent Accommodation Fund (14.40%)

USAF Portfolo 17 Unit Trust {23.20%)

Fbart Sraet Student Accommodahon Und Trust {22,.90%)

* The company is exampt flom the requiremments of the Companies Act relafing to the audil ofindividual accounts by viue of s479A for the finoncial year

ended 31 December 2016.
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FINANCIAL RECORD

2018 2005 04 2013 2
EPRA NAV per share [pence) 646 579 434 382 as0
IFRS NAY per share (pence)} 453 574 416 arnn 321
EPRA net assets (£m) 1557 1,394 831 4682 567
IFRS net assets (£m) 1,452 1,275 843 653 514
Managed portfolio valve [£Em) 4327 3827 2951 2,736 2.688
L7V adjusted see-through (%) u% 35% 43% 9% 52%
EPRA earnings (£m} 41 50 33 3 16
Profitf(lossh before tax {Em) il 388 108 77 126
EPRA eamings per share (pence} 28 29 17 F:] 10
Adjusted EPRA earnings per share {pence) 28 23 17 14 10
IFRS eamings per share {pence} o 164 53 4% 78
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of The Unite Group pic {the Company] will be held at 3 Rivergate, Temple
Quay. Bristol BS1 6GD at 10,00am on 11 May 2017 for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing Resolutions 1 10 14 as
ardinary resolutions and Resolutions 15 1o 18 as special resolutions.

Ordinary Resolutions

Annual Report and Accounts

1.  Torecewe the audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 together with the Diractors’
Report, the Strategic Report and the awditors' report on those annual accounts {the Annuat Report and Accounts).

Direciors’ Remuneration Report
2. Toapprove the Directors’ Remuneration Report contained within the Annuol Report and Accounts.

Fingt dividend
3. Todeciare afinal dividend for the yeor ended 31 December 2016 of 12.0p per ordinary share payabile on 1§ May 2017
to shareholders on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on 21 April 2017.

Re-election of Directon
4. Tore-elect Mr P M White as a Director of the Company.

4. Tore-elect MrR S Smith as a Director of the Company.
6. Tore-elect mr J J Lister as o Direclor of the Company.
7. Tore-elect MrR C Simpson as a Director of the Company,
8. Tore-elect Mrs M Wolstenholme as o Director of the Company.
9. Tore-elect Sir Tim Wilson as a Director of the Company.
10, Tore-elect MrA Jones as a Director of the Company.
. Tore-elect Ms Elizabeth McMeikan as o Director of the Company.
Avuditors
12. Toreappoint Deloitte LLP as auditors of the Company o hold office until the conclusion of the next general meeting at which
accounts are koid befora the Company.
13. To auvthorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors,
Authority to allot shares
14, That. in substitution for any equivalent authorities and powers granted to the Directors prior to the passing of this Resolution, the
Directors be and are generally and unconditionally aouthorised pursuant to Section 551 of the Companias Act 2006 (the Act):
[a} To exsrcise all powers of the Company to aliot shares in the Company, and grant rights to subscribe far or to convert any
security into shares of the Company (such shares, and rights 1o subscritbe for or 10 convert any security inlo shomes of the
Company being “relevant securities”), up to an aggregate nominal amount of £18,505,732 [representing approximalely one
third of the nominal value of the issued ondinary share capital of the Company as ot 22 February 2017). such amount to be
reduced by the nominal amount of any allciments or gronts made under paragroph (b} below in excess of £18,505,732
(b} Toallot equity securities {as defined in Section 540(1} of the Act) up to an aggregate nominalamount of £37.011,464
{representing approximately two-thirds of the nominai value of the Issued amdinary share capital of the Company as
at 22 February 2017) (such amount to be reduced by the norminal amount of any alloiments or grants made under
paragraph {a) above) in connection with an offer by woy of rights issue:
{if Infavourof holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company, where the equity securities respechivety

attribuioble to the interests of such holders are proportionate (as nearly os practicabia) to the respective number
of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company held by them
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

{i}  To hoiders of any other equity securifies as required by the rights of those securities or os the Directors otherwise
consider necessary

but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Direclors may deem necassary or expedient to deal with

in retation to treasury shares. froctionat entitiements or legat, reguiatory or praoctical problems arising under the lows or
requirements of any averseas temitory or by virtue of shares being reprasented by depository receipts or the requrements
of ony relevant reguiatory body or stock exchange or any other matter whatsoever, provided that this guthority shall expire
{uniess previously renewed, vared. extended or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the date falling 15 months
from the possing of this resolulion or, it eariier, ot the conclusion of the next Annual Generol Meeting of the Company to be
held following the passing of this resolution, save that the Company may at any time before such expiry make an offer or
enter into an agreemeant which woukd or might raquire relevant securities ta be atlotted after such axpiry and the Directors
may allot relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if 1his authority had nof expired.

Speciol Resolutions
Authodty to disapply pre-emplion rights

15,

Thot if Resolution 14 [Authority to allof shares) s passed, the Board be autharised to aliot aquity securities {as defined in the
Companies Act 2004) for cash under the authority given by that resolution andsor 1o sell ordinary shares beld by the Company
as treasury shares for cash as if Section 561 of the Companies Act 2005 did not cpply 1o ony such allotment or sale. such
authority 10 be limited:

la) To oliotments for rights issues and other pre-emptive issues: and

(b} To the allotment of equity securifias or sale of treasury shares [otherwise than under poragroph (o] above} up to a nominat
amount of £2,775,859 |this amaount represaenting not more than 5% of the gsued ordinary share capital of the Company as
at 22 February 2017),

such outhority to exprre of the end of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company jor, if earlier, at the close of business
on 10 August 2018, 1his being Ihe dote which is fiffteen months ofter the date of this meeting} bui, in each case, prior to ifs expiry
the Company may make offers, ond enter into agreements, which would, or might, require squity securities lo be alloted [ond
treasury shores o be sold) after the aulhority expires and the Board may aliot equity securities (ond sell reasury shares) under
any such offar or agreement as if the authority had not expired.

That if Resolution T4 (Authority to allot shores] 5 parsed, fhe Board be authorised in addifion fo any authorify grantfed under
Resclution 15 1o allot equity securities (as defined in the Companies Act 2004) for cash under the authority given by that
resalution and/or to sell ordinary shares held by the Company as freasury shares for cash as if Section 561 of the Companies
Act 2006 did not apply to any such ollotment or sale. such authority 1o be:

{o) Limited 1o the cliotment of equity securities or sale of treasury shares up to a nominal amount of £2,775,859 {this amount
rapresenting not more than 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Campany as of 22 February 2017); ond

{b) Used only for the purposes of financing [or refinancing, if the guthority is 10 be used within six manths after the original
transaction} a transaction which the Board of the Compxany determines to ba an acquisition or other capitat investmant
of a kind contempiated by the Statement of Principles on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recantly published by the
Pre-Emption Group prios to the dote of this nofice,

such avthority to expire af the and of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company {ar, if eariier, at the close of business
on 10 August 2008, this being the date which is filleen maonths after the date of this meefing) but, in each case. prior 1 its expiry
the Company may make offers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, require equity securities 10 be alloted (and
treasury shares to be sold) after the authority expires and the Board may aliot equity sacurities [and sell treasury shares) under
any such oter or agreement as if the authority had not expred.
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To amend Arficle 94 (Directors’ fees) of the Arlicles of Assoclalion
17.  That, Article 94 {Directors’ fees) of the Arficles of Association be amended by deleting the existing Article 94 and replacing it
with the fallowing:

“The Directors jother than alternate Directors) shall be entitied to receive by woy of fees for their services as Direclors such sum
as the Board may from time 1o time determine {not exceeding £750,000 per annum in aggregate or such other sum os the
Company in general meeting shall from time to time determine}. Such sum [unless otherwise directed by the resolution of the
Company by which it is voted) shall be divided among the Directors in such propostions and in such manner as the Board may
delermine or in dafault of such determination, equally [except that in such event any Director holding office for less than the
whole of the relevant period in respect of which the fees are paid shall only rank in such division in proportion fo the time during
such period for which he holds office}. Any fees payable pursuant to this Arficle shall be distincl fram any salary, remuneration
of other amounts payable to a Director pursuant to any other provisions of these Articles and shall accrue from doy o day.”

Notice of generol meetings
18. THAT, a general meeting other thon an Annual General Mesting, may be called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice.

By order of the Board
Christopher Szpojnarowicz

Company Secretary
22 February 2017

s3uDwWar0b aprodiosy

Registered office:

The Core

40 § Thomas Sireet Bristol
BSY &JX

Registered in England and Wales with registered number 03199160
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

Notes

I. A member of the Company who wishes to attend the meeting in persen should arive at 3 Rivergote, Temple Quay. Bristol 851
&G0 in good time before the meeting, which will commence at 10.00am In order to gain admittance io the meeting, members
may be required fo croduce thair attendance card, which is attached to the formm of proxy enclosed with this document, or
otherwise prove their identity,

2. A member of the Company who is entitied to altend, speak and vole al the meeting and who is unabie or does not wish to
attend the meeting is entitled o appoint g proxy to axercise all or any of his/her rights 1o attend and 10 speck and vole on his/
her behaff at the mesiing. A member may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy s appointed o exercise rights
attached lo different shares [so @ member must have rore than one share to be able to cppoint rora thon one proxy). A
proxy need not be a member of the Company but must atiend the meeting o represent his/her appointing member. Appointing
a proxy will not prevent o mermber from oftending in person ond voling at the meeting although voling in person at the meeting
will terminate a member's proxy appoiniment. A proxy must vote in accordance with any instructions given by the member
by whom the proxy is appointed. A form of proxy which may be used to make such appointment and give proxy instructions
occompanias this notice. You can only gppoint a proxy using the procedures set out in these notes and the notes 1o the
proxy form.

3. Tobe vaid, any form of proxy. and the origingi or duly certified copy of the power of attamey or other authority {if any) under
which itis signed or aythenticated, must be received by hand or by post at Computershare Investor Services plc, The Pavilions,
Bridgwater Road, Bristol, 8599 42Y, no iater than 10.00am on ¢ May 2017.

4. CREST members who wish to appoint g proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appoiniment service may do so
for the meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by following the procedures descriced in the CREST manual. CREST personal
members or other CREST sponsared members, and ihose CREST members who have appointed a vofing service provider,
should refer to their CREST sponscr or vating service provider(s). who will be able to take |he appropriate oction on their behalf,

5. In ordar for a proxy oppointment or instruction made by means of CREST 1o be valid, the appropriate CREST message [a CREST
Praxy Instruction) must be property authenticated in accordance with Eurocikear UK & Ireland Limited's [Eurocleor) specifications,
and must contain the information required for such instruction, as described in the CREST Manual. The massage, regardiess of
whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy, the revocaotion of a proxy or is an omendment to the instruction given o a
previously appointed proxy must, in order to be a valid, be tronsmitted so as to be received by the Comparny's agent (CREST ID
3RAS50) by the latest time for receipt of proxy appointments specitied in note 3 obove. For this purpase. the time of receipt will
be token to be the time (as determined by the fimestamp applied to the messoge by the CREST Application Hest] from which
the Compony's agent is obie to refrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this fime
any change of instructions fo proxies appointed through CREST shouid be communicatad fo the appointee through other meons.

4. CRESTmembers and, where appiicabia, their CREST sponsors or voling service providers, should nole that Eurocledar does not
make availoble speciol procedures in CREST for any particyiar message. Norrnal system timings ond limitations will, therefore,
apply in relation to the input of CREST proxy instructions, (Hs the respansibility of the CREST mamber concerned to take {ox, i the
CREST member is o CREST personal member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a voting service provider, ta procure
that his/her CREST spansor or voting service pravidaer(s) takels)) such oction as shall be necessary 1o ensure that a message is
fransmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular tirme. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable.
their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, o those sections of the CREST manual concerning
practical limitations of the CREST systerm and timings.

7. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST proxy instruction in the circumstonces set out in Reguiation 35(5) (a of the Uncertficated
Sacurities Regulations 2001{os amended),

8. If you would like to submit your proxy vote via the internat, you can do so by accessing our registrar’s wabsite
[www.eproxyappointment.com). You will require ihe control number, your unique PIN (which will expire at the end of tha voling
period) and your Sharehoider Reference Number {SRN}), printed on the proxy card, in order 1o log in ond submit your proxy vote
electronically. You can occess this site from any internet enabled PC. If you submit your proxy via the internet it should reach the
registrar by 10.00am on 9 May 2017. Should you compilete your proxy form electronically and then post g hard copy, the form
thaot arrives last will be counted to the exclusion of instructions received earlier, whether electronic or posted. Please refer to the
terms and conditions of the service on the website.

9 Inthe cose of joint holders of shares, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, onty the appointment
submitted by the rmosi senior holder will be accepted. $eniority is determinad by the order in which the names of the joint
holders appearin the Company's register of members in respect of the joirt holding {the first-naomed being the most senior).

10, if you submit more than one valid proxy appointment in respect of the same shares, the appointment received last before the
latest time for the recaipf of proxies will take precedence.



THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANMLIAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2416 15%
-

19.

Any person 10 whom this notice has been sent wha is @ person nominated under Section 146 of the Act to enjoy information
rights [a Nominated Person) may. under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/she was nominated.,
have aright 16 be appointed {or fo have someane else appeinted] as o proxy for the meeting. if a Nominated Person has no
such proxy appointment right or daes nat wish to exercise it, he/she may. under any such agreemant, have a right fo give
instructions fo the shareholger as fo the exercise of voling rights.

. The staterment of the rights of shareholders in relation to the appointment of proxies above does not apply fo Nominated

Persons. These rights con only be exercised by shareholders of the Company.

Pursuant fo Part 13 of the Companies Act 2006 and Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 (os amended],
the Company specifies that only those sharehoiders registered in the register of members of the Company atf 5.00pm on ¥ May
2017 for. if the meeting is adjourned. 48 hours befors the timed fixed for the edjourned meeting) shall be entitied 1o oitend or
vote af the meeting in respect of fhe number of shares registered in their nome of that time. in each case, changes fo the
register of members of the Company after such time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend

or vote al the meeting.

. Asat 22 February 2017 [belng the last practicable business day prior fo the publication of this Notice), the Company’s issued

share cepilal comprised 222,048,787 ordinary shares carnrying one vote each at a general meeting of the Company. No
ordinary shares were held in treasury and therefore the total voting rights in the Company os at 22 February 2017 are 222,0568,787.

. You may not yse any electronic address provided either in this notice of meeting or any related documents [including the proxy

forrm) fo comrmunicate with the Compeny for any purposes other than those expressly stated.

Members attending the meeting have the right to ask and, subject fo the provisions of the Act, the Company must cause to be
answered. any questions relafing fo the business being dealt with at the meeling.

The following information is availalble at www.unite-group.co.uk (1) the matters set out in this notice of Annual General Meeting:
[2) the total numbers of shares in the Company in respect of which members ore entitled to exercise voting rights at the meating:
{3} the totals af the voting rights that members are entitied ‘o exercise ot the meeting; and {4} members’ sialemsnis, members’
resolufions and members' matters of business received by the Company ofter the date on which notice of the meeting

was given.

It is possible that, pursuant to requests made by members of the Company under Section 527 of the Act, the Company may

be required o publish on a website a statement setting out any matter relating to: (o} the audit of the Company’s accouns
{including the auditor's repert and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the meefing; or (b} any circumstance
connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing 1o hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and
reports were hid in accordance with Section 437 of the Act. The Company may nol require the members requesting any such
websile publication 1o pay its expenses in complying with Sections 527 or 528 of the Act. Where the Compony is required fo
ploce a statement on a website under Section 527 of the Act. it must forward the siatement to the Company’s auditor not later
than the time when it makes the stalement avaitable on the website. The business which may be deolt with ot the meeting
includes any statement that the Company has been required under Section 527 of the Act to publish on o website.

In accordance with Section 338 of the Act, @ member or members of the Company may [provided that the criterio set out

in Section 338(3) of the Act are met) require the Company to give to members notice of a resolution which may properly

be moved and is inlended 1o be maved at the meeting, provided that: {a) the resolution must not be. if passed, ineffective
twhether by reason of inconsistency with any enactment or the Company's constitution or otherwise; and (b) the resolution
must not be defamatory of any person, frivolous of vexatious. Such o request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form,
must be authenticated by the person or persons making it, must identify the resolution of which notice is fo be given and must
be received Ly the Compony nct later than six weeks before the meeting, or, If later, the fime at which nofice is given of the
meeting. {In the foregoing sentence. the ferms 'hard copy forrm’, ‘electronic form' and "authenticated’ bear theirrespective
meanings set out in the Act in relation fo a communication, or a document or information sent or supplied, to o company.}
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

20. In accordance with Section 338A of the Acl, @ memier or members of the Company may {provided that the criteria sat out
in Section 338A (3] of the Act are met} requine the Company fo include in the business to be dealt with at the meeting a matter
{other than a proposed resolution) which may properly be included in the business of the meeting. provided that the matteris
not defomatory of any person, frivolous or vexatious. A request may be in hard copy form or electronic form, must identify the
matter o be ncluded in the businets, must be accompanied by a stiatement setting out the grounds for the request, must be
authenticoted by the person or persons making it and must be received by the Company not later than six weeks before the
moeling, or. if iater, the fime at which notice is given of the Annual General Meeating. (In the foregoing sentence, the terms ‘hord
copy form, ‘electronic form' and ‘authenticated” bear the respective maanings set out in the Act in relation to a communication,
or a document or informertion sent or supplied, 1o o company.)

21. A member that is a company or other organisation not having a physical presence cannot gtiend in person but can appeint
somaone to represent it. This can be done in one of two ways: aither by the appointrnent of a proxy (as described in the notes
abovel or of a corponate reprasentative. Members considering the appaointment of a corporale representative shoukd check
thesr own legal position, the Company’s articles of association and the relevant provisions of the Act.

22. The fallowing documents are availkable for inspection at the registered office of the Company during the usual business hours
on any weekday (Saturday, Sunday or public holidays excluded from the date of this nofice until the conclusion of the meeting
and will ako be availabie for inspection af the ploce of the meeting from 9.15am on the day of the meefing untilits conciusion:
o) copies of the Executive Directors’ service controcts with the Cormpany and any of its subsidiary undertakings: and

{b} letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors.
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GLOSSARY

Adjusted EPRA earnings

Adjusted EPRA earnings are prepaned
on the basis of EPRA eamings excluding
the yield reloted elerment of the USAF
performance fee.

Ad|usted EPRA eamings per share
The eamings per share based on adjusted
EPRA eqarnings.

Adjusted net debt

The Group's debt. net of cash and
unamaortised debt raising costs, excluding
the mark to market of interest rates swaps.

Adjusted net debt

to pro assels

The adjysted net debt as o percentage
of the volue of Unite properties.

Basis points (BPS)

A basis point Is o term used to describe o
small percentage, usuadly in the context
of change, and equates to 0.01%.

Direct let

Properties where short-hold tenancy
agreements are mode directly between
Unite and the student.

EBITDA

The Group's EPRA earnings befcre
charging interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation. The profit numberis used to
calculote the ratic 1o net debt.

EPRA earnings

EPRA eamings are prépored on the basis
recommended for real estate companias
by EPRA, the European Public Real Estate
Association. This excludes movements
relating to changes in values of
invesfmeant properties and interesf rafe
swaps and the related tax effects.

EPRA earnings per share
The earnings per share bosed on
EPRA samings.

EPRA NAV

EPRA NAV is prepared an the basis
recommended for real estate companies
by EPRA, ihe European Public Reai Estate
Association. Thisincludes all property

ot market value but excludes the mark

to market of interest rate swaps. Thisis
recommended by EPRA Qs @ measure

of net assats.

EPRA net asset valve per share
The diluted NAV per share figure based
on EPRA NAV,

EPRA NNNAV

As EPRA NAV but includes both debt

and interest rate swaps coried at market
value. This is ecommended by EFRA

s a 'spat’ foir value net asset measure.

Financing costs

Gross financing costs net of inferest
capitalised into developments ond
intarest received on deposits.

Gross asset value

The Graup's wholly owned property
portfolic together with the share of the
Joird Venturas property portfolio.

Gross financing cosis

This includes allinterest poid by the
Group, including those capitalised
into developments and operating
lease rentals.

Itincludes all receipts ond payments
under interest rate swaps whether they
are effective or neffective under IFRS
as econhomically they all hedge inlerest
rate exposures.

Interest cover ratio (ICK)

The interest cover ratio is the income
generated by a property as a multipe of
the interest charge on the debt secured
on the property.

181

lease

Properties which ara leased ic Universities
for o number of years and have no Unite
management presence.

LSAV

The Londen $tydent Accomemodation
Joint Venture (LSAV) is ajoint venture
between Unite and GIC, olongside UCC.
Both Unite and GIC have g 50% stoke
and LSAY has the some maturity date as
UCC {(September 2022), It is the primary
vehicle through which Unite undertakes
develocpment acfivity in London and it
has right of first refusal over tnite's London
development pipeline projects until such
time as its capital investment targets are
met. LSAV and UCC were merged during
2012 and the new combined entity is
referred to as LSAV.

Net debt: EBITDA

The Group see-through debt, net of cash
and unamortised debt raising costs and

exciuding mork to market of interest rate
swOIp§ as o proportion of EBITDA.

Net inltial yield (NIY or yield)

The net operating income generated by
a property expressed as a percentage
of its value, faking into account notional
acquisition costs.

Net operating income (NOI)

The rentalincome from rental properties
less those opevating costs directly related
to the property. therefore excluding
central overhead.

Net rental growth

The annual growth in net operating
income (measured on a like-for-like
basis, ie excluding impact of completion
and disposals).
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GLOSSARY
CONTINUED

Nominatlons

Properties whate Universities have
entered info a confroct fo guarontee
occupancy. The Universities nominate
students to live in the buiding and Unite
enters into short-hokl tenancigs with
the students.

Non-core assets

Properfies that do not fit with the Group's
long-term invastment sirategy because of
their location or their size.

Overhead efficiency

The Group's overhead efficiency
measures shows operating @xpanses,

net of management faegs, as a propaortion
of the gross asset value.

Rental properties

Investment and completed propertias
whose construction has been completed
and are used by the Operations segment
fo generate net portiolio contribution.

Sale and leaseback
Properties that have been sold to

< third party inveastor then lecsed
back to the Company. Unite is also
responsible for the management of
these assets on behalf of the owner,

See-through

See-through refers to the Group's wholy
owned assats or labilties in addition

to the share of the joint ventures (USAF
and L3AV} assels or liabiities.

Total income from

managed portfolio

This measure indicates the overall scate
of the property portfolio that the Group
manages. it comprises rental and related
income, totalling £304.9 mitiion from
properties owned by Unite and its
co-investment vehicles.

The Group's share of this gross ncome
is shown in note 2.2(al.

USAF/THE FUND

The Unite UK Student Accommodation
Fund [USAF] &s Europe’s largest fund that
purely focusas on completad income
praviding student accommadation
investment assets. The fundisan
open-ended infinite life vehicle which
hos unique buying access to Unite's
development pipeline. Unite acts as
fund manoger for fhe fund, as well as
owning & significant minority stake.
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Lodes MBejoug

Unite Group Executive Team
Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer

Jos Lister
Chief Finoncial Officer

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director

Registered Office
The Core

4051 Thomas Street
Bristol BST 6.X

Registered Number In England
3199140

Company Secretary
Christopher Szpojnarowicz

aoupwaneb sjosodioD

Auditor

Deloltte LLP

2 New $Street Square
London EC4 382

Financial Advisers
J.P. Morgon Cazenove
25 Bank Street

London E14 5JP

Numis Securfiles

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square

Londan EC4M 7LT

SIUBIBID)S |DOUDULY

Registrars

Cornpuiershare Investor Services pic
PO Box 82

The Pavilicns

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 7NH

Financial PR Consultants
Ball Poftingar

Holborn Gate

2¢ Souvthampton Buikdings
London WC2ZA [PB
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OTHER INFORMATION

THIS REPORT IS COMPLEMENTED

BY A RANGE OF ONLINE INFORMATION
ABOUT OUR BUSINESS INCLUDING OUR
OPERATIONS AND PROPERTY DIVISIONS,
OUR MARKETS, AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY.

WHERE TO
FIND M 0 RE wwwunime-roupcouk



The linile Group pic

The Core

40 5t Thomas Street
Bristol BS1 6JX

+44 (0] 117 302 7000
info@unite-students.com

www,unile-group.co.uk
www.inifestudents.com



